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My Dear Shareowners 
We are pleased to present to you our Sixteenth Annual Report for 
the year 2019-20. 

2019-20 was an extremely challenging year for the global 
economy and was marked by mul�ple upheavals. Trade conflicts, 
poli�cal uncertain�es, heightened vola�lity in commodity prices 
with some never before seen developments with respect to crude 
oil, protec�onism etc. 

Towards the end of the fiscal, unprecedented impact was 
witnessed from the global spread of the COVID-19, which caused 
turmoil across markets worldwide. Fiscal Year 2019-20 was a 
difficult year for the Indian economy also. During the financial year 
ended March 2020, the Indian economy registered a GDP growth 
of 4.2%, declining consistently from Q1 of 2020 when it grew by 
5.2%. However, in Fiscal 2019-20, the Indian Economy was 
benefi�ng from lower interest rates, witnessed benign infla�on, 
improved liquidity and was on course to witness improved tax 
collec�ons. Towards the second half of the fiscal, India began to 
witness early signs of an up�ck in business ac�vi�es signalling 
return of momentum to Asia's third-largest economy. However, 
those were short lived as the pandemic has derailed the prospects 
for higher economic growth in the short term. The pace of 
recovery is currently uncertain as the country is yet unwinding 
from the lockdown and the medium to long term outlook is 
opaque at every level. 

2019-20 was a year of two halves for the steel industry. The first 
half witnessed a weakened demand and subdued pricing 
environment. The second half saw improving business and 
consumer sen�ment with higher demand and pricing, which was 
deflated by the coronavirus impact towards the end of March 
2020.

Gallan� Ispat is a trusted name in the Steel industry and it has 
done so by having the right combina�on of dedicated employees, 
effec�ve manufacturing processes and a sustained effort of 
building long term rela�onships with external stakeholders. 
Amidst the macroeconomic headwinds and opera�onal 
challenges, the Company reported Revenue from Opera�ons at 
` 1,02,010.15 Lacs as against ` 1,22,927.06 Lacs during 2018-19. 
The Profit before Interest, Deprecia�on and Taxa�on stood at 

` 1,00,09.59 Lacs as against ` 1,9011.18 Lacs in the previous year 
registering a shrinking of 47.14%. The Net Profit a�er Tax for the year 
felt to ` 5,812.42 Lacs from ` 13,022.04 Lacs in the previous year. 
Standalone Earnings per Share (EPS) stood at ` 2.06 (face value of 
` 1/- each) and Consolidated Earnings per Share (EPS) stood at 
` 2.14  (face value of ` 1/- each) for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2020. During the year Company has reported rela�vely sluggish 
performance both in terms of profitability and turnover due to the 
market condi�ons as it was highly bearish and unfavourable together 
with low selling prices and dispropor�onate fall in realisa�ons, with 
no corresponding downward adjustment in raw material prices 
mainly iron ore. The outbreak of the coronavirus in India in March 
2020 and consequent containment measures imposed by the 
government impacted business ac�vi�es. The Company scaled 
down/suspended produc�on following the imposi�on of the first 
phase of na�onwide lockdown on 24th March 2020.

In an uncertain future, stability becomes a great virtue. Gallan� Ispat 
has been constantly working towards being 'prepared-for-future', 
which is essen�al to sustainably grow its businesses in all aspects. The 
ability to foresee changes in trends and enable the organisa�onal 
changes in order to adapt to those changes at the right �me is 
essen�al in order to differen�ate oneself in the highly compe��ve 
global marketplace. We are making con�nuous investments in our 
produc�ve assets, and our growth plans are also being formulated, 
bearing in mind our focus on efficient alloca�on of capital. The 
decisions taken to expand our facili�es are deeply thought out and 
followed by me�culous research and planning. Integra�on is a key 
pillar of our growth strategy as it enables us to strengthen and 
reinforce our compe��ve posi�on. Our products, processes, 
execu�on brilliance and robust corporate governance enable us to 
leverage the right opportunity to unlock value for shareholders, 
customers, employees, partners and the larger community of 
stakeholders. We con�nuously focus in manufacturing quality 
products thereby moving forward in our journey of being the most 
inspira�onal steel manufacture brand for consumers. Rapid 
urbanisa�on, increasing popula�on, and infrastructure development, 
Government ini�a�ves such as 'Make in India' will provide impetus to 
the growth in steel demand and added advantages to the Company. 
The plan for building smart ci�es, affordable housing, dedicated 
freight and high-speed rail corridors is expected to create significant 
demand for steel in the country. With leadership posi�on in the U�ar 
Pradesh, Bihar and Delhi etc. and modern integrated produc�on 
facili�es, Gallan� Ispat is well posi�oned to capitalise on the 
opportuni�es and deliver strong growth even during the pandemic 
era. 

The health and safety of its workforce has always been paramount to 
Gallan� Ispat. The Company has placed utmost priority on the health 
and safety of the employees – from tes�ng to contact tracing, 
monitoring social distancing norms, hygiene at workplace, classifying 
employee risk levels and providing appropriate healthcare  
responses, apart from sharing regular travel advisories.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere gra�tude 
and thank all stakeholders for being a part of the journey of our 
business over these years. We appreciate your con�nued confidence 
in the resilience and abili�es of Gallan� Ispat and also the valuable 
guidance and endless support extended. We would also like to thank 
all of our staff members for their �reless efforts to accomplish our 
goals and bring our vision to life. Gallan� Ispat also acknowledges the 
support extended by various government agencies. We would also 
like to express our apprecia�on to our partners, suppliers, the steel 
fraternity, investors and other stakeholders for their support and 
confidence in our business.  

Thanks, 

C. P. AGRAWAL
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Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual 
General Meeting of GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED 
(CIN:L27109DL2005PLC350523) will be held on Thursday, 
10th September, 2020 at 11.30 A.M. through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to 
transactthe following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2020, the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the said 
financial year and the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Santosh Kumar 
Agrawal (DIN: 01045228), who retires by rotation at 
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESSES
3. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors 

for the financial year ending March 31, 2021 and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
M/s. U. Tiwari & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration Number: 23872) appointed as the 
Cost Auditors of the Company for audit of the cost 
accounting records of the Company for the financial 
year ending 31st March, 2021, be paid remuneration 
amounting to ` 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) 
excluding out of pocket expenses, if any”. 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby 
authorised to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, 
that may arise in giving effect to this resolution 
and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of 
giving effect to this resolution”.

4. To consider and approve AlteraƟon of Main Objects 
to be Pursued by the Company – Main Objects Clause 
of Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company by 
addiƟon in new clause in the Main Object Clause and 
if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a 
Special ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 4, 13 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any 
amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), and 
subject to the necessary registration approvals, 
consents, permissions and sanctions required, if any, 
by the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, and 
any other appropriate authority and subject to such 
terms, conditions, amendments or modifications as 
may be required or suggested by any such appropriate 
authorities, which terms, conditions, amendments 
or modifications, the Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Board”, which term shall include 
any of its duly authorised Committees or one or more 
Directors) is authorised to accept as it may deem 
fit, Clause III A of the Memorandum of Association, 
in relation to the main objects to be pursued by 
the Company on its incorporation, be and is hereby 
amended to read as under:

 After Clause III 6 a new Clause 7 shall be inserted in 
the Main Object Clause which is as under:

 Clause 7: To develop, produce, manufacture, treat, 
process, refine, export, import, purchase, sale and 
generally to deal in and to act as brokers, agents, 
stockist, distributors, suppliers, commission agents 
of all kinds of cements (whether ordinary, white, 
coloured, Portland, pozzoolana, alumina, blast, 
furnaces, silica, sagol or otherwise) cement products 
of any description, such as asbestos cement, building 
pipes, irrigation pipes, reinforced cement, cement 
concrete spun pipes, asbestos cement pressure 
pipes, fittings, asbestos, cement sheets, poles, slabs, 
blocks, garden wears, cement boards, mosaic and 
terrazzo, tiles, ceramic products, allied products, 
goods, substances, material, articles, things, 
chemicals, compounds, accessories and appliances 
connected with the aforesaid product.

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board and/or the 
Company Secretary be and are hereby jointly or 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things that may be necessary, proper, expedient 
or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the 
aforesaid resolution”.

For Gallantt Ispat Limited

Nitesh Kumar
Date: June 29, 2020 (Company Secretary)
Place: Kolkata M.N. F7496

Notice

GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350523

Registered Office: “GallanƩ House”, I-7, Jangpura Extension, New Delhi-110014
Phone No. : 011-41645392, Fax No. : 011-41645392, E-mail : nitesh@gallanƩ.com

(Pursuant to Sec on 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administra on) Rules, 2014)
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Notes:

1. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic, the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the “MCA”) vide its 
General Circulars No. 14/2020, No. 17/2020 and No. 
20/2020 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 
5, 2020 respectively (hereinafter, collectively referred 
as the “MCA Circulars”) read with SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 
2020, has allowed companies to conduct their Annual 
General Meetings through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), 
thereby, dispensing with the requirement of physical 
attendance of the members at their AGM and 
accordingly, the 16th Annual General Meeting (the 
“AGM” or the “Meeting”) of Gallantt Ispat Limited 
(the “Company”) will be held through VC or OAVM in 
compliance with the said circulars and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) 
(the “Act”) and Rules made thereunder and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (the “Listing 
Regulations”). Members attending the AGM through 
VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

2. Keeping the convenience of the Members positioned 
in different time zones, the Meeting has been 
scheduled at 11:30 A.M. IST. 

3. IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND SEBI 
CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 
DATED MAY 12, 2020, THE REQUIREMENT OF SENDING 
PROXY FORMS TO HOLDERS OF SECURITIES AS PER 
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE ACT READ WITH 
REGULATION 44(4) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS, 
HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. THEREFORE, THE 
FACILITY TO APPOINT PROXY BY THE MEMBERS WILL 
NOT BE AVAILABLE AND CONSEQUENTLY, THE PROXY 
FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED 
TO THIS NOTICE CONVENING THE 16TH AGM OF THE 
COMPANY (THE “NOTICE”). 

 However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder, the corporate members 
are entitled to appoint authorized representatives 
for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting 
or for the participation and e-Voting during the AGM, 
through VC or OAVM. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF / JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / appropriate 
Authorization Letter together with attested specimen 
signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through 
e-mail at tanmayks@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to evoting@nsdl.co.in

4. Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no 
Route Map is being provided with the Notice. 

5. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name 
appears as the first holder in the order of names as 
per the Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled to vote during the AGM. 

6. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Act and Rules framed thereunder, in respect 
of the Special Business under Item No. 3 and 4 is 
annexed hereto. The recommendation of the Board 
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in terms 
of Regulation 17(11) of the Listing Regulations is also 
provided in the said Statement. Necessary information 
of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the AGM 
as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and the Revised Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) is also appended 
to the Notice.

7. Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail 

 In accordance with the MCA Circulars and the 
said SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Notice 
alongwith the Annual Report of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2020, will be 
sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose 
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or 
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), 
i.e., M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited or the 
Depository Participant(s). The Notice and the Annual 
Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 
shall be available on the websites of the Company viz., 
www.gallantt.com and of the Stock Exchanges where 
Equity Shares of the Company are listed. The Notice 
shall also be available on the e-Voting website of the 
agency engaged for providing e-Voting facility, i.e., 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), viz., 
www.evoting.nsdl.com

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM 
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following 
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Notice (Contd.)
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Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis.

9. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be countedfor the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-voting to itsMembers in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose,the Company has entered into an agreement 
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorizedagency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-voting system aswell as 
venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided 
by NSDL.

11. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice 
calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of 
theCompany at www.gallantt.com. The Notice can also 
be accessed from the websites ofthe Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited atwww.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 
respectively and the AGM Notice is alsoavailable on 
the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 
e-Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.

12. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in 
compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No. 
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

13. INSTRUCTION FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 
AGM THROUGH VC OR OAVM 

 • Members will be able to attend the AGM through 
VC or OAVM or view the live webcast of the 
AGM provided by NSDL at https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com by using their remote e-Voting login 
credentials and selecting the EVEN for the AGM. 

 • Member will be provided with a facility to attend 
the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access the 
same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote 
e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will 
be available in shareholder/members login where 
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User 
ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten 
the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
Further members can also use the OTP based 
login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

 • Members are encouraged to join the Meeting 
through Laptops for better experience.

 • Further Members will be required to allow 
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

 • Please note that Participants Connecting from 
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

 • Shareholders who would like to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker may send their 
request mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at nitesh@gallantt.com.

 • Shareholders who would like to express their 
views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
nitesh@gallantt.com. The same will be replied by 
the company suitably.

 • Those shareholders who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the 
meeting.

14. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING 
ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

 1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

Notice (Contd.)
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 2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be 
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

 3. Members who have voted through Remote 
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the 
AGM.

 4. The details of the person who may be contacted 
for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same 
person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

15. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE 
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

 The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 
September 07, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 
Wednesday, September 09, 2020 at 5:00 P.M. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter.

 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting 
system?

 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:

 Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/

 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system.

 Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

 1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile.

 2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholders’ section.

 3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID, your Password and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

  Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL 
e-services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 

login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically.

 4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares 
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID 
is IN300*** and Client ID 
is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your 
Beneficiary ID is 
12************** 
then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding 
shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by 
Folio Number registered 
with the company

For example if folio 
number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user 
ID is 101456001***

 5. Your password details are given below: 

  a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, 
then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote.

  b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the 
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. 
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, 
you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your 
password.

  c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

   (i) If your email ID is registered in your 
demat account or with the company, your 
‘initial password’ is communicated to you 
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to 
you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a 
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client 

Notice (Contd.)
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ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 
ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’. 

   (ii) If your email ID is not registered, please 
follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids 
are not registered

 6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received 
the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

  a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If 
you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

  b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you 
are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

  c) If you are still unable to get the password 
by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning 
your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered 
address.

  d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

 7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to 
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box.

 8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

 9.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page 
of e-Voting will open.

  Details on Step 2 is given below:

  How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL 
e-Voting system?

  1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be 
able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click 
on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting 
Cycles.

  2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will 
be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose 
voting cycle is in active status.

  3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish 
to cast your vote.

  4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting 
page opens.

  5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate 
options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to 
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.

  6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed. 

  7. You can also take the printout of the votes 
cast by you by clicking on the print option on 
the confirmation page.

  8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  General Guidelines for shareholders

  1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by 
e-mail to tanmayks@gmail.comwith a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

  2. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password. 

  3. In case of any queries, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 
toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request 
to (Mr. VikramJha) at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
For any further assistance, you may contact 
Mr. Jyotimoy Banerjee, Investors Relations 
Manager at Telephone No. 033-22895796.
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16. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL 
IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES 
FOR PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND 
REGISTRATION OF E MAIL IDS FOR E-VOTING FOR 
THE RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE :

 • In case shares are held in physical mode please 
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to nitesh@gallantt.com.

 • In case shares are held in demat mode, please 
provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy 
of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
nitesh@gallantt.com.

 • Alternatively member may send an e-mail request 
to evoting@nsdl.co.infor obtaining User ID and 
Password by proving the details mentioned in 
Point (1) or (2) as the case may be.

17. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Special 
Businesses as set out in Item No. 3 and 4 are annexed 
hereto. Additional Information, pursuant to Para 1.2.5 
of SS-2 (“Secretarial Standard on General Meetings”) 
and Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in 
respect of re-appointment of Mr. Santosh Kumar 
Agrawal at the 16th Annual General Meeting is also 
annexed hereto. 

18. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 
September 04, 2020 to Thursday, September 10, 
2020 (both days inclusive) for the purposes of the 
Annual General Meeting. Board of Directors has not 
recommended Dividend for the Financial Year 2019-
20. 

19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
vide its Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 
March 21, 2013 has mandated all Companies to use 
approved electronic mode of payment for making 
cash payments such as dividend to the Members 
(where core banking details are available) or to print 
the bank account details of the Members (as per 
the Company’s records) on the physical payment 
instruments (in case where the core banking details 
are not available or electronic payment instructions 
have failed or rejected by the Bank). Hence, the 

Members are requested to furnish/ update their bank 
account name & branch, bank account number and 
account type along with other core banking details 
such as MICR (Magnetic Ink Character Recognition), 
IFSC (Indian Financial System Code) etc. at the earliest 
with: 

 i. The respective Depository Participants (DP) (in 
case of the shares held in Electronic Mode) or; 

 ii. The Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company (R&T Agent) (in case of the shares held 
in Physical form). 

20. Members holding shares in demat mode may kindly 
note that any request for change of address or change 
of E-mail ID or change in bank particulars/ mandates 
or registration of nomination are to be instructed to 
their Depository Participant only, as the Company 
or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent cannot act on 
any such request received directly from the Members 
holding shares in demat mode. However, Members 
holding shares in physical mode are requested to 
notify the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company of any change in their address and e-mail id 
as soon as possible. 

21. Members are requested to contact the Company’s 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Niche Technologies 
Pvt. Ltd. 7th Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B, 3A, Auckland 
Rd, Elgin, Kolkata, West Bengal – 700017. Tel.:  
(033) 2280 6616 / 17 / 18 Email id: nichetechpl@
nichetechpl.com; Website: www.nichetechpl.com for 
reply to their queries/redressal of complaints, if any, 
or contact Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary at 
the Registered Office of the Company (Phone No.: 
+91-11-41645392; Email: nitesh@gallantt.com). 

22. Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend 
warrants for the financial year ended March 31, 
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 or Interim 
Dividend 2018-19 are requested to make their claim 
to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
immediately. 

23. Members may avail the facility of nomination by 
nominating a person to whom their shares in the 
Company shall vest in the event of their death. The 
prescribed form can be obtained from the Company’s 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

24. Members who hold shares in physical form in 
multiple folios in identical names or joint names in 
the same order of names are requested to send the 
share certificates to the Company’s Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent for consolidation into single folio. 
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25. Since, the securities of the Company are traded 
compulsorily in dematerialized form as per SEBI 
mandate, Members holding shares in physical form 
are requested to get their shares dematerialized at 
the earliest. 

26. In keeping with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ 
Green Initiative measures, the Company hereby 
requests the Members who have not registered 
their email addresses so far, to register their email 
addresses for receiving all communication including 
annual report, notices, circulars etc. from the 
Company electronically.

27. All documents referred to in the Notice and the 
Explanatory Statement shall be made available for 
inspection by the Members of the Company, without 
payment of fees upto and including the date of AGM. 
Members desirous of inspecting the same may send 
their requests at nitesh@gallantt.com from their 
registered e-mail addresses mentioning their names 
and folio numbers / demat account numbers. During 
the AGM, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts 
or arrangements in which Directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act shall be 
made available for inspection upon login at NSDL 
e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

28. In accordance with the provisions of Section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Company has engaged the services of National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide 
the facility of voting by electronic voting system to 
all the Members to enable them to cast their votes 
electronically in respect of all the businesses to be 
transacted at the aforesaid Meeting. The facility of 
casting the votes by the Members using such electronic 
voting system from a place other than venue of the 
AGM (“remote e-voting”) is being provided by NSDL. 

29. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion 
to their shares of the total paid up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. The 
remote e-Voting period will commence on Monday, 
September 07, 2020 (9:00 A.M. IST) and will end on 
Wednesday, September 09, 2020 (5:00 P.M. IST). 
During this period, the Members of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical or dematerialized 
mode, as on the cut-off date, i.e., Thursday, September 

03, 2020, may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. The 
remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter.

30. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 
becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of 
the Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as of the 
cut-off date i.e. September 03, 2020, needs to refer 
the instruction above regarding login ID and password 
and may contact the Company or R&T Agent for any 
query or assistance in this regard. Any person who is 
not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this 
Notice for information purposes only. 

31. Only those Members who are present in the Meeting 
through VC or OAVM facility and have not cast their 
votes on resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be allowed 
to vote through e-Voting system during the AGM. 
However, Members who would have cast their votes 
by remote e-Voting may attend the Meeting, but shall 
neither be allowed to change it subsequently nor cast 
votes again during the Meeting and accordingly, their 
presence shall also be counted for the purpose of 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act. The Members, 
whose names appear in the Register of Members / list 
of Beneficial Owners as on Thursday, September 03, 
2020 being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the 
Resolutions set forth in the Notice. The voting rights of 
the Members shall be in proportion to their share(s) 
of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date. A person who is not a member 
as on the cut-off date, i.e., Thursday, September 03, 
2020 should treat this Notice for information purpose 
only.

32. The Board of Directors has appointed CS Tanmay 
Kumar Saha, (FCS : 8847/C.P. No.: 11918), or failing 
whom, such other practicing company secretary as 
the Board of Directors of the Company may appoint, 
as the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the process of 
remote e-Voting and also e-Voting during the Meeting 
in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, 
immediately after the conclusion of the Meeting, count 
the votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter, unblock 
the votes cast through remote e-Voting in presence 
of atleast two witnesses not in employment of the 
Company and submit a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s 
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, not later than 48 hours after the conclusion of 
the Meeting. Thereafter, the Results of e-Voting shall 
be declared forthwith by the Chairman or by any 
other director/person duly authorised in this regard. 
The Results declared along with the Report of the 
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Scrutinizer shall be placed on the Company’s website 
(www.gallantt.com) and on the e-Voting website of 
NSDL (www.evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after 
the results are declared and shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the 
equity shares of the Company are listed. The results 
declared along with the said Report shall also be 
made available for atleast 3 days on the Notice Board 
of the Company at its Registered Office in New Delhi 
and at the Corporate Office in Kolkata. 

33. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, 
the businesses mentioned in the Notice / the 
resolution(s) forming part of the Notice shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, i.e., 
Thursday, September 10, 2020.

34. Members holding shares in physical mode or whose 
e-mail addresses are not registered, may cast their 
votes through e-Voting system, after registering their 
e-mail addresses by sending the following documents 
to the Company at nitesh@gallantt.com or to the RTA 
at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com:

 (i) Scanned copy of a signed request letter, 
mentioning the name, folio number / demat 
account details & number of shares held and 
complete postal address; 

 (ii) Self-attested scanned copy of PAN Card; and 

 (iii) Self-attested scanned copy of any document 
(such as AADHAAR card / latest Electricity Bill / 
latest Telephone Bill / Driving License / Passport 
/ Voter ID Card / Bank Passbook particulars) in 

support of the postal address of the Member as 
registered against their shareholding. 

 Members, who hold shares in physical mode and 
already having valid e-mail addresses registered with 
the Company / the RTA, need not take any further 
action in this regard.

35. The Company had released an Advertisement dated 
July 06, 2020 in National Daily viz., Business Standard 
and Vernacular daily Hindi viz., Metro Media for 
transferring unclaimed shares of the Company 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
Account as per Section 124(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Company has also sent individual 
communication dated July 06, 2020 to the concerned 
shareholders whose dividend remains unpaid or 
unclaimed for period of Seven (7) consecutive years 
since 2013, at their registered address and shares 
are liable to be transferred to IEPF account under 
the aforesaid Rules, for taking appropriate action(s) 
by the shareholder concerned. The Complete details 
of unpaid or unclaimed dividends and shares due for 
transfer are available on the website of the Company 
i.e., www.gallantt.com. For any communication, the 
shareholders may also send requests to the Company 
Secretary e-mail IDs: nitesh@gallantt.com

For Gallantt Ispat Limited

Nitesh Kumar
Date: June 29, 2020 (Company Secretary)
Place: Kolkata M.N. F7496
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Explanatory statement pursuant to the provisions of 
SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The following Statement sets out all material facts relaƟng 
to the Special Business menƟoned in the accompanying 
NoƟce: 

ITEM NO. 3

The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on May 25, 2020 
appointed M/s. U. Tiwari & Associates, Cost Accountants 
(Firm RegistraƟon No. 23872), as the Cost Auditor for audit 
of the cost accounƟng records of the Company for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2021, at a remuneraƟon 
amounƟng to ` 50,000 (Rupees FiŌy Thousand only) 
excluding out of pocket expenses, if any. In terms of the 
provisions of SecƟon 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the remuneraƟon payable to Cost Auditor shall be raƟfied 
by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for 
approving the Ordinary ResoluƟon as set out in Item No. 3 
for raƟficaƟon by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual 
General MeeƟng of the Company. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relaƟves are concerned or interested in the proposed 
Ordinary ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 3 of this NoƟce. 
The Board recommends the resoluƟons set forth in item 
no. 3 for the approval of Members by way of Ordinary 
ResoluƟon.

ITEM NO. 4

The Company is presently engaged in the business of Iron 
& Steel, Power, Agro Products and Real Estate. Company 
has established base of business network of dealer, 
distributors and customers over the decades. Steel and 
Cement both the segment are of same line business 

linking to infrastructures and construcƟon acƟviƟes. The 
Infrastructure creaƟon conƟnues to be one of the major 
prioriƟes of the State Governments as well as Government 
of India and thereby the infrastructure space is likely to see 
significant acƟvity which augurs well for cement demand. 
The main factors that lead to a significant increase in 
demand for cement are new infrastructure developments 
and the growing needs of the increasing middle class in 
India especially in UƩar Pradesh, Bihar, Jharkhand and 
Delhi. The construcƟon, automobile and manufacturing 
sectors will aƩract a high demand for cement over the next 
decade. The renewed importance given by Government on 
affordable housing, roads, sagarmala projects and other 
infrastructure projects are expected to create cement 
demand, this will augur well for cement industry also.

The business acƟviƟes of cement discussed hereinabove 
can be conveniently and advantageously combined 
with the exisƟng business of the Company. In order to 
elaborate and clarify the exisƟng business of the Company 
and to enable the Company to undertake this addiƟonal 
business, it is proposed to amend the Main Objects Clause 
of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company.

The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on 29thJune, 2020 
decided to alter main object clause in the Memorandum 
of AssociaƟon in order to elaborate the present business 
and to enable the Company to carry out the above new 
line of business in addiƟon to its exisƟng business. By 
virtue of SecƟon 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 approval 
of members by way of special resoluƟon is a pre-requisite 
to amend the objects clause of the Company and thus 
your approval is sought for the same.

The exisƟng main object clause and proposed addiƟon 
of one more clause in the main object clause are given 
below:

ExisƟng Main Objects New Objects to be added as Clause 7
1. To carry on the business as manufacturers, processors, 

converters, producers, exporters, traders, dealers, 
distributors, stockists, buyers, sellers, agents or 
merchants in all kinds and forms of iron and steel 
including sponge iron, pig iron, hot rolling & cold 
rolling steel strips, ingots, billets, mild, high carbon, 
spring, high speed, tool, alloy, stainless steels, iron-
metals and blooms, slabs, bars, joists, rods, squares, 
structurals, tubes, poles, flanges, beams, joints, pipes 
sheets casƟng, wires, rails, rolling materials, rollers etc 
semi-manufactured and other materials made usually 
or partly of iron, steel alloys and metal products

7: To develop, produce, manufacture, treat, process, 
refine, export, import, purchase, sale and generally 
to deal in and to act as brokers, agents, stockist, 
distributors, suppliers, commission agents of all 
kinds of cements (whether ordinary, white, coloured, 
Portland, pozzoolana, alumina, blast, furnaces, 
silica, sagol or otherwise) cement products of any 
descrip on, such as asbestos cement, building pipes, 
irriga on pipes, reinforced cement, cement concrete 
spun pipes, asbestos cement pressure pipes, fi ngs, 
asbestos, cement sheets, poles, slabs, blocks, garden 
wears, cement boards, mosaic and terrazzo, les, 
ceramic products, allied products, goods, substances, 
material, ar cles, things, chemicals, compounds, 
accessories and appliances connected with the 
aforesaid product.
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ExisƟng Main Objects New Objects to be added as Clause 7
 required in or used for industrial, defence, agricultural, 

transport, commercial, domesƟc, building power 
transmission and/or construcƟon purposes including 
the rerolling acƟvity and the acƟvity of generaƟon 
of power for capƟve consumpƟon and/or for sale/
transmission.

2. To carry on business as manufacturers, processors, 
importers, exporters, and dealers in all kinds of minerals 
like ferrous, copper, zinc, aluminium, coal etc. including 
the mining acƟvity.

3. To manufacture, deal, import and export in ferrous 
and non-ferrous metals, ferro alloys, ferro silicon, 
ferro chrome-ferro manganese etc., sheets and other 
ferrous substances and metals of every descripƟon and 
grades and to manufacture, deal, import and export in 
all kinds and variƟes of non-ferrous raw metals such as 
aluminium, copper, Ɵn, lead etc. and the by-products 
obtained in processing and manufacturing these raw 
metals and to carry on the business of engineers, metal 
workers, mill-wrights, smiths, metallurgists and to act 
as engineering consultants and designers, importers, 
and exporters of technology.

4. To carry on business as manufacturers, processors, 
importers, exporters, and dealers in all kinds of casƟng 
products, iron and steel goods and as iron-masters, iron 
founders, iron-workers, steel makers, electric etc. and 
blast furnaces proprietors, brass founders and metal 
makers refiners and workers generally iron and steel 
converters, smiths, Ɵn plate makers, manufacturers 
of industrial, agricultural and other  fiƫngs, parts 
and all kinds of machineries, accessories, tools and 
implements, boiler and steam generaƟng plant makers, 
metallurgists.

5. To carry on business of millers in all its branches and 
to set up mills for milling wheat, gram and other 
grains and cereals, dal, besan, maida, aƩa, suji and 
other allied products and to manufacture any bye-
products, food products, such as biscuits, flakes, dalia 
and confecƟonery from flours of all kinds and set up 
factories or mills for the manufacture thereof and to 
carry on the business of producing, extracƟng, refining, 
storing, exporƟng, imporƟng, transporƟng and dealing 
in flours of all kinds whatsoever and to run flour mills of 
any kind including rice mills for separaƟon of musk, bran 
for preparaƟon of flours or other products therefrom to 
carry on the business of manufacturing, buying, selling, 
imporƟng, exporƟng and dealing in texƟles, coƩon, silk, 
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ExisƟng Main Objects New Objects to be added as Clause 7
 art silk, rayon, nylon, viscos, syntheƟc fibers, staple 

fibers, polyester, worsted wool, hemp and other fiber 
materials, yarn, cloth, linen, rayon and other goods or 
merchandise whether texƟle felted, neƩed or looped. 

6. To carry on the business acƟviƟes as developers of land, 
colonies, sheds, buildings, structures, residenƟal plots, 
commercial plots, industrial plots and sheds, roads, 
bridges, channels, culverts and to act as architect, 
designers, contractors, sub-contractors, for all types 
of construcƟons and developments work for private 
sector, government departments, semi government 
departments, development authoriƟes and to develop 
the sites and plots and to carry on the business 
acƟviƟes of acquirer, purchaser, repurchase, let out, 
lease, sell, exchange, hire or otherwise all types of 
land, and properƟes of any tenure or any interest in the 
same or to erect and construct houses, building, mulƟ-
stories, or work for every descripƟons on any land of 
the company or upon other land or property and to 
pull down re-build, enlarge, alter, and improve, exisƟng 
houses, buildings, or work thereon and to purchasing 
and selling of houses and plots free hold or other house 
property, building, or lands or interest, household 
arƟcles and other products of other companies in the 
installments, network scheme or otherwise.

 

The Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company, 
proposed to be amended as stated above, is being 
uploaded on the Company’s website www.gallanƩ.
com for perusal by the shareholders. A copy of the 
altered Memorandum of AssociaƟon is also available for 
inspecƟon at the Registered Office of the Company during 
office hours on any working day, upto and including the 
date of the Annual General MeeƟng.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of 
Company and their relaƟves are in any way, deemed to 
be concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the 

Special ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 4 of the NoƟce.

The Board recommends the resoluƟon as set out at Item 
No. 4 of the NoƟce for approval by the shareholders.

For Gallantt Ispat Limited

Nitesh Kumar
Date: June 29, 2020 (Company Secretary)
Place: Kolkata M.N. F7496
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SANTOSH KUMAR AGRAWAL, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR AT 
THE 16TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING [Pursuant to RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (as amended) and Revised Secretarial Standard on General 
MeeƟngs (SS-2) issued by the ICSI]

Name of the Director Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal 
Director IdenƟficaƟon No. 01045228
Father’s Name Late Govind Prasad Agrawal
DesignaƟon of Director and Category Director (Sales & MarkeƟng), ExecuƟve Director
Date of Birth/Age 21.07.1951/ 69 Years
NaƟonality Indian
Date of first Appointment 10.07.2014
Terms and CondiƟons of Appointment As per the Agreement dated 30.03.2019
Brief Profile and experƟse inspecific funcƟonal areas Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal holds a Master Degree in 

Chemistry from Gorakhpur University, UƩar Pradesh. 
Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal has started his career years 
back and having experience of 45 years in the Steel and 
Agro Industries. Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal was closely 
associated with Govind Mills Limited (amalgamated with 
GallanƩ Udyog Limited) and during his tenure of service, 
Govind Mills Limited achieved a high level of turnover and 
growth.

He has served GallanƩ Udyog Limited in the capacity of 
Managing Director.

He was looking aŌer operaƟons of the agro manufacturing 
facility of the Company apart from sales and markeƟng of 
the Company. During this period and under his Directorship, 
the Company has completed and achieved various targets 
and plans and the Company achieved higher levels of 
growth.
Apart from the above, he has acƟvely offered his consultancy 
in seƫng up of the operaƟons of our Company and guided 
the project management team since incepƟon.

QualificaƟon M. Sc. (H)
Directorship held in otherCompanies NIL
Membership / Chairmanship of CommiƩees of other 
Boards

NIL

None RelaƟonships with other Directors, Manager and 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

Brother of Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Chairman and 
Managing Director and Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Whole-
Ɵme Director. Uncle of Mr. Mayank Agrawal, CEO.

Number of Board MeeƟngs aƩended during the year 5
RemuneraƟon drawn in financial year 2019-20
(including siƫng fees, if any)

` 34.00 Lacs

Number of shares held in theCompany 22,07,080
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TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenƟng the 16th 
Annual Report on the business and operaƟons of the 
Company along with the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

GallanƩ Ispat Limited (“Your Company” or “The 
Company”) is a leading Iron and Steel manufacturing 
Company in Eastern UƩar Pradesh. The Company has its 
Registered Office at New Delhi and Factory at Gorakhpur, 
UƩar Pradesh.

WORKING RESULTS (` In Lacs)

Standalone Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial Results
Income from operaƟon 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06
Other OperaƟng Income 3,609.14 204.50 3,609.14 204.50
Finance Cost 1,166.17 967.94 1,166.17 967.94
DepreciaƟon (including amorƟzaƟon) 2,395.23 2,589.53 2,395.23 2,589.53
Profit Before Tax 6,488.19 16,631.38 6,488.19 16,631.38
Tax Expenses (including Deferred Tax) 675.78 3,609.34 675.78 3,609.34
Profit AŌer Tax 5,812.42 13,022.04 5,812.42 13,022.04
Share of Profit from Associate - - 244.15 3,356.85
Profit for the Period 5,812.42 13,022.04 6,056.57 16,378.89

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND ADOPTION OF IND-AS

The Financial Statements for the FY 2019-20 are prepared 
under Ind-AS. Pursuant to SecƟon 129(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company prepared in accordance with the SecƟon 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Indian AccounƟng 
Standard 110 on Consolidated Financial Statements is 
provided in the Annual Report.

BUSINESS OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year Revenue from OperaƟons stood at
`1,02,010.15 Lacs as against ̀  1, 22,927.06 Lacs during the 

last FY 18-19. The Profit before Interest, DepreciaƟon and 
TaxaƟon stood at ̀  1,00,09.59 Lacs as against Rs. 1,9011.18 
Lacsin the previousyear registering a shrinking of 47.14%. 
The Net Profit aŌer Tax for the year fall to Rs. 5,812.42 
Lacs from ̀  13,022.04 Lacs in theprevious year. Standalone 
Earnings per Share (EPS) stood at ` 2.06 (face value of ` 
1/- each) and Consolidated Earnings per Share (EPS) stood 
at ` 2.14 (face value of ` 1/- each) for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2020. During the year Company has 
reported relaƟvely sluggish performance both in terms 
of profitability and turnover due to the market condiƟons 
as it was highly bearish and unfavourable together with 
low selling prices with no corresponding downward 
adjustment in raw material prices mainly iron ore. 

ProducƟon at a glance:

Product 2019-20 2018-19 % of Change
ProducƟon Sales* ProducƟon Sales* ProducƟon Sales*

Sponge Iron  (M.T.) 2,69,635 2,70,181 2,62,748 2,63,665 2.62% 2.47%
M.S. Billets (M.T.) 2,79,076 2,78,945 2,88,284 2,89,785 -3.19% -3.74%
M.S. Round Bar & Miss 
Rolled Bar (M.T.)

2,74,392 2,70,720 2,71,141 2,71,822 1.20% -0.41%

Wheat Products (M.T.) 44,745 44,362 52,413 53,860 -14.63% -17.63%
Power GeneraƟon (KWH) 25,83,30,603 25,83,30,603 26,70,65,508 26,70,65,508 -3.27% -3.27%

*Sales include capƟve consumpƟon also.
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Due to pandemic COVID 19, the enƟre operaƟons of 
your company as per the Government’s direcƟve were 
suspended w.e.f. 23rd March, 2020. 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company. Disclosure of financial statement of Associate 
Company M/s. GallanƩ Metal Limited has been provided 
in the prescribed format as a part of this Report. 

There were no significant and material orders passed 
by regulators or courts or tribunals impacƟng the going 
concern status and Company’s operaƟons in future. 
Factory had been working efficiently during the year. 
Safety measures and processes have been installed and 
improved upon at the plants and work sites. There are no 
material changes or commitments affecƟng the financial 
posiƟon of the Company which have occurred between 
the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.

Due to naƟonwide lockdown declared by the Government 
of India, manufacturing and sales operaƟons were shut 
down in late March, 2020 and parƟally resumed in the 
month of April and became fully operaƟonal from start 
of June, 2020 which has impacted Company’s operaƟons 
during the months of March, April and May, 2020. The 
Company›s Agro Businesses, being in the ‘essenƟal’ 
category, remained operaƟonal. The overall demands of 
the steel products have been impacted but due to easing 
out of restricƟon in lockdown demand for the products 
are improving.

DIVIDEND

In view of conserving resources of the Company for 
future plan and to strengthen its fund and liquid posiƟon, 
Directors are unable to recommend any dividend.

SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), vide 
its noƟficaƟon dated 8 July, 2016, has amended the 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 (‘LisƟng RegulaƟons’), introducing new 
RegulaƟon 43A mandaƟng the top 500 listed enƟƟes, 
based on market CapitalizaƟon calculated as on 31st 
March of every Financial Year, to formulate a Dividend 
DistribuƟon Policy and disclose the same in their Annual 
Reports and on their websites (www.gallanƩ.com).

Accordingly, the Board of the Company has adopted 
a Dividend DistribuƟon Policy, which is available on 
the website of the Company i.e. www.gallanƩ.com 
under “Investors Corner” and the same is annexed as 
ANNEXURE-I.

DISCLOSURE ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL 
STANDARDS

Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards 

issued by the InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, 
have been complied with.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on 31st March 2020, the authorized capital of the 
Company was ` 49,88,50,000/- (Rupees Forty Nine Crores 
Eighty Eight Lacs FiŌy Thousand only) and the paid up 
capital stands at ` 28,23,60,720/- (Rupees Twenty Eight 
Crores Twenty Three Lacs Sixty Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Twenty only) consisƟng of 28,23,60,720 equity shares 
of ` 1/- (Rupee One) each. There was no change in share 
capital of the Company during the financial year under 
review. 

During the year under review, the company has not issued 
shares with differenƟal voƟng rights nor has granted any 
stock opƟons or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2020, 
none of the Directors of the company hold instruments 
converƟble into equity shares of the Company. The 
Company has paid LisƟng Fees for the financial year 2020-
21 to each of the Stock Exchanges, where its equity shares 
are listed. 

BUSINESS GROWTH, OUTLOOK AND EXPANSION

Your Company has a dedicated team of Management 
and OperaƟng Personnel who have been instrumental in 
the growth of the business over the years. Your Directors 
believe that the Company has the potenƟal to further scale 
up its business volumes and profitability and are in the 
process of idenƟfying new avenues of growth and effecƟve 
uƟlizaƟon of its exisƟng resources. The Infrastructure 
creaƟon conƟnues to be one of the major prioriƟes of the 
State Governments as well as Government of India and 
thereby the infrastructure space is likely to see significant 
acƟvity which augurs well for cement demand. Hence, the 
Board decided to enter into cement business and for this 
purposes it was decided to amend the Main Object Clause 
of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company so 
as to include the cement business in “the Main Object to 
be pursued by the Company”. Cement Business is already 
covered under the part B of Clause- III of Memorandum of 
AssociaƟon of the Company being : “(B). MATTERS WHICH 
ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS 
SPECIFIED IN CLAUSE III(A)” and Cement business should 
be dragged into the Main Object Clause. 

Further, considering the prevailing business environment, 
cost of producƟon, economy in scale of operaƟon and 
flaws and strength of the Company together with other 
relevant factors, the Board of Directors has, in supersession 
of earlier decision taken on February 05, 2019, decided 
to parƟally modify the ongoing expansion programme of 
various industrial units of the Company and to install a 
cement manufacturing industrial unit. The esƟmated Cost 
of expansion Projects reduced at ` 865 Crores.
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The capacity details of the various units aŌer modificaƟon and inducƟon of Cement unit are as under:

 Capacity (in MTs except otherwise stated

Sl. No. Product (s) Units ExisƟng Capacity Expansion Total Capacity aŌer expansion
1 Steel Billet 3,30,000 1,98,000 5,28,000
2 Rolling Mill 3,30,000 1,98,000 5,28,000
3 Power 53 MW 25MW 78 MW
4 Sponge Iron 2,97,000 2,47,500 5,44,500
5 Pellet - 7,92,000 7,92,000
6 Cement - 3,96,000 3,96,000
7 Flour Mill 1,08,000 - 1,08,000

Total Project Cost including Margin Money for Working Capital esƟmated at Rs. 865 Crores.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory, 
Cost and Secretarial Auditors including Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over financial reporƟng by the Statutory 
Auditors and the reviews performed by Management 
and the relevant Board CommiƩees, including the Audit 
CommiƩee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s 
Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effecƟve 
during the financial year 2019-20.

Accordingly, pursuant to SecƟon 134(3)(c) and 134(5) 
of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

In the preparaƟon of annual accounts, the applicable 
accounƟng standards have been followed and there has 
been no material departure.

ii) The selected accounƟng policies were applied 
consistently and the Directors made judgments and 
esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2020 and of the profit of 
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2020.

iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other 
irregulariƟes.

iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

v) Sufficient internal financial controls have been 

laid down and such internal financial controls are 
adequateand were operaƟng effecƟvely, and

vi) Proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws have been devised 
and such systems were adequate and operaƟng 
effecƟvely. 

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, IND 
AS is applicable to the Company from the Financial 
Year commencing from April 01, 2017. The esƟmates 
and judgments relaƟng to the Financial Statements are 
made on a prudent basis, so as to reflect in a true and 
fair manner, the form and substance of transacƟons 
and reasonably present the Company’s state of affairs, 
profits and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
Financial Statement has been prepared as per applicable 
Ind-AS.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company.

LISTING INFORMATION

The Equity Shares in the Company are in dematerialized 
form and is listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited. The LisƟng 
Fee has been paid to the Stock Exchanges for the year 
2020-21. The ISIN No. of the Company is INE528K01029.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under report, vide its raƟng leƩer bearing 
reference no. BWR/BLR/DEL/IRC/RK/1240/2019-20 dated 
June 19, 2019, the RaƟng agency M/s. Brickwork RaƟngs 
India Private Limited has upgraded and assigned BWR 
BBB+ raƟng for the Company’s Fund Based Long Term 
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faciliƟes (long term) and BWR A2 for Non-Fund based 
Short Term faciliƟes.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted or renewed any public 
deposits during the period under review. It has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning 
of the provisions of SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made there under. Therefore, it is not required 
to furnish informaƟon in respect of outstanding deposits 
under non- banking, non-financial Companies (Reserve 
Bank) DirecƟons, 1966 and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

DEBENTURES 

During the financial year under review, the Company has 
not issued or alloƩed any Debentures and does not have 
any outstanding Debentures. 

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendaƟon 
of the Audit CommiƩee, has appointed of M/s. MaroƟ 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟon 
Number 322770E), 1209, Ansal Tower Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019 as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in 
place of M/s. Anoop Agarwal & Co., to hold office from the 
conclusion of the 15th AGM Ɵll the conclusion of the 20th 
AGM. The said appointment was approved at the last 15th 
AGM. M/s. MaroƟ & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
have consented to act as Auditors if appointed and 
have also confirmed that their appointment will be in 
accordance with SecƟon 139 read with SecƟon 141 of 
the Act. The notes on accounts referred to the Auditors’ 
Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for 
any further explanaƟon.

Necessary cerƟficate has been obtained from the Auditors 
as per SecƟon 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The notes on accounts referred to the Auditors’ Report are 
self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further 
explanaƟon.

The Auditors’ Report is annexed hereto and forms part of 
the Annual Report. The Auditors’ report does not contain 
any qualificaƟons, reservaƟons or adverse remarks.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The informaƟon required under secƟon 134(3) (m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed as ANNEXURE-II to this 
Directors’ report.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY 
SHARES AND EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL 
RIGHTS

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Sharesor 
Equity Shares with DifferenƟal Rights during the financial 
year.

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF VOTING RIGHTS NOT 
EXERCISED 

No disclosure is required under SecƟon 67 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 16(4) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, 
in respect of voƟng rights not exercised directly by the 
employees of the Company as the provisions of the said 
SecƟon are not applicable.

COST AUDIT

The Company has submiƩed the Cost Audit Report 
and Cost Compliance Report for the year 2018-19 duly 
cerƟfied by a Cost Accountant to the Central Government 
within the due date. M/s. U. Tiwari & Associates, Cost 
Accountants were appointed with theapproval of the 
Central Government to carry out the cost audit in respect 
of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.

In terms of the provisions of SecƟon 148 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme, the Board of Directors, 
based on the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, has 
appointed M/s. U. Tiwari & Associates, Cost Accountants, 
as Cost Auditor of the Company for conducƟng the Cost 
Audit for the financial year 2020-21 on a remuneraƟon of 
` 50,000/- plus out of pocket expenses. 

A CerƟficate from M/s. U. Tiwari & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, has been received to the effect that their 
appointment as Cost Auditor of the Company, if made, 
would be in accordance with the limits specified under 
SecƟon 141 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.

The remuneraƟon is subject to the raƟficaƟon of the 
Members in terms of SecƟon 148 read with Rule 14 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Company has received consent from M/s. U. Tiwari & 
Associates, Cost Accountants, to act as the Cost Auditor 
for conducƟng audit of the cost records for the financial 
year 2020-21 along with a cerƟficate confirming their 
independence and arm’s length relaƟonship. 

Company has made and maintained the cost records 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, as prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-secƟon (1) of SecƟon 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.
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INSURANCE

All the insurable interests of your Company including 
inventories, buildings, plant and machinery and liabiliƟes 
under legislaƟve enactments are adequately insured.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT REGARDING SEXUAL 
HARRASSMENT

There were no cases of sexual harassment of woman at 
work place. Also, there are no instances of child labour/
forced labour/ involuntary labour and discriminatory 
employment during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Details of Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee, Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee and CommiƩee 
of Directors have been disclosed under Corporate 
Governance Report. Board of Directors has reconsƟtuted 
all the above CommiƩees and the same has been disclosed 
under Corporate Governance Report.

DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 
WHICH WERE NOT ACCEPTED BY THE BOARD ALONG 
WITH REASONS

The same is not applicable as the Audit CommiƩee’s 
recommendaƟons were accepted and implemented by 
the Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details 
as required under secƟon 197(12) read with Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-III to this 
report.

A statement comprising the names of top 10 employees 
in terms of remuneraƟon drawn is given in this report as 
ANNEXURE-III.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
UNDER SECTION 186

The parƟculars of loans, guarantees and investments u/s 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed herewith as 
ANNEXURE-IV.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

As per SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, a Management 
Discussion and Analysis report is part of the Annual Report 
and is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-V.

A report on Corporate Governance together with 

the Auditors’ CerƟficate regarding the compliance of 
condiƟons of Corporate Governance is part of the Annual 
Report.

MARKET AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Please refer to Management Discussion & Analysis Report 
which forms part of the Annual Report.

DETAILS OF POLICIES

(i) NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon Policy 

The Board  has, on the recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon 
& RemuneraƟon CommiƩee framed a policy for selecƟon 
and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and 
their remuneraƟon. The summary of RemuneraƟon 
Policy of the Company prepared in accordance with 
the provisions of SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 
The RemuneraƟon Policy is uploaded on the website of 
the Company. The web link to the RemuneraƟon Policy 
is as under: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ 
GallanƩ Ispat Limited/NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
Policy/RemuneraƟon Criteria Non-ExecuƟve Director 
w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

(ii) Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR)

The Board has, on the recommendaƟon of the CSR 
CommiƩee, approved the CSR Policy. The Company’s 
CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website www.
gallanƩ.com and the same is also aƩached herewith as 
ANNEXURE - VI.

As a part of its iniƟaƟve under the “Corporate Social 
Responsibility” (CSR) drive, the Company has undertaken 
projects in the area of Health, EducaƟon and rural 
development, eradicaƟng hunger, promoƟng health care 
and educaƟon. These projects are in accordance with 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s 
CSR policy. Annual Report on CSR as required under Rule 8 
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 is also aƩached herewith as ANNEXURE-VII.

(iii) Risk Management Policy

Business Risk EvaluaƟon and Management is an ongoing 
process within the OrganizaƟon. Pursuant to SecƟon 
134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has 
framed a Risk Management Policy for the Company. The 
Company has in place a mechanism to idenƟfy, assess, 
monitor and miƟgate various risks to key business 
objecƟves. Major risks idenƟfied by the business and 
funcƟons are systemaƟcally addressed through miƟgaƟng 
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acƟons on a conƟnuing basis. At present the company has 
not idenƟfied any element of risk which may threaten the 
business (or) existence of the company.

Company has formulated a policy on Risk Management. 
The Policy is formulated in compliance with RegulaƟon 
17(9)(b) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (“the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons”) and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”), which requires the Company to lay down 
procedures about risk assessment and risk minimizaƟon.

The web link to the Risk Management Policy is as under: 
hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/InvestorsCorner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/ Risk Management Policy w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

(iv) Whistle Blower Policy – Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy 
with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and 
directors of the Company to approach the Chairman of the 
Audit CommiƩee to ensure adequate safeguards against 
vicƟmisaƟon.

This policy would help to create an environment wherein 
individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm, 
whenever any fraudulent acƟvity takes place or is likely 
to take place. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are 
protected from retribuƟon, whether within or outside the 
organizaƟon. The Board has elected Mr. Nitesh Kumar, 
Company Secretary as the Whistle Officer under the Vigil 
Mechanism Policy.

The details of establishment of the Vigil MechanismPolicy 
are displayed on the website of the Company www.
gallanƩ.com under the link: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/
Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/ Whistle Blower 
Policy w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Mr. Anurag Fatehpuria, PracƟsing Company Secretary, 
having office address at 23/1, Sita Nath Bose Lane, Salkia 
Howrah Pin-711101 has been appointed as Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company for the FY ended 31.03.2020. 
The Secretarial Audit Report received from the Secretarial 
Auditors is annexed to this report marked as ANNEXURE-
VIII and forms part of this report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES 
ANDINDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

During the financial year, formal annual evaluaƟon of the 
Board, its commiƩees and individual Directors was carried 
out pursuant to the Board Performance EvaluaƟon Policy 
of the Company.

The performance of the Board and commiƩees was 

evaluated aŌer seeking inputs from all the Directors 
on the basis of the criteria such as Board/ commiƩee 
consƟtuƟons, frequency of meeƟngs, effecƟveness of 
processes etc. The performance of individual Directors 
(including Independent Directors) was evaluated bythe 
Board and NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon commiƩee 
(excluding the Director being evaluated) aŌer seeking 
inputs from all Directors on the basis of the criteria such 
as thought contribuƟon, business insights and applied 
knowledge.

The criteria for the performance evaluaƟon of the Board 
of Directors includes aspects such as its composiƟon 
and structure, and the effecƟveness of its processes, 
informaƟon flow and funcƟoning. The criteria for the 
performance evaluaƟon of individual Directors includes 
aspects, such as the Director’s contribuƟon to the Board of 
Directors and CommiƩee meeƟngs, including preparaƟon 
on the issues to be discussed as well as meaningful and 
construcƟve contribuƟon and inputs during meeƟngs. In 
addiƟon, the Chairperson is evaluated on the key aspects 
of his role.

The performance of the commiƩees was evaluated by the 
board aŌer seeking inputs from the commiƩee members 
on the basis of criteria such as the composiƟon of 
commiƩees, effecƟveness of commiƩee meeƟngs etc. The 
Board and the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
reviewed the performance of individual directors on the 
basis of criteria such as the contribuƟon of the individual 
director to the board and commiƩee meeƟngs like 
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful 
and construcƟve contribuƟon and inputs in meeƟngs etc.

A separate meeƟng of Independent Directors was also 
held to review the performance of Managing Director, 
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of 
the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the 
views of ExecuƟve Directors and Non-ExecuƟve Directors.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

Your Company follows a structured orientaƟon and 
familiarizaƟon programme through various reports/
codes/internal policies for all the Directors with a view to 
update them on the Company’s policies and procedures 
on a regular basis.

Periodic presentaƟons are made at the Board MeeƟngs on 
business and performance, long term strategy, iniƟaƟves 
and risks involved.

All the Board members of the Company are afforded 
every opportunity to familiarize themselves with the 
Company, its management, its operaƟons and industry 
perspecƟve on a regular basis. They are made to interact 
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with senior management personnel and proacƟvely 
provided with relevant news, views and updates on the 
Company and sector. All the informaƟon/documents 
sought by them is/are also shared with them for enabling 
a good understanding of the Company, its various 
operaƟons and the industry. The Directors were apprised 
on key aspects of operaƟons and market trend and the 
Company’s performance and its future projects. The 
details of programmes for familiarisaƟon for Independent 
Directors are posted on the website of the Company at 
www.gallanƩ.com under the Investors Corner of GallanƩ 
Ispat Limited under the link: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/
Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/FamaliarizaƟon 
Programme Imparted.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for members 
of the Board (incorporaƟng duƟes of Independent 
Directors) and the Senior Management. The Code aims 
at ensuring consistent standards of conduct and ethical 
business pracƟces across the Company. Your Company has 
received confirmaƟons from all concerned regarding their 
adherence to the said Code.

Pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(5) of the SecuriƟes & Exchange 
Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, Mr. C.P. Agrawal, 
Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Mayank Agrawal, 
Chief ExecuƟve Officer confirmed compliance with 
the Code by all members of the Board and the Senior 
Management.

The full text of the Code is hosted on the Company’s 
website www.gallanƩ.com under the Investors Corner 
of GallanƩ Ispat Limited under the link: hƩps://www.
gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/
Code of Conduct of BOD-w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER 
TRADING

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
PrevenƟon of Insider Trading and Code of PracƟces and 
procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
SensiƟve InformaƟon (hereinaŌer referred to as the 
“Code of Conduct” as per SecuriƟes and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI) (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 
2015. All Directors, Designated Employees who could have 
access to the Unpublished Price SensiƟve InformaƟon of 
the Company are governed by the Code. During the year 
under review, there has been due compliance with SEBI 
(ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015. The 
full text of the Code is hosted on the Company’s website 
www.gallanƩ.com under the Investors Corner of GallanƩ 
Ispat Limited under the link: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/

Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/ Code of Conduct 
of Insider Trading-w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE HELD DURING THE YEAR 2019-2020

Five (5) meeƟngs of the Board of Directors of the Company 
were conducted during the financial year and also Five (5) 
meeƟngs of the Audit CommiƩee of the Board of Directors 
were conducted during the financial year. The details of 
board/commiƩee/shareholders meeƟngs are provided 
under the Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of the Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit commiƩee of the Company as on the date of 
this report is consƟtuted of following Directors:

Names DesignaƟon Category
Mrs. Smita Modi Chairperson Independent
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Member Independent
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Member ExecuƟve

ConsƟtuƟon of the Audit CommiƩee is in compliance with 
requisite provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made thereunder, SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and all other applicable 
laws, rules and regulaƟons.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee of the Company 
as on the date of this report is consƟtuted of following 
Directors:

Names DesignaƟon Category
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Chairperson Independent
Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Member ExecuƟve

ConsƟtuƟon of the Stakeholder RelaƟonship is in 
compliance with requisite provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 and all other applicable laws, rules and regulaƟons.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the 
Company as on the date of this report is consƟtuted of 
following Directors:

Names DesignaƟon Category
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Chairperson Independent
Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent
Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad 
Srivastava

Member Independent
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ConsƟtuƟon of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee is in compliance with requisite provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and all other applicable laws, rules and 
regulaƟons.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee of the 
Company as on the date of this report is consƟtuted of 
following Directors:

Names DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Chairperson ExecuƟve
Mr. Chandra Prakash 
Agrawal

Member ExecuƟve

Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent

ConsƟtuƟon of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee is in compliance with requisite provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and all other applicable laws, rules and 
regulaƟons.

COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

At their meeƟng held on June 29, 2020, the Board of 
Directors has consƟtuted a CommiƩee of Directors 
with nomenclature of “CommiƩee of Directors”. The 
CommiƩee of Directors has the following composiƟon of 
members as on the date of this report and is consƟtuted 
of following Directors:

Names DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Chandra Prakash 
Agrawal

Chairperson ExecuƟve

Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Member ExecuƟve
Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad 
Kandoi

Member ExecuƟve

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 
COMPANIES

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 129(3) of the Act, 
a statement containing performance & salient features 
of the financial statements of Company’s associate 
Companies in Form AOC-1 is aƩached as ANNEXURE-IX. 
The Company has no Subsidiary Company. GallanƩ Metal 
Limited is an ‘Associate’ of the Company. 

The accounts of the Associate Company are audited 
and cerƟfied by their respecƟve Statutory Auditors for 
consolidaƟon.

In accordance with SecƟon 136 of the Act, the financial 
statements of the Associate Companies are available for 
inspecƟon by the members at the Registered Office of 
the Company during business hours on all days except 
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upto the date of 
the AGM. Any member desirous of obtaining a copy of 
the said financial statements may write to the Company 
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. The 
financial statements including the CFS, and all other 
documents required to be aƩached to this report have 
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.
gallanƩ.com

COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO 
BE COMPANY’S SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

The Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associate companies, which have ceased during the 
year.

In terms of the RegulaƟon 46(2)(h) of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, the policy for determining material subsidiaries is 
placed on the website of the Company at www.gallanƩ.
com under Investors Corner of GallanƩ Ispat Limited.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operaƟons. However, Members aƩenƟon is drawn to the 
statement on conƟngent liabiliƟes, commitments in the 
notes forming part of the Financial Statements.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to 
establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees 
of the Company to report concerns about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violaƟon of the 
Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Whistle 
Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company.

The details of establishment of the Vigil Mechanism Policy 
is displayed on the website of the Company www.gallanƩ.
com under the link: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors 
Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/ Whistle Blower Policy-
w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has consƟtuted a Corporate Social 
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Responsibility CommiƩee and has framed a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy and idenƟfied Healthcare, 
Children’s educaƟon, as some of the key areas. The 
Company will conƟnue to support social projects that are 
consistent with the policy.

Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee of the 
Company is consƟtuted of:
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Chairman,
Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal and
Mrs. Smita Modi

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following are the whole-Ɵme key managerial 
personnel of the Company:

SI. No. Name DesignaƟon
1 Mr. Chandra Prakash 

Agrawal
Chairman and Managing 
Director

2 Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Whole-Ɵme Director
3 Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Agrawal
Whole-Ɵme Director

4 Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad 
Kandoi

Whole-Ɵme Director

5 Mr. Mayank Agrawal Chief ExecuƟve Officer
6 Mr. Amit Jalan Chief Financial Officer
7 Mr. Nitesh Kumar Company Secretary

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Ind - AS on Consolidated Financial 
Statements read with the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons 2015, 
the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements and 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 are provided in the Annual Report.

A statement containing the salient feature of the financial 
statements of each of the subsidiary and Associate 
Company in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed 
ANNEXURE-IX.

Pursuant to SecƟon 136 of the Act, the financial 
statements of the subsidiary and Associate Companies are 

kept for inspecƟon by the shareholders at the Registered 
Office of the Company. The Company shall provide free of 
cost, the copy of the financial statements of its subsidiary 
and Associate companies to the shareholders upon their 
request. The statements are also available on the website 
of the Company www.gallanƩ.com

COVID 19 STEPS TAKEN BY THE COMPNAY

Your company stands by the society and community 
inƟmes of despair. Apart from the above, the company has 
distributed wheat and other food items at the Gorakhpur 
and adjacent and nearby areas especially at villages nearby 
its plant. The company has also supplied face masks and 
saniƟzers to thesevillages.

The company strictly follows all precauƟons and guidelines 
prescribed by the Government parƟcularly towards 
adhering to safety measures in respect of its employees.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility Report for the financial year, 
as sƟpulated under RegulaƟon 34 of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 is part of the Annual Report and is aƩached as 
ANNEXURE - X.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 92(3) of the Act, the 
details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in 
Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-XI.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is embedded in your Company’s 
operaƟng framework. Your Company believes that 
managing risks helps in maximizing returns. The Company’s 
approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive 
and includes periodic review of such risks and a framework 
for miƟgaƟng controls and reporƟng mechanism of 
such risks. The risk management framework is reviewed 
periodically by the Board and the Audit CommiƩee. Some 
of the risks that the Company is exposed to are:

Key Risk Impact to GallanƩ Ispat Limited MiƟgaƟon Plans
Commodity Price Risk Risk of price FluctuaƟon on basic raw 

materials like Iron Ore, Coal, Chemicals, 
Scraps as well as finished goods used in 
the process of manufacturing.

The Company commands excellent business 
relaƟonship with the business associates. 
In case of major fluctuaƟon either upwards 
or downwards, the maƩer will be mutually 
discussed and compensated both ways. Also by 
focusing on new value added products helps 
in lowering the impact of price fluctuaƟon in 
finished goods.
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Key Risk Impact to GallanƩ Ispat Limited MiƟgaƟon Plans
Uncertain global 
economic environment 
– slow growth in global 
economy

Impact on raw materials which are
imported

We have internal procedure to miƟgate the 
global adverse impact.

Interest Rate Risk Any increase in interest rate can affect the 
finance cost

Any increase in interest rate can affect the 
finance cost.
Dependence on debt is very minimumand 
we have surplus funds cushion to seƩle the 
enƟre debt in case the need arises. Further, the 
Company has repaid the Term Loan infull.

Foreign Exchange Risk Your company does not have export sales. 
However, import raw materials from 
country outside India. Any volaƟlity in the 
currency market can impact the overall 
profitability.

The Company commands excellent business 
relaƟonship with the sellers and suppliers. 
In case of major fluctuaƟon either upwards 
or downwards, the maƩer will be mutually 
discussed and compensated both ways.

Human Resources Risk Your Company’s ability to deliver value is 
dependent on its ability to aƩract, retain 
and nurture talent. AƩriƟon and non-
availability of the required talent resource 
can affect the overall performance of the 
Company.

By conƟnuously benchmarking of the best HR 
pracƟces across the industry and carrying out 
necessary improvements to aƩract and retain 
the best talent. Also recruitment is across almost 
all states of India which helps to miƟgate this risk 
and we do not anƟcipate any major issue for the 
coming five years.

CompeƟƟon Risk Your company is always exposed to 
compeƟƟon Risk from Steel and Ago 
Manufacturers across the region. The 
increase in compeƟƟon can create 
pressure on margins, market share etc.

By conƟnuous efforts to enhance the brand 
image of the Company, quality, Cost, Ɵmely 
delivery and customer service.

Compliance Risk – 
Increasing regulatory 
requirements

Any default can aƩract penal provisions By regularly monitoring and review of changes 
in regulatory framework. By monitoring of 
compliance through legal
compliance Management tools and regular 
internal audit and secretarial audit.

Industrial Safety, 
Employee Health and 
Safety Risk

The Steel and Agro industry is labour 
intensive and are exposed to accidents, 
health and injury risk due to machinery 
breakdown, human negligence etc.

By development and implementaƟon ofcriƟcal 
safety standards across the various departments 
of the factory, establishing training need 
idenƟficaƟon at each level of employee.

UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNT OF DIVIDEND AND SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

Following amount of Unpaid Dividend has not been claimed and paid Ɵll 31.03.2020:

Nature of Money Relevant Financial Year Bank Account Details Amount lying (In Rs.)
Final Dividend for 2013 2012-13 IDBI Bank Account No. 

0135103000007344 
17,723.50

Final Dividend for 2014 2013-14 IDBI Bank Account No. 
0135103000007900

3,282.50

Final Dividend for 2015 2014-15 IDBI Bank Account No. 
0135103000008587

3,427.00

Interim Dividend 2016 2015-16 ICICI Bank Account No. 
001105026007

3,929.00
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Nature of Money Relevant Financial Year Bank Account Details Amount lying (In Rs.)
Final Dividend for 2017 2016-17 IDBI Bank Account No. 

1526103000000347
12,765.50

Final Dividend for 2018 2017-18 IDBI Bank Account No. 
1526103000000569

21,063.00

Final Dividend for 2018-19 
(Interim Dividend)

2018-19 IDBI Bank Account No. 
1526103000000666

23,761.75

Unclaimed and unpaid amount of Dividend for the Financial 
Year 2011-12 to the tune of ` 6,138 were transferred to 
the Investors’ EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund. Members 
who have not so far encashed their Divided Warrants 
for the financial years ended 31st March 2013, 2014, 
2015, 2016 (Interim), 2017, 2018 and 2019 (Interim) are 
requested to approach immediately the Registrars for 
revalidaƟon of unclaimed Dividend Warrants. The details 
of unclaimed dividend are available on the Company’s 
corporate website www.gallanƩ.com and also uploaded 
on the website of IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in
TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND
a) Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to IEPF:
As required under SecƟon 124 of the Act, the Unclaimed 
Dividend amount aggregaƟng to  ` 17,723.50/- pertaining 
to the financial year ended on 31st March, 2013 lying with 
the Company for a period of seven years were transferred 
during the Financial Year 2019-20, to the Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund established by the Central 
Government.
b) Transfer of shares to IEPF:
As required under SecƟon 124 of the Companies Act, 
2013, 970 Equity Shares, in respect of which dividend has 
not been claimed by the members for seven consecuƟve 
years or more have been transferred by the Company to 
the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(IEPF) during the financial year 2019-20. Details of shares 
transferred have been uploaded on the website of IEPF as 
well as the Company. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVE
The Board of Directors comprises of Eight Directors of 
which four are Independent. In terms SecƟon 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 
01045228), liable to reƟre by rotaƟon at the ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟng is eligible for re-elecƟon.
Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava (DIN: 08434115), Mrs. 
Sangeeta Upadhyay (DIN: 06920195), Mrs. Smita Modi 
(DIN: 01141396) and Mr. Dindayal Jalan (DIN: 00006882) 
are Independent Directors of the Company.Presently, 
Company has opƟmum combinaƟon of ExecuƟve, Non-

ExecuƟve and Independent Directors on the Board of the 
Company.
Independent Directors are appointed for five consecuƟve 
years and are not liable to reƟre by rotaƟon in terms of 
SecƟons 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Appointment and QualificaƟon of Directors) 
Rules, 2014. Mr. Mayank Agrawal is a Chief ExecuƟve Officer 
of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Mr. Amit Jalan is Chief Financial Officer and is 
inter alia looking aŌer the core finance funcƟon of the 
Company. Mr. Nitesh Kumar is working in the capacity of 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.
None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified 
under the provisions of SecƟon 164(2)(a) & (b) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and a cerƟficate dated June 29, 
2020 received from Company Secretary in PracƟce 
cerƟfying that none of the directors on the board of the 
company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or conƟnuing as directors of the Companies by 
SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report.
All Independent Directors have given declaraƟons that 
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and RegulaƟon 16 (b) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. Further, 
Independent Director shall get themselves registered 
with the Independent Directors’ Databank as per the 
Companies (Appointment and QualificaƟon of Directors) 
FiŌh Amendment Rules, 2019.
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) WHO WERE 
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR
At their meeƟng held on March 30, 2019, Mr. Chandra 
Prakash Agrawal (effecƟve from April 01, 2019), Mr. 
Santosh Kumar Agrawal (effecƟve from July 10, 2019), 
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal (effecƟve from April 01, 2019) 
and Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi (effecƟve from 
October 10, 2019), all being execuƟve Directors have 
been re-appointed for a period of five years and their 
reappointment was approved by the shareholders of the 
Company.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Directors propose to transfer an amount of 
` 37,139.09 Lacs standing in retained earnings including 
an amount of  ` 5,824.46 Lacs as net earnings for the 
period and it is to be transferred to the General Reserve.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of Related Party TransacƟons during the 
Financial Year ending 31.03.2020, being arm’s length 
transacƟons have been reported in the financial statements 
and forms part of this report. The Audit CommiƩee and 
the Board of Directors of the Company have formulated 
the Policy on dealing with RPTs and a Policy on materiality 
of RPTs which is uploaded on the website of the Company 
and can be accessed through the website of the Company 
www.gallanƩ.com under the Investors Corner of GallanƩ 
Ispat Limited.

All transacƟons entered with Related ParƟes for the 
year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business and that the provisions of 
SecƟon 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder are not aƩracted. Thus, disclosure in 
form AOC-2 in terms of SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013 is not required. Further, there are no material related 
party transacƟons during the year under review with the 
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel. The 
Company has developed a framework through Standard 
OperaƟng Procedures for the purpose of idenƟficaƟon 
and monitoring of such Related Party TransacƟons.
All Related Party TransacƟons are placed before the Audit 
CommiƩee as also to the Board for approval. Omnibus 
approval was obtained on a yearly basis for transacƟons 
which are of repeƟƟve nature. TransacƟons entered into 
pursuant to omnibus approval are audited by the Audit 
CommiƩee and a statement giving details of all Related 
Party TransacƟons are placed before the Audit CommiƩee 
and the Board for review and approval on a quarterly 
basis.
The policy on Related Party TransacƟons as approved by 
the Board of Directors has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company viz. www.gallanƩ.com. None of the 
Directors has any pecuniary relaƟonship or transacƟons 
vis-à-vis the Company.
PERSONNEL, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS AND MARKETING
The Company’s HR philosophy is to establish and build a 
high performing organizaƟon, where each individual is 
moƟvated to perform to the fullest capacity: to contribute 
to developing and achieving individual excellence and 
departmental objecƟves and conƟnuously improve 
performance to realize the full potenƟal of our personnel. 
Industrial relaƟons have remained harmonious throughout 
the year.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE
Your Company has received declaraƟons from all the 
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules 
issued thereunder as well as SecuriƟes & Exchange Board 
of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015.
AWARD AND RECOGNITIONS
During the year and during previous years Company/
Management has received following awards, accolades 
and reconciliaƟon:
During previous years:
• Udyami Samman 2011: Awarded by Zee Media House 

and was presented by Shri Prakash Jaiswal, Hon’ble 
Coal Minister, Government of India.

• Udyami Samman 2013: Awarded by Sahara Samay 
Media House and was presented by Shri Akhilesh 
Yadav, Hon’ble Chief Minister of U.P.

• Promoter of GallanƩ Group Mr. C.P. Agrawal & family 
has been listed on India’s Super Rich List at 188th 
posiƟon in 2014 by the Business World Magazine.

• Gems of Purvanchal: Jagran Coffee Table Book has 
given a place to our promoter Shri. C.P. Agrawal by 
staƟng “MAKING A MARK WITH BUSINESS IN STEEL”.

• Shri Yogi Adityanath Maharaj Ji, C.M. of U.P., 
honoured the company for ‘Entrepreneur of the 
region’ during Gorakhpur Mahotsav 2018.

• The top challengers Award 2018: awarded by the 
ConstrucƟon World Magazine, a world famous 
magazine.

• The Gallant Men:  Steel 360, a renowned magazine of 
steel industry felicitated the group and its promoters 
in its cover story May, 2018. 

• Ranked at 6th posiƟon among the top 10 mid-size 
rebar  producers in India by Steel 360 magazine in 
August, 2018 ediƟon.

During the year:
• Listed “200 BEST UNDER A BILLION COMPANIES” in 

Forbes Asia Magazine, July/August 2019 ediƟon. 
• Group Chairman, Shri Chandra Prakash Agrawal 

was felicitated with momento for his significant 
and imperishable contribuƟons to the Industrial 
development in the State, by Shri Yogi Adityanath 
Maharaj Ji, C.M. of U.P on the eve of U.P. Diwas 
Mahotsav, in January, 2020.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and commitments 
affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the Company since the 
close of financial year i.e. since 31st March, 2020 Ɵll the 
date of this Report. Further, it is hereby confirmed that 
there has been no change in the nature of business of 
the Company. However, aŌer approval of the Scheme of 
AmalgamaƟon as above all the assets and liabiliƟes of the 
Transferor Companies shall be transferred to the Company.
Significant and material orders passed by the regulators / 
courts / tribunals impacƟng the going concern status and 
the Company’s operaƟons in future.
As such there is no significant and material order by the 
regulator/court/tribunals impacƟng the going concern 
status and the Company’s operaƟon in future.
GENERAL
a) Your Company has not issued equity shares with 

differenƟal rights as to dividend, voƟng or otherwise; 
and

b) Your Company does not have any ESOP scheme for its 
employees/Directors.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
There are no changes in the Share Capital during the year.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has an adequate system of internal controls 
in place. It has documented policies and procedures 
covering all financial and operaƟng funcƟons. These 
controls have been designed to provide a reasonable 
assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounƟng 
controls for ensuring reliability of financial reporƟng, 
monitoring of operaƟons, and protecƟng assets from 
unauthorized use or losses, compliances with regulaƟons.
The Company has conƟnued its efforts to align all its 
processes and controls with global best pracƟces.
The framework on Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial ReporƟng has been reviewed by the internal 
and external auditors. The Company’s internal financial 
controls were operaƟng effecƟvely based on the internal 
control criteria established by the Company considering 
the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the 
guidance note on audit of internal control over financial 
reporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.
The Audit commiƩee of the Board of Directors acƟvely 
reviews the adequacy and effecƟveness of internal control 
systems and suggests improvements wherever needed to 
strengthen the same. The Audit CommiƩee evaluated the 
internal financial controls based on the following criteria:
1. Systems have been laid to ensure that all transacƟons 

are executed in accordance with management’s 
general and specific authorisaƟon. There are well-laid 
manuals for such general or specific authorisaƟon.

2. Systems and procedures exist to ensure that all 
transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounƟng principles or any other 
criteria applicable to such statements, and to maintain 
accountability for aspects and the Ɵmely preparaƟon 
of reliable financial informaƟon.

3. Access to assets is permiƩed only in accordance with 
management’s general and specific authorisaƟon. 
No assets of the Company are allowed to be used for 
personal purposes, except in accordance with terms 
of employment or except as specifically permiƩed.

4. The exisƟng assets of the Company are verified / 
checked at reasonable intervals and appropriate 
acƟon is taken with respect to any differences, if any.

5. Proper systems are in place for prevenƟon and 
detecƟon of frauds and errors and for ensuring 
adherence to the Company’s policies.

A report on the internal financial controls under clause 
(i) of sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 issued by M/s. MaroƟ & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company is 
aƩached with their Independent Auditor’s report and the 
same is self-explanatory.
EffecƟve steps are taken by the Management to enable 
conƟnuous monitoring of lead control indicators and 
acƟon taken towards correcƟng idenƟfied gaps. RespecƟve 
funcƟons have been trained and equipped to enable 
conƟnuous monitoring of excepƟons by themselves to 
reduce surprises and enable correcƟve acƟon on Ɵmely 
and regular basis.
Your Company has a robust financial closure self-
cerƟficaƟon mechanism wherein the line managers cerƟfy 
adherence to various accounƟng policies, accounƟng 
hygiene and accuracy of provisions and other esƟmates.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCES/INVESTMENTS 
AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS
The details of related party disclosures with respect to 
loans/advances/investments at the year end and maximum 
outstanding amount thereof during the year as required 
under Part A of Schedule V of the LisƟng RegulaƟons have 
been provided in the notes to the Financial Statements of 
the Company.
FRAUD REPORTING
There have been no frauds reported by the Auditors of the 
Company to the Audit CommiƩee or the Board of Directors 
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under sub-secƟon (12) of secƟon 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 during the financial year.
ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY
The Company is conscious of the importance of 
environmentally clean and safe operaƟons. The Company’s 
policy requires conduct of operaƟons in such a manner 
so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances of 
environmental regulaƟons and preservaƟon of natural 
resources.
TRANSFER OF SHARES COMPULSORILY IN DEMAT MODE
As per amended RegulaƟon 40(1) of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 amended vide SEBI NoƟficaƟon No. SEBI/LADNRO/
GN/2018/24 dated June 2018, effecƟve from December 5, 
2018; securiƟes of the listed companies can be transferred 
(except in case of transmission or transposiƟon) only in 
the dematerialized form.
In case any of the Shareholders have any queries or need 
any assistance in this regard, please contact;

GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
Regd.Office Address:
“GALLANTT HOUSE”, 
I-7,Jangpura Extension, 
New Delhi – 110014
Telefax: 011-41645392
Email-Id:nitesh@gallanƩ.com
Website:www.gallanƩ.com

Registrar & ShareTransfer Agent
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 
7th Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B, 
3A, AucklandRd, Elgin, 
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700017
Tel.: (033) 2280 6616 /17 / 18
Email id: 
nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
Website: www.nichetechpl.com

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNER-
ATION
Procedure for NominaƟon and Appointment of Directors:
The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee (NRC) 
has been mandated to oversee and develop competency 
requirements for the Board based on the industry 
requirements and business strategy of the Company. 
The NRC reviews and evaluates the resumes of potenƟal 
candidates for appointment of Directors and meets them 
prior to making recommendaƟons of their nominaƟon 
to the Board. Specific requirements for the posiƟon, 
including expert knowledge expected, are communicated 
to the appointee.
On the recommendaƟon of the NRC, the Board has adopted 
and framed a RemuneraƟon Policy for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees pursuant to 
the provisions of the Act and the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The 
remuneraƟon determined for ExecuƟve/Independent 
Directors is subject to the recommendaƟon of the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and approval 
of the Board of Directors. The Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Directors and Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Directors 

are compensated by way of siƫng fees for aƩending 
meeƟngs of the Board and its CommiƩees. The ExecuƟve 
Directors are not paid siƫng fees; the Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors are enƟtled to siƫng fees for aƩending the 
Board/CommiƩee MeeƟngs.
It is affirmed that the remuneraƟon paid to Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is in 
accordance with the RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company. 
The Company’s Policy on Directors’ Appointment and 
RemuneraƟon and other maƩers provided in SecƟon 178(3) 
of the Act and RegulaƟon 19 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons 
have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, 
which forms part of the Annual Report.
EMPLOYEES WELFARE
The Company conƟnues to focus on welfare and improving 
the quality of lives of its employees by providing educaƟonal 
assistance to their children, employee wellness sessions, 
periodic occupaƟonal health checks, spiritual peace by 
yoga classes, crèche and child care faciliƟes, transport 
faciliƟes to employees at subsidized rate or at no charge.
AMALGAMATION OF COMPANIES
At their meeƟng held on January 18, 2020, Board of 
Directors of the Company has approved the Scheme 
of AmalgamaƟon and Slump Sale providing for the 
AmalgamaƟon of GallanƩ Ispat Limited (Transferor 
Company No. 1 or GIL), AAR Commercial Company Limited 
(Transferor Company No. 2 or AAR), Hipoline Commerce 
Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 3 or HIPOLINE), 
Lexi Exports Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 
4 or LEXI) and Richie Credit and Finance Private Limited 
(Transferor Company No. 5 or RICHIE) (together referred 
to as the “Transferor Companies”) with GallanƩ Metal 
Limited (“Transferee Company” or “GML”) and for the 
Slump Sale of 18 MW Power Plant Undertakings of 
GallanƩ Ispat Limited to the Transferee Company and 
their respecƟve shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) 
under SecƟon 230 to 232 andother applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
In accordance with the RegulaƟon 37 of the SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (hereinaŌer 
referred to as the “LODR”) Company has filed the draŌ 
Scheme of AmalgamaƟon and Slump Sale with the BSE 
Limited (formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) and 
the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinaŌer 
together referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) for 
obtaining an ‘observaƟon leƩer’ or a ‘no-objecƟon leƩer’, 
before filing such scheme. Further, Transferor Company 
No. 2 and the Transferee Companyhave also filed this 
applicaƟon with the Stock Exchanges under RegulaƟon 37 
of LODR.
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Brief details of the Scheme are as under:  
1. GIL, AAR, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE all are 

TRANSFEROR COMPANIES and GML is TRANSFEREE 
COMPANY.

2. The Transferee Company is a listed Company. GIL and 
AAR are also Listed Companies.

3. Upon the Scheme becoming effecƟve in lieu of the 
amalgamaƟon no consideraƟon will be due to the 
Transferor Companies and in consideraƟon of the 
amalgamaƟon of the Transferor Companies with 
the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme 
including the consequenƟal exƟnguishment of the 
shareholding in Transferor Companies, the Transferee 
Company shall without further applicaƟon, issue and 
allot as given below equity shares in the Transferee 
Company to the equity shareholders of the Transferor 
Companies whose names appear in the Register of 
Members of the Transferor Companies on the Record 
Date:

 • 13 (Thirteen) equity shares of the nominal value 
of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company 
for every 14 (Fourteen) equity shares of ̀  1/- each 
fully paid up held by such member in GIL.

 • 5 (Five) equity shares of the nominal value of 
` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company 
for every 1 (One) equity share of ` 10/- each fully 
paid up held by such member in AAR.

 • 9 (Nine) equity shares of the nominal value of 
` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for 
every 2 (Two) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully 
paid up held by such member in HIPOLINE.

 • 84 (Eighty-Four) equity shares of the nominal 
value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee 
Company for every 1 (One) equity share of 
` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member 
in LEXI.

 • 101 (One Hundred One) equity shares of the 
nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the 
Transferee Company for every 2 (Two) equity 
shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such 
member in RICHIE.

4. Transferor Companies GIL and AAR and Transferee 
Company GML are under the JurisdicƟon of the 
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana and 
Transferor Companies, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE are 
under the jurisdicƟon of the Registrar of Companies, 
West Bengal. 

5. Pursuant to the Scheme 18 MW Power Plant 
Undertakings of GIL will be sold and transferred to 
the Transferee Company through Slump Sale at a 

consideraƟon of ` 35 Crores payable in cash. 
6. “Appointed Date of Slump Sale” means the open of 

business hours on 1st April 2019
7. “Appointed Date” means the open of business hours 

on 1st April 2019 aŌer the compleƟon of the slump 
sale.

Company has appointed BSE Limited as designated Stock 
Exchange for co-ordinaƟng with the SEBI in respect of the 
said Scheme and maƩers connected therewith.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinaŌer referred to as “the Act”), RegulaƟon 
33 of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 (hereinaŌer referred to as “LisƟng RegulaƟons”) 
and applicable AccounƟng Standards, the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year 2019-20, together with the Auditors’Report 
form part of this Annual Report.
OTHER DISCLOSURES
• The Managing Director & CEO of the Company has not 

received any remuneraƟon or commission from any of 
the subsidiary companies;

• None of the Auditors of the Company have reported 
any fraud as specified under the second proviso of 
SecƟon 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including 
any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the Ɵme being in force);

• The Company does not have any scheme or provision 
of money for the purchase of its own shares by 
employees/ Directors or by trustees for the benefit of 
employees/ Directors; and

• The Company has not issued equity shares with 
differenƟal rights as to dividend, voƟng or otherwise.

• In the preparaƟon of financial statements, no 
treatment different from that prescribed in an 
AccounƟng Standard has been followed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors wish to convey their appreciaƟon to all of 
the Company’s employees for their contribuƟon towards 
the Company’s performance. Your Directors would 
also like to thank the shareholders, employee unions, 
customers, dealers, suppliers, bankers, Governments and 
all other business associates for their conƟnuous support 
to the Company and their confidence in its management 
on behalf of the Board.

 On behalf of the Board

Date: June 29, 2020 C. P. Agrawal
Place: Gorakhpur Chairman
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Annexure - I to the Directors’ Report
Dividend DistribuƟon Policy
1. Statutory Mandate
 The Board of Directors (The ‘Board’) of GallanƩ Ispat 

Limited (“the Company”) has adopted the following 
Policy for DistribuƟon of Dividend to the Shareholders 
of the Company.

2. Background
 The Steel industry is a capital-intensive industry. Most 

units of the owned by the Company entails substanƟal 
capital outlays.

 A large proporƟon of the financing of the Companyis 
through equity capital. With a low level of borrowing 
in proporƟon to equity capital, the outlay on dividend 
forms a substanƟal part of the cost of capital. It is the 
Company’s endeavour to maintain and pay dividend 
keeping market expectaƟons in mind. The dividend 
paid as a proporƟon of earnings has been maintained 
accordingly.

 The prevailing Governmental and geopoliƟcal 
environment directly impacts profit in the steel 
industry. Infrastructural development, both domesƟc 
and foreign, depends on factors that are beyond 
the control of the Company. In the past, the need to 
meet the general investor’s expectaƟons of return on 
equity during the years of instability has resulted in a 
relaƟvely reasonable payout raƟo.

3. Policy
 This Policy for DistribuƟon of Dividend to Shareholders 

of the Company is framed in terms of RegulaƟon 
43 of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 (hereinaŌer referred to as the 
“LisƟng RegulaƟons”).

4. Dividend
 The Board will finalise the dividend to be declared by 

the Company based on the above stated background 
while also considering the following:

 Dividend will be declared once a year based onthe 
profits as per the Audited Financial Statements for the 
year. The Board may declare an interim dividend aŌer 
saƟsfying themselves about the distributable profit.

 Normally, the Dividend will be declared out of the 
current year’s profit of the Company, subject to the 
following:

 i) Company’s need of Capital Expenditures/
Investment;

 ii) Cash Flow posiƟon.
  Given that profits can be volaƟle, the Board to the 

extent feasible, in the quantum of Dividend paid 
to Shareholders. Should the current year’sprofit 
be inadequate, the Board may, aŌer considering 
the Carried Forward Balance in the Profit & Loss 
Account of the Company, declare dividend or 
declare dividend out of Reserves, as is permiƩed 
under the law.

 As such, the Company may declare theDividend out 
of:

 i) Current year’s profit –
  a) aŌer providing for depreciaƟon in accordance 

with Sub-secƟon (2) of SecƟon 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and

  b) aŌer transfer of such percentage of its profits 
for that Financial Year to reserves as may be 
required under the law and as the Board of 
Directors may deem fit; OR

 ii) Carried Forward Balance in the Profit & Loss 
Account; OR

 iii) Free Reserve as may be permiƩed under law;
  OR
 iv) A combinaƟon of (i), (ii) and (iii) above.
5. Factors to be considered for declaraƟon ofDividend
 i) Capital Expenditure /Investment requirement of 

the Company for:
  a) New projects;
  b) Ongoing projects including expansion, 

renovaƟon or modernisaƟon etc.
  c) AcquisiƟon of major fixed assets including 

land and buildings;
  d) AcquisiƟon of any business enƟty etc.
 ii) Payment of any major liability;
 iii) Any other requirements for fund conservaƟon;
 iv) Agreement with lending insƟtuƟons.
6. Revision in the Policy
 The Board of Directors will review the policy from 

Ɵme to Ɵme or when changes may be required.
7. General
 All the words and expressions used in this 

Policy,unless defined hereinaŌer, shall have the 
meaning respecƟvely assigned to them under the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons and in the absence of its definiƟon 
or explanaƟon therein, as per the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules, NoƟficaƟons and Circulars made/
issued thereunder, as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme.
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Annexure - II to the Directors’ Report
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a) Energy ConservaƟon Measures Taken

Steps taken for conservaƟon of energy:

Your Company is conƟnually taking necessary steps 
to absorb and adopt the latest technologies. These 
iniƟaƟves enable the faciliƟes to become more efficient 
and producƟve as the company expands, thereby helps 
in energy conservaƟon. All machinery and equipment 
are conƟnuously serviced, updated and overhauled in 
order to maintain them in good condiƟon. This resulted 
in consumpƟon of lesser energy consumpƟon. Energy 
ConservaƟon conƟnues to receive increased emphasis at 
all the units of the Company. Your Company’s technical 
team monitors closely and vigorously various plants 
and equipments and suggests adopƟon of new and 
latest technology etc. and discuss to idenƟfy areas of 
improvement.

In addiƟon to the exisƟng Energy ConservaƟon measures, 
the Engineering and ProducƟon departments in each 

manufacturing unit work closely towards improving the 
efficiency of generaƟon and also in the reducƟon in energy 
consumpƟon. AddiƟonally, constant efforts in conƟnuing 
all previous conservaƟon measures and increasing 
awareness of energy management amongst employees 
have conƟnued which should enable further savings to 
transpire going forward.

The measures taken in all the Company’s manufacturing 
units can be briefly enumerated as below:

• AddiƟonal investments and proposals, if any, being 
implemented for reducƟon of consumpƟon of energy 
- Nil

• In respect of measures at (a) and (b) above for 
reducƟon of energy consumpƟon and consequent 
impact on the cost of producƟon of goods- This has 
resulted in cost savings for the Company.

• Total energy consumpƟon and energy consumpƟon 
per unit of producƟon as per Form “A” of the Annexure 
in respect of industries specified in the Schedule 
thereto:

FORM –A

Disclosure of ParƟculars with respect to conservaƟon of energy

A. Power & Fuel ConsumpƟon 2019-20 2018-19

1. Electricity
 (a) Purchased
  Total Unit in Lacs KWH
  Amount ` in Lacs
  Rate Per Unit (`)
 (b) Own GeneraƟon
  Total Units in Lacs KWH
  Amount ` In Lacs
  Rate per Unit (`)
2. Coal 
 QuanƟty - M.T.
 Total Cost - ` in Lacs
 Average rate - ` per M.T.

180.04
1,876.88

10.42

2,583.31
16,661.54

6.45

3,61,091.08
25,678.23

7,111.29

130.90
1,176.52

8.99

2,670.66
19,961.21

7.47

3,40,512.23
27,566.19

8,095.51

B. ConsumpƟon per unit of producƟon

1. Electricity (Unit/M.T.)
 - Agro 
 - Sponge Iron 
 - SMS (Furnace and Concast)
 - Rolling Mills
2. Coal 
 - Power Plant (per 1000 KWH)
 - Rolling Mills (Kg/M.T.)
 - Sponge Iron (Kg/M.T.)

97.25
63.91

769.90
125.74

428.44
17.50

910.90

84.01
61.34

777.20
112.52

404.03
18.90

865.79



Annual Report 2019-20 | 31

Notice Directors’ Report Annexure to the Directors’ Report Corporate Governance Report

Annexure - II to the Directors’ Report (Contd.)

FORM –B

Disclosure of ParƟculars with respect to technology 
absorpƟon

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company

No Research & Development work has been carried out 
by the Company.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND 
INNOVATION

1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorpƟon, 
adaptaƟon etc.

 • Absorbing and adapƟng latest technology in 
maintenance system.

 • Technical InteracƟon with expert.

 • ConƟnuous efforts are being made towards 
improvements in exisƟng producƟon process.

2) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts

 • Improvement in quality of products.

 • Cost reducƟon

 • Improvement in the exisƟng process and 
producƟvity.

 • Knowledge of updated technology.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

1. AcƟviƟes relaƟng to export, iniƟaƟve taken to increase 
exports, development of new export markets for 
products and export plans – Nil

2. Total foreign exchange used and earned

2019-2020
(` in Lacs)

2018-2019
(` in Lacs)

Raw Materials 
Stores, Chemical and Packaging Materials 
Capital Goods 
Earning in foreign currency

4,178.56
57.91

168.51
-

17,033.09
70.21
79.06

-
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MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Disclosures pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details as 
required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act,2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are 
as under:

(a) raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the 
median remuneraƟon of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year;

Name DesignaƟon RaƟo to median remuneraƟon of Employees

Chandra Prakash Agrawal Chairman & Managing Director 27.69 : 1

Prem Prakash Agrawal Whole-Ɵme Director 27.69 : 1

Santosh Kumar Agrawal Director (Sales & MarkeƟng) 27.69 : 1

NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi Director (Plant-OperaƟon) 27.69 : 1

Dindayal Jalan Independent Director N.A. *

Smita Modi Independent Director N.A. *

Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava Independent Director N.A. *

Sangeeta Upadhyay Independent Director N.A. *

JyoƟrindra Nath Dey# Independent Director N.A. *

Sanchit Dubey# Independent Director N.A. *

Piyush Kankrania# Independent Director N.A. *

Sangeeta Upadhyay Independent Director N.A. *

Annexure - III to the Directors’ Report

* Except siƫng fees, no remuneraƟon is paid to the Non-
ExecuƟve Independent Director.

# Resigned from the Board of Directors.

(b) Percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial 
year;

Name DesignaƟon % increase

Chandra Prakash Agrawal Chairman & Managing Director 50.00%

Prem Prakash Agrawal Whole-Ɵme Director 50.00%

Santosh Kumar Agrawal Director (Sales & MarkeƟng) 50.00%

NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi Director (Plant-OperaƟon) 50.00%

Dindayal Jalan Independent Director N.A. *

Smita Modi Independent Director N.A. *

Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava Independent Director N.A. *

Sangeeta Upadhyay Independent Director N.A. *

Sangeeta Upadhyay Independent Director N.A. *

Mayank Agrawal Chief ExecuƟve Officer 20.00%

Amit Jalan Chief Financial Officer 10.99%

Nitesh Kumar Company Secretary 6.67%

(c) percentage increase in the median remuneraƟon of 
employees in the financial year: 2.13%

(d) number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
company: 1,453

(e) explanaƟon on the relaƟonship between average 
increase in remuneraƟon and company performance: 
The profit before tax for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020 decreased by 60.99% and the profit 
aŌer tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 
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decreased by 55.36%, whereas the increase in median 
remuneraƟon is 2.13%.

(f) comparison of the remuneraƟon of the Key Managerial 
Personnel against the performance of the company;

 The total remuneraƟon of KMP increased by 38.36%, 
whereas the profit before tax decreased by 60.99% 
and the profit aŌer tax decreased by 55.36%.

(g) average percenƟle increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in  the last- financial year and its comparison 
with the percenƟle increase in the managerial 
remuneraƟon and jusƟficaƟon thereof and point 
out if there are any excepƟonal circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneraƟon: 3.45% 
(non-Managerial personnel) and 10.06% (Managerial 
Personnel);

(h) comparison of remuneraƟon of each of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company; 

Name DesignaƟon % increase Comparison

Chandra Prakash Agrawal Chairman & Managing Director 50% The profit before tax for the 
financial year ended March 
31, 2020 decreased by 60.99% 
and the profitaŌer tax for the 
financialyear ended March 31, 
2020 decreased by 55.36%.

Prem Prakash Agrawal Whole-Ɵme Director 50%

Santosh Kumar Agrawal Director (Sales & MarkeƟng) 50%

NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi Director (Plant-OperaƟon) 50%

Mayank Agrawal Chief ExecuƟve Officer 50%

Amit Jalan Chief Financial Officer 50%

Nitesh Kumar Company Secretary 50%

(i) the key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneraƟon availed by the directors; Company’s 
financial results, the performance of the business 
unit, individual performance, skills and competence, 
fulfilment of various improvement targets or the 
aƩainment of certain financial objecƟves.

(j) the raƟo of the remuneraƟon of the highest paid 
director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneraƟon in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year; NIL

(k) We hereby affirm that the remuneraƟon paid to the 
managerial and non-managerial personnel is as per 
the RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company approved at 
the board meeƟng dated 30.05.2014. 

The RemuneraƟon policy of the Company comprising 
the appointment and remuneraƟon of the Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior ExecuƟves of the 
Company including criteria for determining qualificaƟons, 
posiƟve aƩributes, independence of a Director and other 
related maƩers has been provided in the Report.
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LOANS, INVESTMENT & GUARANTEE U/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

` in Lacs
Sl. No. ParƟculars Loans Investments Guarantee

1  Loan to GallanƩ Metal Limited 500.00 NIL NIL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Forming part of the Report of the Directors for the year 
ended 31st March, 2020

1. ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT

Global economic prospects solely rest on the pandemic 
fading eventually and the sƟmulus that governments will 
be able to provide their economies. Commodity prices 
including oil and metal remained soŌ. Global GDP growth 
rate, according to InternaƟonal Monetary Fund (IMF’s 
World Economic Outlook, April 2020 issue) moderated 
by 70 basis points (bps) to 2.9% (3.6% in 2018). With a 
growth rate of 3.7%, Emerging Markets and Developing 
Economies (EMDE) outpaced the 1.7% growth rate of 
Advanced Economies. The growth rate of world trade 
volumes decelerated to 0.9% in 2019 from a healthy 3.8% 
in the previous year.

2019 can be summarised as a year of rebalancing 
increased protecƟonism with protracted globalisaƟon 
that was achieved over the last two and a half decades. 
Heightened trade conflicts resulƟng in immediate and 
arbitrary tariffs, geo-poliƟcal tensions across many regions 
and economic realignments including uncertainty around 
Brexit resulted in a non-conducive environment for large 
scale investments and growth in consumpƟon. The year 
got marked with events like frequent disturbances in Hong 
Kong and the Persian Gulf and blow hot - blow cold trade 
negoƟaƟons betweenthe US and China.

According to the InternaƟonal Monetary Fund (IMF), 
global economic growth is likely to witness a steep de-
growth of -4.9% in CY 2020, amidst ‘The Great Lockdown’ 
led by COVID-19. The contracƟon in growth seeps down to 
over 170 naƟons, and for several of them, this comes as 
a double whammy as they were already fighƟng exisƟng 
headwinds in their economy. 

The advanced economies are mostly experiencing 
widespread outbreak, especially the US, the UK, Germany, 
France, Italy and Spain, and are therefore deploying 
containment measures that extract a sizable toll on 
economic acƟvity. AddiƟonally, adverse market senƟments 
are also likely to impact economic prospects. Some parƟal 
liŌing of lockdown measures has been witnessed in recent 
weeks.

The emerging markets and developing economies are 
under pressure to balance their public health scenario 
with their economic development goals. However, 
emerging and developing Asia group is expected to be 
the only region with some growth rate in CY2020 due to 
significant domesƟc demand and policy responses.

Annexure - V to the Directors’ Report
INDIAN ECONOMY

One of the fastest-growing economies in the world unƟl 
recent years, India recorded below 6% GDP growth on 
a y-o-y basis for the 1st Ɵme in seven years. During the 
1st quarter of FY20 India recorded a near 5% growth, the 
slowest since the fourth quarter of FY13. Three of the 
four growth engines such as private consumpƟon, private 
Investment, and exports have slowed down significantly. 
ConsumpƟon, the biggest contributor to India’s growth Ɵll 
date, fell to an 18-quarter low of 3.1% in Q1 FY20, poinƟng 
to the fragile consumer senƟment and purchasing ability. 
Private consumpƟon which contributes nearly 60% to 
India’s GDP, is esƟmated to have grown at just 5.7% in 
2019-20 compared to the 8.1% growth in the previous 
fiscal year. On the industry side, several core sectors 
including auto, real estate, and manufacturing were in 
deep waters for the major part of FY20. The auto sector 
in 2019 witnessed its worst decline in auto sales in more 
than two decades. Manufacturing is expected to have 
grown at just 2% in 2019-20, the lowest growth rate in 
nearly 15 years, compared to 6.9% in 2018-19. Exports 
grew at just 5.7% and have remained volaƟle owing to 
global uncertainƟes around trade and investments and 
geopoliƟcal tensions. The fourth engine, government 
consumpƟon, and investment are running out of steam 
because of the limited elbow room the government has 
for counter-cyclical spending as the budget deficit remains 
under pressure.

Recent Developments

The return of a majority government from the same 
dispensaƟon provided poliƟcal stability and policy 
conƟnuity. Aiming to revive growth by way of boosƟng 
private investment and consumpƟons, the Central 
Government and the Central Bank made many 
accommodaƟve stances including successive lowering 
of policy rates and a substanƟve lowering of corporate 
taxes. Among the key themes of the year were added 
thrust to doubling of farmers’ income, propelling the 
country’s economy towards the 5 trillion dollar mark, 
raƟonalising corporate taxes, aƩracƟng global companies 
to manufacture in India, furthering ease of doing business 
and expanding exports.

Despite the imminent risks to the economy, India’s 
growth is expected to gain pace gradually in the coming 
months, expectedly driven by targeted measures to 
protect jobs, income support to the vulnerable secƟons of 
households and businesses, and encourage investments. 
The Government of India has already announced a ` 20 
Trillion package (or ~10% of India’s GDP) to assist the 
naƟon and its people in miƟgaƟng the economic impacts 



Annual Report 2019-20 | 37

Notice Directors’ Report Annexure to the Directors’ Report Corporate Governance Report

Annexure - V to the Directors’ Report (Contd.)

of this pandemic. India’s economy remains resilient with 
robust long-term fundamentals, providing large external 
buffers and reserves, which bolster the country’s potenƟal 
to increase fiscal expenditure once the pandemic recedes. 
Moreover, India has the capacity and scale to expand its 
share in the global supply chain, which has been disrupted 
by the COVID-19 outbreak.

2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Global Steel Industry

The global steel industry faced pricing pressure for 
mostparts of CY 2019, in the wake of a protecƟve 
market environment in key economies. This was further 
aggravated due to country-specific demand slowdown 
that fuelled market imbalances.

In line with a conservaƟve trade senƟment, consumer 
industries of steel undertook acƟve destocking. This led 
to stunted capacity uƟlisaƟon and resulted in net excess 
capacity globally. This was further complemented by 
addiƟon of new capaciƟes and resulted in downward 
pressure on steel prices.

Steel demand in developed economies are expected 
to decline 17.1% y-o-y in CY 2020, due to the COVID-19 
impact with businesses struggling to stay afloat and 
high unemployment levels. Thus, recovery in CY 2021 
is expected to be muted at 7.8% y-o-y. Steel demand 
recovery in the EU markets is likely to get delayed beyond 
CY 2020. The US market is also likely to witness a slight 
recovery in CY 2021. Meanwhile, Japanese and Korean 
steel demand will witness double-digit declines in CY 
2020, with Japan being impactedby reduced exports and 
halted investments in automobiles and machinery sectors, 
and Korea being impacted by lower exports and weak 
domesƟc industry.

Steel demand in developing countries excluding China is 
expected to decline by 11.6% in CY 2020, followed by a 
9.2% recovery in CY 2021.

The World Steel AssociaƟon (world steel) forecasts steel 
demand to decline by 6.4% y-o-y to 1,654 MnT in CY 2020, 
due to the COVID-19 impact. However, it has asserted that 
the global steel demand could rebound to 1,717 MnT in 
CY2021 and witness a 3.8% rise on a y-o-y basis. Chinese 
demand is likely to recover faster than in the rest of the 
world. The forecast assumes that lockdown measures will 
be eased by June and July, with social distancing conƟnuing 
and major steel making countries not witnessing a second 
wave of the pandemic.

Steel demand is expected to decline sharply across most 
countries, especially in the second quarter of CY 2020, 

with a likely gradual recovery from the third quarter. 
However, risks to the forecast remain on the downside 
as economies make a graded exit from the lockdowns, 
without any parƟcular cure or vaccine for COVID-19.

Indian Steel Industry

The Indian steel industry, aŌer recovering from the twin 
shocks of demoneƟsaƟon and the Goods and Services Tax 
(GST) reform, was on a fast track growth curve, especially 
in the laƩer part of the year 19-20. However, the 
COVID-19 has put a lot of uncertainty in the steel industry 
in the world, and more so in India, due to the lockdown 
announcement towards end of March.

India is the world’s second largest producer of crude 
steel and is esƟmated to become the second-largest 
consumer of finished steel products over the medium 
term, with the sector contribuƟng 2% of the country’s 
GDP. The growth in India’s steel consumpƟon is driven 
primarily by infrastructure, construcƟon and automobile 
sectors that account for 75% of the domesƟc demand. The 
growth in India’s producƟon and consumpƟon of steel is a 
direct result of its economic development and consistent 
government efforts to strengthen the industry. However, 
construcƟon and manufacturing acƟviƟes were subdued 
for most part of the year driven by a credit squeeze and 
prolonged monsoon season. This also translated into 
soŌer pricing and weaker spreads for finished steel, 
notably in the first half of FY 2019-20. Well-placed players 
in the industry responded by shiŌing their market focus 
to exports, to liquidate accumulated inventory. This led 
to India becoming a net exporter of steel during the year 
under review, with non-alloy Hot Rolled Coil being the 
most exported item. 

Worth menƟoning India was the world’s second-largest 
steel producer with producƟon standing at 106.5 MT in 
2018. The growth in the Indian steel sector has been driven 
by domesƟc availability of raw materials such as iron ore 
and cost-effecƟve labour. Consequently, the steel sector 
has been a major contributor to India’s manufacturing 
output. India’s steel producƟon capacity has expanded to 
137.975 million tonnes in FY19. India surpassed Japan to 
become the world’s second largest steel producer in 2019, 
with crude steel producƟon of 111.2 million tonnes.

As a maƩer of pride, the Indian steel industry is very 
modern with state-of-the-art steel mills. It has always 
strived for conƟnuous modernisaƟon and up-gradaƟon of 
older plants and higher energy efficiency levels.

Government IniƟaƟves

Some of the other recent government iniƟaƟves in this 
sectorare as follows:



38 | Annual Report 2019-20

Statutory Reports
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

Annexure - V to the Directors’ Report (Contd.)

• Government introduced Steel Scrap Recycling Policy 
aimed to reduce import.

• An export duty of 30 per cent has been levied on iron 
ore (lumps and fines) to ensure supply to domesƟc 
steel industry.

• Government of India’s focus on infrastructure and 
restarƟng road projects is aiding the boost in demand 
for steel. Also, further likely acceleraƟon in rural 
economy and infrastructure is expected to lead to 
growth in demand for steel.

• The Union Cabinet, Government of India has 
approved the NaƟonal Steel Policy (NSP) 2017, as it 
seeks to create a globally compeƟƟve steel industry 
in India. NSP 2017 envisages 300 million tonnes (MT) 
steel-making capacity and 160 kgs per capita steel 
consumpƟon by 2030-31.

• The Ministry of Steel is facilitaƟng seƫng up of 
an industry driven Steel Research and Technology 
Mission of India (SRTMI) in associaƟon with the public 
and private sector steel companies to spearhead 
research and development acƟviƟes in the iron and 
steel industry at an iniƟal corpus of ` 200 crore (US$ 
30 million).

• The Government of India raised import duty on 
most steel items twice, each Ɵme by 2.5 per cent 
and imposed measures including anƟ-dumping and 
safeguard duƟes on iron and steel items.

NaƟonal Steel Policy 2017

The new Steel Policy enshrines the long term vision of 
the Government to give impetus to the steel sector. It 
seeks to enhance domesƟc steel consumpƟon and ensure 
high quality steel producƟon and create a technologically 
advanced and globally compeƟƟve steel industry.

The NaƟonal Steel Policy, 2017, has envisaged 300 million 
tonnes of producƟon capacity by 2030-31. The per capita 
consumpƟon of steel has increased from 57.6 kg to 74.1 
kg during the last five years. 

Key features of the NSP 2017:

1. Create self-sufficiency in steel producƟon by providing 
policy support & guidance to private manufacturers, 
MSME steel producers, CPSEs. 

2. Encourage adequate capacity addiƟons.

3. Development of globally compeƟƟve steel 
manufacturing capabiliƟes.

4. Cost-efficient producƟon.

5. DomesƟc availability of iron ore, coking coal & natural 
gas.

6. FacilitaƟng foreign investment.

7. Asset acquisiƟons of raw materials &

8. Enhancing the domesƟc steel demand.

Huge scope for growth is offered by India’s comparaƟvely 
low per capita steel consumpƟon and the expected rise in 
consumpƟon due to increased infrastructure construcƟon 
and the thriving automobile and railways sectors.

ADVANTAGE IN INDIA

I. Demand Growth:

 Power and Cement industries in India will aid the 
growth in the metals and mining sector. Increase in 
iron and steel demand will also benefit the sector.

II. AƩracƟve OpportuniƟes:

 The Ministry of Steel, government of India aims to 
more than double the steel producƟon capacity 
to 300 million tonnes by 2030-31, indicaƟng new 
opportuniƟes in the sector.

III. Policy Support:

 100 % FDI allowed in the mining sector and exploraƟon 
of metal and non-metal ores under the AutomaƟc 
Route.

IV. CompeƟƟve Advantage:

 India benefits from strategic locaƟon that enables 
convenient exports to developed as well as the fast 
developing Asian markets. It also has a fair producƟon 
and conversion cost advantage in steel and alumina.

Rise in infrastructure development and automoƟve 
producƟon are driving growth in the sector. Power and 
cement industries are also aiding growth in the metals and 
mining sector. Demand for iron and steel is set to conƟnue, 
given the strong growth expectaƟons for the residenƟal 
and commercial building industry.

We, at GallanƩ Ispat, has the following producƟon data of 
the Fiscal 2019-20 under the Steel Segment:

Steel Segment products wise ProducƟon (in MT)
Sponge Iron  (M.T.) 2,69,635
M.S. Billets (M.T.) 2,79,076
M.S. Round Bar & Miss Rolled 
Bar (M.T.)

2,74,392

Wheat Products (M.T.) 44,745
Power GeneraƟon (KWH) 25,83,30,603
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Agro Industry (Wheat Products)

The Indian food industry is poised for huge growth, 
increasing its contribuƟon to world food trade every 
year due to its immense potenƟal for value addiƟon, 
parƟcularly within the food processing industry. Indian 
food and grocery market is the world’s sixth largest, with 
retail contribuƟng 70 per cent of the sales. The Indian 
food processing industry accounts for 32 per cent of the 
country’s total food market, one of the largest industries 
in India and is ranked fiŌh in terms of producƟon, 
consumpƟon, export and expected growth.

Market Size

During 2019-20 crop year, food grain producƟon was 
esƟmated to reach a record 295.67 million tonnes (MT). 
In 2020-21, Government of India is targeƟng food grain 
producƟon of 298 MT.ProducƟon of horƟculture crops 
in India was esƟmated at a record 320.48 million metric 
tonnes (MMT) in FY20 as per second advance esƟmates. 
India has the largest livestock populaƟon of around 
535.78 million, which translates to around 31 per cent of 
the world populaƟon. Milk producƟon in the country is 
expected to increase to 208 MT in FY21 from 198 MT in 
FY20, registering a growth of 10 per cent y-o-y.

India is among the 15 leading exporters of agricultural 
products in the world. Agricultural export from India 
reached US$ 38.54 billion in FY19 and US$ 28.93 billion in 
FY20 (Ɵll January 2020).

We expect therefore that the Agro business will conƟnue 
to show strong momentum driven by new markets 
entering these categories. Key to capturing the benefits of 
this economic growth will be on the one hand distribuƟon 
capabiliƟes to reach out to consumers across the region 
of UƩar Pradesh and nearby states and on the other a low 
cost structure in terms of Capital and OperaƟng Costs. 

The Government of India came out with Transport and 
MarkeƟng Assistance (TMA) scheme to provide financial 
assistance for transport and markeƟng of agriculture 
products in order to boost agriculture exports. Further, 
The Agriculture Export Policy, 2018 was approved by the 
Government of India in December 2018. The new policy 
aimed to increase India’s agricultural export to US$ 60 
billion by 2022 and US$ 100 billion in the next few years 
with a stable trade policy regime.

India is expected to achieve the ambiƟous goal of doubling 
farm income by 2022. The agriculture sector in India 
is expected to generate beƩer momentum in the next 
few years due to increased investments in agricultural 
infrastructure such as irrigaƟon faciliƟes, warehousing and 
cold storage. Furthermore, the growing use of geneƟcally 

modified crops will likely improve the yield for Indian 
farmers. India is expected to be self-sufficient in pulses in 
the coming few years due to concerted efforts of scienƟsts 
to get early maturing varieƟes of pulses and the increase 
in minimum support price.

We, at GallanƩ Ispat, has the following producƟon data of 
the Fiscal 2019-20 under the Agro Segment:

Agro Segment products wise ProducƟon (in MT)
Maida (refined wheat flour) 27,950
Suji (Semolina) 6,575
AƩa (Flour) 1,924
Choker (Wheat Bran) 8,295

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS
OpportuniƟes
With several backward and forward linkages in place, 
several factors catalyse the demand in the steel industry. 
TradiƟonally, construcƟon, infrastructure, automobiles 
and consumer durable sectors generate steel demand, 
while the availability of raw materials and workforce 
have an impact on the producƟon. During FY 2020, Indian 
steel manufacturers conƟnued to face the challenges 
of imported steel due to elevated level of imports from 
Japan and South Korea, besides reduced demand from 
the automobile and its ancillary sectors. However, the 
government is working towards bolstering India’s steel 
industry by direct and indirect policy sƟmuli that are 
expected to increase demand (mulƟmillion-dollar NIP and 
fresh investment in power, railways, and water, coupled 
with renewed interest in the automobile sector) and 
reduced imports. 
India’s domesƟc steel industry is especially vulnerable to 
cheaper imports and demand fluctuaƟon. The slump in 
domesƟc steel consumpƟon and decrease in investment 
across sectors have affected the overall growth and 
profitability of the steel industry. The current wave of 
protecƟonism and trade wars is further impacƟng the 
industry.
As India works towards becoming a manufacturing 
powerhouse through policy iniƟaƟves like Make in India, 
the steel industry has emerged as a major focus area given 
the dependence of a plethora of sectors on its output. 
India is currently the world’s second largest producer of 
steel and is set to become the second largest consumer 
of steel, with the industry contribuƟng about 2% of the 
country’s GDP. The industry has the potenƟal to help India 
regain its posiƟve trade balance in steel as well as to drive 
the country’s export manufacturing capabiliƟes. 
The Government’s conƟnued focus on infrastructure 
creaƟon, manufacturing and rural development is 
expected to lead to an accelerated momentum in the 
investment cycle and steel demand. The main factors that 
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lead to a significant increase in demand for steel are new 
infrastructure developments and the growing needs of the 
increasing middle class in India specially in UƩar Pradesh, 
Bihar, Jharkhand and Delhi. The construcƟon, automobile 
and manufacturing sectors will aƩract a high demand for 
steel over the next decade.
The renewed importance given by Government on 
affordable housing, roads, sagarmala projects and other 
infrastructure projects are expected to create steel 
demand, this will augur well for steel industry also.
Threats and Risks
Covid-19 
The outbreak of the deadly Covid-19 pandemic, followed 
bythe lockdown in the country has adversely affected the 
business operaƟons of the Company. Due to the rapid 
spread of the Covid - 19 in the Country, the health of the 
employees and workers of the Company has become 
priority of the Company over the business operaƟons. This 
unproducƟve lockdown is resulƟng inthe financial burden 
for the Company. The depressed market condiƟons due to 
Covid - 19 have further resulted in decrease in manpower 
requirement resulƟng in idling of work force.
The availability of raw material at right price remains a 
concern for the steel sector and then there is the threat 
of cheap dumping from China, say experts and industry 
players. The government, however, is keeping a brave face 
and its focus areas for the New Year include increasing per 
capital steel consumpƟon, finding new markets for India-
made steel and a shiŌ in the industry’s aƩenƟon towards 
producƟon of special steel.
India’s steel industry is going through an acute shortage 
of labour that threatens to bring it to a halt. Apart from 
the labour issue, a slump in demand for the product and 
squeeze in the supply of a key raw material has added to 
the woes. The supply of coal, a key raw material has also 
suffered because South Africa - one of the biggest sources, 
is itself going through a lockdown.
3. SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

Major Product-wise Turnover

FY 2019-2020 FY 2018-19

Qty
(MT/Unit)

Rs. In Lacs Qty
(MT/Unit)

Rs. In Lacs

Agro (MT) 44,362 9,933.13 52,413.02 11,549.06

Steel (MT)* 2,88,925 91,353.61 2,71,140.93 1,10,599.97

Power (Unit) 25,83,30,603 16,661.54 26,70,65,508 19,961.21

Real Estate - 723.41 - 778.04

Un-allocable - 3,609.14 - 204.50

*Company has Integrated Steel Plant faciliƟes at Sahjanwa, 
Gorakhpur. Being an Integrated Steel Plant, Company, 

during the manufacturing process of end products TMT 
Bars also manufactures Sponge Iron, Billets etc.

4. OUTLOOK

India’s steel consumpƟon growth is expected to rise over 
the medium to long term on account of government 
expenditure on infrastructure and fiscal sƟmulus to 
manufacturing industries. Further, the country is looking 
to modernise, expand and accommodate the aspiraƟons 
of a growing populaƟon where industrialisaƟon, 
urbanisaƟon and access to technology are the key pillars 
of the economic growth. 

Since, Infrastructure has linkages to other industries like 
cement, brick and steel through backward and forward 
linkages. The outlook for the industry looks reasonable, 
since India has good iron ore deposits, skilled manpower 
and growing demand for steel. The improved demand 
is expected to conƟnue in the current fiscal as well on 
the back of ongoing government funded infrastructure 
projects. In spite of a downturn in the Global Steel 
demand, Indian steel demand could survive showing an 
upward trend, seƫng a road ahead for the growth of the 
domesƟc steel industry in the long run. The upward trend 
is expected to be conƟnued on account of fiscal measures 
taken by the Government such as infusion of funds 
for development of infrastructure sector, introducƟon 
of sƟmulus packages for revival of industry besides 
factors like increase in consumpƟon and producƟon of 
steel, upcoming infrastructure and Greenfield projects, 
stabilizaƟon of prices etc. The NaƟonal Steel Policy has a 
target for taking Indian Steel producƟon upto 110 MT by 
2019-20.

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS

Availability of Raw materials like Iron Ore, Coal etc. at 
a compeƟƟve cost is the main area of concern for the 
Company. High cost of iron ore and coal impacƟng the 
EBITDA margin. Availability and cost of required grade 
of Iron ore are impacted by Global movement and 
parity of landed cost considering price, freight, tariff and 
exchange rates and also DomesƟc demand-supply gap, 
constraints and vendor acƟons. All these concern as well 
as Government policies and their impact on raw materials 
availability are being tracked regularly. 

Global economic uncertainƟes have affected India’s 
economy, Key risks synonymous to industry include the 
global recessionary trend, economic slowdown, increase 
in financial charges, non-availability (or undue increase in 
cost) of raw materials, such as, iron ore, coal and labour 
etc., coupled with market fluctuaƟons. The Company does 
not apprehend any inherent risk in the long run, with the 
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excepƟon of certain primary concerns that have afflicted 
the progress of our industry in general, like:

• Shortage of Labour

• Rising manpower and material costs

• Approvals and procedural difficulƟes

• Lack of adequate sources of finance.

Apart from this Industry is highly labour intensive and is 
subject to stringent labour laws. The swings on commodity 
prices, the volaƟlity of several currencies across the world, 
the economic condiƟons of countries where our suppliers 
and buyers operate from and inter-country trade issues 
are some of the uncertainƟes that we face frequently. 
The company miƟgates these risks by Ɵmely managerial 
intervenƟon and by carefully to put in place robust risk 
miƟgaƟon strategies and incorporate agility in operaƟons 
to meet temporary headwinds and create opportuniƟes 
of growth.

Since steel and agro business is a highly compeƟƟve 
market, the Company is prone to risks from price sensiƟve 
markets, geographic dependencies and limited customer 
segments.

The Company tries to counter these risks by forging long 
term relaƟonships with buyers of products of the Company 
that again results from meeƟng end users expectaƟons 
consistently.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal controls 
commensurate with the nature of its business and size of 
its operaƟons, to effecƟvely provide for the safety of its 
assets, reliability of financial transacƟons with adequate 
checks and balances, adherence to applicable statutes, 
accounƟng policies, approval procedures and to ensure 
opƟmum use of available resources. These systems are 
reviewed and improved regularly.

The Company has a comprehensive budgetary control 
system to monitor revenue and expenditure against 
approved budget on an ongoing basis. The Audit 
commiƩee of Board of Directors on regular intervals and 
in co-ordinaƟon with internal and statutory Auditors 
reviews the adequacy of internal control systems within 
the company.

7. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH 
RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Revenue from OperaƟons for the current year is 
` 1,02,010.15 Lacs as compared to ` 1, 22,927.06 Lacs in 
the previous year. The Profit before Tax for the year under 
review is ̀  6,488.19 Lacs as against ` 16,631.38 Lacs in the 

previous year. Profit aŌer Tax during FY 2019-20 stood at 
`5,812.42 Lacs as against `13,022.04 Lacs in the previous 
year.

ComparaƟve chart of Segment wise Revenue and Profits 
are as under:

SEGMENT REVENUE (` In Lacs)

2020 2019 % Changes
Agro 9,933.13 11,549.06 -13.99
Steel 91,353.61 1,10,599.97 -17.40
Power 16,661.54 19,961.21 -16.53
Real Estate 723.41 778.04 -7.02
Unallocated 3,609.14 204.50 1,664.86

SEGMENT RESULTS (Rs. In Lacs)

2020 2019 % Changes
Agro 542.79 491.82 10.36
Steel 635.31 1,951.93 -67.45
Power 5,831.13 4,306.78 35.39
Real Estate 661.25 903.58 -26.82
Unallocated - - -

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF 
PEOPLE EMPLOYED

We believe that our intellectual capital is the true asset 
of our business and losing them could have an adverse 
effect on the Company’s performance. At GallanƩ Ispat, 
we believe that to ensure skill development and to be able 
to face major challenges, we need teams who deliver and 
whoare moƟvated. Our human capital is our greatest tool 
for shaping the future of the Company and isalso criƟcal for 
our smooth funcƟoning. Discovering talented people and 
retaining them is the key aim of our HR policy. Our people 
are our greatest strength as a company and the bedrock 
of our organizaƟon. That’s why our highest priority is to 
provide a rewarding workplace that’s safe, welcoming, 
and supporƟve of professional development. Employees 
work with great zeal with the feeling in mind that the 
interest of employer and employees is one and the same, 
i.e. to increase producƟon. Every worker feels that he is 
a co-owner of the gains of industry. The employer in his 
turn must realize that the gains of industry are not for him 
along but they should be shared equally and generously 
with his workers.

Company’s Learning and Development Programs cater to 
a wide variety of employee profiles addressing Sales and 
MarkeƟng, Manufacturing and Leadership. Our company 
enjoys the support of commiƩed and well saƟsfied human 
capital. The manpower strength of the Company as on 31st 
March 2020 was 1,453 permanent employees including 
ExecuƟve Directors, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Chief Financial 
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Officer, Company Secretary and other management staff 
across different locaƟons. 

The Company maintained harmonious industrial relaƟons 
in all units of the Company during the financial year 2019-
20.

Financial RaƟo FY 2019 20 FY 2018-19 Change (%) Reason for change
Debtors Turnover 17.16 19.48 -11.91% -
Inventory Turnover 8.01 8.01 -0.01% -
Interest Coverage RaƟo 6.56 18.18 -63.90% OperaƟng profit decreased during the year due to sluggish 

market situaƟon and overall subdued performance of 
steel Industry.

Current RaƟo 2.68 3.15 -14.90% -
Debt Equity RaƟo 0.36 0.37 -2.92% -
OperaƟng Profit Margin 
(%)

9.51 13.19 -27.86% OperaƟng profit decreased during the year due to sluggish 
market situaƟon and overall subdued performance of 
steel Industry.

Net Profit Margin (%) 5.51 10.58 -47.88% Net profit decreased during the year due to sluggish 
market situaƟon and overall subdued performance of 
steel Industry.

Return on Net Worth 0.07 0.17 -58.42% OperaƟng profit decreased during the year due to sluggish 
market situaƟon and overall subdued performance of 
steel Industry.

CAUTIONERY STATEMENT

Certain Statements in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis describing your Company’s view about 
the Industry, objecƟves and expectaƟons, etc. may be 
considered as ‘forward-looking statements’ within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regulaƟons. Actual results 
may differ substanƟally or materially from those expressed 
or implied in the statement. Your Company’s operaƟons 
may be affected by supply and demand situaƟon, input 
prices and their availability, changes in Government 
regulaƟons, tax laws and other factors such as Industrial 
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9. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL RATIOS

During the year, the significant changes in the financial 
raƟos, compared to the previous year which are more than 
25% as compared to the previous year, are summarised 
below:

relaƟons and economic developments, etc. Investors 
should bear the above in mind. The Company assumes 
no responsibility to publicly update, amend, modify or 
revise any forward-looking statements, based on any 
subsequent development, new informaƟon or future 
events or otherwise except as required by applicable law.

On behalf of the Board

Date: June 29, 2020 C. P. Agrawal
Place: Gorakhpur Chairman
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

[PURSUANT TO SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013]

CONCEPT & CONTEXT

The purpose of this policy is to ensure GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited (“GIL” or the “Company”), affiliates and 
associated companies; consistently operate in amanner 
that minimises detrimental impacts to society and the 
environment. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has 
always been on the agenda of the Company. Pursuant to 
SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 every 
Company having Net Worth of ` 500 Crores or more or 
Turnover of ̀  1,000 Crore or more or Net Profit of ̀  5 Crore 
or more shall consƟtute Corporate Social Responsibility 
CommiƩee (‘CSR CommiƩee’) and CSR CommiƩee shall 
formulate and recommend Policy.

The CSR CommiƩee so consƟtuted formulated Policy 
on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR Policy) and 
recommended the same to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (‘Board’) for its approval. The Board of Directors 
(the “Board”) of GallanƩ Ispat Limited acƟng upon the 
recommendaƟon of its Directors and CSR CommiƩee, has 
adopted the following policy and procedures with regard 
to the Company’s Social Responsibility.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY PHILOSOPHY

GIL’s conƟnual aspiraƟons to achieve and surpass the 
highest standards of conduct and corporate social 
responsibility are essenƟal components of how we 
measure our success. GIL strives to be a socially responsible 
company and strongly believes in development which is 
beneficial for the society at large. This policy clearly sets 
forth GIL’s social responsibility objecƟves and provides 
guidance on the social responsibiliƟes of all individuals 
associated with GIL. GIL’s primary responsibility is to 
ensure the long-term success of the GallanƩ Group 
through the adopƟon and management of good corporate 
social behaviour.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

The objecƟve of this Policy is to set guiding principles 
for carrying out CSR acƟviƟes by the Company and also 
to set up process of execuƟon, implementaƟon and 
monitoring of the CSR acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the 
Company. The Policy shall be read in line with SecƟon 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and such other 
rules, regulaƟons, circulars and noƟficaƟons (collecƟvely 
referred hereinaŌer as ‘RegulaƟons’) as may be applicable 
and as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme and will, inter-alia 
provide the following:

• Establishing a guideline for compliance with the 
provisions of RegulaƟons to dedicate a percentage of 
Company’s profits for social projects.

• Ensuring the implementaƟon of CSR iniƟaƟves in 
leƩer and spirit through appropriate procedures and 
reporƟng.

• CreaƟng opportuniƟes for employees to parƟcipate in 
socially responsible iniƟaƟves.

DEFINITIONS

Act means the Companies Act, 2013;

Corporate Social Responsibility means Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) as defined in SecƟon 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014;

Ministry means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs;

Net Profit means net profit as defined in SecƟon 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as set outbelow:

Net Profit as per its financial statement prepared in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, but 
shall not include the following, namely:-

i. any profit arising from any overseas branch or 
branches of the company, whether operated as a 
separate company or otherwise; and

ii. any dividend received from other companies in India, 
which are covered under and complying with the 
provisions of secƟon 135 of the Act:

Words and expressions used in this CSR Policy and not 
defined herein but defined in the Act shall have the 
meaning respecƟvely assigned to them in the Act.

LIST OF CSR PROJECTS/PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES

The policy recognizes that corporate social responsibility 
is not merely compliance; it is a commitment to 
support iniƟaƟves that measurably improve the lives of 
underprivileged by one or more of the following focus 
areas as noƟfied under SecƟon 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014:

The acƟviƟes involve the following:

• EradicaƟng hunger, poverty and malnutriƟon, 
promoƟng prevenƟve health care and sanitaƟon and 
making available safe drinking water;

• PromoƟng educaƟon, including special educaƟon 
and employment enhancing vocaƟon skills especially 
among children, women, elderly, and the differently 
abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

Annexure - VI to the Directors’ Report



44 | Annual Report 2019-20

Statutory Reports
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

• PromoƟng gender equality, empowering women, 
seƫng up homes and hostels for women and 
orphans; seƫng up old age homes, day care centres 
and such other faciliƟes for senior ciƟzens and 
measures for reducing inequaliƟes faced by socially 
and economically backward groups;

• Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological 
balance, protecƟon of flora and fauna, animal welfare, 
agro forestry, conservaƟon of natural resources and 
maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

• ProtecƟon of naƟonal heritage, art and culture 
including restoraƟon of buildings and sites of historical 
importance and works of art, seƫng up public 
libraries, promoƟon and development of tradiƟonal 
arts and handicraŌs;

• Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans,war 
widows and their dependents;

• Training to promote rural sports, naƟonally recognized 
sports, paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

• ContribuƟon to the Prime Ministers’ NaƟonal 
Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central 
Government for socio-economic development and 
relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the 
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minoriƟes 
and women;   

• ContribuƟons or funds provided to technology 
incubators located within academic insƟtuƟon which 
are approved by the Central Government;

• Rural development projects.

• Any other acƟviƟes in relaƟon of the above and 
all other acƟviƟes which forms part of CSR as per 
Schedule VII of the Act as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme.

AREA OF ACTIVITY

The Act provides that the Company shall give preference 
to the local area and areas around it where it operates, for 
spending the amount earmarked for CSR. The Company 
will thus give preference to conducƟng CSR acƟviƟes in 
the State of UƩar Pradesh, Bihar, West Bengal and such 
other state(s) in India wherein the Company has/will have 
its operaƟons. However, the CommiƩee may idenƟfy such 
areas other than stated above, as it may deem fit, and 
recommend it to the Board for undertaking CSR acƟviƟes.

FUNDING AND QUANTUM OF AMOUNT FOR CSR

The Company would spend not less than 2% of the 
average Net Profits of the Company made during the 
three immediately preceding financial years. The surplus 

arising out of the CSR acƟvity will not be part of business 
profits of the Company. The corpus would thus include 
2% of average net profits, as aforesaid, any income arising 
there from and surplus arising out of CSR acƟviƟes.

The Company may build CSR capaciƟes of its personnel 
and/or those of its implemenƟng agencies through 
InsƟtuƟons with established track records of at least three 
financial years but such expenditure shall not exceed five 
percent of total CSR expenditure of the Company in one 
financial year.

However, if the Company ceases to be covered undersub-
secƟon (1) of SecƟon 135 of the Act for three financial 
years, then it shall not be required to, comply with the 
provisions laid down under sub-secƟon (2) to (5) of the 
said secƟon, Ɵll such Ɵme it meets the criteria specified in 
sub-secƟon (1) of the Act.

THE PROCESS TO MONITOR SUCH PROJECTS OR 
PROGRAMS

The CSR CommiƩee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company shall approve to the Board of Directors the 
projects and acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the Company 
out of the acƟviƟes stated hereinabove as per Schedule VII 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR CommiƩee shall recommend from Ɵme to Ɵme 
the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the acƟviƟes 
referred to hereinabove and to monitor the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy of the company from Ɵme to 
Ɵme.

The CSR CommiƩee, shall prepare a transparent 
monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementaƟon of 
the projects / programmes / acƟviƟes to be undertaken by 
the Company. The CSR CommiƩee shall have the authority 
to obtain professional advice from external sources and 
have full access to informaƟon contained in the records of 
the Company as well as the powers to call any employee 
/ external consultant or such other person(s) and for such 
purpose as may be deemed expedient for the purpose 
of accomplishments of overall CSR objecƟves laid down 
under the Act.

Appropriate documentaƟon and amendments of the 
CSR Policy, annual CSR acƟviƟes, reports on execuƟon by 
CSR Partner(s) and expenditures will be undertaken on a 
regular basis and the same will be available to the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

IniƟaƟves undertaken on the CSR front will be reported in 
the Annual Report of the Company.

The CSR CommiƩee and persons / enƟƟes authorised by 
it will conduct the due diligence checks on the current 
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projects/partners on a quarterly basis and report 
anomalies, if any, immediately.

THE PROCEDURES

1. As per the RegulaƟons the Company will set aside, 
for annual CSR acƟviƟes, an amount equal to 2% of 
the average Net Profits of the Company made during 
the three immediately preceding financial years. Any 
unuƟlised CSR allocaƟon of a parƟcular year will be 
carried forward to the following year, i.e. the CSR 
budget will be non-lapsable in nature.

 Provided that all reasonable efforts will be made to 
ensure that the annual CSR allocaƟon is fully uƟlized 
in the respecƟve year. However, if the Company fails 
to spend such amount, the Board of Directors shall, 
in its report under clause (o) of subsecƟon (3) of 
secƟon 134 of the Act, shall specify the reasons for 
not spending the amount.

2. Annexure VIII contains the details of the proposed 
expenditure for respecƟve Financial Year, towards 
CSR acƟviƟes. The same shall be amended annually 
according to the Financial Year aŌer the review by the 
CommiƩee or at such Ɵme, as the CommiƩee may 
deem fit.

3. Tax treatment of CSR spend will be in accordance 
with the Income Tax Act, 1961 as may be noƟfied by 
Central Board of Direct Taxes (CBDT).

PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION

• For the purpose of focusing its efforts in a conƟnued 
and effecƟve way, EducaƟon and Literacy Enhancement 
is idenƟfied as a main thrust area, besides other 
acƟviƟes permiƩed under the RegulaƟons.

• A list of CSR projects / programmes which the Company 
plans to undertake during the implementaƟon year will 
be laid down before the CommiƩee at the beginning 
of each year, specifying modaliƟes of execuƟon in the 
areas/sectors chosen and implementaƟon schedules 
for the same.

• IdenƟficaƟon of projects and the execuƟng agency/
NGO will be made, inter alia, by assessing the 
following:

 1. Project ObjecƟves

 2. Baseline Survey – As-is and To-be state basis, 
accordingly the outcome of the project will be 
measured.

 3. ImplementaƟon Schedules – Timelines for 
milestones of the project will need to be 
prescribed and agreed upon.

 4. ResponsibiliƟes and authoriƟes. 

 5. Major results expected and measurable outcome 
including the expenses/charges raƟo as against 
the actual CSR spend.

• If the Company decides to set up a Trust or SecƟon 
8 Company, or Society or FoundaƟon or any other 
form of enƟty operaƟng within India to facilitate 
implementaƟon of its CSR acƟviƟes in accordance 
with its stated CSR Policy, the following shall apply:

 a) The Company would need to specify the projects/
programmes to be undertaken by such an 
organizaƟon, for uƟlizing funds provided to it;

 b) The Company shall establish a monitoring 
mechanism to ensure that the allocaƟon is spent 
for the intended purpose only.

• The Company may also conduct/implement its CSR 
programmes through Trusts, SocieƟes, or SecƟon 8 
Companies operaƟng in India, which are not set up by 
the Company itself, herein collecƟvely referred to as 
‘CSR Partner(s)’.

• Such spends may be included as part of its prescribed 
CSR spend only if such organizaƟons have an 
established track record of at least three years in 
carrying on acƟviƟes in related areas.

• Company may collaborate or pool resources with 
other companies to undertake CSR acƟviƟes within 
India. Only acƟviƟes which are not for the benefit of 
employees of the company or their family members 
shall be considered as CSR acƟvity.

• CSR CommiƩee in consultaƟon with the Board 
of Directors of the Company will idenƟfy suitable 
projects for implementaƟon in line with the objecƟves 
of the Company and requirements laid down under 
the RegulaƟons. These projects would be executed 
either directly by the Company and / or through CSR 
Partner(s).

• While idenƟfying projects, CSR CommiƩee will assess 
CSR Partner(s) organizaƟons who would execute the 
projects at the grass root level. At a minimum they 
need to meet the following criteria:

 i. The CSR Partner(s) has a permanent office/
address in India;

 ii. The CSR Partner(s) is a Trusts, SocieƟes, or 
SecƟon 8 Company having an established track 
record of three years in undertaking similar CSR 
programmes or projects in pursuance with the 
relevant regulaƟons;
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 iii. Possesses a valid income-tax ExempƟon 
CerƟficate 

 iv. The antecedents of the CSR Partner are verifiable 

 v. Have requisite framework to report progress/
status of the projects on a quarterly basis on 
agreed parameters.

 vi. Maintain a required level of auditable records on 
the CSR iniƟaƟves conducted in conjuncƟon with 
GIL as agreed mutually.

REVIEW AND REPORTING

The CSR CommiƩee will review the philanthropic acƟviƟes 
of the Company and will provide progress update to the 
Board of Directors every six months /such other intervals 
as deemed fit.

The Company will report in the prescribed format, the 
details of CSR iniƟaƟves and acƟviƟes of the Company in 
the Directors’ Report and on the website of the Company, 
as required under the RegulaƟons. Such reporƟng will be 
done, pertaining to financial year(s) commencing on or 
aŌer the 1st day of April, 2014.

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY

The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the 
recommendaƟons of CSR CommiƩee can amend this 
policy, as and when required as deemed fit. Any or all 
provisions of the CSR Policy would be subject to revision/
amendment in accordance with the RegulaƟons on 
the subject as may be issued from relevant statutory 
authoriƟes, from Ɵme to Ɵme.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including 
overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR 
Policy and projects or programs. : CSR Policy is available in 
this Annual Report being part of Directors’ Report and is 
also available at website www.gallanƩ.com

The focus areas of CSR Policy are as follows

The Company has currently idenƟfied the following 
Priority Projects to be undertaken by the CSR CommiƩee:

1. PromoƟng educaƟon including special educaƟon 
especially among children, women, elderly and the 
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects 
in backward areas;

2. PromoƟng health care including prevenƟve health 

care and sanitaƟon and making available safe 
drinkingwater;

3. ComposiƟon of the CSR CommiƩee: Mr. Prem Prakash 
Agrawal, Chairman, Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal and 
Mrs. Smita Modi

4. Average net profit of the Company for the last three 
financial years: ` 9,383.68 Lacs.

5. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net 
profit of the company for the last 3 financial years): 
` 187.67Lacs.

6. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: 
` 195.62 Lacs

 b) Amount unspent, if any,: NIL

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1. The company
is promoƟng
educaƟon for economically
weaker secƟon of the 
society through Draupadi 
Devi Geeta Devi SaraswaƟ 
Vidya Mandir

PromoƟng
EducaƟon etc.

Programme is
undertaken in
the backward
area of 
Gorakhpur, UƩar 
Pradesh
.

An amount of ` 10.00 
Lacs has been paid for 
the development of 
School Building and 
the CSR CommiƩee of
the Company is 
monitoring the actual 
expenditure and 
surplus, if any.

` 10.00 Lacs ` 319.00 
Lacs *

Amount has been
contributed directly 
by the Company to 
Draupadi Devi Geeta Devi 
SaraswaƟ Vidya Mandir, 
Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, 
UƩar Pradesh  
for the Financial
Year 2019-20.

2. The company is promoƟng
health care for 
economically weaker 
secƟon of the society
through Hanuman Prasad 
Poddar Marg, opp. 
Indian Oil Petrol Pump, 
Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh 
- 273006

PromoƟng
Health care 
etc.

Programme is
undertaken at 
Gorakhpur, UƩar 
Pradesh for the 
benefit of public 
at large.

An amount of `21.00 
Lacs has been paid 
for the hospital 
development and the 
CSR CommiƩee of
the Company is 
monitoring the actual 
expenditure and 
surplus, if any.

` 21.00 Lacs ` 340.00 
Lacs *

Amount has been
contributed directly 
by the Company to 
Hanuman Prasad Poddar 
Marg, opp. Indian Oil 
Petrol Pump, Gorakhpur, 
UƩar Pradesh - 273006
for the Financial
Year 2019-20.

3. The company is promoƟng
health care for the benefit 
of the society through DM 
Gorakhpur/SachivJila Rifle 
Club Society Gorakhpur, 
UƩar Pradesh 

PromoƟng
Health care 
etc.

Programme is
undertaken at 
Gorakhpur, UƩar 
Pradesh for the 
benefit of public 
at large.
.

An amount of `1.00 
Lac has been paid for 
the distribuƟon of 
Mask and SaniƟser to 
prevent and protect 
from  Covid-19  Virus. 
The CSR CommiƩee of
the Company is 
monitoring the actual 
expenditure and 
surplus, if any.

` 1.00 Lac ` 341.00 
Lacs *

Amount has been
contributed directly 
by the Company DM 
Gorakhpur/SachivJila 
Rifle Club Society 
Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh 
for the Financial
Year 2019-20.
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4. The company is promoƟng
Rural Development for 
the benefit of the society 
in the backward area of 
Gorakhpur.

Rural 
Development.

Rural 
Development 
Programme is
undertaken at 
Village -Basiya, 
Sahjanwa, 
Gorakhpur, UƩar 
Pradesh by way 
of making RCC 
Roads, drainage, 
community toilet 
block, RO water 
plant, renovaƟon 
and elevaƟon 
of Govt School 
Building etc.

An amount of `1.00 
Lac has been paid for 
the distribuƟon of 
Mask and SaniƟser to 
prevent and protect 
from  Covid-19  Virus. 
The CSR CommiƩee of
the Company is 
monitoring the
actual expenditure
and surplus, if any.

`  163.62 
Lacs

` 504.62 
Lacs *

Amount has been
contributed directly by 
the Company for the 
Rural Development 
Programme is undertaken 
at Village -Basiya, 
Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, 
UƩar Pradesh by way 
of making RCC Roads, 
drainage, community 
toilet block, RO water 
plant, renovaƟon and 
elevaƟon of Govt School 
Building etc.for the 
Financial
Year 2019-20.

This cumulaƟve expenditure of ` 504.62 Lacs includes 
contribuƟon of ` 195.62 Lacs on CSR acƟviƟes during 
financial year 2019-20.

5. In case the company has failed to spend the two 
percent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for 
not spending the amount. : Company has contributed 
the amount for the approved project and amount 
has been spent. However, the CSR CommiƩee is 
monitoring the enƟre process.

The CSR CommiƩee of the Company hereby confirms that 
the implementaƟon and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objecƟves and Policy of the company.

For CSR CommiƩee, GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

Prem Prakash Agrawal
Place: Gorakhpur Chairman of CSR CommiƩee & Director
Date: 29.06.2020 (DIN: 01397585)
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To
The Members,
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
I-7, Jangpura Extension, New Delhi – 110014

1. We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate pracƟces by M/s. 
GallanƩ Ispat Limited [CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350523] 
(hereinaŌer called the company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted based on records made available 
to us, in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion/
understanding thereon.

2. Based on our verificaƟon of the Company’s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and made 
available to us and also the informaƟon provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
we, on strength of those records, and informaƟon 
so provided, hereby report that in our opinion and 
understandings, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on March 
31, 2020, appears to have complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also in our limited 
review, that the Company has proper and required 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporƟng made hereinaŌer.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes’ book, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and made available to us, for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the applicable 
provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder and the Companies Act, 1956 and 
the rules made thereunder as applicable;

ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and RemuneraƟon Personnel) Rules, 2014]

iv) Applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and RegulaƟons 
made thereunder.

v) The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed 
under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI ACT’):-

 a. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) 
RegulaƟons, 2011;

 b. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015;

 c. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosures Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2009;

 d. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons 2014; - 
Not Applicable as the Company does not have 
Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme for its employees;

 e. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008; 
– Not applicable as the Company has not issued 
any debt securiƟes during the financial year 
under review;

 f. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
RegulaƟons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client to the extent of securiƟes 
issued.

 g. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009; – 
Not applicable as the Company has not delisted 
its equity shares from any stock exchange during 
the financial year under review; and

 h. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998; - Not 
Applicable as the Company has not done any 
buyback of its securiƟes during the financial year 
under review.
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vi) Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as 
under:

 1. The Air (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) Act, 
1981

 2. The Water (PrevenƟon and Control of PolluƟon) 
Act, 1974

 3. The Environment (ProtecƟon) Act, 1986

 4. The Factories Act, 1948

 5. The Employees’ Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

 6. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

 7. Equal RemuneraƟon Act, 1976

 8. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

 9. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

 10. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

 11. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

 12. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and

 13. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 2013

We further report that with respect to the compliance 
of the below menƟoned laws, we have relied on the 
compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 
the basis of representaƟon received from its concerned 
department:

(a) Mines and Minerals (Development RegulaƟon) Act, 
1957 and other Acts/Rules as applicable to Mining 
acƟviƟes;

(b) The Electricity Act, 2003 and rules issued thereunder;

(c) NaƟonal Tariff Policy;

(d) Indian Boilers Act. 1923 and rules issued thereunder;

(e) Explosives Act, 1884 and rules issued thereunder;

(f) Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous 
Chemical Rules, 1989;

(g) Applicable Labour laws and rules issued thereunder;

(h) Applicable Environment laws and rules issued 
thereunder;

(i) Applicable direct & indirect tax laws and rules issued 
thereunder;

(j) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 2013.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of 
Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The LisƟng Agreements entered into by the 
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 
NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited pursuant 
to the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. menƟoned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted 
with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors and Independent Directors. There is no change 
in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors during the 
period under review.

Adequate noƟce is given to all Directors to schedule the 
Board MeeƟngs. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon and 
clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the meeƟng and 
for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng.

There were no dissenƟng views on any decisions of the 
Board, as recorded in the Minutes of Board meeƟngs.

We further report that based on review of compliance 
mechanism established by the Company and on the 
basis of the Compliance CerƟficate(s) issued by the 
Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors at their meeƟng(s), we are of the opinion that 
the management has adequate systems and processes 
commensurate with its size and operaƟons, to monitor 
and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulaƟons and guidelines; and

As informed, the Company has responded to noƟces for 
demands, claims, penalƟes etc. levied by various statutory 
/ regulatory authoriƟes and iniƟated acƟons for correcƟve 
measures, wherever necessary.

There are no other specific events/acƟons in pursuance of 
the above referred laws, rules, regulaƟons guidelines etc., 
having a major bearing on the Company’s Affairs.

We further report that during the audit period there were 
no instances of:

i. Public/Right/PreferenƟal issue of shares /debentures/
sweat equity;
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ii. RedempƟon / buy-back of securiƟes;

iii. Foreign technical collaboraƟons.

We further report that during the audit period:

The Regional Director (ER), Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
vide its order dated April 11, 2019 approved shiŌing of 
Registered Office from the state of West Bengal to the 
NaƟonal Capital Territory of Delhi. The Company has filed 
E-Form INC-22 with the Registrar of Companies, West 
Bengal, inƟmaƟng the shiŌing of the Registered Office of 
the Company from 1, Crooked Lane, Second Floor, Room 
Nos. 222 & 223, Kolkata – 700 069 (from the jurisdicƟon 
of Registrar of Companies, West Bengal) to “GALLANTT 
HOUSE”, I-7, Jangpura Extension, New Delhi – 110014 
(to the jurisdicƟon of Registrar of Companies, Delhi and 
Haryana).

We further report that during the audit year the Company 
has not held an Extra-ordinary General MeeƟngs (EGM).

We further report that our Audit is subjected only to 
verifying adequacy of systems and procedures that are in 
place for ensuring proper compliance by the Company and 
we are not responsible for any lapses in those compliances 
on the part of the Company.

Anurag Fatehpuria
Company Secretary

Place:Kolkata ACS 34471; CP No. 12855
Date:29.06.2020 UDIN: A034471B000392171

This Report is to be read with our tesƟmony of even date 
which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part 
of this report.
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Annexure A
To
The Members,
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
Our report of even date it to be read along with this 
supplementary tesƟmony.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit pracƟces and process 
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the 
secretarial records. The verificaƟon was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
pracƟces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the 
Management representaƟon about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulaƟons and happening of events 
etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate 
and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons, 
standards is the responsibility of the management. 
Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon of 
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effecƟveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We further report that, based on the informaƟon 
provided by the Company, its officers, and authorised 
representaƟves during the conduct of the audit and 
also on the review of quarterly compliance report 
issued by the respecƟve departmental heads/ 
Company Secretary/Managing Director & CEO, and 
taken on record by the Board of the Company, in 
our opinion adequate systems and process and 
control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor 
compliance with applicable general laws like Labour 
Laws & Environment Laws.

8. We further report that the Compliance by the 
Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct 
& Indirect Tax Laws has not been reviewed in this 
audit since the same has been subject to review by 
the statutory financial audit and other designated 
professionals.

While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing 
the Secretarial Audit Report, we have also taken into 
consideraƟon the compliance related acƟons taken by the 
Company aŌer 31st March 2020 but before issue of the 
Report.

Anurag Fatehpuria
Company Secretary

Place:Kolkata ACS 34471; CP No. 12855
Date:29.06.2020 UDIN: A034471B000392171
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Annexure - IX to the Directors’ Report
FORM NO. AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Sl. 
No.

Name 
of the 
Company

Reporting 
period for the 
subsidiary 
concerned, if 
different from 
the holding 
company's 
reporting 
period

Reporting 
currency and 
Exchange rate as 
on the last date 
of the relevant 
Financial year 
in the case 
of foreign 
subsidiaries

Share 
Capital

Reserve 
& Surplus

Total 
Assets

Total 
Liabilities

Investments Turnover Profit 
before 
Taxation 

Provision 
for 
Taxation

Profit After 
Taxation

Proposed 
Dividend 

% of 
shareholding

NIL

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to SecƟon 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associate GallanƩ Metal Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2020

2. Shares of Associate held by the company on 31.03.2020

 No. 3,94,62,895

 Amount of Investment in Associate 42,67,98,403

 Extend of Holding % 48.53%

3. DescripƟon of how there is significant influence By way of Ownership

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Consolidated

5. Networth aƩributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 2,36,07,92,870

6. Profit / Loss for the year 5,02,09,696

 i. Considered in ConsolidaƟon 2,43,65,019

 i. Not  Considered in ConsolidaƟon 2,58,44,677

As per our report of even date
For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 322770E

(Komal Jain) (C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal)
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Ɵme Director
Place :Delhi

Membership No. 303583
Date : June29, 2020 (Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar)
UDIN: 20303583AAAAAE5662 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary
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Annexure - X to the Directors’ Report
(` In Lacs)

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
(Part of the Directors Report) Annual Report 2019-20

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1 Corporate IdenƟty Number (CIN) of the Company L27109DL2005PLC350523
2 Name of the Company GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
3 Registered address “GALLANTT HOUSE’, I-7, Jangpura Extension, 

New Delhi – 110014.
4 Website www.gallanƩ.com
5 E-mail id nitesh@gallanƩ.com
6 Financial Year reported 2019-20
7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 

acƟvity code-wise)
Steel, Power, Agro and Real Estate 

8 List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

Steel, Power, Agro Products and Real Estate

9 Total number of locaƟons where business acƟvity is 
undertaken by the Company (a) Number of InternaƟonal 
LocaƟons (Provide details of major 5) (b) Number of 
NaƟonal LocaƟons

Only one plant of Steel and Agro Unit is located at “Plot 
No. AL-5, Sector – 23, Gorakhpur Industrial Development 
Authority (GIDA), Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh”.

Registered Office at “GALLANTT HOUSE’, I-7, Jangpura 
Extension, New Delhi – 110014.

Also, Company has real estate project located at 
Mahanagar, Lucknow, UƩar Pradesh.

10 Markets served by the Company – Local/State/NaƟonal/
InternaƟonal

Local/State/NaƟonal

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Paid up Capital (INR) 28,23,60,720/-

Total Turnover (INR) 10,20,10,15,495/-

Total profit aŌer taxes (INR) 58,12,41,594/-

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
as percentage of profit aŌer tax (%)

Please refer annexure to the Board Report regarding CSR 

List of acƟviƟes in which expenditure in 4 above has been 
incurred.

Please refer annexure to the Board Report regarding CSR 

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies? No

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies parƟcipate in the BR IniƟaƟves of the parent company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

No

Do any other enƟty/enƟƟes (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, parƟcipate 
in the BR iniƟaƟves of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such enƟty/enƟƟes? [Less than 
30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

No
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SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

DIN Number (if applicable) 01814318
Name Chandra Prakash Agrawal
DesignaƟon Managing Director
Telephone number 011-41645392
e-mail id gil@gallanƩ.com

2. Details of BR Head

DIN Number (if applicable) 01814318
Name Chandra Prakash Agrawal
DesignaƟon Managing Director
Telephone number 011-41645392
e-mail id gil@gallanƩ.com

3. Principle-wise [as per NaƟonal Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs)] BR Policy/policies (Reply in Y/N)

P1 Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life 

cycle
P3 Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees
P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 

disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights
P6 Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment
P7 Businesses when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development
P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

S.N. QuesƟons P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1 Do you have a policy/ policies forvarious principles. Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 Has the policy being formulated in consultaƟon with the relevant 

stakeholders?
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any naƟonal / internaƟonal standards? If yes, 
specify? (50 words)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

4 Has the policy being approved by the Board? Is yes, has it been signed by 
MD/ owner/ CEO/ appropriate Board Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

5 Does the company have a specified commiƩee of the Board/ Director/ 
Official to oversee the implementaƟon of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? www.gallanƩ.com
7 Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant internal and 

external stakeholders?
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8 Does the company have in-house structure to implement the policy/ 
policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism related to the 
policy/ policies to address stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ 
policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10 Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluaƟon of the 
working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
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4. Governance related to BR

• The Board of Directors of your Company, either 
directly or through its CommiƩees, assesses various 
iniƟaƟves forming part of the BR performance of the 
Company on a periodic basis. The CSR CommiƩee 
meets every quarter or on certain interval to review 
implementaƟon of the projects/programmes/
acƟviƟes to be undertaken in the field of CSR. Other 
supporƟng funcƟons/groups like Sustainability, meet 
on a periodic basis to assess the BR performance. 

 Your Company publishes the informaƟon on BR which 
forms part of the Annual Report of the Company. The 
Annual Report is also uploaded on the website of the 
Company – www.gallanƩ.com

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

PRINCIPLE 1

ETHICS, TRANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Does the policy relaƟng to ethics, bribery and corrupƟon 
cover only the Company? Yes/No. Does it extend to the 
Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs Others?

Ethics, transparency and accountability are the three 
basic pillars on which the compliance eco-system of 
yourCompany is built. The compliance management 
system has been designed in such a way that it not only 
helps adhereto the regulatory requirements but also 
develops a culture of self-regulaƟon and accountability at 
the grass root levelwithin the organizaƟon. In the present 
Ɵmes when governance is looked upon as a criƟcal aspect 
of sustainability, we believe, our compliance management 
systems play a significant role in ensuring good corporate 
governance. Allinternal stakeholders of the GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited are subjected to work within boundaries of the 
Code of Conduct.

1. Under this principle, the Company has the following 
Policies:

a) Whistle Blower Policy – to provide an avenue 
for directors and employees to inform about any 
wrongdoing in the company and reassurance that 
they will be protected from reprisals or vicƟmizaƟon 
for whistle blowing.

b) Policy for Determining Materiality of Events and 
InformaƟon - The objecƟve of this Policy is: (a) 
to ensure disclosure of any event or informaƟon 
which, pursuant to SEBI regulaƟons is material, (b) 
to determine whether an event or informaƟon is 
material or not, and (c) to ensure Ɵmely, accurate, 
uniform and transparent disclosure.

c) Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management 
– to ensure, inter-alia, protecƟon of confidenƟal 
informaƟon, prevenƟng conflict of interest, ensuring 
that anƟ-bribery and corrupƟon laws are complied 
with, and ensure compliance with all the applicable 
laws, regulaƟons and Company’s policies.

d) Company’s Code of Conduct on (prevenƟon of) 
Insider Trading – to prevent insider trading and 
protect of price sensiƟve informaƟon.

e) Policy on prevenƟon of sexual harassment.

These policies cover the Company, subsidiaries.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
saƟsfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company has in place different mechanisms for 
receiving and dealing with complaints from different 
stakeholders viz. shareholders, customers, employees, 
vendors etc. There are dedicated resources to respond 
to the complaints within a Ɵme bound manner. During 
the year, your Company has not received complaint from 
shareholders.

PRINCIPLE 2

PRODUCT LIFE CYCLE SUSTAINABILITY

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose 
design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns, risksand/or opportuniƟes.

 Our operaƟons have carried out significant test work 
on the physical and chemical characterisƟcs of their 
products to ensure their properƟes and potenƟal 
impacts. Further, the Company ensures that all 
processes, plant, equipment, machinery and material 
provided at plant are safe to the people as well as 
environment. Your Company has been constantly 
improving its operaƟonal efficiencies for reducing 
the consumpƟon of resources without compromising 
on the quality and quanƟty of its producƟon. Your 
Company take iniƟaƟves to improve awareness about 
legal compliances, enhance eco-friendly efficiencies, 
packaging / logisƟcs improvements at the suppliers 
end. Supplier and transporter meets are held on a 
periodical basis where your Company engages and 
encourages them to undertake sustainable pracƟces 
across supply chain.

 We are conscious that extracƟon of natural resources 
gives rise to negaƟve environmental impacts, from 
gas and parƟculate emissions and hazardous waste; 
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to water extracƟon and landscape modificaƟon. 
To this end, we manage our footprint to the most 
stringent global standards throughout the project life 
cycle.

 Our three major products are Sponge Iron, Re-
Rolled Products and Agro Products. We make all 
efforts to ensurethat we produce, in a safe and 
environmentally responsible manner. Over the years, 
we have constantly improved our recoveries, reduced 
hazardous waste generaƟon, improved water and 
energy consumpƟon and reduced our tailings to 
opƟmally use available natural resources.

2. Does the company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportaƟon)?

 a) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was 
sourced sustainably? Also, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

  Our product movements to consumers take place 
through rail and roadways. The environmental 
impacts like dust emission during transportaƟon 
of coal, iron ore, lime etc., final products and 
road dust etc. have been idenƟfied. All safety 
and environmental protocols are followed and 
proper training is provided for handling. At 
material handling areas for coal and iron ore, 
new technologies are installed with proper 
water sprinklers. Ore transport from the railways 
to the factory point is carried out through trucks 
with properly covered to ensure no spillage and 
dust generaƟon.

  The Company has adopted Green LogisƟcs 
Process in the enƟre supply chain using re-
useable trolleys, bins and pallets thereby 
significantly eliminaƟng use of packaging 
materials.

3. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communiƟes surrounding their place of work?

 a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve 
their capacity and capability of local and small 
vendors?

  The Company sources its major inputs like 
Iron Ore and Coal from large naƟonal and 
internaƟonal manufacturers/sellers. For Agro 
Division we procure inputs (Wheat etc.) from 
local market. Going forward, we will make 
further efforts to increase local sourcing. Our 
direct & indirect employment as also our CSR 
acƟviƟes are largely focused on the communiƟes 
surrounding our operaƟons.

4. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage 
ofrecyclingof products and waste (separately as 
<5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words orso.

 Our primary acƟviƟes are in the producing of steel and 
agro products as well as power generaƟon using well 
established processes and technologies. Our focus on 
best available technology helps us to produce these 
products using efficient energy consumpƟon and 
maximum product output.

 Our main priority is to reduce both the quanƟty and 
toxicity of our waste, followed by recovery, reuse 
and recycling. Waste heat of Sponge Iron plant is 
recycled to generate power. Waste of steel plants 
and residual files are sold and disposed in land filling. 
Furnace slag are sold to buyers, they use these in 
road construcƟon, land levelling and in the abrasive 
and cement industries. Fly ash from our power plants 
was sent to nearby cement and brick manufacturing 
units together with land levelling. Wastage of Agro 
Products (Wheat) are sold to be used in feeding 
animals.

PRINCIPLE 3:

EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING

Our employees are our key asset and our growth and 
success are aƩributable to them. Our people strategy is 
founded on this belief and is designed to recruit, develop 
and retain the talented work force that run our businesses.

We are commiƩed to providing our employees with a safe 
and healthy work environment. Through a high degree 
of engagement and empowerment we enable them to 
realise their full potenƟal, creaƟng a high performance 
work culture.
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1. Please indicate the Total number of employees. 1,453
2. Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on 

temporary/contractual/casual basis. 
318

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees. 20 (included in 1 above)
4. Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with 

disabiliƟes.
NIL

5. Do you have an employee associaƟon that is recognized by 
management? 

No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is members of 
this recognized employee associaƟon? 

Not Applicable

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relaƟng to child labour, 
forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last 
financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year. 

No complaints relaƟng to child labour, forced 
labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment 
were received in the last financial year.

8. What percentage of your under menƟoned employees were 
given safety & skill up-gradaƟon training in the last year? 
(a) Permanent Employees 
(b) Permanent Women Employees 
(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees 
(d) Employees with DisabiliƟes 

100% employees (in-house/on the Job Training)
100% employees (in-house/on the Job Training)
100% employees (in-house/on the Job Training)
Not applicable 

PRINCIPLE 4:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? Yes/No

 Yes. The Company has idenƟfied investors, 
shareholders, employees, labour unions, local 
communiƟes, civil socieƟes, NGOs, legal insƟtuƟons, 
trade associaƟons, media, suppliers, business 
partners, customers, dealers, government, regulators 
and compeƟtors as its key stakeholder groups. 
Engagement responsibility for each stakeholder group 
is entrusted with specific teams in the Company.

2. Out of the above, has the Company idenƟfied 
the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders?

 Yes, GallanƩ Ispat Limited has idenƟfied 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised 
stakeholders.

3. Are there any special iniƟaƟves taken by the 
company to engage with the disadvantaged, 
vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders. If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

 Yes, the Company undertook acƟviƟes to improve 
the lives of vulnerable stakeholder groups. Few such 
acƟviƟes are listed below:

Stakeholder group DescripƟon

Elderly Health camps

Differently abled

individuals

Providing children with special needs a plaƞorm to access community-based rehabilitaƟon 
services

• Counseling for families and parents

• Camps for raising awareness 

Tribalpeople Health services to the weaker secƟon of the society – Development oriented acƟviƟes, with 
focused iniƟaƟves for women, children and marginal dairy farmers

Migrantworkers Awareness on health related issues and sanitaƟon
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PRINCIPLE 5:

HUMAN RIGHTS

1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights 
cover only the Company or extend to the Group Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

 GallanƩ Ispat Limited has zero tolerance for 
discriminaƟon based on any grounds. All its 
business partners (Suppliers, Contractors, NGOs) are 
contractually obliged to respect human rights.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been 
received in the past financial year and what percent 
was saƟsfactorily resolved by the management?

 GallanƩ Ispat Limited has received no such complaint 
pertaining to sexual harassment during the reporƟng 
year 2019-20.

PRINCIPLE 6:

ENVIRONMENTAL

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
Company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/ NGOs/ others?

 The company does not have a specific environment 
policy. Many facets of respecƟng and protects 
environment are embedded in the company’s 
operaƟons as also its products. These have been 
covered above.

2. Strategies/ iniƟaƟves to address global 
environmental issues such as climate change, global 
warming, etc.

 To minimise the environmental impacts of its 
products, the Company conƟnuously improves 
products in terms of fuel efficiency, material use and 
recyclability.

3. PotenƟal environmental risks

 PotenƟal environmental risks are idenƟfied as a part 
of the Company’s risk management idenƟficaƟon 
process and this feature in the Company’s risk library. 
The Company regularly reviews its environmental 
risks and undertakes iniƟaƟves to miƟgate them.

4. Does the company have any project related to 
Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, 
whether any environmental compliance report is 
filed? No such project.

5. Has the company undertaken any other iniƟaƟves 
on – clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable 

energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for 
web page etc.

 Not undertaken.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB 
for the financial year being reported?

 Yes, all emission/waste generated by the Company 
are within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB 
in 2019-20.

7. Number of show cause/ legal noƟces received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
saƟsfacƟon) as on end of Financial Year.

 No show cause noƟces from SPCB or CPCB are 
pending as at end of the financial year 2019-20.

PRINCIPLE 7:

Policy Advocacy

1. Is your Company a member of any trade and 
chamber or associaƟon? If yes, name only those 
major ones thatyour business deals with.

 Yes, GallanƩ Ispat Limited is a member of 2 industrial 
and trade bodies. The Company is most acƟvely 
engagedwith the following :

 • Chamber of Industries, Gorakhpur
 • Indian Industries AssociaƟon, Lucknow

2. AdvocaƟng through above associaƟons for the 
advancement or improvement of public good

 Yes, GallanƩ Ispat Limited is acƟvely involved in the 
following areas for advocaƟng public good:

 • Energy and Raw Material Security
 • Sustainable Business principles
 • Governance
 • Safety and Skill Development
 • Economic Reforms

PRINCIPLE 8:

BUSINESSES SHOULD SUPPORT INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND 
EQUITABLE DEVELOPMENT

1. Specified programmes / iniƟaƟves / projects in 
pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8.

 The Company supports inclusive growth and 
equitable development through its Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) programmes. The Company has 
aligned its CSR programmes with the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2013. The Company has set up 
a three members CSR CommiƩee of the Board. The 
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Company’s CSR Policy has been approved by the CSR 
CommiƩee and the Board. The CSR programmes are 
clearly menƟoned in the CSR policy.

2. The CSR programmes of the Company are overseen 
largely by NGOs. However, it is being planned to do 
the same by in-house teams and wherever need 
arise in future services of NGO partners and other 
agencies will be taken subject to their experƟse.

3. The CSR programmes and their impacts/ outcomes 
are monitored and reviewed by the management 
periodically as also by the CSR commiƩee of the 
Board.

4. Details on the Company’s CSR programmes on 
community development have been shared in the 
Directors Report.

 The Company is socially commiƩed to focus these 
areas:

 a.  EducaƟon

 b. Health, NutriƟon and SanitaƟon

 c. Need Based Community Infrastructure 
Development

5. Steps taken to ensure that this community 
development iniƟaƟve is successfully adopted by 
the community

 To ensure successful implementaƟon of community 
development programmes in collaboraƟon with 
community members, the Company adopts following 
approach: 

 a. Rapport building with community leaders and 
opinion makers 

 b. Project idenƟficaƟon in associaƟon with 
community members 

 c. Involvement of community members in project 
implementaƟon 

 d. Maintaining conƟnuous and close interacƟon 
with community members through field teams

PRINCIPLE 9:

BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE 
VALUE TO THEIR CUSTOMERS AND CONSUMERS IN A 
RESPONSIBLE MANNER

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 
cases are pending as on the end of financial year

 EffecƟve redressal mechanism is in place for 
addressing customer complaints and handling 
consumer cases. Thisis periodically reviewed by 
management team as well. The number of such 
cases is insignificant in comparison to the number 
of customers in fold. No customer complaints are 
pending.

2. Does the Company display product informaƟon on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (addiƟonal 
informaƟon)

 The customers have access to the Company website 
which provides host of informaƟon on products.

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against 
the Company regarding unfair trade pracƟces, 
irresponsible adverƟsing and/or anƟ-compeƟƟve 
behaviour during the last five years and pending as 
on end of financial year?

 No case has been filed by stakeholders against 
the Company regarding unfair trade pracƟces, 
irresponsible adverƟsing and anƟ-compeƟƟve 
behaviour during the last five years. Therefore, no 
such cases remain pending as on the end of the 
financial year 2019-20.

4. Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer saƟsfacƟon trends?

 Yes, the Company carries out customer saƟsfacƟon 
surveys to understand customer concerns and 
emerging trends. GallanƩ Ispat Limited’s sales team 
also interacts with specific customer groups like 
architects and auto companies, among others to 
address.
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Annexure - XI to the Directors’ Report
FORM NO. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial period ended on 31st March 2020

[Pursuant to secƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

S.N. CIN L27109DL2005PLC350523
1 RegistraƟon Date 11/02/2005
2 Name of the Company GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
3 Category /Sub-Category of the Company Public Company limited by Shares/IndianNon-Government Company
4 Address “GALLANTT HOUSE’, 

I-7, Jangpura Extension, New Delhi – 110014
Telefax: 011-41645392

5 Whether listed Company Yes
6 Name, Address and Contact details of

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any
Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
7th Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B, 3A, Auckland Rd, Elgin,
Kolkata – 700017
West Bengal
Tel.: (033) 2280 6616 / 17 / 18
Email id: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
Website: www.nichetechpl.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sr. 
No.

Name and DescripƟon of 
Main Product /Services

NIC Code of 
the Product

% to total turnover of the
Company

1 Steel 2410 74.71
2 Power 3510 13.62
3 Agro 1061 8.12*

*less than 10%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S.N. Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
Shares

Applicable SecƟon

1. GallanƩ Metal Limited L27109DL2005PLC350524 Associate 25.68 SecƟon 2(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. PROMOTERS          
(1) Indian        
 a) Individual / HUF 105635410 0 105635410 37.412 105636760 0 105636760 37.412 0.000
 b) Centran Government        
 c) State Government        
 d) Bodies Corporate 72519920 0 72519920 25.683 72519920 0 72519920 25.683 0.000
 e) Banks / Financial InsƟtuƟons        
 f) Any Other        
 Sub-total (A)(1) 178155330 0 178155330 63.095 178156680 0 178156680 63.095 0.000

(2) Foreign        
 a) NRIs - Individuals        
 b) Other - Individuals        
 c) Bodies Corporate        
 d) Banks / Financial InsƟtuƟons        
 e) Any Other        
 Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000
 Total Shareholding of Promoter 

(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
178155330 0 178155330 63.095 178156680 0 178156680 63.095 0.000

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING        
(1) InsƟtuƟons        
 a) Mutual Funds        
 b) Banks / Financial InsƟtuƟons   100 0 100 0.000 0.000
 c) Central Governments        
 d) State Governments        
 e) Venture Capital Funds        
 f) Insurance Companies        
 g) Foreign InsƟtuƟonal Investors 

(FII)
       

 h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds        
 i) Others (Specify)        
 FPI - Corporate Cat-II 1 0 1 0.000     0.000
 Sub-total (B)(1) 1 0 1 0.000 100 0 100 0.000 0.000

(2) Non-InsƟtuƟons        
 a) Bodies Corporate        
 i)  Indian 96434343 0 96434343 34.153 97264802 0 97264802 34.447 0.294
 ii) Overseas        
 b) Individuals        
 i)  Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital 
uptoRs 1 lakh

4177279 60 4177339 1.479 4310350 60 4310410 1.527 0.048

 ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 l

3009350 0 3009350 1.066 2492110 0 2492110 0.883 -0.183

 c) Others Specify        
 1. NRI 74244 0 74244 0.026 79137 0 79137 0.028 0.002
 2. Overseas Corporate Bodies        
 3. Foreign NaƟonals        
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

 4. Clearing Members 504063 0 504063 0.179 51081 0 51081 0.018 -0.161
 5. Trusts        
 6. Foreign Bodies - D.R.        
 7. IEPF Authority 6050 0 6050 0.002 6400 0 6400 0.002 0.000

 Sub-total (B)(2) 104205329 60 104205389 36.905 104203880 60 104203940 36.905 0.000
 Total Public Shareholding (B) = 

(B)(1)+(B)(2)
104205330 60 104205390 36.905 104203980 60 104204040 36.905 0.000

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

       

 GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 282360660 60 282360720 100.000 282360660 60 282360720 100.000 0.000

B. Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No.

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % of 
change in 

shareholding 
during the 

year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 ASHU GOEL 100 0.000 0.000 1450 0.001 0.000 0.001
2 ASHUTOSH AGRAWAL 2621670 0.928 0.000 2621670 0.928 0.000 0.000
3 CHANDNI AGRAWAL 120830 0.043 0.000 120830 0.043 0.000 0.000
4 CHANDRA PRAKASH 

AGRAWAL
52340040 18.537 0.000 52340040 18.537 0.000 0.000

5 CHANDRA PRAKASH 
AGRAWAL HUF

5334930 1.889 0.000 5334930 1.889 0.000 0.000

6 GALLANTT METAL 
LIMITED

72519920 25.683 0.000 72519920 25.683 0.000 0.000

7 MADHU AGRAWAL 3521450 1.247 0.000 3521450 1.247 0.000 0.000
8 MAYANK AGRAWAL 6929370 2.454 0.000 6929370 2.454 0.000 0.000
9 NITIN MAHAVIR 

KANDOI
475000 0.168 0.000 475000 0.168 0.000 0.000

10 PREM PRAKASH 
AGRAWAL

2592130 0.918 0.000 2592130 0.918 0.000 0.000

11 PREM PRAKASH 
AGRAWAL HUF

5969350 2.114 0.000 5969350 2.114 0.000 0.000

12 SANTOSH KUMAR 
AGRAWAL

2207080 0.782 0.000 2207080 0.782 0.000 0.000

13 SANTOSH KUMAR 
AGRAWAL HUF

5967170 2.113 0.000 5967170 2.113 0.000 0.000

14 SHYAMA AGRAWAL 5353030 1.896 0.000 5353030 1.896 0.000 0.000
15 SMRITI AGRAWAL 807450 0.286 0.000 807450 0.286 0.000 0.000
16 UMA AGRAWAL 11395810 4.036 0.000 11395810 4.036 0.000 0.000
 T O T A L 178155330 63.095 0.000 178156680 63.095 0.000 0.000
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C. Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

Sl 
No.

Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year CumulaƟve Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1 ASHU GOEL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 100 0.000   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 21/06/2019 Transfer 500 0.000 600 0.000
 28/06/2019 Transfer 490 0.000 1090 0.000
 12/07/2019 Transfer 500 0.000 1590 0.001
 26/07/2019 Transfer 410 0.000 2000 0.001
 22/11/2019 Transfer -407 0.000 1593 0.001
 29/11/2019 Transfer -650 0.000 943 0.000
 06/12/2019 Transfer -200 0.000 743 0.000
 10/01/2020 Transfer 507 0.000 1250 0.000
 14/02/2020 Transfer 200 0.000 1450 0.001
 c) At the End of the Year   1450 0.001
2 ASHUTOSH AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 2621670 0.928   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   2621670 0.928
3 CHANDNI AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 120830 0.043   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   120830 0.043
4 CHANDRA PRAKASH AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 52340040 18.537   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   52340040 18.537
5 CHANDRA PRAKASH AGRAWAL HUF     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 5334930 1.889   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   5334930 1.889
6 GALLANTT METAL LIMITED     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 72519920 25.683   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   72519920 25.683
7 MADHU AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 3521450 1.247   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   3521450 1.247
8 MAYANK AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 6929370 2.454   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   6929370 2.454
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Sl 
No.

Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year CumulaƟve Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

9 NITIN MAHAVIR KANDOI     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 475000 0.168   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   475000 0.168

10 PREM PRAKASH AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 2592130 0.918   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   2592130 0.918

11 PREM PRAKASH AGRAWAL HUF     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 5969350 2.114   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   5969350 2.114

12 SANTOSH KUMAR AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 2207080 0.782   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   2207080 0.782

13 SANTOSH KUMAR AGRAWAL HUF     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 5967170 2.113   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   5967170 2.113

14 SHYAMA AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 5353030 1.896   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   5353030 1.896

15 SMRITI AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 807450 0.286   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   807450 0.286

16 UMA AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 11395810 4.036   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   11395810 4.036
 T O T A L 178155330 63.095 178156680 63.095
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D. Shareholding PaƩern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

1 AAR COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 49748760 17.619   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   49748760 17.619

2 GLOBE CAPITAL MARKET LIMITED     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 240000 0.085   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 24/05/2019 Transfer -30000 0.011 210000 0.074
 31/05/2019 Transfer 8913 0.003 218913 0.078
 30/08/2019 Transfer 1000 0.000 219913 0.078
 30/09/2019 Transfer -1000 0.000 219913 0.078
 04/10/2019 Transfer 112000 0.040 330938 0.117
 15/11/2019 Transfer -112000 0.040 218913 0.078
 c) At the End of the Year   218913 0.078

3 NIDHI JAIN     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 0 0.000   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 06/03/2020 Transfer 89461 0.032 89461 0.032
 c) At the End of the Year   89461 0.032

4 NIHON IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 6450680 2.285   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 19/07/2019 Transfer 660 0.000 6451340 2.285
 26/07/2019 Transfer 100946 0.036 6552286 2.321
 02/08/2019 Transfer 67775 0.024 6620061 2.345
 09/08/2019 Transfer 49957 0.018 6670018 2.362
 16/08/2019 Transfer 68380 0.024 6738398 2.386
 23/08/2019 Transfer 27366 0.010 6765764 2.396
 30/08/2019 Transfer 194346 0.069 6960110 2.465
 06/09/2019 Transfer 1204 0.000 6961314 2.465
 06/12/2019 Transfer 4455 0.002 6965769 2.467
 10/01/2020 Transfer 92042 0.033 7057811 2.500
 24/01/2020 Transfer 20421 0.007 7078232 2.507
 31/01/2020 Transfer 35222 0.012 7113454 2.519
 07/02/2020 Transfer 30424 0.011 7143878 2.530
 14/02/2020 Transfer 10884 0.004 7154762 2.534
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Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

 21/02/2020 Transfer 5716 0.002 7160478 2.536
 28/02/2020 Transfer 15029 0.005 7175507 2.541
 06/03/2020 Transfer 116774 0.041 7292281 2.583
 13/03/2020 Transfer 18853 0.007 7311134 2.589
 20/03/2020 Transfer 134808 0.048 7445942 2.637
 27/03/2020 Transfer 68848 0.024 7514790 2.661
 31/03/2020 Transfer 11326 0.004 7526116 2.665
 c) At the End of the Year   7526116 2.665

5 NISHA BIDASARIA     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 256920 0.091   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 21/06/2019 Transfer -60000 0.021 196920 0.070
 28/06/2019 Transfer -115000 0.041 81920 0.029
 c) At the End of the Year   81920 0.029

6 PULKIT.N.SEKHSARIA     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 1700000 0.602   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   1700000 0.602

7 SUSHIL KUMAR JAIN     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 50058 0.018   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 12/04/2019 Transfer 531 0.000 50589 0.018
 17/05/2019 Transfer -1979 0.001 48610 0.017
 31/05/2019 Transfer 3000 0.001 51610 0.018
 28/06/2019 Transfer 2099 0.001 53709 0.019
 12/07/2019 Transfer 3797 0.001 57506 0.020
 19/07/2019 Transfer 5603 0.002 63109 0.022
 09/08/2019 Transfer 1000 0.000 64109 0.023
 06/09/2019 Transfer 5433 0.002 69542 0.025
 27/09/2019 Transfer 5128 0.002 74670 0.026
 18/10/2019 Transfer 2500 0.001 77170 0.027
 08/11/2019 Transfer 1000 0.000 78170 0.028
 15/11/2019 Transfer 40 0.000 78210 0.028
 22/11/2019 Transfer 500 0.000 78710 0.028
 31/12/2019 Transfer 8 0.000 78718 0.028
 03/01/2020 Transfer 686 0.000 79404 0.028
 24/01/2020 Transfer 8650 0.003 88054 0.031
 31/01/2020 Transfer 1000 0.000 89054 0.032
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Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

 07/02/2020 Transfer 1100 0.000 90154 0.032
 06/03/2020 Transfer 2000 0.001 92154 0.033
 13/03/2020 Transfer 1000 0.000 93154 0.033
 c) At the End of the Year   93154 0.033

8 SUVI RUBBER PVT LTD     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 275056 0.097   
 b) Changes during the year     
 Date       Reason     
 05/04/2019 Transfer -9000 0.003 266056 0.094
 12/04/2019 Transfer -5000 0.002 261056 0.092
 19/04/2019 Transfer -4500 0.002 256556 0.091
 26/04/2019 Transfer -16500 0.006 240056 0.085
 10/05/2019 Transfer -18971 0.007 221085 0.078
 17/05/2019 Transfer -5000 0.002 216085 0.077
 31/05/2019 Transfer 14971 0.005 231056 0.082
 07/06/2019 Transfer -5000 0.002 226056 0.080
 14/06/2019 Transfer -5000 0.002 221056 0.078
 28/06/2019 Transfer -1000 0.000 220056 0.078
 12/07/2019 Transfer -28375 0.010 191681 0.068
 09/08/2019 Transfer -49648 0.018 142033 0.050
 23/08/2019 Transfer -22458 0.008 119575 0.042
 30/08/2019 Transfer -119575 0.042 0 0.000
 c) At the End of the Year   0 0.000

9 UTKARSH DEALER PRIVATE LIMITED     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 6726070 2.382   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   6726070 2.382
10 VIVEKANANDAN SRINIVASAN     

 a) At the Beginning of the Year 792110 0.281   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   792110 0.281
11 WALLSTREET DISTRIBUTOR PRIVATE LIMITED     

 a) At the Beginning of the Year 19258290 6.820   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   19258290 6.820
12 WARNER DEALCOM PRIVATE LIMITED     

 a) At the Beginning of the Year 13590320 4.813   
 b) Changes during the year       [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   13590320 4.813
 T O T A L 99088264 35.093 99825114 35.354
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Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

1 AMIT JALAN     
 a) At the Begining of the Year 120 0.000   
 b) Changes during the year      [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   120 0.000
2 CHANDRA PRAKASH AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Begining of the Year 52340040 18.537   
 b) Changes during the year      [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   52340040 18.537
3 MAYANK AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 6929370 2.454   
 b) Changes during the year      [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   6929370 2.454
4 NITIN MAHAVIR KANDOI     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 475000 0.168   
 b) Changes during the year      [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   475000 0.168
5 PREM PRAKASH AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 2592130 0.918   
 b) Changes during the year      [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
 c) At the End of the Year   2592130 0.918
6 SANTOSH KUMAR AGRAWAL     
 a) At the Beginning of the Year 2207080 0.782   

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 2207080 0.782
T O T A L 64543740 22.859 64543740 22.859
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

ParƟculars Secured Loan
excluding 
Deposit

Unsecured
Loan

Deposit Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
(i) Principal Amount 14,252.65 15,385.69 - 29,638.34
(ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
(iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (3+2+1) 14,252.65 15,385.69 - 29,638.34
Change in Indebtedness during the Financial Year
• AddiƟon - - - -
• ReducƟon 819.67 4,668.43 - 5,488.10
Net Change -819.67 -4,668.43 - -5,488.10
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
(i) Principal Amount 13,432.98 10,717.26 - 24,150.24
(ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
(iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (3+2+1) 13,432.98 10,717.26 - 24,150.24

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. RemuneraƟon to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵme Directors and/or Manager

S.N. ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
Amount

(` In Lacs)Chandra 
Prakash 
Agrawal

Prem
Prakash 
Agrawal

Santosh Kumar 
Agrawal

NiƟn Mahavir 
Prasad Kandoi

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in secƟon 17(1) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s. 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

36.00

NIL

36.00

NIL

36.00

NIL

36.00

NIL

144.00

NIL
2 Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

3 Others– RemuneraƟon benefits NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (A) 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 144.00
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B. RemuneraƟon to Other Directors (All being Independent)

S.N. ParƟculars of 
RemuneraƟon

Name of Directors TotalAmount
(` In Lacs)

A. P. 
Srivastava

J. N. Dey Dindayal 
Jalan

Piyush
Kankrania

Sangeeta 
Upadhyay

Smita 
Modi

Sanchit 
Dubey

1 Fees for aƩending 
Board/CommiƩee 
MeeƟngs

0.12 0.12 0.02 0.10 0.24 0.18 0.10 0.88

2 Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

3 Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. RemuneraƟon to Key Managerial Personnel

S.N. ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total
Amount

(` In Lacs)Mayank Agrawal Amit Jalan Nitesh Kumar 

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s. 17(2) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

18.00

NIL

11.03

NIL

19.20

NIL

48.23

NIL

2 Others –RemuneraƟon benefits NIL NIL NIL NIL

VII PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies Act

Brief descripƟon Details of
Penalty /

Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any

(give Details)

A. Company
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. Directors
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. Other Officers in Default
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Corporate Governance pracƟces are reflecƟon of one’s 
value culture, policies and the manner in which it 
deals with various stakeholders. Timely and accurate 
disclosure of informaƟon regarding the financial situaƟon, 
performance, ownership and governance of the Company 
is also an important part of Corporate Governance. 
When adhered to and implemented in the best of spirit, 
Corporate Governance posiƟvely impacts the acƟviƟes, 
processes and policies of an organizaƟon besides portray 
a posiƟve vision to investors and enhance the trust and 
confidence of the stakeholders. GallanƩ Ispat’s governance 
philosophy is based on trusteeship, transparency and 
accountability. 

The Company is in compliance with requirements of the 
guidelines on Corporate Governance sƟpulated under the 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (“LisƟng 
RegulaƟons”) and hereby presents the following Corporate 
Governance Report for the financial year 2019-20.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 ComposiƟon

The Company’s Board has an opƟmum combinaƟon 
of ExecuƟve and Non-ExecuƟve Directors including a 
Woman Director. The Company has a very balanced and 
diverse Board of Directors, which primarily takes care of 

Report on Corporate Governance
the business needs and stakeholders’ interest. The Non-
ExecuƟve Directors including Independent Directors on the 
Board are experienced, competent and highly renowned 
persons having requisite qualificaƟons and experience 
in general corporate management, operaƟons, strategy, 
governance etc. They acƟvely parƟcipate at the Board and 
CommiƩee meeƟngs by providing valuable guidance to 
the Management on various aspects of business, policy 
direcƟon, governance, compliance etc.

The Board composiƟon is in conformity with the 
requirements set forth by RegulaƟon 17 (1) of the 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons,2015, (‘the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons’) and the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”). The Company’s Board has an opƟmum combinaƟon 
of ExecuƟve and Non-ExecuƟve Directors including a 
Woman Director. The Company has a balanced and 
diverse Board, which includes independent professionals 
and confirms to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

As on March 31, 2020, your Company’s Board comprised 
of 8 Directors (out of which 50% of the Directors are 
Non-ExecuƟve Independent Directors) with Mr. Chandra 
Prakash Agrawal as ExecuƟve Chairman. The posiƟon of 
Chairman of the Board and Chief ExecuƟve Officer of the 
Company are held by separate individuals. All Directors 
are resident Directors.

The composiƟon of the Board as on March 31, 2020 is as 
follows:

• ExecuƟve Directors - 4

• Non ExecuƟve Independent Directors – 4

Names of the Director % to the total number of Directors
I Independent Director

50%
Mr. Dindayal Jalan 
Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava 
Mrs. Smita Modi 
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay

II Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Director NIL
III ExecuƟve Director

50%
Chandra Prakash Agrawal
Santosh Kumar Agrawal 
Prem Prakash Agrawal
NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi

Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava (DIN: 08434115) was 
appointed as an AddiƟonal Independent Director of the 
Company effecƟve from April 29, 2019 and his appointment 
was regularised as a Director (Independent) at the Annual 

General MeeƟng held on September 26, 2019.

Mrs. Smita Modi (DIN: 01141396) and Mr. Dindayal 
Jalan (DIN: 00006882) were appointed as AddiƟonal 
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company 
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effecƟve from June 23, 2019 and their appointments 
were regularised as Director (Independent) at the Annual 
General MeeƟng held on September 26, 2019.

The composiƟon of the Board reflects the judicious mix of 
professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which 
enables the Board to provide effecƟve leadership to the 
Company. The Board is balanced comprising ExecuƟve and 
Non-ExecuƟve Directors. The Board has been consƟtuted 
in such a way that it has understanding and competence 
to deal with current and emerging business issues. The 
Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its size 
and composiƟon to ensure that it remains aligned with 
statutory and business requirements.

Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal 
and Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal are related to each other as 
brothers. Also, relaƟves of these Directors were employed 
in the Company.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more 
than ten CommiƩees or Chairman of five CommiƩees 

Report on Corporate Governance (Contd.)

(commiƩees being Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee) across all the Indian Public 
Companies in which he/she is a Director. Necessary 
disclosures regarding their CommiƩee posiƟons have 
been made by all the Directors.

None of the Directors hold office in more than ten Public 
Companies. None of the Independent Directors of the 
Company serve as an Independent Director in more 
than seven listed companies. All Directors are also in 
compliance with the limit on Independent Directorships 
of listed companies as prescribed under RegulaƟon 17A 
of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The Board confirms that the 
Independent Directors fulfil the condiƟons specified in 
these regulaƟons and that they are Independent of the 
management.

In terms of the provisions of Schedule V of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, detail of skills/experƟse/competency of the 
Directors with reference to business and industry of the 
Company are given as under:

Name of Director ExperƟse in specific funcƟonal area
Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal He is constantly guiding by his rich experience of Steel & Power industry domain 

and vision of long-term trends. He has quality Management skills and Business 
Strategies, exploring new markets and deeper penetraƟon of exisƟng markets and 
good understanding of Corporate Governance, Regulatory Environment etc.

He is the prime mover of the exponenƟal growth of GallanƩ Ispat Limited. He has 
been deeply involved withthe manufacturing process and has progressively added 
producƟon capacity. He spearheaded the markeƟng iniƟaƟves personally building 
brand GallanƩ that undisputedly commands the market specifically in UƩar Pradesh. 
His finance, taxaƟon, accounƟng, investor relaƟons and corporate affairs involvement 
is phenomenal. The charismaƟc leadership, personal drive and strategic thinking of 
Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal has rallied our Company to aƩain market leadership in 
a very short period of Ɵme, in the state of U.P., Bihar and Delhi. In his term of office 
spanning 16 years, Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal has contributed extensively towards 
the growth of the Company and has been acƟvely responsible for the installaƟon, 
implementaƟon and funcƟoning of units of the project of the Company and aƩainment 
of the highest standards of quality. By focussing on key areas such as Finance, ERP 
implementaƟon, Value Engineering, Process DocumentaƟon, Environment Health and 
Safety measures, he has significantly strengthened the foundaƟon of the Company. 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal He has extensive experience in various aspects of Management, viz., ProducƟon, 
MarkeƟng & General AdministraƟon etc. He has good understanding of Market 
Environment and Economic know-how. He is looking aŌer operaƟons of the agro 
manufacturing facility of the Company apart from sales and markeƟng of the 
Company. During this period and under his Directorship, the Company has completed 
and achieved various targets and plans and the Company achieved higher levels of 
growth.
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Name of Director ExperƟse in specific funcƟonal area
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal He supervises the funcƟoning of various departments in the organizaƟon such as Sales 

& MarkeƟng, EsƟmaƟon, Customer RelaƟonship Management, Cost Audit, Human 
Resources, Purchase, Corporate CommunicaƟons & IT, day to day administraƟon, 
finance and accounts

Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi He is involved in seƫng up of the operaƟons of our Company and has been instrumental 
in the implementaƟon of technological advances made in the manufacturing processes 
of our Company. During this period and under his Directorship, the Company has 
completed and achieved various targets and plans and the Company achieved 
higher levels of growth. His experƟse in the steel and power businesses has been 
instrumental in contribuƟng to the growth of the Company.  Mr. Kandoi supervises the 
operaƟon and funcƟoning of steel and power plants, besides he supervises purchase 
and procurement departments of the Company.

Mr. Dindayal Jalan Mr. Dindayal Jalan is a Chartered Accountant and has vast experƟse of over 40 years in 
financial management, corporate negoƟaƟons, financial control, business planning, 
due diligence, business development, treasury, capital raising, business structuring, 
investor relaƟons, commercial, taxaƟon, people development and strategic planning.

Mrs. Smita Modi Mrs. Smita Modi, aged about 64 years completed her graduaƟon and post-graduaƟon 
in Obstetrics and Gynaecology from BRD Medical College, Gorakhpur.  Apart from the 
above, she possesses good experience of accounts, finance and taxaƟon. 

Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava has been an officer of Indian Revenue Service (IRS), 
1976 batch. Being in the post of Chief Commissioner, Income Tax, Mr. Ashtbhuja 
Prasad Srivastava has a vast experience of 36 years in the field of finance, accounts, 
taxaƟon and audit.

He has the experƟse to formulate effecƟve strategies, innovaƟve tax planning and 
effecƟvely manage compliance of taxaƟon law.

Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay is an Independent Director of the Company. She possesses 
vast experience in the field of food processing and agro business.

2.2 Appointment of Directors

Directors are appointed or re-appointed with the 
approval of the shareholders and shall remain in office 
in accordance with the provisions of the law and terms 
and condiƟons of appointment. The Company has issued 
leƩer of appointment to all the Independent Directors and 
the terms and condiƟons of their appointment have been 
disclosed on the Company’s website www.gallanƩ.com

2.3 MeeƟngs and AƩendance

During the financial year 2019-20, Five Board MeeƟngs 
were held. These were held on 29.04.2019, 23.06.2019, 
13.08.2019, 21.10.2019 and 18.01.2020. The maximum 
Ɵme gap between any two board meeƟngs was less than 
120 days.

2.4 Changes during the Year

Mr. Piyush Kankrania and Mr. Sanchit Dubey tendered 
their resignaƟon from the Directorship of the Company 
effecƟve from April 29, 2019. Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey 
tendered his resignaƟon from the Directorship of the 
Company effecƟve from June 23, 2019. Mr. Ashtbhuja 

Prasad Srivastava (DIN: 08434115) has been appointed 
as an AddiƟonal Independent Director of the Company 
effecƟve from April 29, 2019. Mrs. Smita Modi (DIN: 
01141396) and Mr. Dindayal Jalan (DIN: 00006882) were 
appointed as AddiƟonal Independent Directors on the 
Board of the Company effecƟve from June 23, 2019. 
Appointments of Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava, Mr. 
Dindayal Jalan and Mrs. Smita Modi were regularised by 
the Shareholders at the last Annual General MeeƟng held 
on September 26, 2019.

2.5 Re-appointment of Directors Proposed at upcoming 
AGM:

In terms SecƟon 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Santosh Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01045228), Director of the 
Company is liable to reƟre by rotaƟon and is eligible for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General MeeƟng.

Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal 
and Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal are related to each other as 
brothers. Also, relaƟves of these Directors were employed 
in the Company.
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Brief resume, nature of experƟse in specific funcƟonal 
areas, Directorships and Membership of the Board 
CommiƩees of the proposed appointee / re-appointee are 
given in the Explanatory Statement aƩached to the NoƟce 
of 16th AGM of the Company.

2.6 Other Directorships and CommiƩee Memberships:

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, 
their aƩendance at Board MeeƟngs held during the year 
and at the last Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) and the 
number of Directorships and CommiƩee Chairmanships/

Memberships held by them in other public limited 
companies as on March 31, 2020 are given below. Other 
directorships do not include directorships of private 
limited companies, foreign companies and companies 
under SecƟon 8 of the Act.

For the purpose of determinaƟon of limit of the Board 
CommiƩees, chairpersonship and membership of 
the Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee has been considered as per RegulaƟon 26(1)
(b) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

Name & DesignaƟon of 
the Directors

Category/
PosiƟon

Last Annual 
General MeeƟng 

(26/09/2019) 
AƩended 

No. of 
Board 

MeeƟngs 
AƩended 
out of 5 

meeƟngs 
held during 

the year

No. of other
directorships

in public
companies as 

on 31/03/2020

No. of other Board 
CommiƩees in which 

he is a member or 
Chairperson (Other than 

GallanƩ Ispat)
As on 31/03/2020

Chairman Member

Mr. Chandra Prakash 
Agrawal,
Chairman & Managing 
Director
(DIN: 01814318)

ExecuƟve/
Promoter

Yes 5 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Santosh Kumar 
Agrawal, Director Sales 
& MarkeƟng
(DIN: 01045228)

ExecuƟve/
Promoter

No 5 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Prem Prakash 
Agrawal
Whole-Ɵme Director
(DIN: 01397585)

ExecuƟve /
Promoter

No 5 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad 
Kandoi
Whole-Ɵme Director
(DIN:01979952)

ExecuƟve/
Promoter

No 5 1 1 1

Mr. Dindayal Jalan
Director
(DIN:00006882)

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

Yes 1 1 Nil Nil

Mrs. Smita Modi
Director
(DIN:01141396)

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

Yes 4 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad 
Srivastava
Director
(DIN: 08434115)

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

No 5 1 Nil Nil
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Name & DesignaƟon of 
the Directors

Category/
PosiƟon

Last Annual 
General MeeƟng 

(26/09/2019) 
AƩended 

No. of 
Board 

MeeƟngs 
AƩended 
out of 5 

meeƟngs 
held during 

the year

No. of other
directorships

in public
companies as 

on 31/03/2020

No. of other Board 
CommiƩees in which 

he is a member or 
Chairperson (Other than 

GallanƩ Ispat)
As on 31/03/2020

Chairman Member

Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay
(DIN:  06920195)

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

Yes 5 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey
Director
(DIN: 00180925)*

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

N.A. 2 2 1 3

Mr. Piyush Kankrania
Director
(DIN: 05241962) **

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

N.A. 1 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Sanchit Dubey, 
Director 
(DIN: 08335705) ***

Non-
ExecuƟve/

Independent

N.A. 1 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad 
Kandoi, Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava and Mr. Dindayal 
Jalan are also Directors of GallanƩ Metal Limited (Listed 
Company). Hence, they are Directors in two listed 
Companies.

* Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey, Non-ExecuƟve Directorof the 
Company tendered his resignaƟon from the Directorship 
of the Company effecƟve from June 23, 2019.

** Mr. Piyush Kankrania, Non-ExecuƟve Director of the 
Company tendered his resignaƟon from the Directorship 
of the Company effecƟve from April 29, 2019.

***Mr. Sanchit Dubey tendered his resignaƟon from the 
Directorship of the Company with effect from April 29, 
2019.

Notes:

 Mrs. Smita Modi, Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava, 
Mr. Dindayal Jalan and Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay 
have been considered as Independent Directors as 

they qualify to be Independent Directors as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and LisƟng 
RegulaƟons.

 Other Directorships of only Indian Public Limited 
Companies have been considered.

 In accordance with RegulaƟon 26 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, Memberships/Chairmanships of two 
CommiƩees viz. Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders’ 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee of all Public Limited 
Companies have been considered.

 The details of Director seeking re-appointment at 
the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng have been 
furnished in the NoƟce convening the MeeƟng of the 
shareholders.

 Except Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Santosh 
Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal who 
are brothers, no other directors have any inter se 
relaƟonship.
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Name of other listed enƟƟes where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directorship:

Sl.
No.

Name of Director Name of other listed enƟƟes in 
which the concerned
Director is a Director

Category of Directorship

1 Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 01814318)

1. GallanƩ Metal Limited
(CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350524)

ExecuƟve Director

2 Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal, Director Sales & 
MarkeƟng
(DIN: 01045228)

None -

3 Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal
Whole-Ɵme Director
(DIN: 01397585)

None -

4 Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi
Whole-Ɵme Director
(DIN:01979952)

1. GallanƩ Metal Limited
(CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350524)

Non – ExecuƟve 
Non- Independent Director

5 Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay
Director
(DIN: 06920195)

None -

6 Mr. Dindayal Jalan
Director
(DIN:00006882)

1. GallanƩ Metal Limited
(CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350524)

Non – ExecuƟve 
Independent Director

7 Mrs. Smita Modi
Director
(DIN:01141396)

None -

8 Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava
Director
(DIN: 08434115)

1. GallanƩ Metal Limited
(CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350524)

Non – ExecuƟve 
Independent Director

2.7. Skills / ExperƟse / Competencies of the Board of 
Directors

The following is the list of core skills / experƟse /
competencies idenƟfied by the Board of Directors as 
required in the context of the Company’s business and 
that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

i. Knowledge on Company’s businesses (Steel, Agro 
and Real Estate), policies and culture (including the 
Mission, Vision and Values) major risks / threats and 
potenƟal opportuniƟes and knowledge of the industry 
in which the Company operates;

ii. Behavioural skills - aƩributes and competencies to 
use their knowledge and skills to contribute effecƟvely 
to the growth of the Company;

iii. Business Strategy, Sales & MarkeƟng, Corporate 
Governance, Forex Management, AdministraƟon, 
Decision Making;

iv. Financial and Management skills;

v. Technical / Professional skills and specialized 
knowledge in relaƟon to Company’s business

2.8 InformaƟon supplied to the Board

The agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board 
members, along with comprehensive background 
informaƟon on the items in the agenda to enable the 
Board members to take informed decisions. During 
the financial year 2019-20, all necessary informaƟon, 
as required under the applicable provisions of the Act, 
2013, Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons 
and SS-1 (“Secretarial Standard on MeeƟngs of the 
Board of Directors”) and other applicable laws, rules 
and regulaƟons were placed and discussed at the Board 
MeeƟngs. The Board also reviews the declaraƟons made 
regarding compliance with all applicable laws and reviews 
the related compliance reports.

2.9 Separate MeeƟng of Independent Directors

As per the provisions of SecƟon 149 read with Schedule 
IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, Independent Directors of the Company held 
one meeƟng without the aƩendance of non-independent 
directors. The meeƟng, inter alia, has taken following 
business:
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1. Review of performance of non-independent directors 
and the Board as a whole;

2. Review of performance of the Chairperson of the 
Company, taking into account the views of the 
execuƟve and independent directors;

3. Assessment of quality, quanƟty and Ɵmeliness of flow 
of informaƟon between the company management 
and the Board.

Holding of the separate Board meeƟng is mandatory as 
required under SecƟon 149 read with Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 25(3) of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons.

The Board evaluates the Company’s strategic direcƟon, 
management policies, performance objecƟves and 

effecƟveness of Corporate Governance pracƟces. Further, 
the Board fulfils the key funcƟons as prescribed under the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons.

During the financial year 2019-20, as per the requirement 
of Schedule IV of the Act, 2013 and the RegulaƟon 25(3) 
of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, 1 (One) separate meeƟng 
of Independent Directors was held on April 29, 2019 
whereby, all the Independent Directors were present and 
without the presence of the Non-Independent Directors 
and the members of the management of the Company.

2.10 Shareholding of Directors Including Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors

The details of shares held by the Directors of the Company 
in their individual names as on March 31,2020 are 
furnished below:

Sr. No. Name of Directors No. Of Shares held
1. Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal 5,23,40,040
2. Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal 22,07,080
3. Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal 25,92,130
4. Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi 4,75,000
5. Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay NIL
6. Mrs. Smita Modi NIL
7. Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava NIL
8. Mr. Dindayal Jalan NIL

None of the non-execuƟve directors held any shares in the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

2.11 InducƟon and FamiliarizaƟon Program for Directors

Your Company follows a structured orientaƟon and 
familiarizaƟon programme through various reports/
codes/internal policies for all the Directors with a view to 
update them on the Company’s policies and procedures 
on a regular basis.

Periodic presentaƟons are made at the Board MeeƟngs on 
business and performance, long term strategy, iniƟaƟves 
and risks involved.

The details of familiarisaƟon programme have been 
posted in the website of the Company www.gallanƩ.com

2.12 Independent Directors

Your Company appointed Independent Directors having 
experƟse/experience in their respecƟve field/profession. 
None of the Independent Directors are Promoters 
or related to Promoters. They do not have pecuniary 
relaƟonship with the Company and further do not hold 
two percent or more of the total voƟng power of the 
Company.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeƟng of the 
Board in which he/she parƟcipates as a Director and 
thereaŌer at the first meeƟng of the Board in every 
financial year, gives a declaraƟon that he/she meets the 
criteria of independence as required under SecƟon 149(7) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

All Independent Directors maintain their limits of 
directorships as required under LisƟng RegulaƟons. The 
Company had issued a formal leƩer of appointment to all 
Independent Directors and the terms and condiƟons of 
their appointment have been disclosed in the website of 
the Company www.gallanƩ.com

Pursuant to sub secƟon (6) of SecƟon 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 16(1) (b) of the 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirement) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, the Independent Directors of the 
Company viz. Mr. Dindayal Jalan, Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad 
Srivastava, Mrs. Smita Modi and Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay 
have given declaraƟon to the Company that they qualify 
the criteria of independence as required under the Act 
and the regulaƟons.
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2.13 Board Procedures

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review 
financial results and operaƟons of the Company. In 
addiƟon to the above, the Board also meets as and 
when necessary to address specific issues concerning 
the businesses of your Company. The Board MeeƟngs 
are governed by a structured Agenda. The Agenda along 
with detailed explanatory notes and supporƟng material 
are circulated in advance before each meeƟng to all the 
Directors for facilitaƟng effecƟve discussion and decision 
making. The Board members are, on a quarterly basis, 
appraised by the Managing Director & CEO on the overall 
performance of the Company through presentaƟons and 
detailed notes.

Time gap between two consecuƟve meeƟngs does not 
exceed 120 days. The agenda and agenda notes are 
circulated to all the Directors well in advance, usually a 
week before the MeeƟng. In case of sensiƟve agenda 
maƩers, where it is not pracƟcal to circulate the relevant 
informaƟon as part of the agenda papers, the same is tabled 
at the meeƟng. In special and excepƟonal circumstances, 
addiƟonal or supplementary agenda items are taken-up 
for discussion with the permission of the Chairman. The 
members of the Board or CommiƩees are free to suggest 
any item to be included in the agenda, in addiƟon to 
exercising their right to bring up maƩers for discussion at 
the meeƟng with permission of the Chairman.

The Senior Management Personnel are invited to the 
Board/ CommiƩee MeeƟngs to apprise and update the 
members on the items being discussed at the meeƟng. The 
Members of the Board have complete freedom to express 
their opinion and have unfeƩered and complete access to 
informaƟon in the Company. All the decisions are taken 
aŌer detailed deliberaƟons by the Board Members at the 
meeƟngs.

2.14 Performance evaluaƟon of Directors

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the 
Board laid down the criteria for performance evaluaƟon 
of all Directors. The performance evaluaƟon has been 
done by the enƟre Board of Directors, except the Director 
concerned being evaluated. The criteria for performance 
evaluaƟon are as follows:

• The ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate 
governance pracƟces.

• The ability to contribute by introducing internaƟonal 
best pracƟces to address business challenges and 
risks.

• AcƟve parƟcipaƟon in long-term strategic planning.

• Commitment to the fulfilment of a Director’s 
obligaƟons and fiduciary responsibiliƟes; these include 
parƟcipaƟon in Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs.

• performance of the directors

• fulfilment of the independence criteria as specified in 
these regulaƟons and their independence from the 
management.

The criteria for the performance evaluaƟon included the 
following:

• The Board – Structure, composiƟon and quality 
of Board, Board meeƟng schedule, agenda and 
collaterals, board meeƟng pracƟces and overall board 
effecƟveness.

• Board CommiƩees – ComposiƟon, charter, 
informaƟon flow and effecƟveness of the meeƟngs, 
recommendaƟon to the Board, etc.

• Individual Directors – AƩendance at the meeƟngs, 
preparedness for discussion, quality of contribuƟon, 
engagement with fellow board members, KMPs and 
senior management, etc.

• The Chairman - The Chairman was addiƟonally 
evaluated on few parameters such as leadership 
provided to the Board, promoƟng effecƟve 
parƟcipaƟon of all board members in the decision 
making process, etc.

The Independent Directors had to assess the performance 
of the Board and commiƩees as a whole and for the 
assessment of ExecuƟve Chairperson, ExecuƟve Director, 
Non-ExecuƟve Director, Board and CommiƩees as a whole.

Based on the criteria set by the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, the Board carries out an 
annual evaluaƟon of its own performance, its CommiƩees 
and individual Director(s) including the Chairman of the 
Board. The quesƟonnaires on performance evaluaƟon are 
prepared in line with the Companies Act, 2013, the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and in accordance with the set guideline 
Board evaluaƟon, issued by the SEBI. Proper mechanism 
has been provided to each Director for their feedback and 
evaluaƟon. The parameters for performance evaluaƟon 
of the Board includes the roles and responsibiliƟes of 
the Board, Ɵmeliness for circulaƟng the board papers, 
content and the quality of informaƟon provided to the 
Board, overseeing and guiding on major plans of acƟon, 
risk management, annual budget/capex, acquisiƟon 
and investment/ divestments etc. The performance of 
the CommiƩees are evaluated based on criteria such as 
adequate independence of each CommiƩee, frequency of 
meeƟngs and Ɵme allocated for discussions at meeƟngs, 
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funcƟoning of Board CommiƩees and effecƟveness of its 
advice & recommendaƟon to the Board, etc. Performance 
evaluaƟon of Independent Directors is done by the 
enƟre Board, excluding the Independent Director being 
evaluated, based on various aspects such as aƩendance, 
contribuƟon in Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs, 
judgment, performance and exercise of duƟes with due 
and reasonable care. 

In addiƟon, the evaluaƟon criterion for Chairman includes 
aƩendance, effecƟveness of leadership, relaƟonship with 
Board and shareholders, effecƟve and maximum usage of 
Board support system etc.

The ExecuƟve Directors are evaluated on various aspects, 
including inter alia overall performance of Management, 
accomplishment of long term objecƟves, efforts made 
by them towards enhancing brand equity, compliance 
with regulatory law(s) and to encourage new iniƟaƟves 
and expansions etc. Non- ExecuƟve Directors are also 
evaluated on the basis of criteria such as aƩendance 
and parƟcipaƟon in meeƟngs of Board and CommiƩees, 
contribuƟon to the development of long term strategy and 
risk management, updaƟng in the relevant areas such as 
corporate governance, industry and market scenario etc. 

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and 
Board of Directors expressed their saƟsfacƟon towards 
the process followed by the Company for evaluaƟng the 
performance of the Directors, Board as a whole including 
Chairman and its CommiƩees.

2.15 Non-execuƟve Directors’ compensaƟon and 
disclosures

Except siƫng fees for aƩending meeƟngs of Board and 
CommiƩee thereof, Non-execuƟve Directors (including 
Independent Directors) are not paid fixed fees/
remuneraƟon.

2.16 Other Provisions as to Board and CommiƩees

The Board met 5 Ɵmes during the year and the Ɵme gap 
between any two meeƟngs did not exceed 120 days.

2.17 Independent Directors confirmaƟon by the Board

All Independent Directors have given declaraƟons that 
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
RegulaƟon 16(1) (b) of the SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015. 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, 
fulfil the condiƟons of independence specified in SecƟon 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 16(1) 
(b) of the SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015. A formal leƩer 

of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in 
Companies Act, 2013 has been issued and disclosed on 
website of the Company viz.hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com

2.18. Policy for SelecƟon and Appointment of Directors 
and their RemuneraƟon

NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, inter alia, 
deals with the manner of selecƟon of Board of Directors 
and payment of their remuneraƟon.

2.19 Criteria of SelecƟon of Independent Directors

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
considers, inter alia, the following aƩributes/criteria, 
whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for 
appointment as Independent Director:

• QualificaƟon, experƟse and experience in their 
respecƟve fields.

• Personal characterisƟcs which align with the 
Company’s values, such as integrity, accountability, 
financial literacy, high performance standards, etc.

• Diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 
perspecƟve and gender in the Board.

• Such other criteria as prescribed in the Corporate 
Governance Guidelines of the Company or prescribed 
by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee saƟsfies itself 
about the independence of the Directors vis-à-vis the 
Company to enable the Board to discharge its funcƟons 
and duƟes effecƟvely. The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee ensures that the candidates idenƟfied 
for appointment as Directors are not disqualified for 
appointment under SecƟon 164 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Further pursuant 
to Schedule V, Part C of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015 read 
with Amendments thereof, it is hereby confirmed that in 
the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil 
the condiƟons specified SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015 read 
with Amendments thereof and are independent of the 
management.

2.20 Chart/matrix seƫng out the skills/experƟse/
competence of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Schedule V, Part C of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 
2015 read with Amendments thereof, below are the list of 
core skills/experƟse/competencies idenƟfied by the Board 
of Directors for the year under review as required in the 
context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to funcƟon 
effecƟvely and those actually available with the board:
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S.N. Category Core skills/experƟse/competencies idenƟfied by the Board of 
Directors

Available with the 
Board

1. Understanding of
Business/Industry

Experience and knowledge of Steel, Power, Agro and Real Estate 
Business. 

Yes

2. Financial Ability to analyse and understand the key financial statements, 
assess financial viability of the projects and efficient use of 
resources.

Yes

3. Leadership Leadership experience for understanding of business nuisance 
and organizaƟonal challenges. Quality of strategic planning, and 
risk management for long-term growth.

Yes

4. Mergers and 
AcquisiƟons

A history of leading growth through acquisiƟons and other 
business combinaƟons, analyze the fit of a target with the 
Company’s strategy and culture, accurately value transacƟons, 
and evaluate operaƟonal integraƟon plans.

Yes

5. Board Service and 
Governance

Service on a public company board to develop insights about 
maintaining board and management accountability, protecƟng 
shareholder interests, and observing appropriate governance 
pracƟces.

Yes

6. Sales and markeƟng Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market 
share, build brand awareness and equity, and enhance Company’s 
reputaƟon.

Yes

7. Strategy and strategic
planning

Ability to think strategically and idenƟfy and criƟcally assess 
strategic opportuniƟes and threats and develop effecƟve 
strategies.

Yes

2.21 Detailed reasons for the resignaƟon of an 
independent director 

Detailed reasons for the resignaƟon of an independent 
director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure along 
with a confirmaƟon by such director that there are no 
other material reasons other than those provided:

Mr. Sanchit Dubey (date of resignaƟon 29.04.2019), Mr. 
Piyush Kankrania (date of resignaƟon 29.04.2019) and Mr. 
JyoƟrindra Nath Dey (date of resignaƟon 23.06.2019) have 
tendered their resignaƟon from the Directorship of the 
Company. These Directors resigned from the Directorship 
due to their personal reasons and other engagements. 
Further, they have confirmed that there are no other 
material reasons other than those provided. Hence, based 
on their declaraƟon, this is to confirm that resignaƟon 
of all the above Directors were due to their personal 
reasons and other engagements and that there are no 
other material reasons other than those provided for their 
resignaƟon from the Directorship of the Company.

Further, this is to confirm that in the opinion of the 
Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the condiƟons 
specified in these regulaƟons and are independent of the 
management.

2.22 Succession Planning

We have an effecƟve mechanism for succession planning 
which focuses on orderly succession of Directors, including 
ExecuƟve Directors and other senior management team 
and execuƟve officers. The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee implements this mechanism in concurrence 
with the Board.

Further, this is to confirm that in the opinion of the 
Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the condiƟons 
specified in these regulaƟons and are independent of the 
management.

2.23 CommiƩees of Board of Directors

The Board has consƟtuted various CommiƩees to focus on 
specific areas and to make informed decisions within their 
authority. The CommiƩees of the Board of Directors are 
set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out 
clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed 
by members of the Board, as a part of good governance 
pracƟce. The minutes of the meeƟngs of all commiƩees 
are placed before the Board for review. Each CommiƩee 
is governed by its charter and has well defined terms of 
reference which outline the scope, role, responsibiliƟes 
and powers of the CommiƩee. All the recommendaƟons 
of the CommiƩees are duly considered by the Board. 
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The Board of Directors have consƟtuted following 
CommiƩees of the Board of Directors with specific terms of 
reference and adequate delegaƟon of powers to discharge 
their purposes, goals and responsibiliƟes effecƟvely:

Your Company has five Board level commiƩees:
a) Audit CommiƩee
b) NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee
c) Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee
d) Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee
(e) CommiƩee of Directors*

*The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on June 29, 
2020, consƟtuted the “CommiƩee of Directors”.
3. CODE OF CONDUCT
Details of the Code of Conduct for Board members and 
senior management of the Company is available on the 
Company’s website www.gallanƩ.com
Annual declaraƟon signed by the Managing Director & 
CEO of the Company pursuant to RegulaƟon 26(3) read 
with Schedule V (Part D) of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons is 
annexed to the Annual Report.
4. AUDIT COMMITTEE
In terms of provisions of SecƟon 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 18 of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, 
Audit CommiƩee of the Board of Directors presently 
consists of three Non-ExecuƟve Independent Directors. 
The role of the Audit CommiƩee is to provide direcƟons 
to and oversee the internal audit and risk management 
funcƟons, review of financial results and annual financial 
statements, interact with statutory auditors and such 
other maƩers as are required in terms of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons.
ConsƟtuƟon of the Audit CommiƩee complies with 
requirements of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons 
2015 with all members being financially literate and 
most having accounƟng or related financial management 
experƟse.

4.1 ComposiƟon

The Audit CommiƩee comprises of three (3) Directors Mrs. 
Smita Modi (Chairperson), Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay and 
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, all of whom possess accounƟng 
and financial management experƟse/exposure. Mr. 
Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary 
to the Audit CommiƩee. The Audit CommiƩee has been 
reconsƟtuted on June 23, 2019 by introducƟon of Mrs. 
Smita Modi (Chairperson), Independent Director; Mrs. 
Sangeeta Upadhyay, Independent Director; and Mr. Prem 
Prakash Agrawal, ExecuƟve Director.

Mrs. Smita Modi, the Chairperson – Audit CommiƩee was 
present at the Annual General MeeƟng held on Thursday, 
September 26, 2019.

Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Internal 
Auditors, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, Manager 
Accounts aƩend meeƟngs of the CommiƩee as invitees.

4.2 Power of Audit CommiƩee

The “Audit CommiƩee” shall have the following powers:

1. To invesƟgate any acƟvity within its terms of reference;

2. To seek informaƟon from any employee;

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

 and

4. To secure aƩendance of outsiders with reasonable 
experƟse, if considered necessary.

4.3 Role/Terms of Reference of Audit CommiƩee

The Terms of Reference of the Audit CommiƩee are as 
under:

1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng process 
and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible.

2. Recommending for appointment, remuneraƟon and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the company.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditors’ report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with parƟcular 
reference to:

 MaƩers required to be included in the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of Sub-secƟon 
3 of SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

 Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and 
pracƟces and reasons for the same;

 Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management;

 Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings;

 Compliance with lisƟng and other legal 
requirements relaƟng to the financial statements;

 Disclosure of any related party transacƟons;
 QualificaƟons in the draŌ audit report.
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5. Reviewing, with the Management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the Board 
for approval.

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses / applicaƟon of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferenƟal issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds uƟlized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / 
noƟce and the report submiƩed by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the uƟlisaƟon of proceeds of 
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendaƟons to the Board to take up steps in this 
maƩer;

7. Reviewing and monitor the auditor’s independence 
and performance, and effecƟveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of 
transacƟons of the company with related parƟes;

9. ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. ValuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary;

11. EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of 
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit funcƟon, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporƟng structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons 
by the internal auditors into maƩers where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporƟng the 
maƩer to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substanƟal defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the funcƟoning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-
Ɵme Finance Director or any other person heading 
the finance funcƟon or discharging that funcƟon) 
aŌer assessing the qualificaƟons, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other funcƟon as is menƟoned in the 
terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩee.

21. The Audit CommiƩee may call for the comments of the 
auditors about internal control systems, the scope of 
audit, including the observaƟons of the auditors and 
review of financial statement before their submission 
to the Board and may also discuss any related issues 
with the internal and statutory auditors and the 
management of the Company.

22. The Audit CommiƩee to review uƟlisaƟon of loans 
and/or advances from investment by holding company 
in subsidiary company exceeding INR 100 crores or 
10% of asset size of subsidiary, whichever is low.

23. The Audit CommiƩee of the Board shall review 
compliance with the provisions of the SEBI (ProhibiƟon 
of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015 at least once 
in a financial year and shall verify that the systems 
for internal control are adequate and are operaƟng 
effecƟvely.

Review of informaƟon by Audit CommiƩee

The Audit CommiƩee shall mandatorily review the 
following informaƟon:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial 
condiƟon and results of operaƟons;

2. Statement of significant related party transacƟons 
(as defined by the Audit CommiƩee), submiƩed by 
management;

3. Management leƩers / leƩers of internal control 
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relaƟng to internal control 
weaknesses; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneraƟon 
of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review 
by the Audit CommiƩee.

6. Statement of DeviaƟons:

 a) Quarterly statement of deviaƟon(s) including 
report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
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submiƩed to stock exchange (s) in terms of 
RegulaƟon 32(1) of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015.

 b) Annual statement of funds uƟlized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/noƟce in terms of RegulaƟon 32(7) of 
SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015.

The Audit CommiƩee also looks into the maƩers as 
are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors 
besides looking into the mandatory requirements of the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons and provisions of SecƟon 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The minutes of each Audit CommiƩee are placed 
and discussed at the meeƟng of the Board. The Audit 
CommiƩee role, powers, funcƟon etc. of the Audit 

CommiƩee has been reconsƟtuted in accordance with 
SecƟon 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. The recommendaƟons of the Audit CommiƩee 
are placed before the Board for its consideraƟon and 
approval. All the recommendaƟons made by the Audit 
CommiƩee were accepted by the Board.

4.4 MeeƟngs and AƩendance

A total of Five (5) Audit CommiƩee MeeƟngs were held 
in the financial year 2019–20. The meeƟngs were held 
on 29.04.2019, 23.06.2019, 13.08.2019, 21.10.2019 and 
18.01.2020.

The composiƟon of the CommiƩee and details of 
aƩendance at the MeeƟngs are as follows:

Names DesignaƟon Category CommiƩee MeeƟng AƩended
Mrs. Smita Modi Chairperson Independent 4
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Member Independent 4
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Member Independent 4
Mr. Piyush Kankrania* Chairman Independent 1
Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey* Member Independent 1
Mr. Sanchit Dubey* Member Independent 1

* Mr. Piyush Kankrania and Mr. Sanchit Dubey resigned 
from the Directorship of the on April 29, 2019 and 
hence, they also relinquish the membership of the Audit 
CommiƩee. Similarly, Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey resigned 
from the Directorship of the Company on June 23, 2019 
and hence, he also relinquishes the membership of the 
Audit CommiƩee.

Audit CommiƩee has powers prescribed under RegulaƟon 
18(3) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons and the scope of acƟviƟes 
of the Audit CommiƩee is prescribed in Part C of Schedule 
II of this RegulaƟon. Audit CommiƩee also mandatorily 
reviews the informaƟon prescribed under Part C of 
Schedule III.

Cases of non-acceptance by the Board of Directors, of any 
recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee during the year 
under review, pursuant to Schedule V, Part C of SEBI LODR 
RegulaƟons 2015 read with Amendments thereof: NIL

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In terms of SecƟon 178 (5) of the Act, read with RegulaƟon 
20 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons the Board has consƟtuted 
Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee (“SRC”). As per 

the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the CommiƩee shall specifically 
look into the mechanism of Redressal of grievances of 
shareholders, debenture holders and other security 
holders of the listed enƟty including complaints related to 
transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-
receipt of declared dividends etc.

5.1 ComposiƟon

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee comprised of Mrs. Sangeeta 
Upadhyay, an Independent Director, as the Chairperson 
and Mrs. Smita Modi (Independent Director) and Mr. Prem 
Prakash Agrawal (ExecuƟve Director) as Members. Mr. 
Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
the CommiƩee and also as the Compliance Officer.

The CommiƩee, inter alia, approves issue of duplicate 
cerƟficates and oversees and reviews all maƩers 
connected with transfer of securiƟes of the Company. 
The CommiƩee also looks into redressal of shareholders’/
investors’ complaints related to transfer of shares, non-
receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend 
etc.
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A status report of shareholder complaints and redressal 
thereof is prepared and placed before the Stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee. The shareholders/ investors can 
register shares related complaints, if any, in the e-mail 
Id nitesh@gallanƩ.com designated exclusively for the 
purpose.

5.2 Terms of Reference

• specifically look into the redressal of grievances of 
shareholders, debenture holders and other security 
holders.

• consider and resolve the grievances of the security 
holders of the company including complaints related 
to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, 
non-receipt of declared dividends.

• to look in to various aspects of interest of shareholders 
and other security holders.

• Review of measures taken for effecƟve exercise of 
voƟng rights by shareholders.

• Review of adherence to the service standards services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent.

• Review of the various measures and iniƟaƟves taken 

by the listed enƟty for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring Ɵmely receipt of 
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory noƟces 
by the shareholders

5.3 MeeƟngs and AƩendance

No meeƟng of the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee 
MeeƟng was held in the financial year 2019-20. The 
Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee wanted to hold 
meeƟng in the last week of March, 2020 but it could not 
meet owing to the lockdown and restricƟons on the public 
as well as the Corporate Sector across the Country because 
of the pandemic Covid-19 outbreak. Employees were (and 
also “are”) working remotely, but due to difficulƟes faced 
in co-ordinaƟon and lack of office faciliƟes, companies are 
likely to face difficulƟes in undertaking Ɵmely compliances 
of various applicable laws. Keeping in mind the aforesaid, 
the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
temporarily relaxed a number of compliance requirements 
for the corporate sector. One of the relaxaƟons is-SEBI 
has extended the last date for conduct of at least one 
meeƟng of the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee in 
the Financial Year 2019-20 Ɵll June 30, 2020 (in place of 
March 31, 2020). Hence, the Stakeholders RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee met on June 27, 2020.

The composiƟon of the CommiƩee and details of aƩendance at the MeeƟngs are as follows:

Names DesignaƟon Category CommiƩee MeeƟng AƩended
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Chairperson Independent 1*
Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent 1*
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Member ExecuƟve 1*

*Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee MeeƟng held on June 27, 2020.

5.4 Status of Complaints

Sl. No. ParƟculars Numbers
1. Complaints pending as on 1 April, 2019 NIL
2. Complaints received during the year ended 31 March, 2020 NIL
3. Complaints disposed of during the year ended 31 March, 2020 NIL
4. Complaints pending as on 31 March, 2020 NIL

As required under RegulaƟon 40(10) of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons entered into by GallanƩ Ispat with stock 
exchanges, a cerƟficate is obtained every six months from 
a pracƟsing Company Secretary that all transfers have been 
completed within the sƟpulated Ɵme. The cerƟficates are 
forwarded to BSE and NSE.

The equity shares of the Company are traded in 
dematerialized form.

As per Rule 6 of Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 

Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016 (‘Rules”) read with SecƟon 124 of the Act, inƟmaƟons 
have been sent to shareholders concerned, requesƟng 
them to encash their unclaimed dividends failing which 
the unclaimed dividends and the corresponding shares 
held by them be transferred to IEPF Authority.

As required under SecƟon 124 of the Act read with 
the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF 
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Rules’) as amended to date, all shares on which dividend 
has not been paid or claimed for seven consecuƟve years 
or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as noƟfied 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company has 
transferred 350 equity shares, in respect of which dividend 
has not been claimed by the shareholders for seven 
consecuƟve years or more pertaining to the financial year 
ended 31st March 2012, to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund Authority (IEPF) during the financial year 
2019-20. Details of shares transferred have been uploaded 
on the website of IEPF as well as the Company’s website 
i.e., www.gallanƩ.com

Cases of non-acceptance by the Board of Directors, of 
any recommendaƟon of the Stakeholders RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee during the year under review, pursuant to 
Schedule V, Part C of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015 read 
with Amendments thereof: NIL

6. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to SecƟon 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and 
RegulaƟon 19 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee (NRC) of the Board of 
Directors was formed by the Board of Directors to 
oversee the Company’s nominaƟon process for the senior 
management and to decide their salary, perquisites and 
commission / performance linked remuneraƟon etc., 
to be paid to them and other employees within the 
broad frame-work of the Policy, merit and Company’s 
performance. Presently NRC consists of three Non-
ExecuƟve Independent Directors.

6.1 Role of NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

The role of the RemuneraƟon and NominaƟon CommiƩee 
in brief, inter alia, includes:

a. Terms of Reference -

 • IdenƟfy persons who are qualified to become 
directors;

 • IdenƟfy persons who may be appointed as Key 
Managerial Personnel and in Senior Management 
posiƟons;

 • Recommended to the Board for re-appointment 
of directors based on performance evaluaƟon of 
the reƟring director;

 • Annual evaluaƟon of every director’s 
performance;

 • FormulaƟng a remuneraƟon policy of the 
Company;

 • To propose remuneraƟon packages for the 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel including 
Senior management;

 • Recommending re-consƟtuƟon of the Board or 
senior management as may be required from 
Ɵme to Ɵme under the prevailing laws and for 
operaƟonal effecƟveness of the Company.

b. ResponsibiliƟes and DuƟes:

 The responsibility and duƟes of NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are defined below covering 
their scope of work:

 • Reviewing the structure, size and composiƟon 
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) 
of the Board at least annually and making 
recommendaƟons on any proposed changes 
to the Board to compliment the Company’s 
corporate strategy, with the objecƟve to diversify 
the Board;

 • Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

 • IdenƟfying individuals suitably qualified to 
be appointed as the KMPs or in the senior 
management of the Company;

 • FormulaƟng framework and/or policy for 
remuneraƟon, terms of employment and 
any changes, including service contracts, 
remuneraƟon, policy for and scope of pension 
arrangements, etc for ExecuƟves and reviewing it 
on a periodic basis;

 • FormulaƟng terms for cessaƟon of employment 
and ensure that any payments made are fair to 
the individual and the company, that failure is 
not rewarded and that the duty to miƟgate loss is 
fully recognized;

 • Ensure that level and composiƟon of remuneraƟon 
is reasonable and sufficient, relaƟonship of 
remuneraƟon to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks.

 • To approve the remuneraƟon of the Senior 
Management including Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company maintaining a balance between 
fixed and incenƟve pay reflecƟng short and long 
term performance objecƟves appropriate to the 
working of the Company.

The CommiƩee also co-ordinates and oversees the 
annual self-evaluaƟon of the performance of the Board, 
CommiƩees and of individual Directors.

Besides, the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
periodically reviews the composiƟon of the Board to 
ensure that there is an appropriate mix of abiliƟes, 
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experience and diversity to serve the interests of all 
shareholders and the Company.

The process of appoinƟng a director/KMPs/Senior 
Management Personnel is, that when a vacancy arises 
or is expected the CommiƩee will idenƟfy, ascertain 
the integrity, qualificaƟon, appropriate experƟse and 
experience, having regard to the skills that the candidate 
bring to the Board/Company and the balance of skills 
added to that of which the exisƟng members hold.

6.2 MeeƟngs and AƩendance

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the NRC 
comprised of Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay, an Independent 
Director, as the Chairperson and Mrs. Smita Modi and Mr. 
Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava all Independent Directors as 
Members. Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary to the CommiƩee.

A total of two NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
MeeƟng was held in the financial year 2019–20. The 
meeƟngs were held on 29.04.2019 and 23.06.2019.

The composiƟon of the CommiƩee and details of aƩendance at the MeeƟngs are as follows:

Names DesignaƟon Category CommiƩee MeeƟng AƩended
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay Chairperson Independent 1
Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava Member Independent 1
Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent 1
Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey* Chairperson* Independent 1
Mr. Piyush Kankrania* Member* Independent 1
Mr. Sanchit Dubey * Member* Independent 1

* Mr. Piyush Kankrania and Mr. Sanchit Dubey resigned 
from the Directorship of the Company on April 29, 2019 
and hence, they also relinquish the membership of the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee. Similarly, Mr. 
JyoƟrindra Nath Dey resigned from the Directorship of the 
Company on June 23, 2019 and hence, he also relinquishes 
the membership of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee.

Cases of non-acceptance by the Board of Directors, of any 
recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee during the year under review, pursuant to 
Schedule V, Part C of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons 2015 read 
with Amendments thereof: NIL

6.3 NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company

The RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company is designed to 
aƩract, moƟvate and retain manpower. This Policy applies 
to directors and senior management including its Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees of the 
Company.

The remuneraƟon of the Managing Director, ExecuƟve 
Director and KMPs of the Company is recommended by 
the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee based on 
established criteria.

Summary of RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company

The Board has adopted the RemuneraƟon Policy on the 
recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee in compliance with SecƟon 178 of the Act, 
2013 and RegulaƟon 19 read with Part D of Schedule 

II of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons. In keeping with the 
provisions of SecƟon 178, the remuneraƟon structure of 
the Company comprises of fixed remuneraƟon (including 
fixed supplements), performance-based remuneraƟon 
(variable salary), pension scheme, where applicable, 
other benefits in kind and severance payment, where 
applicable. Further, the Policy states that the Non-
ExecuƟve Directors and Independent Directors of the 
Company may receive remuneraƟon only by way of siƫng 
fee and reimbursement of expenses for parƟcipaƟon 
in meeƟngs of the Board or CommiƩee thereof, as may 
be permissible by the applicable law. AddiƟonally, the 
Policy also lays down the overall selecƟon criteria for the 
execuƟves of the Company which is based on broad heads 
such as competencies, capabiliƟes, compaƟbility, strong 
interpersonal skills, commitment among others. The 
RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company has been disclosed 
on the website of the Company. The web link to the 
RemuneraƟon Policy is as under: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.
com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon Policy/RemuneraƟon Criteria Non-
ExecuƟve Director w.e.f. 01.04.2019

Board Diversity
In order to ensure a balance composiƟon of the Board, 
the Company shall consider candidates from a wide 
variety of backgrounds, shall not discriminate on the basis 
of gender, ethnicity and/or physical disability and shall 
ensure an appropriate mix of educaƟonal qualificaƟon, 
skills, competency and experience as required in the 
context of the business of the Company and sector for it, 
to funcƟon effecƟvely.
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6.4 RemuneraƟon of Directors

(a) ExecuƟve Directors (Managing / Whole-Ɵme Directors)

The aggregate value of salary and perquisites paid for the year ended 31st March, 2020 to Managing/Whole-Ɵme Directors 
are as follows:

Name DesignaƟon Aggregate Value of Salary & 
Perquisites (` In Lacs)

Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal Chairman and Managing Director 36.00
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Whole Ɵme Director 36.00
Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi Director-Plant OperaƟon 36.00
Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal Director – Sales & MarkeƟng 36.00

The RemuneraƟon to the ExecuƟve Directors is determined 
by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee within 
the statutory limit subject to the approval of shareholders 
of the Company. As per the agreement entered into 
with the ExecuƟve Directors there is no provision for 
severance fees to the Directors. The Company has 
adopted an EvaluaƟon policy to evaluate performance of 
each director, the Board as a whole and its commiƩees. 
EvaluaƟon is also carried out by the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee in accordance with SecƟon 178 
of the Companies Act 2013 and Code for Independent 
Directors’ as outlined under Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Such evaluaƟon factors various criteria including 
contribuƟon, domain experƟse, strategic vision, industry 
knowledge, parƟcipaƟon in discussions etc.

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

Pursuant to SecƟon 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee of the Board 
of Directors was formed by the Board of Directors. The 
composiƟon of the CSR CommiƩee is in line with provisions 
of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.1 Terms of reference

The CSR CommiƩee is empowered pursuant to its terms of 

reference, inter alia, to:

1. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the CSR acƟviƟes;

2. Monitor implementaƟon and adherence to the CSR 
Policy of the Company from Ɵme to Ɵme;

3. Prepare a transparent monitoring mechanism 
for ensuring implementaƟon of the projects/
programmes/acƟviƟes proposed to be undertaken by 
the Company; and

4. Such other acƟviƟes as the Board of Directors may 
determine from Ɵme to Ɵme.

7.2 MeeƟngs and AƩendance

The CommiƩee met four (4) Ɵmes during the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2020 on 29.04.2019, 13.08.2019, 
21.10.2019 and 18.01.2020.

The consƟtuƟon of the CSR CommiƩee of the Board 
of Directors of the Company along with the details of 
the meeƟngs held and aƩended by the members of the 
CommiƩee during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2020 is detailed below:

Names DesignaƟon Category CommiƩee MeeƟng AƩended
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal Chairperson ExecuƟve 4
Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal Member ExecuƟve 4
Mrs. Smita Modi Member Independent 3
Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey* Chairperson* Independent 1

*Resigned from the Directorship of the Company effecƟve 
from June 23, 2019 and consequently, relinquishes the 
Chairmanship of the CSR CommiƩee.

Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee has been 
reconsƟtuted by the Board of Directors of the Company 
on June 23, 2019 by appointment of Mrs. Smita Modi as 
Member and Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal as Chairperson of 
the Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the 

CSR Policy of the Company on the recommendaƟons of 
the CSR CommiƩee. The details of the CSR iniƟaƟves of 
the Company form part of the CSR SecƟon in the Annual 
Report. The CSR Policy has been placed on the website of 
the Company www.gallanƩ.com

8. COMIITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to SecƟon 179 of Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board of Directors has consƟtuted a new CommiƩee of the 
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Board by giving nomenclature “CommiƩee of Directors” 
to consider, discuss and decide the businesses of rouƟne 
urgent nature. 

“CommiƩee of Directors” is comprised of following 
Directors:
• Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, ExecuƟve (Chairman)
• Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, ExecuƟve Director 

(Member)
• Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi, ExecuƟve Director 

(Member)

Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary of the Company 
acts as the Secretary for the “CommiƩee of Directors”.

“CommiƩee of Directors” meets as and when required to 
consider maƩers assigned to it by the Board of Directors 
from Ɵme to Ɵme and the broad terms of reference of the 
“CommiƩee of Directors” are as under:

The broad terms of reference includes the following: 

(1) To avail loan up to the maximum limit of ` 2,500 
lacs in a single transacƟon from any Bank/financial 
insƟtuƟons/lenders and to hypothecate/mortgage 
the assets of our Company accordingly subject to 
overall borrowing limit up to ` 25,000 lacs and subject 
to yearly review; 

(2) To enter into forward contracts for hedging/ 
derivaƟves (in US Dollar or other currency as may 
be decided) with various banks from Ɵme to Ɵme as 
may be required in the ordinary course of business for 
purchase of raw materials, spares or other goods; 

(3) To avail vehicles loan from any Bank/InsƟtuƟons/
Lenders for the business of our Company; 

(4) To give power/authorizaƟon to any Director or 
Company Secretary of our Company to sign and file 
any Forms and/or applicaƟon required to be filed with 
Registrar of Companies from Ɵme to Ɵme; 

(5) To open and close the Banking accounts of our 
Company; 

(6) To change the Signatories of the Bank accounts 
whenever required; 

(7) To give power/authorizaƟon/duƟes through resoluƟon 
or otherwise whenever required to a person on behalf 
of our Company in relaƟon to business operaƟons of 
our Company including but not limited to:

 • Government Subsidy and benefits related; 
 • ApplicaƟon with Governmental, Semi-

Governmental and other authoriƟes including 
railways, mining;

 • ApplicaƟon to the Government or autonomous 
bodies;

 • Judicial or quasi-judicial maƩers;
 • Environmental and safety issues;
 • Issues of importance and strategic significance 

relaƟng to the operaƟons of the Company;
 • Other operaƟonal maƩers of the Company as 

may be assigned from Ɵme to Ɵme by the Board.

(8) To affix or authorise fixaƟon of the Common seal of our 
Company to such documents/ papers in connecƟon 
with above powers as may be necessary; and 

(9) To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary 
or incidental to exercise of the above powers.

9. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any 
subsidiary Company as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013.

Your Company does not have any material unlisted Indian 
subsidiary, and hence, is not required to nominate an 
Independent Director of the Company on the Board of any 
material unlisted subsidiary.

The Policy on Material Subsidiaries can be accessed on the 
Company’s website www.gallanƩ.com

10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk 
Management Policy for idenƟfying the risk associated 
with business of the Company and measures to be taken 
to miƟgate the same. The Audit CommiƩee has addiƟonal 
oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. All 
risks are well integrated with funcƟonal and business 
plans and are reviewed on a regular basis by the senior 
leadership. There are no risks which in the opinion of the 
Board threaten the existence of the Company.

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is 
a very important part of business. The main aim of risk 
management is to idenƟfy, monitor and take precauƟonary 
measures in respect of the events that may pose risks 
for the business. Your Company’s risk management is 
embedded in the business processes.

Your Company laid down procedures to inform Board 
members about risk assessment and minimisaƟon and has 
implemented the Risk Management plan and conƟnuously 
monitors it. Details of Key Risks and MiƟgaƟon Plan are 
given in the Directors Report forming part of the Annual 
Report.
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11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In terms of the Indian AccounƟng Standard “Related 
Party Disclosures”, as prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has idenƟfied the 
related parƟes covered therein and details of transacƟons 
with such related parƟes have been disclosed in Note to 
the Accounts forming part of this Annual Report.

TransacƟons with related parƟes entered into by the 
Company are in the ordinary course of business and on 
arm’s length basis and do not have potenƟal conflicts with 
the Company. Further, these transacƟons are also placed 
in the Audit CommiƩee MeeƟng(s) for its prior approval 
or omnibus approval. There is no materially significant 
related party transacƟon during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020.

None of the related party transacƟons entered into 

by the Company were in conflict with the Company’s 
interest. There are no materially significant Related Party 
TransacƟons made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may 
have potenƟal conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large.

All Related Party TransacƟons are placed before the Audit 
CommiƩee for their approval. Omnibus approvals are 
taken for the transacƟons which are repeƟƟve in nature. 
In compliance with LisƟng RegulaƟons, the necessary 
statements/disclosures with respect to the Related Party 
TransacƟons are tabled before the Audit CommiƩee and 
the Board of Directors on quarterly basis. In line with 
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 
23 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, your Company has adopted 
a Policy on Related Party TransacƟons which is available at 
Company’s website www.gallanƩ.com

12. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

12.1 LocaƟon and Ɵme of last 3 Annual General MeeƟngs are as under:

Year Venue Date Time
2018-19 Geeta Bhawan,

16, Block C, Jangpura Extension, Jangpura, New Delhi – 110014. India 
26.09.2019 11.00 A.M.

2017-18 BharaƟya Bhasha Parishad, 
36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 017

27.09.2018 2:00 P.M.

2016-17 BharaƟya Bhasha Parishad, 
36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 017

26.09.2017 2:00 P.M.

12.2 Special resoluƟons passed at the previous three Annual General MeeƟngs are as below:

General Body
MeeƟng

Financial
Year

Date Venue Special ResoluƟons

15th Annual 
General
MeeƟng

2018-19 26.09.2019 Geeta Bhawan, 16, 
Block C, Jangpura 

Extension, 
Jangpura, New 
Delhi – 110014. 

India 

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal (DIN: 
01814318) as Managing Director of the Company.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 
01045228) as a Whole-Ɵme Director designated as 
Director (Sales & MarkeƟng).

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal (DIN: 
01397585) as a Whole-Ɵme Director.

4. Re-appointment of Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi 
(DIN: 01979952) as a Whole–Ɵme Director designated as 
Director (Plant – OperaƟon)
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General Body
MeeƟng

Financial
Year

Date Venue Special ResoluƟons

14th Annual 
General
MeeƟng

2017-18 27.09.2018 BharaƟya Bhasha 
Parishad, 

36A, Shakespeare 
Sarani, 4th Floor, 
Kolkata - 700 017

1. To reappoint Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey (DIN:00180925) 
as an Independent Director for Second Term of five years.

2. To reappoint Mr. Piyush Kankrania (DIN: 05241962) as 
an Independent Director for Second Term of five years.

3. To reappoint Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay (DIN:06920195) 
as an Independent Director for Second Term of five years.

4. GranƟng of Loan under SecƟon 185 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to M/s. GallanƩ Metal Limited

13th Annual 
General
MeeƟng

2016-17 26.09.2017 BharaƟya Bhasha 
Parishad, 36A, 
Shakespeare 

Sarani, 4th Floor, 
Kolkata - 700 017

1. Increase in remuneraƟon of Mr. Chandra Prakash 
Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company (DIN: 
01814318).

2. Increase in remuneraƟon of Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, 
Whole-Ɵme Director of the Company (DIN: 01397585).

3. Increase in remuneraƟon of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agarwal, 
Whole-Ɵme Director (Director- Sales & MarkeƟng) of the 
Company (DIN: 01045228)

4.Increase in remuneraƟon of Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad 
Kandoi, Whole-Ɵme Director (Director - Plant OperaƟon) 
of the Company (DIN: 01979952)

12.3 The Details of Special ResoluƟons passed through 
postal ballot during the financial year 2019-20: No special 
resoluƟon was passed through postal ballot in the last 
year.

12.4 Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise – 
Not Applicable.

12.5 Whether any special resoluƟon is proposed to be 
conducted through postal ballot – At present, there is no 
proposal to pass any special resoluƟon through Postal 
Ballot.

12.6 Procedure for Postal Ballot: Not Applicable.

12.7 Extraordinary General MeeƟng: No Extra-Ordinary 
General MeeƟng held during the Financial Year 2019-20.

12.8 Court Convened MeeƟng of Shareholders

During the year no Court Convened MeeƟng convened 
and held.

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

In accordance with RegulaƟon 46 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, 
the Company has maintained a funcƟonal website at 
www.gallanƩ.com containing basic informaƟon about the 
Company viz., details of its business, financial informaƟon, 
shareholding paƩern, compliance with corporate 
governance, contact informaƟon of the designated 

officials of the Company who are responsible for assisƟng 
and handling investor grievances, etc. The contents of the 
said website are updated from Ɵme to Ɵme.

InformaƟon like quarterly / half yearly / annual financial 
results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges 
immediately aŌer they are approved by the Board to enable 
them to put them on their websites and communicate to 
their members. In terms of RegulaƟon 47 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons the quarterly / half-yearly / annual financial 
results are also published in the prescribed format within 
48 hours of the conclusion of the meeƟngs of the Board in 
which they are considered and approved, in one English 
newspaper circulaƟng in the whole or substanƟally the 
whole of India and in one vernacular (Hindi) newspaper. 
These results are simultaneously posted on the website of 
the Company at www.gallanƩ.com

AŌer shiŌing of the Registered Office from Kolkata to New 
Delhi, Company publishes all informaƟon in newspapers 
viz. Business Standard (All ediƟons) and Naya India 
(Vernacular-Hindi). No presentaƟons were made to 
insƟtuƟonal investors or to the analysts during the year.

Details about the means of communicaƟon:

1. Quarterly Results:

The quarterly and year to date financial results of the 
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Company are published in leading newspapers in India 
which include, Business Standard and Ek Din (before 
shiŌing of Registered Office from Kolkata to New Delhi) 
and in Business Standard and Naya India (aŌer shiŌing of 

Registered Office from Kolkata to New Delhi). The results 
are also displayed on the Company’s website under 
hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com

2. Whether it also displays official news releases; Yes

14. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

14.1 Date, Ɵme and Ɵme of the Annual General MeeƟng Thursday, September 10, 2020 at 11.30 A.M.
14.2 Venue The Company is conducƟng AGM through Video 

Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), 
pursuant to circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (“MCA”), dated May 05, 2020 and as such there is 
no requirement to have a venue for the AGM.

14.3 Financial Year April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020
14.4 Cut-off date for determining the names

of shareholders eligible to vote
Thursday, September 03, 2020

14.5 Cut-off date for determining the names
of shareholders eligible to get NoƟce of
Annual General MeeƟng

Friday, August 07, 2020

14.6 PublicaƟon of results for the financial year 2020-21 
(tentaƟve and subject to
change)

a) First quarter results: On or before August 14, 2020.
b) Second quarter and half year results: On or before 

November 14, 2020.
c) Third quarter results: On or before February 14, 2021.
d) Fourth quarter results and results for the year ending 

March 31, 2020: On or before May 30, 2021.
14.7 Dates of book closure September 04, 2020 to September 10, 2020 (both days 

inclusive)
14.8 Dividend Payment Date During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Board of Directors 

has not proposed for Final Dividend for the Financial Year 
2019-20.

14.9 LisƟng on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code 1. BSE Ltd., Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai- 400001

 Phones : (022) 22721233/4, 91-22-66545695
 Fax : (022) 22721919
 Stock Code: 533265
2. NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd.,Exchange Plaza, 

C-1, Block G,Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
 Mumbai – 400 051
 Tel No: (022) 26598100 – 8114
 Fax No: (022) 26598120
 Stock Code: GALLISPAT

14.10 Payment of LisƟng Fees Annual LisƟng Fees for both the stock exchanges for the 
financial year 2020-21 has been duly paid by the Company.
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14.11 Market Price Data- High, Low During Each Month 
in Last Financial Year

Monthly high and low quotaƟons of shares traded on 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and NaƟonal Stock Exchange 
of India Limited for the Year 2019-20.

Month BSE NSE
High Price Low Price High Price Low Price

Apr-19 38.00 28.70 38.05 29.80
May-19 43.30 28.70 44.00 28.70
Jun-19 39.80 33.10 41.50 33.15
Jul-19 40.10 28.50 40.45 28.10
Aug-19 29.10 16.25 28.95 16.05
Sep-19 24.85 20.00 24.70 19.95
Oct-19 21.50 16.50 22.55 18.10
Nov-19 22.00 18.65 22.90 18.00
Dec-19 23.95 20.30 25.00 19.10
Jan-20 32.00 23.10 32.80 22.70
Feb-20 27.95 19.55 28.30 19.05
Mar-20 22.00 18.00 22.95 16.25

14.12 Performance of the Company’s equity shares (closing share price) in comparison to BSE Sensex and NSE NiŌy 
during the financial year 2019-20:
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14.13 Suspension of SecuriƟes during the financial year 2019-20:

During the financial year 2019-20, the securiƟes of the Company were not suspended from trading.

14.14 Registrar and Share Transfer Agents;
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
7th Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B,
3A, Auckland Rd, Elgin, Kolkata, West Bengal – 700017
Tel.: (033) 2280 6616 / 17 / 18
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Website: www.nichetechpl.com



Annual Report 2019-20 | 93

Notice Directors’ Report Annexure to the Directors’ Report Corporate Governance Report

14.15 Share Transfer System;

The Company has a CommiƩee of the Board of Directors 
called Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee, which 
meets as and when required. The formaliƟes for transfer 
of shares in the physical form are completed and share 
cerƟficates are dispatched to the transferee within 15 
days of receipt of the transfer documents, provided the 

documents are complete and the shares under transfer 
are not under dispute.

Share transfers, dividend payments and all other investor 
related acƟviƟes are aƩended to and processed at the 
Office of the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 
For lodgement of transfer deeds and any other documents 
or for any grievances/complaints, kindly contact any of the 
offices of Niche Technologies Private Limited.

14.16 DistribuƟon of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2020:

DistribuƟon of shareholding by size is as given below:

No. of Shares held Shareholders Shares
Number % to total Number % to total

Upto 500 2,321 71.109 3,04,584 0.108
501-1,000 324 9.926 2,77,952 0.098
1,001-5,000 431 13.205 9,55,992 0.339
5,001-10,000 78 2.390 5,86,817 0.208
10,001-50,000 75 2.298 16,27,470 0.576
50,001-1,00,000 12 0.367 8,92,096 0.316
1,00,001 and Above 23 0.705 27,77,15,809 98.355
TOTAL 3,264 100.000 28,23,60,720 100.000

14.17 Categories of shareholding as on 31st March, 2020

Category (as GallanƩ reports to stock exchanges) Shares Holdings % of Total
PROMOTERS’ HOLDING:
Promoters
Total Promoters’ Holding

17,81,55,230
17,81,55,230

63.09
63.09

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING:
InsƟtuƟonal Investors
Financial InsƟtuƟon/Bank
Financial InsƟtuƟon Investor
Foreign Porƞolio Investor
Others
Bodies Corporate                                                                            
Individuals
NRI/OCBs
Clearing Members/Clearing CorporaƟon (Demat shares in transit)
IEPF
Total Public Shareholding 

100
0
0

9,72,64,802
68,03,970

79,137
51,081
6,400

10,42,05,490

0.00
0.00
0.00

34.45
2.41
0.03
0.02
0.00

36.91
GRAND TOTAL 2,82,36,0720 100
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 Category-wise shareholding:

0
20
40
60
80

Promoter &
Promoter

Group
(63.09%)

Bodies
Corporate -

Public
(34.45%)

Individuals -
Public

(2.41%)

NR/OCBs -
Public

(0.03%)

Others -
Public

(0.02%)

Category of Shareholders

14.18 DematerializaƟon of Shares and Liquidity

The process of conversion of shares from physical form 
to electronic form is known as dematerializaƟon. For 
dematerializing the shares, the Shareholder has to open 
a demat account with a Depository ParƟcipant (DP). The 
Shareholder is required to fill in a Demat Request Form 
and submit the same along with the Share CerƟficate(s) 
to the DP. The DP will allocate a demat request number 
and shall forward the request physically and electronically, 
through NSDL/CDSL to the R&T Agent. On receipt of the 
demat request, both physically and electronically and 
aŌer verificaƟon, the Shares are dematerialized, and an 
electronic credit of shares is given in the account of the 
Shareholder.

The Company’s equity shares are tradable compulsorily 
in electronic form and are available for trading in the 
depository systems of both NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository 
Ltd (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd 
(CDSL). The InternaƟonal SecuriƟes IdenƟficaƟon Number 
(ISIN) of the Company, as alloƩed by NSDL and CDSL, is 
INE528K01029. Nearly 100.00% of total listed equity 
shares have been dematerialised as on March 31, 2020.

14.19 Outstanding ADRs/GDRs/Warrants or any other 
converƟble instruments, conversion date and likely 
impact on equity: Nil

14.20 Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk 
and Hedging AcƟviƟes:

The Company has insignificant foreign exchange exposure 
towards imports. CommodiƟes form a major part of 
business of the Company and hence Commodity price 
risk is one of the important risks for the Company. Your 
Company has a robust framework in place to protect 
the Company’s interests from risks arising out of market 
volaƟlity.

The Company does not undertake any commodity 
hedging acƟviƟes. The Company acƟvely monitors the 
foreign exchange movements and takes forward covers 
as appropriate to reduce the risks associated with 
transacƟons in foreign currencies.

14.21 Corporate IdenƟty Number (CIN): 
L27109DL2005PLC350523

14.22 Plant locaƟons
Plot No. AL-5, Sector – 23, 
Gorakhpur Industrial Development Authority (GIDA), 
Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, U.P.
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14.23 Address for correspondence

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents; 
Mr. S. Abbas, Senior System Manager
Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
7th Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B,
3A, Auckland Rd, Elgin, Kolkata, 
West Bengal – 700017. 
Tel.:(033) 2280 6616 / 17 / 18 
Email id: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
Website: www.nichetechpl.com

Unit: GallanƩ Ispat Limited
Contact Person: Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer
Corporate Office:
1, Crooked Lane, Second Floor, 
Room Nos. 222 & 223, 
Kolkata – 700069.W.B.
Telefax: 033-46004831

Registered Office:
“GALLANTT HOUSE”, 
I-7, Jangpura Extension, 
New Delhi – 110014
Telefax: 011-41645392

Email-Id :nitesh@gallanƩ.com
Website :www.gallanƩ.com

Depositories:

NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited
Trade World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th & 5th Floors,
Kamala Mills Compound,
Lower Parel, Mumbai – 013 400
Tel. No.: (022) 4200 2499
Fax No.: (022) 6351 2497
Email: info@nsdl.co.in
Website: www.nsdl.co.in

Central Depository Services (India) Limited
Marathon Futurex, A-Wing, 25th floor,
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai – 013 400
Toll free No.: 5533-22-1800
Email: complaints@cdslIndia.com
Website: www.cdslindia.com

Shareholders are requested to quote their Folio No./DP ID 
& Client ID, e-mail address, telephone number and its RTA.

14.24 List of all credit raƟngs obtained by the Company 
along with any revisions thereto, for all debt instruments 
of the Company or any fixed deposit programme or 
any scheme or proposal of the Company involving 
mobilizaƟon of funds, whether in India or abroad:

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company does not 
have any debt instruments or any Fixed Deposit Programme 
or any scheme or the proposal of the Company involving 
mobilizaƟon of funds in India or in abroad.

During the year under report, vide its raƟng leƩer bearing 
reference no. BWR/BLR/DEL/IRC/RK/1240/2019-20 dated 
June 19, 2019, the RaƟng agency M/s. Brickwork RaƟngs 
India Private Limited has upgraded and assigned BWR 
BBB+ raƟng for the Company’s Fund Based Long Term 
faciliƟes (long term) and BWR A2 for Non-Fund based 
Short Term faciliƟes.

14.25 Unpaid and Unclaimed Amount of Dividend and 
Share ApplicaƟon Money

Following amount of Unpaid Dividend has not been claimed and paid Ɵll 31.03.2020:

Nature of Money Relevant Financial Year Bank Account Details Amount lying (In Rs.)
Final Dividend for 2013 2012-13 IDBI Bank Account No. 

0135103000007344 
17,723.50

Final Dividend for 2014 2013-14 IDBI Bank Account No. 
0135103000007900

3,282.50

Final Dividend for 2015 2014-15 IDBI Bank Account No. 
0135103000008587

3,427.00
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Nature of Money Relevant Financial Year Bank Account Details Amount lying (In Rs.)
Interim Dividend 2016 2015-16 ICICI Bank Account No. 

001105026007
3,929.00

Final Dividend for 2017 2016-17 IDBI Bank Account No. 
1526103000000347

12,765.50

Final Dividend for 2018 2017-18 IDBI Bank Account No. 
1526103000000569

21,063.00

Final Dividend for 2018-19 
(Interim Dividend)

2018-19 IDBI Bank Account No. 
1526103000000666

23,761.75

Unclaimed and unpaid amount of Dividend for the Financial 
Year 2011-12 to the tune of ` 6,138 were transferred to 
the Investors’ EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund. Members 
who have not so far encashed their Divided Warrants 
for the financial years ended 31st March, 2013, 2014, 
2015, 2016 (Interim), 2017, 2018 and 2019 (Interim) are 
requested to approach immediately the Registrars for 
revalidaƟon of unclaimed Dividend Warrants. The details 
of unclaimed dividend are available on the Company’s 
corporate website www.gallanƩ.com and also uploaded 
on the website of IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in

14.26 Transfer of shares to IEPF

As required under SecƟon 124 of the Companies Act, 
2013, 350 Equity Shares, in respect of which dividend has 
not been claimed by the members for seven consecuƟve 
years or more have been transferred by the Company to 
the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(IEPF) during the financial year 2019-20. Details of shares 
transferred have been uploaded on the website of IEPF as 
well as the Company. 

15. OTHER DISCLOSURE

15.1 Disclosures on materially significant related party 
transacƟons that may have potenƟal conflict with the 
interests of listed enƟty at large;

All transacƟons entered into by the Company with 
related parƟes as defined under the Act and the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, during the financial year 2019-20 were in 
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 
pricing basis and do not aƩract the provisions of SecƟon 
188 of the Act. There were no materially significant 
transacƟons with the related parƟes during the financial 
year which were in conflict with the interest of Company. 
Necessary disclosures as required under the AccounƟng 
Standards have been made in the Financial Statements. 
The Board has approved a policy on materiality of related 
party transacƟons and on dealing with related party 
transacƟons and the same is disclosed on the website of 
the Company at the web link to the Materiality of Related 
Party TransacƟons is as under: hƩps://www.gallanƩ.

com/InvestorsCorner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/ Related 
PartyTransacƟon Policy-w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

15.2 Details of non-compliance by the listed enƟty, 
penalƟes, strictures imposed on the listed enƟty by stock 
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on 
any maƩer related to capital markets, during the last 
three years;

The Company has complied with the requirements of 
the Stock Exchanges / SEBI and Statutory AuthoriƟes on 
all maƩers related to the capital markets during the last 
three years. No penalty or strictures were imposed on the 
Company by any of these authoriƟes.

15.3 AccounƟng Standards

The Company has followed all relevant AccounƟng 
Standards noƟfied by the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 while preparing Financial 
Statements for 2019-20.

Your Company has not adopted any alternaƟve accounƟng 
treatment prescribed differently from the AccounƟng 
Standards.

15.4 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle 
blower policy, and affirmaƟon that no personnel has 
been denied access to the audit commiƩee;

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and 
has established necessary Vigil Mechanism as required 
under RegulaƟon 22 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons for 
Directors and employees to report concerns about any 
unethical behaviour. No person has been denied access to 
the Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee. The said policy has 
also been disclosed on the website of the Company at the 
link hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ 
Ispat Limited/ Whistle Blower Policy - w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

15.5 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements 
and adopƟon of the non-mandatory requirements;

The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The Company has 
also fulfilled the following discreƟonary requirements as 
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provided in the LisƟng RegulaƟons:

(i) The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit CommiƩee.

(ii) The financial statements of the Company are with 
unmodified audit opinion.

15.6 Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ 
subsidiaries is disclosed;

The policy to determine a material subsidiary has been 
framed and the same is disclosed on the Company’s 
website at the link hƩps:// www.gallanƩ.com/Investors 
Corner/Policy On Material Subsidiary-w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

15.7 Web link where policy on dealing with related party 
transacƟons;

The Related Party TransacƟon Policy is also posted on the 
Company’s website and can be accessed at hƩps://www.
gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat Limited/ 
Related Party TransacƟon Policy-w.e.f. 01.04.2019.

15.8 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity 
hedging acƟviƟes

The Company does not undertake any commodity 
hedging acƟviƟes. The Company acƟvely monitors the 
foreign exchange movements and takes forward covers 
as appropriate to reduce the risks associated with 
transacƟons in foreign currencies.

15.9 Details of uƟlizaƟon of funds raised through 
preferenƟal allotment or qualified insƟtuƟons placement 
as specified under RegulaƟon 32(7A)

During the period under Report Company has not 
raised funds through preferenƟal allotment of qualified 
insƟtuƟonal placement as specified under RegulaƟon 
32(7A).

15.10 A cerƟficate from a company secretary in pracƟce 
that none of the directors on the board of the company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or conƟnuing as directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority

CerƟficate as required under Part C of Schedule V of 
LisƟng RegulaƟons, received from Mr. Anurag Fatehpuria 
(Membership No. 34471, CP No. 12855), PracƟcing 
Company Secretary, that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or conƟnuing as directors of 
the Company by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of 
India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority was placed before the Board of Directors at their 
meeƟng held on 29th June, 2020. The cerƟficate given 

by Mr. Anurag Fatehpuria is published in this Report as 
Annexure-D of this Corporate Governance Report.

15.11 RecommendaƟons of CommiƩees of the Board

There were no instances during the financial year 2019-20, 
wherein the Board had not accepted recommendaƟons 
made by any commiƩee of the Board.

15.12 Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the 
Company

Total fees of ` 4,50,000 (Rupees Four Lacs FiŌy Thousand 
only) for financial year 2019-20, for all services, was paid 
by the Company to the statutory auditor.

15.13 Disclosure relaƟng to Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) 
Act, 2013

The Company has in place an effecƟve mechanism for 
dealing with complaints relaƟng to sexual harassment at 
workplace.

The details relaƟng to the number of complaints received 
and disposed of during the financial year 2019-20 are as 
under:

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: 
NIL

b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial 
year: NIL

c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the 
financial year: NIL

15.14 Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate 
governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) above, with 
reasons thereof shall be disclosed

There is no case of non-compliance of any requirement of 
Corporate Governance.

15.15 DiscreƟonary requirements as specified in Part E of 
Schedule II of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons:

The Company has complied with the discreƟonary 
requirements with regard to reporƟng of Internal Auditor 
directly to Audit CommiƩee, moving towards a regime of 
unqualified Financial Statements and unmodified audit 
opinion.

15.16 Disclosures with respect to demat suspense 
account/unclaimed suspense account:

Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/
unclaimed suspense account: Not applicable.
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15.17 The Company has duly complied with the 
requirements specified in RegulaƟons 17 to 27 and 
Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulaƟon (2) of RegulaƟon 46 of 
the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

15.18 ParƟculars of Directors seeking appointment / re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
have been provided in the NoƟce of the Annual General 
MeeƟng.

15.19 In addiƟon to Directors’ Report, a Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report form part of the Annual 
Report to the shareholders. All key managerial personnel 
and senior management have confirmed that they do not 
have any material, financial and commercial interest in 
transacƟons with the Company that may have a potenƟal 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

15.20 All details relaƟng to financial and commercial 
transacƟons where Directors may have a pecuniary 
interest are provided to the Board and the interested 
Directors neither parƟcipate in the discussion nor vote on 
such maƩers.

15.21 In order to prevent misuse of any unpublished price 
sensiƟve informaƟon (UPSI), maintain confidenƟality 
of all UPSI and prohibit any insider trading acƟvity and 
abusive self-dealing of securiƟes, in the interest of the 
shareholders at large, the Company has framed a Code of 
Conduct for ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading. The said Code 
prohibits the Designated Persons of the Company from 
dealing in the securiƟes of the Company on the basis of 
any unpublished price sensiƟve informaƟon, available to 
them by virtue of their posiƟon in the Company.

The details of dealing in Company’s shares by Designated 
Employees/Designated Persons are quarterly placed 
before the Audit CommiƩee. The Code also prescribes 
sancƟon framework and any instance of breach of code 
is dealt in accordance with the same. A copy of the said 
Code is made available to all employees of the Company 
and compliance of the same is ensured.

Further the Company has framed a Code of PracƟces 
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
SensiƟve InformaƟon and the same is available on the 
website of the Company at www.gallanƩ.com

15.22 The Company as required under Clause 46 of the 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), 
RegulaƟon 2015, has designated the following email IDs 
namely nitesh@gallanƩ.com for the purpose of registering 
complaints if any by the investors and expediƟous 
redressal of their grievances.

15.23 NominaƟon

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly 
in physical form can nominate a person in whose name 
the shares shall be transferable in case of death of the 
registered shareholder(s). NominaƟon facility in respect 
of shares held in electronic form is also available with the 
Depository ParƟcipants as per the bye-laws and business 
rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. NominaƟon forms 
can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent.

15.24 Policy pertaining to determinaƟon and disclosure 
of the material events/informaƟon

The Board of Directors has approved the policy pertaining 
to determinaƟon and disclosure of the material events/
informaƟon. Accordingly any such material events/
informaƟon will be disclosed to the concerned either by 
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Company 
Secretary. The policy on determinaƟon and disclosure of 
material events/informaƟon is posted in the website of 
the company with the following link hƩps://www.gallanƩ.
com

15.25 ReconciliaƟon of share capital audit

A qualified pracƟcing Company Secretary carried out a 
share capital audit to reconcile the total admiƩed equity 
share capital with the NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository 
Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (“CDSL”) and the total issued and listed 
equity share capital.

The audit report confirms that the total issued / paid-up 
capital is in agreement with the total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

15.26 Code of Conduct

The members of the Board and senior management 
personnel have affirmed the compliance with Code of 
Conduct applicable to them during the year ended March 
31, 2020. The Annexure-A of the Corporate Governance 
Report contains a cerƟficate by the Managing Director in 
terms of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015 on the compliance 
declaraƟons received from Independent Directors, Non-
execuƟve Directors and Senior Management.

15.27 Trading window

Trading window closure for financial results is from the 
beginning of the quarter Ɵll 48 hours aŌer the Unpublished 
Price SensiƟve InformaƟon (UPSI) becomes generally 
available.
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15.28 Conflict of Interests

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis 
about the Board and the CommiƩee posiƟons he occupies 
in other companies including Chairmanships and noƟfies 
changes during the year. The Members of the Board while 
discharging their duƟes, avoid conflict of interest in the 
decision making process. The Members of Board restrict 
themselves from any discussions and voƟng in transacƟons 
in which they have concern or interest.

15.29 CEO/CFO CerƟficaƟon

The Chief ExecuƟve Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) of the Company have furnished to the Board, 
the requisite Compliance CerƟficate under RegulaƟon 
17(8) of SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015 for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020.

The CEO and CFO have also given quarterly cerƟficaƟon 
on financial results while placing the financial results 
before the Board in terms of RegulaƟon 33 of SEBI LODR 
RegulaƟons, 2015.

The annual cerƟficate given by the CEO and the CFO is 
published in this Report as Annexure-B of this Corporate 
Governance Report.

15.30 Uday Kotak CommiƩee RecommendaƟons

In June 2017, SEBI set up a commiƩee under the 
chairmanship of Shri Uday Kotak to advise on issues 
relaƟng to corporate governance in India. In October 
2017, the commiƩee submiƩed a report containing its 
recommendaƟons, which were considered by SEBI in 
its Board MeeƟng held in March 2018. On May 9, 2018, 
SEBI noƟfied SEBI LODR (Amendment) RegulaƟons, 
2018 implemenƟng majority of these recommendaƟons 
effecƟve from April 1, 2019 or such other date as specified 
therein.

The Company substanƟally complies with the amendments 
noƟfied and wherever there are new requirements, it will 
take necessary steps to ensure compliance by the effecƟve 
date.

Pursuant to RegulaƟon 33 (8) of SEBI LODR Amendment 
RegulaƟons 2018, the Statutory Auditor of the Company 
shall undertake a Limited Review of the audit of all 
the Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates whose 
accounts are to be consolidated with the Company as per 
AccounƟng Standard 21 with effect from April, 01, 2019 in 
accordance with guidelines issued by SEBI on this maƩer.

15.31 Policy for PreservaƟon of Documents

Pursuant to the requirements under RegulaƟon 9 of 
the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Board has formulated and 

approved a Document RetenƟon Policy prescribing the 
manner of retaining the Company’s documents and the 
Ɵme period up to certain documents are to be retained. 
The policy percolates to all levels of the organizaƟon who 
handle the prescribed categories of documents.

15.32 Policy for DeterminaƟon of LegiƟmate Purposes

The Company has formulated a comprehensive Policy 
for DeterminaƟon of LegiƟmate Purposes. This Policy 
is formulated pursuant to RegulaƟon 3 (2A) of SEBI 
(ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015 
as inserted by SEBI [ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) 
(Amendment)] RegulaƟons, 2018 for determinaƟon 
of legiƟmate purpose of for performance of duƟes or 
discharge of legal obligaƟons, which will be considered as 
excepƟon for the purpose of procuring Unpublished Price 
SensiƟve InformaƟon (UPSI) relaƟng to the Company or its 
listed securiƟes or proposed to be listed securiƟes, if any. 
The Policy is also hosted on the website of the Company at 
hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com

15.33 Policy on enquiry of leak of Unpublished Price 
SensiƟve InformaƟon

The Company has formulated a comprehensive Policy for 
enquiry of leak Unpublished Price SensiƟve InformaƟon. 
This Policy is formulated as per requirement of RegulaƟon 
9A(5) of SEBI (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 
2015 as inserted by SEBI (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) 
(Amendment) RegulaƟons, 2018 for enquiry procedure in 
case of leak of Unpublished Price SensiƟve InformaƟon or 
suspected leak of Unpublished Price SensiƟve InformaƟon. 
The Policy is also hosted on the website of the Company at 
hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com

15.34 Shareholder voƟng

Shareholders are requested to cast their votes on the 
ResoluƟons menƟoned in the NoƟce of the Sixteenth 
Annual General MeeƟng of the Company by using any one 
of the following opƟons:

1) Vote in advance of the Annual General MeeƟng 
through remote e-voƟng process.

2) Vote in person at the Annual General MeeƟng through 
electronic voƟng faciliƟes. 

15.35 Green IniƟaƟve in Corporate Governance

Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 permits 
circulaƟon of Annual Report through electronic means 
to such of the shareholders whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders who 
have registered their e-mail IDs with the Company to 
receive the documents in electronic form and physical 
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copies to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not 
been registered either with the company or with the 
depositories.

To support this green iniƟaƟve of the Government, 
shareholders are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses, with the DPs, in case shares are held in 
dematerialized form and with the R & T Agents, in case the 
share are held in physical form and also inƟmate changes, 
if any in their registered e-mail addresses to the company/ 
DPs, from Ɵme to Ɵme.

15.36 Compliance CerƟficate on Corporate Governance

CerƟficate received from M/s. MaroƟ & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company 
having their office at 1209, Ansal Tower, Nehru Place, New 
Delhi – 110019 confirming compliance with the condiƟons 
of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated under RegulaƟon 
34 (3) and RegulaƟon 53(f) read with Schedule V(E) of the 
SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015 is annexed to this Corporate 
Governance Report as Annexure-C.

15.37 Secretarial Audit

The Company’s Board of Directors appointed Mr. Anurag 
Fatehpuria (Membership No. 34471, CP No. 12855), 
PracƟcing Company Secretary to conduct the secretarial 
audit of its records and documents for the Financial Year 
2019-20. The secretarial audit report confirms that the 
Company has complied with all applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial Standards, 
Depositories Act 1996, SEBI LODR RegulaƟons, 2015, SEBI 
(ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015 and all 
other regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI as applicable to 
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of 
the Directors’ Report.

15.38 RemuneraƟon of Directors Criteria for making 
payments to Non-ExecuƟve Directors (including

Independent Directors)

The Non-ExecuƟve Directors (including Independent 
Directors) of the Company are paid remuneraƟon by 
way of siƫng fees for aƩending meeƟng of Board and 
CommiƩee thereof.

Details of payment of Siƫng Fee for the year 2019-20 are 
as follows:

Name of Director Siƫng Fees (Rs.)
Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey 12,000
Mr. Piyush Kankrania 10,000
Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay 24,000
Mrs. Smita Modi 18,000
Mr. Dindayal Jalan 2,000
Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava 12,000
Mr. Sanchit Dubey 10,000
TOTAL 88,000

15.39 Dividend History for the last 10 financial years

The Table below highlights the history of Dividend declared by the Company in the last 10 financial years:

Sr.
No

F.Y. of DeclaraƟon of 
Dividend

Date of DeclaraƟon of 
Dividend

Amount declared per share Dividend Amount

1 2018-19 28.11.2018 (Interim) ` 0.05/- (Five Paise  only) ` 1,46,33,252.50
2 2017-18 27.09.2018 `  0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,46,33,252.50
3 2016-17 26.09.2017 ` 0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,46,33,252.50
4 2015-16 17.03.2016 (Interim) ` 1/- (Rupee One only) ` 2,82,36,072.00
5 2014-15 28.09.2015 ` 1/- (Rupee One only) ` 2,82,36,072.00
6 2013-14 09.09.2014 ` 0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,46,33,252.50
7 2012-13 19.09.2013 ` 0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,46,33,252.50
8 2011-12 25.09.2012 ` 0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,33,83,252.50
9 2010-11 28.09.2011 ` 0.50/- (Paise FiŌy only) ` 1,33,83,252.50

10 2009-10 No Dividend Declared Nil Nil

15.40 Mandatory Transfer of Shares to Demat Account 
of Investors EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(IEPFA) in case of unpaid/unclaimed dividend on shares 
for a consecuƟve period of 7 (Seven) years

In terms of SecƟon 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 6 of the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 
Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 

2016, (as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme) shares on which 
dividend has not been paid or claimed by a Shareholder 
for a period of 7 (Seven) consecuƟve years or more shall 
be credited to the Demat Account of Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (IEPFA) within a period 
of 30 (Thirty) days of such shares becoming due to be 
so transferred. Upon transfer of such shares, all benefits 
(like bonus, etc.), if any, accruing on such shares shall also 
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be credited to such Demat Account and the voƟng rights 
on such shares shall remain frozen Ɵll the righƞul owner 
claims the shares.

In pursuance of the foregoing your Company has 970 
outstanding no. of equity shares on which dividend was 
unclaimed / unpaid for the consecuƟve 7 (Seven) years 
and liable to be transferred to IEPF Authority on or aŌer 
October 25, 2020. Details of such shares are available 

on website of Company under Investors SecƟon. Shares 
which will be transferred to the Demat Account of IEPFA 
can be claimed back by the Shareholder from IEPFA by 
following the procedure prescribed under the aforesaid 
rules. Therefore, it is in the interest of Shareholders to 
regularly claim the dividends declared by the Company.

15.41 None of the Non-ExecuƟve Directors hold any 
shares in the company

15.42 Codes and Policies
ParƟculars Website Details/Links:
Policy/Code Weblink
Dividend DistribuƟon Policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 

Limited/Policies and Codes
ComposiƟon and Profile of the Board of Directors hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 

Limited/Policies and Codes
Terms and condiƟons of appointment of Independent 
Directors

hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

FamiliarisaƟon Programme hours FY 2019-20 for 
Independent Directors

hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

RemuneraƟon Policy of Directors, KMPs & Other 
Employees

hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Code of Conduct hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Criteria of Making Payments to Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors

hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Policy on Related Party TransacƟons hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Policy on Determining Material Subsidiary hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Whistle Blower Policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Document RetenƟon and Archival Policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

PrevenƟon of Sexual Harassment (POSH) at Workplace hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Code of Conduct for PrevenƟon of Insider Trading hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

LegiƟmate Purpose policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Policy on enquiry of leak of Unpublished Price SensiƟve 
InformaƟon

hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

Risk Management Policy hƩps://www.gallanƩ.com/Investors Corner/ GallanƩ Ispat 
Limited/Policies and Codes

For and on Behalf of the Board

Place: Gorakhpur C. P. Agrawal
Date: June 29, 2020 Chairman
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Annexure – A
DECLARATION

In accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we 
hereby confirm that, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020.

Gorakhpur C. P. Agrawal Mayank Agrawal
June 29, 2020 Chairman and Managing Director Chief Executive Officer

Annexure – B
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Director
Gallantt Ispat Limited
“GALLANTT HOUSE”,
I-7, Jangpura Extension,
New Delhi – 110014

Re: Financial Statements for the Financial year 2019-20 – Certificate by CEO and CFO
a) We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on March 31, 

2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading;
 ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.
b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.
c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no:
 i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
 ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements; and
 iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein of the management 

or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

 For and on Behalf of the Board

Place: Gorakhpur Mayank Agrawal Amit Jalan
Date: June 29, 2020 Chief ExecuƟve Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure – C
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE TO THE MEMBERS OF GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

To the Members of
Gallantt Ispat Limited

1. We, Maroti & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Gallantt Ispat Limited (“the Company”), 
have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2020, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of 
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the Listing 
Regulations).

2. Managements’ Responsibility

 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance 
with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility

 Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for 
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the 
Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), 
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the 
purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the 
ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements.

7. Opinion

 Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us 
and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and 
D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2020. We state that in respect of investor 
grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2020, no investor grievance is pending against the Company, as 
per the records maintained by the Company and presented to the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Maroti & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 322770E
CA Komal Jain

Partner
Date : June 29, 2020 Membership No. 303583
Place: New Delhi  UDIN: 20303583AAAAAF9088
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Annexure – D
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Board of Directors,
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED
“GALLANTT HOUSE”,
I-7, Jangpura Extension,
New Delhi – 110014
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Gallantt 
Ispat Limited having CIN: L27109DL2005PLC350523 and having Registered Office at “GALLANTT HOUSE”, I-7, Jangpura 
Extension, New Delhi – 110014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications [including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in] as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority.

S.N. Name of the Directors DIN Date of Appointment in the Company
1 Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal 01814318 01.08.2006
2 Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal 01045228 10.07.2014
3 Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal 01397585 11.02.2005
4 Mr. NiƟn Mahavir Prasad Kandoi 01979952 15.09.2007
5 Mr. JyoƟrindra Nath Dey 00180925 10.10.2009

Resigned w.e.f. 23.06.2019
6 Mr. Piyush Kankrania 05241962 29.03.2012

Resigned w.e.f. 29.04.2019
7 Mr. Sanchit Dubey 08335705 21.01.2019

Resigned w.e.f. 29.04.2019
8 Mrs. Sangeeta Upadhyay 06920195 10.07.2014
9 Mr. Ashtbhuja Prasad Srivastava 08434115 29.04.2019

10 Mr. Dindayal Jalan 00006882 23.06.2019
10. Mrs. Smita Modi 01141396 23.06.2019

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

 
(Anurag Fatehpuria)

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No. 34471

Place: Kolkata CP No. 12855
Date: June 29, 2020 UDIN: A034471B000392191
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statement of GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED (‘The Company’) 
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement 
of changes in equity and Standalone Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory 
informaƟon (thereinaŌer referred to as “the standalone 
financial statements”), which we have signed under 
reference to this report.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the informaƟon 
required by the  Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounƟng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and  total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its  cash 
flows  for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 
statement in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng 
(SAs) specified under secƟon 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili es for 
the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements secƟon 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the InsƟtute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Emphasis of MaƩer
We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 51 to the statement 
which explains the uncertainƟes and the management’s 
assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdown and 

Independent Auditor’s Report
other restricƟons and condiƟons related to the COVID-19 
pandemic situaƟon, for which a definiƟve assessment 
of the impact is highly dependent upon circumstances/
developments as they evolve in subsequent periods. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maƩer.
Key Audit MaƩers
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020. These maƩers 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and informing 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these maƩers.
We have determined that there are no key audit maƩers 
to communicate in our report.
InformaƟon other than the Standalone Financial 
Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’ Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. The other 
informaƟon comprises the informaƟon include in 
the Management Discussions and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexure to Board’ Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
shareholder’s InformaƟon, but does not include the 
standalone financial statement and our auditor’s report 
thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statement does 
not cover the other informaƟon and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connecƟon with our audit of standalone financial 
statement, our responsibility is to read the other 
informaƟon and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statement or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material mis-statement of other informaƟon; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.
Responsibility of Management and those charged with 
governance for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparaƟon of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
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flows of the Company in accordance with accounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes the maintenance of the adequate accounƟng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act  
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; 
selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng 
policies; making judgments and esƟmates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the 
preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the standalone financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material mis-statement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounƟng unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operaƟons, or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporƟng process.
Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements
Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material mis-statement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material mis-statement when 
it exists. Mis-statements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepƟcism throughout the audit. We also:
• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material mis-statement 

of the  financial  statements, whether due  to  fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material mis-
statement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one 
resulƟng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intenƟonal omissions, mis-representaƟons, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of 
such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟons 
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Company’s to conƟnue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟons 
may cause the company to cease to conƟnue as a 
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transacƟons and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.

Materiality is the magnitude of mis-statements in the 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve materiality 
and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluaƟng the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any idenƟfied mis-statements 
in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and 
Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
idenƟfy during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with  relevant  
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relaƟonships and other 
maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other MaƩers
1. Due to COVID-19 pandemic and consequenƟal 

naƟonwide lockdown announced by the Central and 
various State Government including travel restricƟon, 
maintenance of social distancing, etc, the audit 
team has performed audit from Head Office, Branch 
Office and remote locaƟon on the basis of data, 
scanned copies, documents, management esƟmates, 
assumpƟons, cerƟficates and other informaƟon 
supplied electronically by the management on online 
plaƞorm. We have relied on Management’s assurances 
of the authenƟcity, completeness and accuracy of 
these records electronically submiƩed to us. Further, 
our aƩendance at the physical inventory verificaƟon 
done by the Management was impracƟcable under 
the current lockdown restricƟons imposed by the 
Government and we have therefore, relied on the 
related alternaƟve audit procedures to audit the 
existence of inventory as per the guidance provide 
in SA-501 “Audit Evidences- Specific ConsideraƟon 
for Selected Items” and have obtained sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to issue our unmodified 
opinion on this statement.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maƩer.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our 

audit we report that:
 a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon 

and explanaƟons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those 
books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
cash flows  are dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the specified under 
SecƟon 133 of the Act, read with companies 
(Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended.

 e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons 
received from the directors of the Company as 
on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal  
financial  controls  over  financial  reporƟng  of  
the Company  and the operaƟng effecƟveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in  “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng.

 g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included  
in  the Auditor’s  Report  in  accordance with  the 
requirements of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon 
and according to the explanaƟons given to us, 
the remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other maƩers to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014,  as amended in  our  opinion  and to the  
best of  our  informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon of 
the financial statements.

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required 
under the applicable law or accounƟng 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, 
if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivaƟve contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund.

2. The Companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2016 (“the 
order”) issued by the Central Government of India  in 
terms of subsecƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the Act, we 
give in the Annexure B, a statement on the maƩers 
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the 
extent applicable.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No. 322770E

Komal Jain
Partner

Place – New Delhi Membership No.:303583
Date- 29.06.2020 UDIN:20303583AAAAAC2150
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng of GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2020 in conjuncƟon with 
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established 
by the Company considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng issued 
by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (`ICAI’). 
These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and 
the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporƟng and their 
operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng 
effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor›s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained 
are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporƟng.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company›s internal financial control over financial 
reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng 
and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and 
procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the 
company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounƟng principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizaƟons of management and 
directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or 
Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or 
disposiƟon of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility 
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of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material mis-statements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporƟng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporƟng and such internal financial controls 

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as 
at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over 
financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No. 322770E

Komal Jain
Partner

Place – New Delhi Membership No.:303583
Date- 29.06.2020 UDIN:20303583AAAAAC2150
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s 
Report to the members of the Company on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 we report 
that:

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve 
details and situaƟon of its fixed assets. 

 b) The  Company has a regular programme for 
physical verificaƟon in phased periodic manner, 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regards to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. According to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noƟced on such physical verificaƟon.

          c) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon 
of the records of the Company, Ɵtle deeds of the 
immovable properƟes are held in the name of the 
Company.

1. The Management has conducted physical verificaƟon 
of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noƟced on such 
physical verificaƟon.

2. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon given 
to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan, 
with interest, to 1 (one) body corporate amounƟng 
to ` 5,00,00,000/-, who is covered in the register 
maintained under secƟon 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’).

 According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the 
records of the Company, the loan fund was refunded 
along with interest and there was no outstanding 
amount as on 31st March, 2020.

3. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon 
and explanaƟons provided to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of secƟon 185 and 186 

of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments 
guarantees and security. 

4. The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public during the year. Accordingly, the DirecƟves 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions 
of secƟons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 
thereunder are not applicable to the company for the 
year under audit.

5. As per informaƟon and explanaƟon given by the 
management, maintenance of cost records has been 
prescribed by the Central Government under sub- 
secƟon (1) of secƟon 148 of the Act and we are of the 
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made and maintained. We have 
not, however made a detailed examinaƟon of the 
records.

6. a) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of 
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ 
accrued in the books of accounts in respect of 
undisputed statutory including provident fund, 
employees state insurance, income tax, duty of 
customs, GST, cess and other material statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited during 
the year by the Company with the appropriate 
authoriƟes.

  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, employees state 
insurance, income tax, duty of customs, GST, cess 
and other material statutory dues were in arrears 
as at 31st March 2020, for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.  

        b) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us, the following dues of UP VAT as at 
31st March 2020, have not been deposited by the 
Company on account of disputes given below:

Statue Nature of 
dues 

Amount involved 
(` in lacs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is Pending

UP VAT ACT 2008 VAT 9,255.64 August 2011 to June 2017 Government of UƩar Pradesh
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7. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans or borrowing to a financial insƟtuƟon, bank 
or government or dues to debenture holders. There 
were no debenture holders at any Ɵme during the 
year.

8. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟon given to us, the Company has not raised 
moneys by way of IniƟal Public offer or further public 
offer or new terms loans during the year.

9. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according 
to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, no 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees during the year was noƟced 
or reported, nor we have been informed of such case 
by the management.

10. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
provided by the management, the managerial 
remuneraƟon has been paid/ provided in accordance 
with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of secƟon 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act. 

11. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to 
us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable and 
hence not commented upon.

12. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
provided by the Management, transacƟon with the 
related parƟes are in compliance with secƟon 177 
and 188 of the Act  where applicable and details of 

such transacƟons have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounƟng 
standards.

13. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
provided to us and on an overall examinaƟon of 
balance sheet, the Company has not made any 
preferenƟal allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly converƟble debentures during the 
year under review and hence reporƟng requirements 
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company and, not commented upon.

14. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
provided by the management, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transacƟons with directors or 
persons connected with him as referred to in SecƟon 
192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the 
Order is not applicable.

15. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon provided 
to us, the company is not required to be registered 
under secƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xvi) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No. 322770E

Komal Jain
Partner

Place – New Delhi Membership No.:303583
Date- 29.06.2020 UDIN:20303583AAAAAC2150

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
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Particulars Note 
No.

As At 
31.03.2020

As At 
31.03.2019

(I) ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3        42,102.18        44,243.66 
(b) Intangible assets 4                37.60                47.00 
(c) Capital work in progress        17,808.47          6,007.29 

       59,948.26        50,297.96 
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 
   (a) Investments in subsidiaries                       -                         -   
   (b) Investments in associates          4,267.98          4,267.98 
   (c) Other investments                       -                         -   
(ii) Other financial assets 6                  2.50                  0.68 

(e) Other non-current assets 7                62.31                63.94 
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 8          1,617.13          1,162.46 
(g) Advance Income tax assets (Net)              222.01 209.21

       66,120.19        56,002.23 
(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 9        12,737.16        13,109.12 
(b) Financial assets

(i)   Trade receivables 10          4,026.41          7,863.26 
(ii)  Cash and cash equivalent 11              135.72                88.28 
(iii) Other balances with Bank 11              593.63              246.61 
(iv) Other financial assets 12        24,363.58        24,518.02 

(c) Other current assets 13          3,783.08          2,931.33 
       45,639.59        48,756.62 

TOTAL ASSETS    1,11,759.78    1,04,758.85 
(II) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 14          2,823.61          2,823.61 
(b) Other equity 15        79,401.83        73,577.37 

       82,225.43        76,400.98 
(2) Non-current liabiliƟes
(a) Borrowings 16        11,258.59        11,584.66 
(b) Provisions 17              110.39                71.02 
(c) Other non-current liabiliƟes 18          1,139.86          1,241.96 

       12,508.84        12,897.64 
(3) Current liabiliƟes

(a) Financial liabiliƟes
(i)   Borrowings 19        12,408.22        12,565.58 
(ii)  Trade payables 20          2,435.90              600.84 
(iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 21                  1.23                  1.29 

(b) Other current liabiliƟes 22          2,180.15          2,292.52 
(c) Current Income tax liabiliƟes (net)                       -                         -   

       17,025.51        15,460.23 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   1,11,759.78   1,04,758.85 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52

(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
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(` in lacs)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

(1) Revenue from operaƟons 23 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06 
(2) Other income 24 3,609.14 204.50 
(3) Total Revenue (1) + (2) 1,05,619.29 1,23,131.56 
(4) EXPENSES
 Cost of Materials consumed 25 85,519.75 93,613.29 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 26        (1,175.78)              934.60 
 Employee Benefit Expenses 27 3,190.51 2,632.95 
 Financial Costs 28 1,166.17 967.94 
 DepreciaƟon Expenses 29 2,395.23 2,589.53 

Other Expenses 30 8,035.22 6,939.54 
 Total Expenses (4) 99,131.10 1,07,677.85 

(5) Profit before excepƟonal items (3) - (4) 6,488.19 15,453.71 
(6) ExcepƟonal items

ExcepƟonal Items 0.00 1,177.67 
(7) Profit before tax (5) - (6) 6,488.19 16,631.38
(8) Tax Expense 

- Current Tax 1,136.85 3,584.49 
- Deferred Tax (461.08)                24.85 
Total tax expense (8) 675.78 3,609.34 

(9) Profit for the period (7) - (8) 5,812.42 13,022.04 
(10) Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of 
profit and loss
(i)  Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit 
plans

18.51 2.67 

(ii) Income tax relaƟng to items that will not be 
reclassifed to profit and loss

               (6.47)                (0.93)

Total other comprehensive income (10) 12.05 1.73 
(11) Total comprehensive income for the period (9) + (10) 5,824.46 13,023.78 
(12) Earnings per equity share: (Face value of share of ` 1 

each) (Previously it was ` 10 Per Share )
Basic  & Diluted (`) 2.06 4.61 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
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A. Equity Share Capital

ParƟculars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2018       2,823.61 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2019                 -   
Balance as at 31 March 2019       2,823.61 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2020                 -   
Balance as at 31 March 2020       2,823.61 

B. Other Equity

Statement of changes in Equity Reserves and surplus Retained earnings Total Equity
Security 
Premium

AmalgamaƟon 
Reserve

Statutory 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at April 1,2018   17,732.19       412.19           0.46     4,998.82    18,629.58  41,773.24 
Profit  for the year              -                -                -                -      13,022.04     13,022.04 
Add: Reserves and surplus of 
amalgamated enƟty

  19,166.58        (47.50)              -                -              1.11 19,120.19 

Less: Dividend and tax thereon              -                -                -                -          (339.84)        (339.84)
Other Comprehensive Income              -                -                -                -              2.67              2.67 
Less: Tax on items taken to equity              -                -                -                -             (0.93)             (0.93)
Balance at March 31, 2019   36,898.77       364.69           0.46     4,998.82    31,314.63    73,577.37 
Profit  for the period              -                -                -                -        5,812.42       5,812.42 
Add: Reserves and surplus of 
amalgamated enƟty

             -                -                -                -                  -                   -   

Less: Dividend and tax thereon              -                -                -                -                  -                   -   
Other Comprehensive Income              -                -                -                -             18.51            18.51 
Less: Tax on items taken to equity              -                -                -                -             (6.47)             (6.47)
Balance at March 31, 2020   36,898.77       364.69           0.46     4,998.82    37,139.09     79,401.83 

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 



Annual Report 2019-20 | 115

Auditors’ Report Balance Sheet Profit & Loss Account Changes in Equity Cash Flow Statement Notes

(` in lacs)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

A. Cash Flow from OperaƟng acƟviƟes:
Profit for the period         5,812.42          13,022.04 
Adjustments for:

Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss

           675.78            3,609.34 

DepreciaƟon expense         2,395.23            2,589.53 
Interest income           (112.38)               (58.11)
Interest expenses         1,093.97              879.65 
Remeasurement Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit plan              12.05                  1.73 
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipments              16.42                  1.64 

OperaƟng profit before working capital changes         9,893.48          20,045.82 
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in opera ng assets

Inventories            371.96             (943.61)
Trade receivables         3,836.84           (3,107.33)
Non-current financial assets               (1.82)                  0.19 
Other non-current assets               (4.93)                54.07 
Current financial assets            154.44                  3.93 
Other current assets           (749.65)           (1,468.21)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in opera ng liabili es
Non-current liabiliƟes
Trade Payables         1,835.06           (5,524.10)
Current financial liabiliƟes               (0.06)                  0.77 
Other non-current liabiliƟes           (102.10)             (117.34)
Other current liabiliƟes           (112.37)         (19,532.74)
Provisions              39.37                53.44 
AmalgamaƟon Adjustments                   -            19,120.19 

Cash generated from operaƟons        15,160.22            8,585.07 
Direct taxes paid        (1,153.11)           (3,587.87)
Net cash generated from operaƟng acƟviƟes        14,007.11            4,997.20 

B. Cash Flow from InvesƟng acƟviƟes:
Purchase of property, plant & equipment       (12,217.03)           (5,028.25)
Sale of property, plant & equipment              69.40                  8.86 
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in subsidiary                   -                366.13 
Movement in fixed deposit held as margin           (347.08)              380.03 
Movement in bank balance on account of unpaid dividend                0.06                 (0.77)
Interest received            112.38                58.11 
Net cash from/ (used in) invesƟng acƟviƟes       (12,382.27)           (4,215.89)
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

C. Cash Flow from Financing acƟviƟes:
Proceeds from long-term loans           (326.07)             (364.73)
Proceeds from /(Repayment against) working capital borrowings (net)           (157.36)              770.67 
Dividend & DDT Paid                   -               (339.84)
Interest paid        (1,093.97)             (879.65)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing acƟviƟes        (1,577.40)             (813.55)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents              47.44               (32.24)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the Period              88.28              120.52 
Cash and cash equivalents as at end  beginning of the Period            135.72                88.28 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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(` in lacs)
Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note -01  Corporate information 

Gallantt Ispat Limited (‘the Company’ / ‘GIL’), incorporated 
in the year 2005, is engaged in the business of Iron & Steel, 
Agro, Power and Real Estate. The Company was promoted 
by M/s. Gallantt Metal Limited, Mr. Chandra Prakash 
Agrawal, Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Nitin M Kandoi 
and M/s. Chandra Prakash Agrawal & Sons (HUF). Company 
floated its capital base by coming out with Initial Public 
Offerings of Equity Shares in the year 2010. Company is 
listed on both the premier stock exchanges viz. Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited. The Company is engaged in manufacturing 
of Steel and Steel products and having its manufacturing 
unit at GIDA, Sahajanwa, District: Gorakhpur in the State 
of Uttar Pradesh.

Authorization of financial statements

The Standalone Financial Statements were authorized for 
issue in accordance with a resolution passed in Board of 
Directors meeting held on 29th June 2020.

Note -02  Significant Accounting Policies 

1 Basis of measurement

 The standalone financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant 
provisions of the Act (as amended from time to time).

 These financial statement have been prepared on 
accrual basis of accounting using historical cost 
convention except certain financial assets, financial 
liabilities and share based payment measured at fair 
value.

2 Functional and presentation currency

 The functional currency and presentation currency 
of the Company is Indian Rupee (“`”) which is the 
currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operate. All amounts have 
been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise 
indicated.

3 Key estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of separate financial statements is 
in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the 
Company to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the separate financial statements and the 

reported amounts of income and expense for the 
periods presented.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

 In particular, information about significant areas 
of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
financial statements are included in the notes.

4 Measurement of fair values

 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the measurement of fair values for financial 
instruments. 

 The Company has an established control framework 
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management regularly reviews significant 
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If 
third party information, such as broker quotes or 
pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then 
the management assesses the evidence obtained 
from the third parties to support the conclusion that 
such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which 
such valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset 
or a financial liability, the Company uses observable 
market data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorised into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows.

  - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

  - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices 
included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

  - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that 
are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs)

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.
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 The Company recognises transfers between levels of 
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.

5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, Furniture and 
Fixtures and Vehicles held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative 
purposes are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
Freehold land is not depreciated. Cost includes 
purchase cost of materials, including import duties 
and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable 
costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition 
of its intended use and borrowing costs capitalised in 
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

 Properties in the course of  construction for 
production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any 
recognsed impairment losses.

 Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost 
of assets (other than freehold land and properties 
under construction) less their residual values over 
the useful lives, using the straight-line method.  
Depreciation of assets commences when the assets 
are ready for their intended use.  The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes is accounted as change 
in estimate on a prospective basis.

 Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

 Buildings : : 15 to 60  years
 Plant and equipment : 10 to 40 years
 Furniture and Fixtures : 10 years
 Office Equipments : 5 years
 Electrical Installations : 10 Years
 Computers : 3 years
 Two Wheelers : 10 years

 Motor Vehicles &
 Commercial Vehicles : 8 years

 An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset.  Any gain or loss arising 
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised in profit and loss.

 The Company has elected to continue with the 

carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 measured 
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date. Further 
the company has regrouped the classifications of 
assets whereever required.

6 Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that 
are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment (if any) losses. Amortisation is recognised 
at straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
The  estimated useful life and amortisation method 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

 An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset.  Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
intangible assets is recognised in profit and loss.

 The Company has elected to continue with the 
carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised 
as of April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost 
as of the transition date.

7 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other 
than goodwill

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company 
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets (other than goodwill) to determined 
whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered any impairment loss.  If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there 
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)



Annual Report 2019-20 | 119

Auditors’ Report Balance Sheet Profit & Loss Account Changes in Equity Cash Flow Statement Notes

that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not be 
adjusted.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash 
generating unit is estimated to be less than the 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit and loss.

 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying value of the asset  or cash generating unit is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset or cash generating unit in 
prior years.  Any reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit and loss.

8 Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

 Investments in subsidiaries and associates are 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Cost includes the purchase price and other 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
investments. Where an indication of impairment 
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is 
assessed and written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, the difference between 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has 
elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries 
and associates at the Previous GAAP carrying amount 
as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS 
i.e., April 01, 2016.

9 Inventories

 Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished 
products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value after providing for obsolescence and other 
losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes 
purchase price, non refundable taxes and duties and 
other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing 
the goods to the point of sale. Work-in-progress and 
finished goods include appropriate proportion of 
overheads and, where applicable, excise duty.

 Stores and spares are valued at cost comprising of 
purchase price, non refundable taxes and duties and 

other directly attributable costs after providing for 
obsolescence and other losses, where considered 
necessary.

 Value of inventories are generally ascertained on the 
“FIFO (First in First out)” basis.

10 Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 
comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

 For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of 
the Company’s cash management.

11 Financial Assets

 i Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial assets are recognised when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

  On initial recognition, a financial asset is 
recognised at fair value, in case of Financial 
assets which are recognised at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In 
other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to 
the acquisition value of the financial asset.

 ii Subsequent Measurement

  Financial assets are subsequently / classified 
and measured at

  a- amortised cost

  b- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

  c- fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)

  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 
to their recognition, except if and in the period 
the Company changes its business model for 
managing financial assets.

 iii Trade Receivables and Loans

  Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair 
value. Subsequently, these assets are held at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. 
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated 
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future cash income through the expected life of 
financial instrument.

 iv Debt Instruments

  (a) Debt instruments are initially measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or 
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) 
till derecognition on the basis of (i) the 
Company’s business model for managing 
the financial assets and (ii) the contractual 
cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset.

  (b) Measured at amortised cost: Financial 
assets that are held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest, are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. 
The amortisation of EIR and loss arising 
from impairment, if any is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (c) Measured at fair value through profit or 
loss: A financial asset not classified as either 
amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, 
including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 v Equity Instruments

  All investments in equity instruments classified 
under financial assets are initially measured 
at fair value, the Company may, on initial 
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the 
same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

  The Company makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis.Fair value 
changes on an equity instrument is recognised 
as other income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss unless the Company has elected to measure 
such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes 
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument 
measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. 
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity 
instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 vi Derecognition

  The Company derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the 
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from 
the asset.

 vii Impairment of Financial asset

  Expected credit losses are recognized for all 
financial assets subsequent to initial recognition 
other than financials assets in FVTPL category.

  For financial assets other than trade receivables, 
as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 
month expected credit losses for all originated 
or acquired financial assets if at the reporting 
date the credit risk of the financial asset has 
not increased significantly since its initial 
recognition. The expected credit losses are 
measured as lifetime expected credit losses 
if the credit risk on financial asset increases 
significantly since its initial recognition. The 
Company’s trade receivables do not contain 
significant financing component and loss 
allowance on trade receivables is measured at 
an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. 
expected cash shortfall.

  The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

12 Financial Liabilities

 i Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial liabilities are recognised when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities 
are initially measured at the amortised cost 
unless at initial recognition, they are classified 
as fair value through profit and loss. In case of 
trade payables, they are initially recognised 
at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities 
are held at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method. 

 ii Subsequent Measurement

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are measured at fair value with all changes 
in fair value recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.
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 iii Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.

13 Offeseting of Financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

14 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments, 
such as forward currency contracts and interest rate 
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest 
rate risks respectively. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value 
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting 
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging 
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged 
and the type of hedge relationship designated.

 Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative.

15 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has 
a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. The expenses relating to a 
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss net of any reimbursement.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as 
finance cost.

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 
is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made.

 A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in 
the financial statements where an inflow of economic 
benefit is probable.

 Commitments includes the amount of purchase 
orders (net of advance) issued to parties for 
acquisition of assets.

 Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities 
and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date.

16 Revenue recognition

 i) Revenue from contracts with customer:

  Revenue from contracts with customers is 
recognised when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer. The 
Company assesses promises in the contract to 
identify separate performance obligations to 
which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

  Revenue is measured based on the amount of 
consideration to which the Company expects to 
be entitled in exchange of goods. The transaction 
price includes Excise Duty, however it excludes 
amount collected on behalf of third parties such 
as Goods and Service Tax (GST), Value Added Tax 
(VAT) etc. which the Company collects on behalf 
of the government.

  In determining the transaction price, the 
Company estimates the variable consideration 
to the extent that it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative 
revenue recognised will not occur when the 
uncertainty associated with the variable 
consideration is subsequently resolved.

  The Company recognises revenue from each 
distinct good or service over time if the customer 
simultaneously receives and consumes the 
benefits provided by the Company’s performance 
as it performs. Revenue from transmission of gas 
through pipeline is recognized over the period 
in which the related services are performed. 
Customers are billed on fortnightly basis.
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  Sale of goods

  Sales are recognised when goods are supplied 
and significant risks and rewards of ownership in 
the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the 
terms of contract and no significant uncertainty 
exists regarding the amount of the consideration 
that will be derived from the sale of the goods. 

 ii) Dividend and Interest income

  Dividend income is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
amount of income can be measured reliably.

  Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably.  
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount 
on initial recognition.

 iii) Insurance Claims

  Insurance claims are accounted for on 
acceptance and when there is a resonable 
certainty of receiving the same, on ground of 
prudence.

17 Foreign Currencies Transactions 

 The financial statements of the Company are 
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

 Transactions in currencies other than entity’s 
functional currency (foreign currency) are recorded 
at the  rates of exchange  prevailing on the date of 
the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies (other than 
derivative contracts) remaining unsettled at the 
end of the each reporting period are remeasured 
at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.  
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that at 
denominated in foreign currency are retranslated at 
the rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not retranslated. Exchange difference on monetary 
items are recognised in profit and loss in the period.

18 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the 
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds and is measured with reference to the effective 
interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till 
the date it is put to use. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they 
are incurred.

19 Employee Benefits

 i) Short-term benefits

  All employee benefits payable wholly within 
twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, performance 
incentives, etc., are recognized as an expense 
at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year in which the 
employee renders the related service.

 ii) Post Employment Benefit

  (a) Defined Contribution Plans

   Payments made to a defined contribution 
plan such as Provident Fund and Family 
Pension maintained with Regional 
Provident Fund Office are charged as an 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as they fall due.

  (b) Defined Benefit Plans

   The Company’s net obligation in respect 
of defined benefit plans is calculated 
separately for each plan by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned in the current and prior 
periods, after discounting the same. The 
calculation of defined benefit obligations is 
performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. Re-
measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized immediately in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest 
expense (income) on the net defined 
liability (assets) is computed by applying 
the discount rate, used to measure the 
net defined liability (asset). Net interest 
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expense and other expenses related to 
defined benefit plans are recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

20 Taxes on Income

 i) Current tax

  Current tax is payable based on taxable profit for 
the year.  Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before  
tax’ as reported in the Standalone statement 
of profit and loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible.  The current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 ii) Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or 
recoverable on temporary differences between 
the carrying value of assets and liabilities in 
the Standalone financial statements and the 
corresponding tax  bases used in the computation 
of taxable profits and is accounted for using the 
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets 
are only recognised on deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised.  

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to  be 
recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 

period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to 
the extent that they relate to taxes levied by 
the same tax authority and there are legally 
enforceable rights too set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

 iii) Minimum alternate tax

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 
with  the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to future 
income tax liability, is recognised as a deferred 
tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset 
can be measured reliably and it is probable that 
the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period and it is probable that 
future economic benefit associated with it will 
flow to the Company.

 iv) Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case, the current 
and deferred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively.

21 Earning Per Share

 Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to the 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. For 
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to 
the equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
03. Property, plant and equipment
Carrying amount of:

Land  2,372.04  2,073.28 
Buildings  5,946.94  6,170.83 
Plant and machinery  31,326.47  33,298.14 
Electrical installaƟon and Equipments  181.16  206.45 
Furniture and fixtures  3.02  5.32 
Office equipments  59.13  63.35 
Motor vehicles  279.24  302.47 
Computers  9.29  3.12 
Railway sidings  434.72  494.63 
Other Assets  1,490.16  1,626.06 
Total  42,102.18  44,243.66 

04. Intangible assets (Acquired)
Computer soŌware  37.60  47.00 

 37.60  47.00 

05. Non-current investments
Investments in subsidiaries (carried at cost)
Unquoted Investments 

 -    -   
Investments in associates (carried at cost)
Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments of
GallanƩ Metal Limited at face value of ` 10 each (39462895)  4,267.98  4,267.98 
Other Investments
Total Investments carrying value
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments  -   -
Total aggregate quoted investments  4,267.98  4,267.98 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments  4,267.98  4,267.98 
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  -    -   
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  7,734.73  19,317.09 

06. Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured Considered good)
Security deposits  2.50  0.68 

 2.50  0.68 

07. Other non-current assets
Advance with public bodies
Excise  13.74  13.11 
Sales tax/Value added tax  6.80  12.46 
ESIC  41.77  38.37 
Others / Capital Advance  -    -   

 62.31  63.94 

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
(` in lacs)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
08. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabiliƟes) presented 
in the balance sheet:
Deferred tax assets  5,460.51  4,999.37 
Deferred tax liabiliƟes  (3,843.38)  (3,836.91)

 1,617.13  1,162.46 

09. Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  6,750.75  8,668.95 
Finished products (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  2,674.14  1,498.36 
Stores and spare parts (At cost)  3,268.11  2,835.47 

 12,692.99  13,002.79 
Land at real estate business  44.17  106.34 
Total inventories  12,737.16  13,109.12 

10. Trade receivables 
Outstanding for a period of exceeding six months 
(from the date they were due for payment)
Considered good  228.30  337.48 
Considered doubƞul  -    -   
Less: Provision for doubƞul debts  -    -   

 228.30  337.48 
Others 
Considered good  3,798.11  7,525.77 
Considered doubƞul  -    -   
Less: Provision for doubƞul debts  -    -   

 3,798.11  7,525.77 
Total Trade Receivable  4,026.41  7,863.26 

11. Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash equivalents  134.14  82.94 
(i) Cash on hand
(ii) Balances with banks  1.59  5.34 
In current accounts  135.72  88.28 
Total cash and cash equivalents
(b) Other bank balances
In current accounts (held for unpaid dividend) 1.23 1.29
In deposit account (held as margin) 592.40 245.32
Total Other bank balances 593.63 246.61
Total cash and bank balances 729.35 334.89
Included above
(i) Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend 1.23 1.29
(ii) Earmarked balance for margin against leƩers of credit 558.78 245.32

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
(` in lacs)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
12. Other financial assets

IncenƟve receivable from government (PICUP)  24,352.58  24,347.39 
(Refer Note No.- 45 )
Loans & Advances  11.00  170.64 

 24,363.58  24,518.02 

13. Other current assets
Advance with public bodies  -    -   
Other loans and advances
Advance to suppliers  3,711.60  2,859.27 
Other advances and prepayments
Prepayments  43.89  29.33 
Others  27.60  42.73 

 71.48  72.05 
 3,783.08  2,931.33 

14. Share capital
Authorised: 
49,88,50,000 Equity Shares of ` 1 each
(Previous year 4,66,85,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)

 4,988.50  4,988.50 

 4,988.50  4,988.50 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
28,23,60,720 Equity Shares of ` 1 each  2,823.61  2,823.61 

 2,823.61  2,823.61 

ReconciliaƟ on of Number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporƟ ng period

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
No. of Shares Amount

` Lacs
No. of Shares Amount

` Lacs
Equity shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
At beginning & end of  the year  28,23,60,720 2,823.61  28,23,60,720 2,823.61 
Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
At end of the year  28,23,60,720 2,823.61  28,23,60,720 2,823.61 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
GallanƩ Metal Limited 7,25,19,920 25.68% 7,25,19,920 25.68%
Chandra Prakash Agrawal 5,23,40,040 18.54% 5,23,40,040 18.54%
AAR Commercial Co. Ltd. 4,97,48,760 17.62% 4,97,48,760 17.62%
Wallstreet Distributor Private Limited 1,92,58,290 6.82% 1,92,58,290 6.82%

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
15. Other Equity

SecuriƟes premium  36,898.77  36,898.77 
AmalgamaƟon reserve  364.69  364.69 
General reserve  4,998.82  4,998.82 
Statutory reserve  0.46  0.46 
Retained Earnings  37,139.09  31,314.63 

 79,401.83  73,577.37 
SecuriƟes premium
    Opening and closing balance  36,898.77  17,732.19 
    Add: Security Premium of merged enƟty  -    19,166.58 
    Closing balance  36,898.77  36,898.77 
AmalgamaƟon reserve
    Opening balance  364.69  412.19 
    Add: AmalgmaƟon reserve of merged enƟty  -    (47.50)
    Closing balance  364.69  364.69 
General reserve
    Opening and closing balance  4,998.82  4,998.82 
Statutory reserve
    Opening and closing balance  0.46  0.46 
Retained Earnings
    Opening balance  31,314.63  18,629.58 
    Profit  for the period  5,812.42  13,022.04 
    Add: Reserves and surplus of amalgamated enƟty  -    1.11 
    Less: Dividend and tax thereon  -    (339.84)
    Other Comprehensive Income  18.51  2.67 
    Tax impact on above  (6.47)  (0.93)
    Closing balance  37,139.09  31,314.63 

16. Long-term Borrowings
Deferred VAT/CST Payable (Interest free Loan)  9,718.00  9,568.80 
Term Loan  -    -   
From Banks (HDFC Bank Ltd)  2,028.56  2,464.42 
Less Current MaturiƟes of Term Loan  (487.97)  (448.56)

 1,540.59  2,015.85 
 11,258.59  11,584.66 

Company is availing  a term loan of ` 3,000.00 lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd for plant and machineries for expansion of its 
capacity at GIDA, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur.
Security:
* Primary Security: Term loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of plant & machineries 

and equipment acquired for expansion of project of the company.
* Collateral Security:  Term loan is further secured by way of first pari passu charge with consortium banking arrangement 

member bank (SBI) by way equitable mortgage of the company's immovable property viz; Factory land & Building at 
GIDA, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur.

* Loan is further secured by personal guarantee of Directors namely Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Santosh kumar 
Agrawal, Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal and Mr. Nitin Mahavir Prasad Kandoi.

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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Repayment:
Term loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly installment of ` 53.26 Lacs (including interest) and same started from 7th 
December 2017.

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
17. Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

ReƟrement gratuity  110.39  71.02 
 110.39  71.02 

18. Other Non-current LiabiliƟes
Deferred income (Capital subsidy)  1,139.86  1,241.96 

 1,139.86  1,241.96 

19. Current Borrowings
A. Secured - at amorƟsed cost

Repayable on demand
From banks
Cash credit  2,362.18  10,968.57 

Other loans - Current Maturity of Term Loan from HDFC
Current Maturity of Term Loan from HDFC  487.97  448.56 

Total secured borrowings  2,850.16  11,417.13 
B. Un Secured - at amorƟsed cost

Unsecured loans  9,558.07  1,148.45 
Total unsecured borrowings  9,558.07  1,148.45 
Total borrowings  12,408.22  12,565.58 

1. The above working capital loan from bank (SBI & HDFC) is secured by first pari Passu charge by hypothecation over all the 
current assets including stocks of raw materials, Stock in process, Finished Goods and book debts- present and future.
The loan is further secured by way of hypothecation of plant & machineries and equipment of the company alongwith 
consortium banking arrangement member bank (SBI).

2. The above working capital loan is further secured by the personal guarantee of Sri C. P. Agrawal, Sri P.P Agarwal, Shri 
S.K. Agarwal and Shri Nitin M. Kandoi.

3. The Company is enjoying Cash credit facilities(CC) from two Banks namely SBI & HDFC Bank Ltd. with sanction limit of 
` 3,000.00 lacs each. 

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
20. Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of creditors (Refer Note no 44)  2,435.90  600.30 
Creditors for accrued wages and salaries  -    0.54 
Total trade payables  2,435.90  600.84 

21. Other Current Financial LiabiliƟes
Unpaid dividends  1.23  1.29 
Total other current financial liabiliƟes  1.23  1.29 

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
22. Other Current LiabiliƟes

Advance received from customers  833.91  933.64 
Advance against property  98.00  15.00 
Employee recoveries and employer's contribuƟons  16.10  15.94 
Statutory dues  652.72  794.80 
Other credit balances  579.42  533.14 
Total other liabiliƟes  2,180.15  2,292.52 

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

23. Revenue from operaƟons
Sale of Products
Sale of finished goods 1,00,257.95 1,21,157.95
Sale of other products 1,028.79 991.08
Total Sale of Products 1,01,286.74 1,22,149.03
Income from Real Estate Division 723.41 778.04
Revenue from OperaƟons (Net) 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06

24. Other Income
Interest income 112.38 58.11
Gain on foreign currency transacƟons (net) 51.06 0.00
Miscellaneous income 41.04 42.66
Govt IncenƟves 3,306.00 0.00
Dividend Income 98.66 103.73
Total other income  3,609.14  204.50 

25. Cost of materials consumed
Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 8,668.95 8,003.56
Add: Purchases 83,539.37 94,160.76

92,208.33 1,02,164.32
Less: Closing stock 6,750.75 8,668.95

85,457.58 93,495.36
Cost of land sold 62.17 117.92
Total cost of materials consumed  85,519.75  93,613.29 

26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished Goods 1,498.36 2,432.96
Work-in-progress - -

1,498.36 2,432.96
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished Goods 2,674.14 1,498.36
Work-in-progress - -

2,674.14 1,498.36
Net (increase)/decrease  (1,175.78)  934.60 
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

27. Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and wages, including bonus 2,978.94 2,344.59
ContribuƟon to Provident and other Fund 177.44 231.02
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 34.13 57.34
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 3,190.51 2,632.95

28. Financial costs
Interest expense 1,093.97 879.65
Bank charges 72.20 88.29
Total financial costs 1,166.17 967.94

29. DepreciaƟon Expenses
DepreciaƟon on tangible assets 2,497.33 2,706.87
Less: Release from capital subsidy  (102.10)  (117.34)
Total 2,395.23 2,589.53

30. Excise duty
Excise duty on sale of finished products - -
Total Excise duty - -

31. Other expenses
Manufacturing Expenses:
ConsumpƟon of stores and spare parts 1,973.15 2,105.48
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 493.29 526.37
Repairs to others 132.81 195.15
Handling Expenses 1,162.81 1,110.73
Power & Fuel 1,513.22 793.41
Packing Material Consumed 216.18 276.55
Selling & AdministraƟon Expenses:
Rates, taxes and licenses 58.19 20.01
Electricity expenses 26.11 26.81
Insurance charges 72.14 44.78
Environment expenses 366.67 395.60
Selling and distribuƟon expenses 1,323.22 776.01
Legal and professioanl fee 66.36 115.83
Travelling and conveyance expenses 109.70 115.27
Telephone expenses 14.19 11.40
Directors' remunerƟon 144.00 96.00
Corporate social responsibility expenses 195.62 100.00
PrinƟng and staƟonery 8.42 11.72
Loss on sale of fixed assets  16.42 1.64
Audit Fees 5.00 3.55
Other general expenses 137.72 213.24
Total Other Expenses 8,035.22 6,939.54
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

32. Income tax recognised in profit and loss
Current tax
In respect of the current year  1,136.85 3,584.49
In respect of prior years  -   -

 1,136.85  3,584.49 
Deferred tax
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes pursuant to Ɵming difference in respect of the 
current year

 483.03  504.46 

Deferred Tax Assets pursuant to MAT Credit in respect of the current year  (944.10)  (479.61)
 (461.08)  24.85 

Total tax expense  (461.08)  24.85 

33. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculaƟon of basic earnings per share are as follows:
Profit for the year 5,812 13,022
Weighted average number of equity shres for the purpose of basic 
earnings per share

28,23,60,720 28,23,60,720

Basic & Diluted Earning per Share (`) 2.06 4.61
The Company is not having any potenƟal ordinary shares which are diluƟve in nature.  Hence diluted earnings per 
share is not calculated separately.

34 Segment informaƟ on

 34.01 Products and services from which reportable segment derives their revenues

  InformaƟ on reported to the Chief operaƟ ng decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocaƟ on 
and assessment of segment performance focuses based on products and services. Accordingly, directors of the 
Company have chosen to organise the segment based on its product and services as follows:

  • Steel

  • Power

  • Agro

  • Real Estate

  The Company’s chief operaƟ ng decision maker is the Chairman & Managing Director.

  Revenue and expenses directly aƩ ributable to segment are reported under each reportable segment. All other 
expenses which are not allocable to segments have been disclosed as Unallocable expenses.

  Assets and liabiliƟ es that are directly aƩ ributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable 
segment. All other assets and liabiliƟ es are disclosed as Unallocable.

  The company’s fi nancing and income taxes are managed on a company level and are not allocated to operaƟ ng 
segment.
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 34.02

Segment Revenue Segment Profit
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2019

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2019

Agro  9,933.13  11,549.06  542.79  1,229.08 
Steel  91,353.61  1,10,599.97  635.31  6,959.72 
Power  16,661.54  19,961.21  5,831.13  7,762.60 
Real Estate  723.41  778.04  661.25  660.11 
Un-allocated income  3,609.14  204.50  -    -   

 1,22,280.83  1,43,092.77  7,670.48  16,611.50 
Inter-segment revene  16,661.54  19,961.21  -    -   
Total Revenue  1,05,619.29  1,23,131.56  7,670.48  16,611.50 

For the year ended 
31.03.20120

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

Interest costs  1,166.17  967.94 
Unallocated expenses/(income)  16.12  189.86 
Profit before excepƟonal items and tax  6,488.19  15,453.71 
ExcepƟonal items  -    1,177.68 
Profit before tax  6,488.19  16,631.38 
Tax expenses  675.78  3,609.34 
Profit aŌer tax  5,812.42  13,022.04 

 34.03 Capital Employed

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Agro  1,901.47  2,869.19 
Steel  43,338.42  37,939.13 
Power  17,686.54  18,433.06 
Real Estate  939.34  2,695.01 
Un-allocated income  18,359.67  14,464.58 

 82,225.43  76,400.97 

35 Employee Benefi t Plans
 35.01 Defi ned ContribuƟ on Plans
  Employee benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defi ned contribuƟ on plan and the 

contribuƟ ons to Employees providend Fund organisaƟ on established under the Employee’s Provident fund and 
Misc. Provision Act 1952 charges to the statement of Profi t and Loss when the contribuƟ on to the respecƟ ve 
funds are due.

 35.02 Defi ned Benefi t Plans
  Gratuity
  The Company parƟ cipates in the Employees’ Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of SBI Life Insurance 

Co. Ltd., a funded defi ned benefi t plan for qualifying employees. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees 
on death or on separaƟ on / terminaƟ on in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as 
amended from Ɵ mt to Ɵ me), or as per the Company’s scheme whichever is more benefi cial to the employees.

  The liability for the Defi ned Benefi t Plan is provided on the basis of a valuaƟ on, using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. 

  Assumed discount rates are used in the measurement of the present value of the obligaƟ on.

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
(` in lacs)



Annual Report 2019-20 | 135

Auditors’ Report Balance Sheet Profit & Loss Account Changes in Equity Cash Flow Statement Notes

The amount recognised in the Company’s fi nancial statements as at the year end as under:

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets  178.97  135.38 
AcquisiƟon adjustment  58.86  (50.72)
Interest income on plan assets  18.38  9.76 
Employer's contribuƟon  4.84  85.77 
Return on plan assets greater / (lesser) than discount rate  (0.54)  (1.22)
Benefits paid  (0.05)  -   
Closing fair value of plan assets  260.45  178.97 

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon
Opening defined benefit obligaƟon  249.99  152.96 
Current service cost  120.83  89.14 
Interest cost  19.12  11.78 
Plan Amendments: Vested porƟon at end of period(Past Service)  -    -   
Remeasurement gain(loss)
Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumpƟons
Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from changes in financial assumpƟons  51.01  2.17 
Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from experience adjustments  (70.06)  (6.06)
Benefits paid  (0.05)  -   
Exchange difference on foreign plans  -    -   
Closing defined benefit obligaƟon  370.85  249.99 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised:
I. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss 

Service Costs:
- Current service cost  120.83  89.14 
- Past service cost and (gain)/loss from seƩlements  -    -   
Net interest expenses  0.75  2.02 
Subtotal  121.58  91.16 

II. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive 
income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
-Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
expense)

 0.54  1.22 

- Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumpƟons  -    -   
- Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from changes in financial assumpƟons  51.01  2.17 
- Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from experience adjustments  (70.06)  (6.06)
Adjustments for restricƟons on the defined benefit asset  -    -   
Subtotal  (18.51)  (2.67)

III. Total defined benefit cost recognised  103.07  88.49 
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from defined 
benefit plan obligaƟon
Present value of funded defined benefit obligaƟon  370.85  249.99 
Fair value of plan assets  (260.45)  (178.97)
Funded status  110.40  71.03 
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligaƟon  110.40  71.03 
Principal assumpƟon used for the purpose of the actuarial valuaƟon
Mortality Table IALM. (2014-14) 

UlƟmate
IALM. (2006-08) 

UlƟmate
Discount rate 6.81% 7.65%
Expected rate(s) of salary income 9.00% 9.00%

SensiƟ vity Ananlysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporƟ ng date to one of the relevant actuarial assumpƟ ons, holding other assumpƟ ons 
constant, would have aff ected the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on by the amounts shown below.

For the year ended 31.03.2020
(Increase) (Decrease)

Discount Rate (1% movement)  311.19  446.13 
Salary esclaƟon rate (1% movement)  442.06  312.20 
Withdrawal Rate (1% movement)  355.50  388.76 

36 Capital management

 The Company manages its capital to ensure that enƟ Ɵ es will be able to conƟ nue as going concerns while maximising 
the return to stakeholders through the opƟ misaƟ on of the debt and equity balance. The Capital structure of the 
Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes [16] and [19] off set by cash and bank balances) and 
the total equity of the Company.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condiƟ ons and 
the requirements of the fi nancial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital 
using a gearing raƟ o, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, 
long term-term borrowings, short-term borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

 Gearing RaƟ o

 The gearing raƟ o at end of the reporƟ ng period was as follows

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Debt
Current borrowings  12,408.22  12,565.58 
Cash and bank balances  135.72  88.28 
Net debt  12,272.50  12,477.30 
Total equity  2,823.61  2,823.61 

Equity ehare capital  79,401.83  73,577.37 
Other equity  82,225.43  76,400.97 

Net debt to equity raƟo  0.15  0.16 
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37 Financial risk management objecƟ ves and policies
 The Company’s principal fi nancial liabiliƟ es, other than derivaƟ ves, comprise loans and borrowings and trade and 

other payables. The Company’s principal fi nancial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
short-term deposits that derive directly from its operaƟ ons. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and enter 
into derivaƟ ve transacƟ ons. The Company is exposed to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and 
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.     

 The Company seeks to minimise the eff ects of these risks by using derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments to hedge risk 
exposures.  The use of fi nancial derivaƟ ves is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the board of directors, 
which provide wriƩ en principles on foreign exchange risks, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of fi nancial derivaƟ ves 
and non-derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments. The Company does not enter into or trade fi nancial instruments including 
derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments, for speculaƟ ve purposes.

 37.01 Market Risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of 
changes in market prices.  The Company’s acƟ viƟ es expose it primarily to the fi nancial risks of changes in foreign 
currency  exchange rates and interest rates.  The Company enters into derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments to manage its 
exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

 Foreign currency risk  management     

 The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings, Receivables for Exports and Payables for 
Imports in foreign currency. The funcƟ onal currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company manages currency 
exposures within prescribed limits, through use of forward exchange contracts. Foreign exchange transacƟ ons are 
covered with strict limits placed on the amount of uncovered exposure, if any, at any point in Ɵ me.

 Exposure to currency Risk     

 The currency profi le of fi nancial liabiliƟ es as at Balance Sheet dates are as below:

Currency As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Financial LiabiliƟes
Hedged
Trade Paybale USD  -    -   

INR  -    -   
Unhedged
Trade Paybale USD -  1.80 

INR -  125.66 

 Interest rate risk  management

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because 
of change in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the company’s  short-term debt obligaƟ ons with fl oaƟ ng interest rates.

 Interest rate sensiƟ vity analysis

 The Company does not account for any fi xed-rate fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabiliƟ es at fair value through profi t or 
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporƟ ng date would not aff ect profi t or loss.

 37.02 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligaƟ ons, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans and 
advances.

 The carrying amount of following fi nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:  
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 Trade receivables and loans and advances     

 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is infl uenced mainly by the individual characterisƟ cs of each customer and 
the geography in which it operates. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
conƟ nuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business.     

 The Company monitors each loans and advances given and makes any specifi c provision wherever required.

 Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, Management believes there is 
no credit risk provision required. Also Company does not have any signifi cant concentraƟ on of credit risk.

 The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows:

ParƟculars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
More than Six months  228.30  337.48 
Others  3,798.11  7,525.77 

 4,026.41  7,863.26 

 37.03 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter diffi  culty in meeƟ ng the obligaƟ ons associated with its 
fi nancial liabiliƟ es that are seƩ led by delivering cash or another fi nancial asset. The Company’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suffi  cient liquidity to meet its liabiliƟ es when they are due, 
under both normal and stressed condiƟ ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s 
reputaƟ on.

 Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity posiƟ on on the basis of expected cash fl ows. This 
monitoring includes fi nancial raƟ os and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

 The Company has access to funds from debt markets through loan from banks and other Debt instrument. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fi xed deposits.

38 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS PER AS- 18 (AS IDENTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT)

 Name of Related Party and DescripƟ on of RelaƟ onship:

I. Associate or Subsidiary Company / GallanƩ  Metal Ltd
EnƟ ty under common Control Chandra Prakash Agrawal & Sons (HUF)

Prem Prakash Agrawal HUF
Santosh Kumar Agrawal HUF
GallanƩ  FoundaƟ on

II. Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Whole Time Director
Mr. NiƟ n Mahavir Prasad Kandoi,Whole Time Director
Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal,Whole Time Director
Mr. Mayank Agrawal, Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer
Mr. Amit Jalan,  Chief Financial Offi  cer
Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary
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III. RelaƟ ves of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Madhu Agarwal (Wife of Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal)
Mr. Ashutosh Agrawal  (Son of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. SmriƟ  Agrawal (Daughter in Law of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. Shyama Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Prem Prakash )
Mrs. ShruƟ  Kandoi (Wife of Mr. NiƟ n Mahavir Prasad Kandoi)
Mrs. Pallavi Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Mayank Agrawal)
Mrs. Uma Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. Savita Kumari (Wife of Nitesh Kumar)

 Related Party TransacƟ on:

Nature of TransacƟon Associate or 
Subsidiary Co. 

& Firm

Key Managerial 
Personnel

RelaƟves of 
Key Managerial 

Personnel

Total

Salary/ RemuneraƟon  -    192.23 85.13 277.36
 (138.94)  (67.20)  (206.14)

Rent Paid  -    -   
 (0.12)  (0.12)

Purchase  51.33  -    -    51.33 
 (22.81)  (22.81)

Sale  278.68  -    -    278.68 
(84.89)  (84.89)

Loan Taken  1,500.00  1,500.00 
(600.00)  (600.00)

Loan Given  500.00  500.00 
(750.00)  (750.00)

Advance Received Against Land    -    -    -  -   
   -  -   

Interest Paid  0.25  0.25 
(0.01)  (0.01)

 The Amount Shown in Bracket ( ) Denotes Previous year fi gure
39 Fair value measurements
 The fair values of the fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es are included at the amount at which the instrument could be 

exchanged in a current transacƟ on between willing parƟ es, other than in a forced or liquidaƟ on sale.
 The following methods and assumpƟ ons were used to esƟ mare the fair values:
 Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current 

liabiliƟ es, working capital loan from banks approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturiƟ es 
of these instruments. 

 Financial instruments other than above are carried at amorƟ sed cost except certain assets which are carried at fair 
value. 

 The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fi nnacial instruments by 
valuaƟ on technique.

 Level -1 : Quoted prices in acƟ ve markets for idenƟ cal assets or liabiliƟ es
 Level -2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a signifi cants eff ects on the recorded fair value are 

observable 
 Level -3 : Techniques using inputs having signifi cant eff ect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 

market data.      
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Financial Assets:
Investment  - Non-current  4,267.98  4,267.98 
Security deposits - Non -current  2.50  0.68 
Trade receivables  4,026.41  7,863.26 
Cash and cash equivalents  135.72  88.28 
Other bank balances  593.63  246.61 
Loan - Current  11.00  170.64 
Other Financial assets - Current  24,352.58  24,347.39 
Total  33,389.83  36,984.84 
Financial LiabiliƟes
Borrowings - Current  12,408.22  12,565.58 
Trade payable  2,435.90  600.84 
DerivaƟve financial liabiliƟes  -    -   
Other financial liabiliƟes  1.23  1.29 
Total  14,845.35  13,167.72 

40 ConƟ ngent liabiliƟ es

As at 31.03.2020
(i) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran 

Nigam for Electricity connecƟon.
 210.00 

(ii) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran 
Nigam for Electricity connecƟon.

 105.00 

(iii) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to UƩar Pradesh PolluƟon 
Control Board for NOCs.

 2.00 

(iv) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to UƩar Pradesh State Bridge 
CorporaƟon Ltd against Security.

 6.00 

(v) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Northern Coal Fields Ltd  38.31 
(vi) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Northern Coal Fields Ltd  18.57 
(vii) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Eastern Coal Fields Ltd  131.00 
(viii) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Linde India Limited.  10.00 
(ix) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Director of Mines, Office of 

Directorate of Mines for security.
 640.82 

 Sub Notes:
 1 The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where 

provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The 
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial 
results.       

 2 It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above 
pending resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions 
pending with various forums/authorities.
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41 Corporate Social Responsibilty ContribuƟ on (CSR Expenses)

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  187.67  97.09 
b) Amount spent during the year on

(i) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company to Draupadi Devi 
Geeta Devi SaraswaƟ Vidya Mandir, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh 
paid for the development of School Building 

 10.00  -   

(ii) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company to Hanuman 
Prasad Poddar Smarak SamiƟ Cancer Hospital Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh for 
medical equipments.

 21.00  -   

(iii) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company DM 
Gorakhpur/Sachiv Jila Rifle Club Society Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh for
the distribuƟon of Mask and SaniƟser to prevent and protect from  Covid-19  
Virus.

 1.00  -   

(iv) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company for the Rural 
Development Programme is undertaken at Village -Basiya, Sahjanwa, 
Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh by way of making RCC Roads, drainage, 
community toilet block, RO water plant, renovaƟon and elevaƟon of Govt 
School Building etc. 

 163.62  -   

(v) ContribuƟon to a trust Gyan Ved FoundaƟon  -    100.00 
42 Subsequent Events

 There are no signifi cant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the fi nancial statements 
as on the balance sheet date.  

43 Balances under Trade receivables, Trade Payables, Loans and Advances payable or receivable are subject to 
confi rmaƟ on to be received from some of the parƟ es.  

44 Disclosure as per SecƟ on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 We have received few inƟ maƟ on from suppliers regarding the status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there are no outstanding dues to Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises. There is no interest due or outstanding on the same. During the year ended March 31, 2020 
amount due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises was paid within the appointed day as defi ned in the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

45 Company has established this unit under aƩ racƟ on of fi nancial incenƟ ves and other benefi ts of a scheme of State 
Government of UƩ ar Pradesh noƟ fi ed vide Government Order No. 1502/77-6-2006-10 tax/04 dated 1st June 2006 
and which have been elaborated in Government Order No. 2941/77-6-2006-10 tax/04 dated 30th November 2006 
and amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.  The said scheme provides following fi nancial incenƟ ves besides other benefi ts to 
the industries established in the State aŌ er 1st June, 2006.  Company has complied with all the formaliƟ es required in 
this regard and has been declared an eligible unit under the scheme; as such the company is enƟ tled to get following 
fi nancial incenƟ ves:

 a) Capital investment  subsidy, addiƟ onal capital investment subsidy and infrastructure subsidy @ 35%  on fi xed 
capital investment.

 b) Reimbursement of freight paid on raw materials subject to maximum of 65% of the fi xed capital investment. 

 c) Amount of payable Commercial Taxes to State Government (VAT at that Ɵ me presently SGST) to be converted 
into interest free loan, repayable aŌ er a period of 15 years.

 State Government aŌ er declaring the unit as eligible unit disbursed an amount of ` 24.28 crores as part payment of 
the subsidies in the year 2010, but thereaŌ er refused to pay the balance amount of fi nancial incenƟ ves.  Having no 
opƟ on, company moved to Hon’ble High Court of Allahabad Lucknow Bench in 2011 and got the stay on 08.09.2011 
from payment of Commercial Tax (that Ɵ me VAT).  AŌ er a long baƩ le in court, fi nally Hon’ble High Court vide its order 
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dated 22.03.2016 directed State Government to pay all the incenƟ ves within three months Ɵ me.  State Government 
instead complying with the order moved an special leave peƟ Ɵ on No.19796 before the Hon’ble Supreme Court.  
Hon’ble Supreme Court while admiƫ  ng the SLP passed an order dated 21.08.2018 staying the operaƟ on of the order 
with regard to the facility of interest free loan only, meaning thereby confi rmed the order related to payment of 
subsidies.   State Government has sƟ ll not paid the subsidies and case is pending for fi nal disposal before the Hon’ble 
Supreme Court.

 Financial Benefi ts to be received Under the Scheme are as under:

 a) Capital investment subsidy, addiƟ onal capital investment subsidy and infrastructure subsidy @ 35%  on fi xed 
capital investment.

  Company is eligible for incenƟ ves i.e. Capital investment subsidy @ 20% of fi xed capital investment, infrastructure 
subsidy @ 10% of total fi xed capital investment and 5% addiƟ onal capital subsidy being the fi rst unit in Purvanchal 
region. Company has claimed for ` 12,262.00 lacs against the capital investment made upto 31st May 2012. The 
incenƟ ve received of ` 2,428.00 Lacs has been credited in fi xed assets in the raƟ o of capital investment made. 
No provision has been made for the unrealized claim of ` 9,834.00 lacs in the books.

 b) Reimbursement of freight paid on raw materials subject to maximum of 65% of the fi xed capital investment. 

  Company is eligible for reimbursement of freight paid on transportaƟ on of raw material as freight subsidy on Iron 
Ore equivalent to the Railway freight.  The total amount of freight subsidy is restricted to 65% of the total capital 
investment under the scheme that comes ` 22,775.00 Lacs. Since company has already claimed ` 22,775.00 lacs 
Ɵ ll March 2018 as such no amount is available to be claimed as freight subsidy during the year and onward.

 c) Amount of payable Commercial Taxes to State Government (VAT at that Ɵ me presently SGST) to be converted 
into interest free loan, repayable aŌ er a period of 15 years.

  Company is eligible for Interest free loan equivalent to the amount of VAT, CST & SGST liability for 15 years and 
which shall be re-payable aŌ er 15 years. The company has claimed as interest free loan amounƟ ng to ̀  10,828.03 
lacs up to 30th June 2017 on account of VAT upto 30th June, 2017. Out of total claim of ` 10,828.03 lacs, 
` 9,255.64 lacs has not been deposited to Commercial Tax department in accordance with order of Hon’ble High 
Court of Allahabad in writ peƟ Ɵ on no. 8886/2011, however, ` 1,572.39 Lacs have already been deposited before 
the said stay order.    

  Further as the GST act has replaced the VAT and CST w.e.f. 01.07.2017, Company has paid total amount of 
` 16,988.84 Lacs as SGST to the State Government from 01.07.2017 to 31.03.2020.  Out of this, deposited amount 
of ` 6,491.01 Lacs relates to old unit covered under this scheme which is eligible to be converted as interest free 
loan.  Thus an amount of ` 6,491.01 is refundable as interest free loan.  

46.  Company has expanded capaciƟ es of its units under aƩ racƟ on of fi nancial incenƟ ves and other benefi ts of an scheme 
of State Government of UƩ ar Pradesh noƟ fi ed vide Government Order No. 1457/77-6-12-08-(M)/12 T.C.VII dated 
23.01.2013 as amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.  The said scheme provides refund of 80% of the amount cash paid as SGST, 
as well as interest subsidy equivalent @ 5% per annum paid on term loan.  This expansion has been declared eligible 
under this scheme, hence eligible for refund of 80% of the amount cash paid as SGST. Company started commercial 
producƟ on of its expanded capaciƟ es from 1st December, 2017.  Company has paid an amount of ` 10,497.83 Lacs 
in cash as SGST for the period from 1st December, 2017 to 31st March, 2020 on account of sales from expanded 
capaciƟ es.  Company is fi ling its claim for release of subsidy from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, but disbursement and payment by 
State Government is subject to seƩ lement and verifi caƟ on of claim as per their calculaƟ on, as such fi nal eff ect of same 
is being given in accounts as and when they are seƩ led. The Company has fi led claim against SGST subsidy and others 
for the period from 1st December 2017 to 31st march, 2020, however company has been sancƟ oned an amount of 
` 3,157.25 Lacs as SGST refund and ` 182.14 Lacs as interest subsidy, and aŌ er deducƟ on of administraƟ ve charges 
of Government Agency of ` 33.39 lacs, a net amount of ` 3,306.00 lacs which has been received on March 31, 2020.  

47 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ` 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟ tled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. During the year, no 
devidend is proposed. In the event of liquidaƟ on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟ tled to 
receive remaining assets of the Company, aŌ er distribuƟ on of all preferenƟ al amounts. This distribuƟ on will be in 
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proporƟ on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The Company has not reserved any shares for 
issue under opƟ ons and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.   

48 The Company for the period of fi ve years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet has:
 i. on June 26, 2015, AlloƩ ed 92,15,159 equity shares as fully paid and cancelled 1,02,45,592  equity shares pursuant 

to Scheme of AmalgamaƟ on without payment being received in cash.
 ii. Not alloƩ ed fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares
 iii. Not bought back any class of shares.

49 There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the 
Audit CommiƩ ee and / or Board under SecƟ on 143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder. During the year 
under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the public within the meaning of 
SecƟ on 73 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  

50 AmalgamaƟ on of Companies   

 At their meeƟ ng held on January 18, 2020, Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Scheme of 
AmalgamaƟ on and Slump Sale providing for the AmalgamaƟ on of GallanƩ  Ispat Limited (Transferor Company No. 1 
or GIL), AAR Commercial Company Limited (Transferor Company No. 2 or AAR), Hipoline Commerce Private Limited 
(Transferor Company No. 3 or HIPOLINE), Lexi Exports Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 4 or LEXI) and Richie 
Credit and Finance Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 5 or RICHIE)(together referred to as the “Transferor 
Companies”) with GallanƩ  Metal Limited (“Transferee Company” or “GML”) and for the Slump Sale of 18 MW Power 
Plant Undertakings of GallanƩ  Ispat Limited to the Transferee Company and their respecƟ ve shareholders and 
Creditors (‘’Scheme”) under SecƟ on 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 In accordance with the RegulaƟ on 37 of the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 (hereinaŌ er referred to as the “LODR”) Company has fi led the draŌ  Scheme of 
AmalgamaƟ on and Slump Sale with the BSE Limited (formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) and the NaƟ onal Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (hereinaŌ er together referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) for obtaining an ‘observaƟ on 
leƩ er’ or a ‘no-objecƟ on leƩ er’, before fi ling such scheme. Further, Transferor Company No. 2 and the Transferee 
Company have also fi led this applicaƟ on with the Stock Exchanges under RegulaƟ on 37 of LODR.

 Brief details of the Scheme are as under:    

 1. GIL, AAR, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE all are TRANSFEROR COMPANIES and GML is TRANSFEREE COMPANY.

 2. The Transferee Company is a listed Company. GIL and AAR are also Listed Companies.

 3. Upon the Scheme becoming eff ecƟ ve in lieu of the amalgamaƟ on no consideraƟ on will be due to the Transferor 
Companies and in consideraƟ on of the amalgamaƟ on of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee 
Company pursuant to the Scheme including the consequenƟ al exƟ nguishment of the shareholding in Transferor 
Companies, the Transferee Company shall without further applicaƟ on, issue and allot as given below equity 
shares in the Transferee Company to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Companies whose names appear 
in the Register of Members of the Transferor Companies on the Record Date:

  13 (Thirteen) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 14 
(Fourteen) equity shares of ` 1/- each fully paid up held by such member in GIL.

  5 (Five) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 1 (One) 
equity share of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in AAR.

  9 (Nine) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 2 (Two) 
equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in HIPOLINE.  

     84 (Eighty-Four) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 1 
(One) equity share of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in LEXI.  

     101 (One Hundred One) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for 
every 2 (Two) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in RICHIE.  

Notes to the Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)



144 | Annual Report 2019-20

GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED Financial Statements

 4. Transferor Companies GIL and AAR and Transferee Company GML are under the JurisdicƟ on of the Registrar of 
Companies, Delhi and Haryana and Transferor Companies, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE are under the jurisdicƟ on 
of the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal.   

 5. Pursuant to the Scheme 18 MW Power Plant Undertakings of GIL will be sold and transferred to the Transferee 
Company through Slump Sale at a consideraƟ on of ` 35 Crores payable in cash.   

 6. “Appointed Date of Slump Sale” means the open of business hours on 1st April 2019  

 7. “Appointed Date” means the open of business hours on 1st April 2019 aŌ er the compleƟ on of the slump sale.

  Company has appointed BSE Limited as designated Stock Exchange for co-ordinaƟ ng with the SEBI in respect of 
the said Scheme and maƩ ers connected therewith.  

51 Due to pandemic COVID 19, the enƟ re operaƟ ons of your company as per the Government’s direcƟ ve were suspended 
w.e.f. 23rd March, 2020.  

 Due to naƟ onwide lockdown declared by the Government of India, manufacturing and sales operaƟ ons were shut 
down in late March, 2020 and parƟ ally resumed in the month of April and became fully operaƟ onal from start of June, 
2020 which has impacted Company’s operaƟ ons during the months of March, April and May, 2020. The Company’s 
Agro Businesses, being in the ‘essenƟ al’ category, remained operaƟ onal. The overall demands of the steel products 
have been impacted but due to easing out of restricƟ on in lockdown demand for the products are improving.

 In adherence to the safety norms prescribed by Government of India and State Government, the operaƟ ons were 
parƟ ally resumed in the month of April as per Government guidelines in all its manufacturing locaƟ ons, warehouses 
and offi  ces.  However, now it is fully funcƟ onal.

 Prior to resumpƟ on of operaƟ ons, the Company laid down a detailed Standard OperaƟ ng Procedure regarding Work 
from Home facility for its employees in order to ensure smooth funcƟ oning of operaƟ ons. ThereaŌ er, the Company 
has taken utmost care of its staff s and work force by taking measures like thermal screening and sanitaƟ on process of 
employees, saniƟ zaƟ on of premises, recommending use of Arogya Setu App, maintain social distancing etc. 

 The Company’s capital and fi nancial resources remain intact as the Company is having adequate capital to meet 
business requirements. 

 The Company is in a comfortable liquidity posiƟ on due to adequate banking limits being in place. The Company has 
also embarked upon a Company-wide iniƟ aƟ ve to bring down costs and conserve cash. This programme is well under 
way and the Company is expected to get benefi ts as a consequence of these iniƟ aƟ ves in future.

 The Company is capable to service all debts as and when due. The Company is paying its lenders as per due date and 
has not availed any moratorium and COVID fi nancing.

 The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a conƟ nuing process, given the uncertainƟ es associated with its nature 
and duraƟ on. The Company will conƟ nue to monitor any material changes to future economic condiƟ ons and the 
consequent impact on its business, if any.  

52 Figures for the previous years have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s 
presentaƟ on.

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED

Report on the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statement of GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED (‘The 
Company’) and its associates (together referred to as 
“the group”) which comprises the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Statement of changes in equity, 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, 
and summary of significant accounƟng policies and other 
explanatory informaƟon (thereinaŌer referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”),which we have signed 
under reference to this report.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the informaƟon 
required by the  Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounƟng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated 
profit, consolidated total comprehensive income 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash 
flows  for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statement in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng 
(SAs) specified under secƟon 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements secƟon of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
Emphasis of MaƩer

We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 51 to the statement 
which explains the uncertainƟes and the management’s 
assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdown and 
other restricƟons and condiƟons related to the COVID-19 
pandemic situaƟon, for which a definiƟve assessment 
of the impact is highly dependent upon circumstances/
developments as they evolve in subsequent periods. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maƩer. 

Key Audit MaƩers

Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2020. These maƩers were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and informing our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these maƩers.

We have determined that there are no key audit maƩers 
to communicate in our report.

InformaƟon other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’ Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. The other 
informaƟon comprises the informaƟon include in 
the Management Discussions and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexure to Board’ Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
shareholder’s InformaƟon, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statement and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement does 
not cover the other informaƟon and we do express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connecƟon with our audit of consolidated financial 
statement, our responsibility is to read the other 
informaƟon and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statement or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
mis-stated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material mis-statement of other informaƟon; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and those charged with 
governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparaƟon of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial posiƟon, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive 
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated 
cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India including  theInd AS 
the specified under secƟon 133 of the Act. The respecƟve 
Board of Directors of the Companies included in the 
Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate 
accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act  for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other 
irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate 
accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant 
to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the consolidated 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respecƟve Board of Directors of the Companies included in 
the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 
to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
maƩers related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounƟng unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operaƟons, or 
has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.

The respecƟve Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporƟng process of the Group.

Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material mis-statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material mis-
statement when it exists. Mis-statements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepƟcism throughout the audit. We also:

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material mis-statement 
of the  financial  statements, whether due  to  fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material mis-
statement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one 
resulƟng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intenƟonal omissions, mis-representaƟons, 
or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of 
such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group to conƟnue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟons 
may cause the Group to cease to conƟnue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentaƟon.
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Materiality is the magnitude of mis-statements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve 
materiality and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope 
of our audit work and in evaluaƟng the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any idenƟfied mis-
statements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and 
Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
idenƟfy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant  
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relaƟonships and other 
maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other MaƩers

1. Due to COVID-19 pandemic and consequenƟal 
naƟonwide lockdown announced by the Central and 
various State Government including travel restricƟon, 

maintenance of social distancing, etc, the audit 
team has performed audit from Head Office, Branch 
Office and remote locaƟon on the basis of data, 
scanned copies, documents, management esƟmates, 
assumpƟons, cerƟficates and other informaƟon 
supplied electronically by the management on online 
plaƞorm. We have relied on Management’s assurances 
of the authenƟcity, completeness and accuracy of 
these records electronically submiƩed to us. Further, 
our aƩendance at the physical inventory verificaƟon 
done by the Management was impracƟcable under 
the current lockdown restricƟons imposed by the 
Government and we have therefore, relied on the 
related alternaƟve audit procedures to audit the 
existence of inventory as per the guidance provide 
in SA-501 “Audit Evidences- Specific ConsideraƟon 
for Selected Items” and have obtained sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to issue our unmodified 
opinion on this statement.

 Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maƩer.

2. We did not audit the financial results/ statement and 
other financial informaƟon of one associate company 
included in the consolidated annual financial results 
whose financial statements reflect for the year ended 
31st March, 2020:

Name of Company Total Assets Total 
Revenue 

Net Cash inflow/
(ouƞlow)

Group Share in 
Net profit / loss 

Group Share in other 
comprehensive income

Associate Company
GallanƩ Metal Limited 66,324.76 86,618.87 (26.65) 244.15 (0.50)

These annual financial statements and other financial 
informaƟon have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on 
the annual consolidated financial statement, to the 
extent they have been derived from such annual financial 
statements of associates is based solely on the report of 
such other auditors. Our opinion is not modified in respect 
of these maƩers. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon 
and explanaƟons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 

required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those 
books.

 c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
consolidated cash flows  are dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account maintained for the purpose of 
preparaƟon of consolidated financial statements.

 d) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  consolidated 
financial  statements  comply with  the  Ind AS 
specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended .

 e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons 
received from the directors of the Company as 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng of GALLANTT ISPAT LIMITED (“the 
Company”) and its associate companies which are 
companies incorporated in India as of that date, for the 
year ended 31st March 2020 in conjuncƟon with our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The RespecƟve Board of Directors of the Company and its 
associate companies, which are companies incorporated 
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporƟng criteria established by the 

Company considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng issued 
by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (`ICAI’). 
These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and 
the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 

on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries 
incorporated in India and the reports of the 
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of 
the Group companies in India is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal  
financial  controls  over  financial  reporƟng  of  
the Company  and the operaƟng effecƟveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in  
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s 
reports of the company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
of those companies, for reasons stated therein.  

 g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included  
in  the Auditor’s  Report  in  accordance with  the 
requirements of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon 
and according to the explanaƟons given to us, 
the remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other maƩers to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014,  as amended in  our  opinion  and to the  
best of  our  informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons given to us:

  i. The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending liƟgaƟons 
on the consolidated financial posiƟon of the 
Group in its financial statements.

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required 
under the applicable law or accounƟng 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, 
if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivaƟve contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by 
the Company and its associate incorporated 
in India.

2. The Companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2016 (“the 
order”) issued by the Central Government of India  
in terms of subsecƟon (11) of secƟon 143of the 
Act, is not applicable to the auditor’s report on the 
Consolidated Financial Statement.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No. 322770E

Komal Jain
Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.:303583
Date: 29.06.2020 UDIN:20303583AAAAAD8676

Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)



Annual Report 2019-20 | 149

Auditors’ Report Balance Sheet Profit & Loss Account Changes in Equity Cash Flow Statement Notes

reporƟng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporƟng and their 
operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng 
effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained 
are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporƟng.
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng 
and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and 
procedures that:
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the 
company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of 

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounƟng principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizaƟons of management and 
directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or 
Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or 
disposiƟon of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material mis-statements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporƟng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.
OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporƟng and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as 
at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over 
financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.
Other maƩers
Our aforesaid reports under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act on 
the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng in so far as it 
relates to one associate which are companies incorporated 
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the 
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For MAROTI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No. 322770E
Komal Jain

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.:303583
Date: 29.06.2020 UDIN:20303583AAAAAD8676
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Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2019

(I) ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3  42,102.18  44,243.66 
(b) Intangible assets 4  37.60  47.00 
(c) Capital work in progress  17,808.47  6,007.29 

 59,948.26  50,297.96 
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 
   (a) Investments in subsidiaries  -    -   
   (b) Investments in associates  23,607.94  23,364.29 
   (c) Other investments  -    -   
(ii) Other financial assets 6  2.50  0.68 

(e) Other non-current assets 7  62.31  63.94 
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 8  1,617.13  1,162.46 
(g) Advance Income tax assets (Net)  222.01  209.20 

 85,460.14  75,098.53 
(2) Current Assets

Inventories 9  12,737.16  13,109.12 
(b) Financial assets

(i)   Trade receivables 10  4,026.41  7,863.26 
(ii)  Cash and cash equivalent 11  135.72  88.28 
(iii) Other balances with Bank 11  593.63  246.61 
(iv) Other financial assets 12  24,363.58  24,518.02 

(c) Other current assets 13  3,783.08  2,931.33 
 45,639.59  48,756.62 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,31,099.73  1,23,855.16 
(II) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 14  2,823.61  2,823.61 
(b) Other equity 15  98,741.78  92,673.67 

 1,01,565.39  95,497.28 
(2) Non-current liabiliƟes
(a) Borrowings 16  11,258.59  11,584.66 
(b) Provisions 17  110.39  71.02 
(c) Other non-current liabiliƟes 18  1,139.86  1,241.96 

 12,508.84  12,897.64 
(3) Current liabiliƟes

(a) Financial liabiliƟes
(i)   Borrowings 19  12,408.22  12,565.58 
(ii)  Trade payables 20  2,435.90  600.84 
(iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 21  1.23  1.29 

(b) Other current liabiliƟes 22  2,180.15  2,292.52 
(c) Current Income tax liabiliƟes (net)  -    -   

 17,025.51  15,460.24 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,31,099.73  1,23,855.16 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52

(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
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(` in lacs)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

(1) Revenue from operaƟons 23 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06 
(2) Other income 24 3,609.14 204.50 
(3) Total Revenue (1) + (2) 1,05,619.29 1,23,131.56 
(4) EXPENSES
 Cost of Materials consumed 25 85,519.75 93,613.29 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 26  (1,175.78)  934.60 
 Employee Benefit Expenses 27 3,190.51 2,632.95 
 Financial Costs 28 1,166.17 967.94 
 DepreciaƟon Expenses 29 2,395.23 2,589.53 

Other Expenses 30 8,035.22 6,939.54 
 Total Expenses (4) 99,131.10 1,07,677.85 

(5) Profit before excepƟonal items (3) - (4) 6,488.19 15,453.71 
(6) ExcepƟonal items

ExcepƟonal Items 0.00 1,177.68 
(7) Profit before tax (5) - (6) 6,488.19 16,631.38
(8) Tax Expense 

- Current Tax 1,136.85 3,584.49 
- Deferred Tax (461.08)  24.85 
Total tax expense (8) 675.78 3,609.34 

(9) Profit for the period (7) - (8) 5,812.42 13,022.04 
Share of Profit from Associates 244.15 3,356.85 
Profit for the period 6,056.57 16,378.89 

(10) Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of 
profit and loss
Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit 
plans

18.51 2.67 

Income tax relaƟng to items that will not be reclassifed 
to profit and loss

 (6.47)  (0.93)

Share of OCI from Associates  (0.50)  2.74 
Total other comprehensive income (10) 11.55 4.47 

(11) Total comprehensive income for the period (9) + (10) 6,068.11 16,383.37 
(12) Earnings per equity share: (Face value of share of ` 1 

each) (Previously it was ` 10 Per Share )
Basic  & Diluted (`) 2.14 5.80 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements   1-52

Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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A. Equity Share Capital

ParƟculars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2018  2,823.61 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2019  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2019  2,823.61 
Changes in equity share capital during the year ended March 31, 2020  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2020  2,823.61 

B. Other Equity

Statement of changes in Equity Reserves and surplus Retained earnings Total Equity
Security 
Premium

AmalgamaƟon 
reserve

Statutory 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at April 1,2018  17,732.19  412.19  0.46  27,599.59  4,998.82  22,336.15  73,079.40 
Profit  for the year  -    -    -    -    16,378.89  16,378.89 
Add: Reserves and surplus of 
amalgamated enƟty

 19,166.58  (47.50)  -    (15,569.37)  -    1.11  3,550.82 

Less: Dividend and tax thereon  -    -    -    -    -    (339.84)  (339.84)
Ind As Adjustment  -    -    -    -    (0.07)  (0.07)
Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -    -    5.41  5.41 
Less: Tax on items taken to equity  -    -    -    -    -    (0.93)  (0.93)
Balance at March 31, 2019  36,898.77  364.69  0.46  12,030.22  4,998.82  38,380.72  92,673.67 
Profit  for the period  -    -    -    -    6,056.57  6,056.57 
Add: Reserves and surplus of 
amalgamated enƟty

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Less: Dividend and tax thereon  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Ind As Adjustment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -    -    18.01  18.01 
Less: Tax on items taken to equity  -    -    -    -    -    (6.47)  (6.47)
Balance at March 31, 2020  36,898.77  364.69  0.46  12,030.22  4,998.82  44,448.83  98,741.78 

Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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(` in lacs)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

A. Cash Flow from OperaƟng acƟviƟes:
Profit for the period  5,812.42  13,022.04 
Adjustments for:

Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss

 675.78  3,609.34 

DepreciaƟon expense  2,395.23  2,589.53 
Interest income  (112.38)  (58.11)
Interest expenses  1,093.97  879.65 
Remeasurement Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit plan  12.05  4.47 
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipments  16.42  1.64 

OperaƟng profit before working capital changes  9,893.48  20,048.56 
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in opera ng assets

Inventories  371.96  (943.61)
Trade receivables  3,836.84  (2,674.86)
Non-current financial assets  (1.82)  0.19 
Other non-current assets  (4.93)  54.07 
Current financial assets  154.44  4.93 
Other current assets  (749.65)  (1,468.21)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in opera ng liabili es
Non-current liabiliƟes
Trade Payables  1,835.06  (5,524.10)
Current financial liabiliƟes  (0.06)  0.77 
Other non-current liabiliƟes  (102.10)  (117.34)
Other current liabiliƟes  (112.37)  (495.89)
Provisions  39.37  53.44 
AmalgamaƟon Adjustments  -    (2.72)

Cash generated from operaƟons  15,160.22  8,935.23 
Direct taxes paid  (1,153.11)  (3,587.87)
Net cash generated from operaƟng acƟviƟes  14,007.11  5,347.35 

B. Cash Flow from InvesƟng acƟviƟes:
Purchase of property, plant & equipment  (12,217.03)  (5,028.25)
Sale of property, plant & equipment  69.40  8.86 
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in subsidiary  -    -   
Movement in fixed deposit held as margin  (347.08)  380.03 
Movement in bank balance on account of unpaid dividend  0.06  (0.77)
Interest received  112.38  58.11 
Net cash from/ (used in) invesƟng acƟviƟes  (12,382.27)  (4,582.02)
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

C. Cash Flow from Financing acƟviƟes:
Proceeds from long-term loans  (326.07)  (364.73)
Proceeds from /(Repayment against) working capital borrowings (net)  (157.36)  770.67 
Dividend & DDT Paid  -    (339.84)
Interest paid  (1,093.97)  (879.65)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing acƟviƟes  (1,577.40)  (813.55)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  47.44  (48.21)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the Period  88.28  136.49 
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the Period  135.72  88.28 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(` in lacs)

As per our  report of even date
For Maroti & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 322770E

(CA Komal Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 303583
Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th June, 2020

(C.P. Agrawal) (S.K. Agrawal) 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole time Director 

(Amit Jalan) (Nitesh Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
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(` in lacs)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)

Note -01  Corporate information 

Gallantt Ispat Limited (‘the Company’ / ‘GIL’), incorporated 
in the year 2005, is engaged in the business of Iron & 
Steel, Agro, Power and Real Estate. The Company was 
promoted by M/s. Gallantt Metal Limited, Mr. Chandra 
Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Nitin M 
Kandoi and M/s. Chandra Prakash Agrawal & Sons (HUF). 
Company floated its capital base by coming out with 
Initial Public Offerings of Equity Shares in the year 2010. 
Company is listed on both the premier stock exchanges 
viz. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited. The Company is engaged in 
manufacturing of Steel and Steel products and having its 
manufacturing unit at GIDA, Sahajanwa, Dist Gorakhpur in 
the State of Uttar Pradesh.

Authorization of financial statements

The Standalone Financial Statements were authorized for 
issue in accordance with a resolution passed in Board of 
Directors meeting held on 29th June 2020.

Note -02  Significant Accounting Policies 

1 Basis of measurement

 The standalone financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant 
provisions of the Act (as amended from time to time).

 These financial statement have been prepared on 
accrual basis of accounting using historical cost 
convention except certain financial assets, financial 
liabilities and share based payment measured at fair 
value.

2 Functional and presentation currency

 The functional currency and presentation currency 
of the Company is Indian Rupee (“`”) which is the 
currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operate. All amounts have 
been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise 
indicated.

3 Key estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of separate financial statements in 
conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the 
Company to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the separate financial statements and the 

reported amounts of income and expense for the 
periods presented.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

 In particular, information about significant areas 
of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
financial statements are included in the notes.

4 Measurement of fair values

 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the measurement of fair values for financial 
instruments. 

 The Company has an established control framework 
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management regularly reviews significant 
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If 
third party information, such as broker quotes or 
pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then 
the management assesses the evidence obtained 
from the third parties to support the conclusion that 
such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which 
such valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset 
or a financial liability, the Company uses observable 
market data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorised into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows.

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices 
included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that 
are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs)

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an 
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement.
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 The Company recognises transfers between levels of 
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.

5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, Furniture and 
Fixtures and Vehicles held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative 
purposes are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
Freehold land is not depreciated. Cost includes 
purchase cost of materials, including import duties 
and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable 
costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition 
of its intended use and borrowing costs capitalised in 
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

 Properties in the course of  construction for 
production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any 
recognsed impairment losses

 Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost 
of assets (other than freehold land and properties 
under construction) less their residual values over 
the useful lives, using the straight-line method.  
Depreciation of assets commences when the assets 
are ready for their intended use.  The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes is accounted as change 
in estimate on a prospective basis.

 Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
 Buildings  : 15 to 60  years
 Plant and equipment : 10 to 40 years
 Furniture and Fixtures : 10 years
 Office Equipments : 5 years
 Electrical Installations : 10 Years
 Computers : 3 years
 Two Wheelers : 10 years
 Motor Vehicles &
 Commercial Vehicles : 8 years

 An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset.  Any gain or loss arising 
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised in profit and loss.

 The Company has elected to continue with the 
carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 measured 

as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date. Further 
the company has regrouped the classifications of 
assets whereever required.

6 Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets with finite useful lives that 

are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment (if any) losses. Amortisation is recognised 
at straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
The  estimated useful life and amortisation method 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

 An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset.  Any 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
intangible assets is recognised in profit and loss.

 The Company has elected to continue with the 
carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised 
as of April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost 
as of the transition date.

7 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other 
than goodwill

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company 
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets (Other than goodwill) to determined 
whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered any impairment loss.  If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there 
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not be 
adjusted.
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 If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash 
generating unit is estimated to be less than the 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit and loss.

 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying value of the asset  or cash generating unit is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset or cash generating unit in 
prior years.  Any reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit and loss.

8 Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

 Investments in subsidiaries and associates are 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Cost includes the purchase price and other 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
investments. Where an indication of impairment 
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is 
assessed and written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, the difference between 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has 
elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries 
and associates at the Previous GAAP carrying amount 
as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS 
i.e., April 01, 2016.

9 Inventories

 Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished 
products are valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value after providing for obsolescence and other 
losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes 
purchase price, non refundable taxes and duties and 
other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing 
the goods to the point of sale. Work-in-progress and 
finished goods include appropriate proportion of 
overheads and, where applicable, excise duty.

 Stores and spares are valued at cost comprising of 
purchase price, non refundable taxes and duties and 
other directly attributable costs after providing for 
obsolescence and other losses, where considered 
necessary.

 Value of inventories are generally ascertained on the 
“FIFO (First in First out)” basis.

10 Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 
comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

 For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of 
the Company’s cash management.

11 Financial Assets

 i Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial assets are recognised when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

  On initial recognition, a financial asset is 
recognised at fair value, in case of Financial 
assets which are recognised at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In 
other cases, the transaction cost is attributed to 
the acquisition value of the financial asset.

 ii Subsequent Measurement

  Financial assets are subsequently / classified 
and measured at

  a- amortised cost

  b- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

  c- fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI)

  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 
to their recognition, except if and in the period 
the Company changes its business model for 
managing financial assets.

 iii Trade Receivables and Loans

  Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair 
value. Subsequently, these assets are held at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. 
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated 
future cash income through the expected life of 
financial instrument.

 iv Debt Instruments

  (a) Debt instruments are initially measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through 
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other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or 
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) 
till derecognition on the basis of (i) the 
Company’s business model for managing 
the financial assets and (ii) the contractual 
cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset.

  (b) Measured at amortised cost: Financial 
assets that are held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest, are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. 
The amortisation of EIR and loss arising 
from impairment, if any is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (c) Measured at fair value through profit or 
loss: A financial asset not classified as either 
amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value, 
including interest income and dividend 
income if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 v Equity Instruments

  All investments in equity instruments classified 
under financial assets are initially measured 
at fair value, the Company may, on initial 
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the 
same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

  The Company makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value 
changes on an equity instrument is recognised 
as other income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss unless the Company has elected to measure 
such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes 
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument 
measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. 
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity 
instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 vi Derecognition

  The Company derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the 

contractual rights to receive the cash flows from 
the asset.

 vii Impairment of Financial asset

  Expected credit losses are recognized for all 
financial assets subsequent to initial recognition 
other than financials assets in FVTPL category.

  For financial assets other than trade receivables, 
as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 
month expected credit losses for all originated 
or acquired financial assets if at the reporting 
date the credit risk of the financial asset has 
not increased significantly since its initial 
recognition. The expected credit losses are 
measured as lifetime expected credit losses 
if the credit risk on financial asset increases 
significantly since its initial recognition. The 
Company’s trade receivables do not contain 
significant financing component and loss 
allowance on trade receivables is measured at 
an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. 
expected cash shortfall.

  The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

12 Financial Liabilities

 i Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial liabilities are recognised when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities 
are initially measured at the amortised cost 
unless at initial recognition, they are classified 
as fair value through profit and loss. In case of 
trade payables, they are initially recognised 
at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities 
are held at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method. 

 ii Subsequent Measurement

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are measured at fair value with all changes 
in fair value recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

 iii Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.
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13 Off-setting of Financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

14 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments, 
such as forward currency contracts and interest rate 
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest 
rate risks respectively. Such derivative financial 
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value 
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting 
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging 
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged 
and the type of hedge relationship designated.

 Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative.

15 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has 
a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are 
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the 
Balance Sheet date. The expenses relating to a 
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss net of any reimbursement.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as 
finance cost.

 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 
is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made.

 A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in 
the financial statements where an inflow of economic 
benefit is probable.

 Commitments includes the amount of purchase 
orders (net of advance) issued to parties for 
acquisition of assets.

 Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities 
and commitments are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date.

16 Revenue recognition

 i) Revenue from contracts with customer:

  Revenue from contracts with customers is 
recognised when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer. The 
Company assesses promises in the contract to 
identify separate performance obligations to 
which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

  Revenue is measured based on the amount of 
consideration to which the Company expects to 
be entitled in exchange of goods. The transaction 
price includes Excise Duty, however it excludes 
amount collected on behalf of third parties such 
as Goods and Service Tax (GST), Value Added Tax 
(VAT) etc. which the Company collects on behalf 
of the government.

  In determining the transaction price, the 
Company estimates the variable consideration 
to the extent that it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative 
revenue recognised will not occur when the 
uncertainty associated with the variable 
consideration is subsequently resolved.

  The Company recognises revenue from each 
distinct good or service over time if the customer 
simultaneously receives and consumes the 
benefits provided by the Company’s performance 
as it performs. Revenue from transmission of gas 
through pipeline is recognized over the period 
in which the related services are performed. 
Customers are billed on fortnightly basis.

  Sale of goods

  Sales are recognised when goods are supplied 
and significant risks and rewards of ownership in 
the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the 
terms of contract and no significant uncertainty 
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exists regarding the amount of the consideration 
that will be derived from the sale of the goods. 

 ii) Dividend and Interest income

  Dividend income is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
amount of income can be measured reliably.

  Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably.  
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount 
on initial recognition.

 iii) Insurance Claims

  Insurance claims are accounted for on 
acceptance and when there is a resonable 
certainty of receiving the same, on ground of 
prudence.

17 Foreign Currencies Transactions 

 The financial statements of the Company are 
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

 Transactions in currencies other than entity’s 
functional currency (foreign currency) are recorded 
at the  rates of exchange  prevailing on the date of 
the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies (other than 
derivative contracts) remaining unsettled at the 
end of the each reporting period are remeasured 
at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.  
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that at 
denominated in foreign currency are retranslated at 
the rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not retranslated. Exchange difference on monetary 
items are recognised in profit and loss in the period.

18 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the 
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds and is measured with reference to the effective 

interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till 
the date it is put to use. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they 
are incurred.

19 Employee Benefits

 i) Short-term benefits

  All employee benefits payable wholly within 
twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, performance 
incentives, etc., are recognized as an expense 
at the undiscounted amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss of the year in which the 
employee renders the related service.

 ii) Post Employment Benefit

  (a) Defined Contribution Plans

  Payments made to a defined contribution plan 
such as Provident Fund and Family Pension 
maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office 
are charged as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as they fall due.

  (b) Defined Benefit Plans

  The Company’s net obligation in respect of 
defined benefit plans is calculated separately 
for each plan by estimating the amount of 
future benefit that employees have earned in 
the current and prior periods, after discounting 
the same. The calculation of defined benefit 
obligations is performed annually by a qualified 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized immediately in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest 
expense (income) on the net defined liability 
(assets) is computed by applying the discount 
rate, used to measure the net defined liability 
(asset). Net interest expense and other expenses 
related to defined benefit plans are recognized 
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

20 Taxes on Income

 i) Current tax

  Current tax is payable based on taxable profit for 
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the year.  Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before  
tax’ as reported in the Standalone statement 
of profit and loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible.  The current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 ii) Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or 
recoverable on temporary differences between 
the carrying value of assets and liabilities in 
the Standalone financial statements and the 
corresponding tax  bases used in the computation 
of taxable profits and is accounted for using the 
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets 
are only recognised on deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised.  

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to  be 
recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to 
the extent that they relate to taxes levied by 
the same tax authority and there are legally 
enforceable rights too set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

 iii) Minimum alternate tax

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 
with  the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to future 
income tax liability, is recognised as a deferred 
tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset 
can be measured reliably and it is probable that 
the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period and it is probable that 
future economic benefit associated with it will 
flow to the Company.

 iv) Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit 
and loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case, the current 
and deferred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively.

21 Earning Per Share

 Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to the 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. For 
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to 
the equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
03. Property, plant and equipment
Carrying amount of:

Land  2,372.04  2,073.28 
Buildings  5,946.94  6,170.83 
Plant and machinery  31,326.47  33,298.14 
Electrical installaƟon and Equipments  181.16  206.45 
Furniture and fixtures  3.02  5.32 
Office equipments  59.13  63.35 
Motor vehicles  279.24  302.47 
Computers  9.29  3.12 
Railway sidings  434.72  494.63 
Other Assets  1,490.16  1,626.06 
Total  42,102.18  44,243.66 

04. Intangible assets (Acquired)
Computer soŌware  37.60  47.00 

 37.60  47.00 

05. Non-current investments
Investments in subsidiaries (carried at cost)
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid) - -

 -    -   
Investments in associates (carried at cost)
Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments of
GallanƩ Metal Limited at face value of ` 10 each. (39462895)  23,607.94  23,364.29 
Other Investments
Total Investments carrying value
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments  -   -
Total aggregate quoted investments  23,607.94  23,364.29 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments  23,607.94  23,364.29 
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  -    -   
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  7,734.73  19,317.09 

06. Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured Considered good)
Security deposits  2.50  0.68 

 2.50  0.68 

07. Other non-current assets
Advance with public bodies
Excise  13.74  13.11 
Sales tax/Value added tax  6.80  12.46 
ESIC  41.77  38.37 
Others / Capital Advance  -    -   

 62.31  63.94 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
08. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabiliƟes) presented 
in the balance sheet:
Deferred tax assets  5,460.51  4,999.37 
Deferred tax liabiliƟes  (3,843.38)  (3,836.91)

 1,617.13  1,162.46 

09. Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  6,750.75  8,668.95 
Finished products (At lower of cost and net realisable value)  2,674.14  1,498.36 
Stores and spare parts (At cost)  3,268.11  2,835.47 

 12,692.99  13,002.79 
Land at real estate business  44.17  106.34 
Total inventories  12,737.16  13,109.12 

10. Trade receivables 
Outstanding for a period of exceeding six months
(from the date they were due for payment)
Considered good  228.30  337.48 
Considered doubƞul  -    -   
Less: Provision for doubƞul debts  -    -   

 228.30  337.48 
Others 
Considered good  3,798.11  7,525.77 
Considered doubƞul  -    -   
Less: Provision for doubƞul debts  -    -   

 3,798.11  7,525.77 
Total Trade Receivable  4,026.41  7,863.26 

11. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Cash on hand  134.14  82.94 
(ii) Balances with banks
In current accounts  1.59  5.34 
Total cash and cash equivalents  135.72  88.28 
Other bank balances
In current accounts (held for unpaid dividend)  1.23  1.29 
In deposit account (held as margin)  592.40  245.32 
Total Other bank balances  593.63  246.61 
Total cash and bank balances  729.35  334.89 
Included above
(i) Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend  1.23  1.29 
(ii) Earmarked balance for margin against leƩers of credit  558.78  245.32 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
12. Other financial assets

IncenƟve receivable from government (PICUP)  24,352.58  24,347.39 
(Refer Note No.- 45 )
Loans & Advances  11.00  170.64 

 24,363.58  24,518.02 

13. Other current assets
Advance with public bodies  -    -   
Other loans and advances
Advance to suppliers  3,711.60  2,859.27 
Other advances and prepayments
Prepayments  43.89  29.33 
Others  27.60  42.73 

 71.48  72.05 
 3,783.08  2,931.33 

14. Share capital
Authorised: 
49,88,50,000 Equity Shares of ` 1 each
(Previous year 4,66,85,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)

 4,988.50  4,988.50 

 4,988.50  4,988.50 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
28,23,60,720 Equity Shares of ` 1 each  2,823.61  2,823.61 

 2,823.61  2,823.61 

ReconciliaƟ on of Number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporƟ ng period

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
No. of Shares Amount

` Lacs
No. of Shares Amount

` Lacs
Equity shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
At beginning & end of  the year  28,23,60,720 2,823.61  28,23,60,720 2,823.61 
Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
At end of the year  28,23,60,720 2,823.61  28,23,60,720 2,823.61 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
GallanƩ Metal Limited 7,25,19,920 25.68% 7,25,19,920 25.68%
Chandra Prakash Agrawal 5,23,40,040 18.54% 5,23,40,040 18.54%
AAR Commercial Co. Ltd. 4,97,48,760 17.62% 4,97,48,760 17.62%
Wallstreet Distributor Private Limited 1,92,58,290 6.82% 1,92,58,290 6.82%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
15. Other Equity

SecuriƟes premium  36,898.77  36,898.77 
AmalgamaƟon reserve  364.69  364.69 
General reserve  4,998.82  4,998.82 
Statutory reserve  0.46  0.46 
Capital Reserve  12,030.22  12,030.22 
Retained Earnings  44,448.83  38,380.72 

 98,741.78  92,673.67 
SecuriƟes premium
    Opening and closing balance  36,898.77  17,732.19 
    Add: Security Premium of merged enƟty  -    19,166.58 
    Closing balance  36,898.77  36,898.77 
AmalgamaƟon reserve
    Opening balance  364.69  412.19 
    Add: AmalgmaƟon reserve of merged enƟty  -    (47.50)
    Closing balance  364.69  364.69 
General reserve
    Opening and closing balance  4,998.82  4,998.82 
Statutory reserve
    Opening and closing balance  0.46  0.46 
Capital reserve
    Opening balance  12,030.22  27,599.59 
    Add: Capital reserve on consolidaƟon of Associate/
    Subsidiaries

 -    3,550.58 

    Add/(Less): Adjustment Due to ConsolidaƟon  -    (19,119.95)
    Closing balance  12,030.22  12,030.22 
Retained Earnings
    Opening balance  38,380.72  22,336.15 
    Profit  for the period  6,056.57  16,378.89 
    Add: Reserves and surplus of amalgamated enƟty  -    1.11 
    Less: Dividend and tax thereon  -    (339.84)
    Less : Adjustment Due to ConsolidaƟon  -    (0.07)
    Other Comprehensive Income  18.01  5.41 
    Tax impact on above  (6.47)  (0.93)
    Closing balance  44,448.83  38,380.72 

16. Long-term Borrowings
Deferred VAT/CST Payable (Interest free Loan)  9,718.00  9,568.80 
Term Loan  -    -   
From Banks (HDFC Bank Ltd)  2,028.56  2,464.42 
Less Current MaturiƟes of Term Loan  (487.97)  (448.56)

 1,540.59  2,015.85 
 11,258.59  11,584.66 

Company is availing  a term loan of ` 3,000.00 lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd for plant and machineries for expansion of its 
capacity at GIDA, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements at at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)
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Security:
* Primary Security:  Term loan is securd by way of first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of Plant & machineries 

and equipment acquired for expansion of project of the company.
* Collateral Security: Term loan is further secured by way of first pari passu charge with consortium banking arrangement 

member ban (SBI) by way equitable mortgage of the company's immovable property viz; Factory Land & Building at 
GIDA, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur

* Loan is further secured by personal guarantee of Directors namely Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Mr. Santosh Kumar 
Agrawal, Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal and Mr. Nitin Mahavir Kandoi.

Repayment:
Term loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly installments of ` 53.26 lakh (including interest) and same started from 7th 
December 2017.

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
17. Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

ReƟrement gratuity  110.39  71.02 
 110.39  71.02 

18. Other Non-current LiabiliƟes
Deferred income (Capital subsidy)  1,139.86  1,241.96 

 1,139.86  1,241.96 

19. Current Borrowings
A. Secured - at amorƟsed cost

Repayable on demand
From banks
Cash credit  2,362.18  10,968.57 

Other loans - Current Maturity of Term Loan from HDFC
Current Maturity of Term Loan from HDFC  487.97  448.56 

Total secured borrowings  2,850.16  11,417.13 
B. Un Secured - at amorƟsed cost

Unsecured loans  9,558.07  1,148.45 
Total unsecured borrowings  9,558.07  1,148.45 
Total borrowings  12,408.22  12,565.58 

1. The above working capital loan from bank (SBI & HDFC) is secured by first pari Passu charge by hypothecation over all the 
current assets including stocks of raw materials, Stock in process, Finished Goods and book debts-present and future.
The loan is further secured by way of hypothecation of plant & machineries and equipment of the company alongwith 
consortium banking arrangement member bank (SBI).

2. The above working capital loan is further secured by the personal guarantee of Sri C. P. Agrawal, Sri P.P Agarwal, Sri 
S.K. Agarwal and Sri Nitin M. Kandoi.     

3. The Company is enjoying Cash credit facilities(CC) from two Banks namely SBI & HDFC Bank Ltd. with sanction limit of 
` 3,000.00 lacs each.
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
20. Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of creditors (Refer Note no 44)  2,435.90  600.30 
Creditors for accrued wages and salaries  -    0.54 
Total trade payables  2,435.90  600.84 

21. Other Current Financial LiabiliƟes
Unpaid dividends  1.23  1.29 
Total other current financial liabiliƟes  1.23  1.29 

22. Other Current LiabiliƟes
Advance received from customers  833.91  933.64 
Advance against property  98.00  15.00 
Employee recoveries and employer's contribuƟons  16.10  15.94 
Statutory dues  652.72  794.80 
Other credit balances  579.42  533.14 
Total other liabiliƟes  2,180.15  2,292.52 

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2018

23. Revenue from operaƟons
Sale of Products
Sale of finished goods 1,00,257.95 1,21,157.95
Sale of other products 1,028.79 991.08
Total Sale of Products 1,01,286.74 1,22,149.03
Income from Real Estate Division 723.41 778.04
Revenue from OperaƟons (Net) 1,02,010.15 1,22,927.06

24. Other Income
Interest income 112.38 58.11
Gain on foreign currency transacƟons (net) 51.06 0.00
Miscellaneous income 41.04 42.66
Govt IncenƟves 3,306.00 0.00
Dividend Income 98.66 103.73
Total other income  3,609.14  204.50 

25. Cost of materials consumed
Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 8,668.95 8,003.56
Add: Purchases 83,539.37 94,160.76

92,208.33 1,02,164.32
Less: Closing stock 6,750.75 8,668.95

85,457.58 93,495.36
Cost of land sold 62.17 117.92
Total cost of materials consumed  85,519.75  93,613.29 
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2018

26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished Goods 1,498.36 2,432.96
Work-in-progress - -

1,498.36 2,432.96
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished Goods 2,674.14 1,498.36
Work-in-progress - -

2,674.14 1,498.36
Net (increase)/decrease  (1,175.78)  934.60 

27. Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and wages, including bonus 2,978.94 2,344.59
ContribuƟon to Provident and other Fund 177.44 231.02
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 34.13 57.34
Total Employee Benefits Expenses 3,190.51 2,632.95

28. Financial costs
Interest expense 1,093.97 879.65
Bank charges 72.20 88.29
Total financial costs 1,166.17 967.94

29. DepreciaƟon and AmorƟzaƟon Expenses
DepreciaƟon on tangible assets 2,497.33 2,706.87
Less: Release from capital subsidy  (102.10)  (117.34)
Total 2,395.23 2,589.53

30. Excise duty
Excise duty on sale of finished products - -
Total Excise duty - -

31. Other expenses
Manufacturing Expenses:
ConsumpƟon of stores and spare parts 1,973.15 2,105.48
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 493.29 526.37
Repairs to others 132.81 195.15
Handling Expenses 1,162.81 1,110.73
Power & Fuel 1,513.22 793.41
Packing Material Consumed 216.18 276.55
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For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

31. Other expenses
Selling & AdministraƟon Expenses:
Rates, taxes and licenses 58.19 20.01
Electricity expenses 26.11 26.81
Insurance charges 72.14 44.78
Environment expenses 366.67 395.60
Selling and distribuƟon expenses 1,323.22 776.01
Legal and professioanl fee 66.36 115.83
Travelling and conveyance expenses 109.70 115.27
Telephone expenses 14.19 11.40
Directors' remunerƟon 144.00 96.00
Corporate social responsibility expenses 195.62 100.00
PrinƟng and staƟonery 8.42 11.72
Loss on sale of fixed assets  16.42 1.64
Audit Fees 5.00 3.55
Other general expenses 137.72 213.24
Total Other Expenses 8,035.22 6,939.54

32. Income tax recognised in profit and loss
Current tax
In respect of the current year  1,136.85 3,584.49
In respect of prior years  -   -

 1,136.85  3,584.49 
Deferred tax
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes pursuant to Ɵming difference in respect of the 
current year

 483.03  504.46 

Deferred Tax Assets pursuant to MAT Credit in respect of the current year  (944.10)  (479.61)
 (461.08)  24.85 

Total tax expense  (461.08)  24.85 

33. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculaƟon of basic earnings per share are as follows:
Profit for the year 6,057 16,379
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic 
earnings per share

28,23,60,720 28,23,60,720

Basic & Diluted Earning per Share (`) 2.14 5.80
The Company is not having any potenƟal ordinary shares which are diluƟve in nature.  Hence diluted earnings per 
share is not calculated separately.
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34 Segment informaƟ on

 34.01 Products and services from which reportable segment derives their revenues

  InformaƟ on reported to the Chief operaƟ ng decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocaƟ on 
and assessment of segment performance focuses based on products and services. Accordingly, directors of the 
Company have chosen to organise the segment based on its product and services as follows:

  • Steel

  • Power

  • Agro

  • Real Estate

  The Company’s chief operaƟ ng decision maker is the Chairman & Managing Director.

  Revenue and expenses directly aƩ ributable to segment are reported under each reportable segment. All other 
expenses which are not allocable to segments have been disclosed as Unallocable expenses.

  Assets and liabiliƟ es that are directly aƩ ributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable 
segment. All other assets and liabiliƟ es are disclosed as Unallocable.

  The company’s fi nancing and income taxes are managed on a company level and are not allocated to operaƟ ng 
segment.

 34.02

Segment Revenue Segment Profit
For the 

year ended 
31.03.2020

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2019

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2020

For the 
year ended 
31.03.2019

Agro  9,933.13  11,549.06  542.79  1,229.08 
Steel  91,353.61  1,10,599.97  635.31  6,959.72 
Power  16,661.54  19,961.21  5,831.13  7,762.60 
Real Estate  723.41  778.04  661.25  660.11 
Un-allocated income  3,609.14  204.50  -    -   

 1,22,280.83  1,43,092.77  7,670.48  16,611.50 
Inter-segment revene  16,661.54  19,961.21  -    -   
Total Revenue  1,05,619.29  1,23,131.56  7,670.48  16,611.50 

For the year ended 
31.03.20120

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

Interest costs  1,166.17  967.94 
Unallocated expenses/(income)  16.12  189.86 
Profit before excepƟonal items and tax  6,488.19  15,453.71 
ExcepƟonal items  -    1,177.68 
Profit before tax  6,488.19  16,631.38 
Tax expenses  675.78  3,609.34 
Profit aŌer tax  5,812.42  13,022.04 
Share of Profit from Associates  244.15  3,356.85 
Profit aŌer tax  6,056.57  16,378.89 
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 34.03 Capital Employed

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Agro  1,901.47  2,869.19 
Steel  43,338.42  37,939.13 
Power  17,686.54  18,433.06 
Real Estate  939.34  2,695.01 
Un-allocated income  37,699.62  33,560.88 

 1,01,565.39  95,497.28 

35 Employee Benefi t Plans
 35.01 Defi ned ContribuƟ on Plans
  Employee benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defi ned contribuƟ on plan and the contribuƟ ons 

to Employees providend Fund organisaƟ on established under the Employee’s Providend fund and Misc. 
Provision Act 1952 charges to the statement of Profi t and Loss when the contribuƟ on to the respecƟ ve funds 
are due.

 35.02 Defi ned Benefi t Plans
  Gratuity
  The Company parƟ cipates in the Employees’ Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of SBI Life Insurance 

Co. Ltd., a funded defi ned benefi t plan for qualifying employees. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees 
on death or on separaƟ on / terminaƟ on in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as 
amended from Ɵ mt to Ɵ me), or as per the Company’s scheme whichever is more benefi cial to the employees.

  The liability for the Defi ned Benefi t Plan is provided on the basis of a valuaƟ on, using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. 

  Assumed discount rates are used in the measurement of the present value of the obligaƟ on.

The amount recognised in the Company’s fi nancial statements as at the year end as under:

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.03.2019

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets  178.97  135.38 
AcquisiƟon adjustment  58.86  (50.72)
Interest income on plan assets  18.38  9.76 
Employer's contribuƟon  4.84  85.77 
Return on plan assets greater / (lesser) than discount rate  (0.54)  (1.22)
Benefits paid  (0.05)  -   
Closing fair value of plan assets  260.45  178.97 
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Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon
Opening defined benefit obligaƟon  249.99  152.96 
Current service cost  120.83  89.14 
Interest cost  19.12  11.78 
Plan Amendments: Vested porƟon at end of period(Past Service)  -    -   
Remeasurement gain (loss)
Actuarial (gains) loss arising from changes in demographic assumpƟons
Actuarial (gains) loss arising from changes in financial assumpƟons  51.01  2.17 
Actuarial (gains) loss arising from experience adjustments  (70.06)  (6.06)
Benefits paid  (0.05)  -   
Exchange difference on foreign plans  -    -   
Closing defined benefit obligaƟon  370.85  249.99 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised:
I. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss 

Service Costs:
- Current service cost  120.83  89.14 
- Past service cost and (gain)/loss from seƩlements  -    -   
Net interest expenses  0.75  2.02 
Subtotal  121.58  91.16 

II. Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive 
income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
-Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
expense)

 0.54  1.22 

- Actuarial (gains)loss arising from changes in demographic assumpƟons  -    -   
- Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from changes in financial assumpƟons  51.01  2.17 
- Actuarial (gains)/loss arising from experience adjustments  (70.06)  (6.06)
Adjustments for restricƟons on the defined benefit asset  -    -   
Subtotal  (18.51)  (2.67)
Total defined benefit cost recognised  103.07  88.49 

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from defined 
benefit plan obligaƟon
Present value of funded defined benefit obligaƟon  370.85  249.99 
Fair value of plan assets  (260.45)  (178.97)
Funded status  110.40  71.03 
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligaƟon  110.40  71.03 
Principal assumpƟon used for the purpose of the actuarial valuaƟon
Mortality Table IALM. (2014-14) 

UlƟmate
IALM. (2006-08) 

UlƟmate
Discount rate 6.81% 7.65%
Expected rate(s) of salary income 9.00% 9.00%

SensiƟ vity Ananlysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporƟ ng date to one of the relevant actuarial assumpƟ ons, holding other assumpƟ ons 
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constant, would have aff ected the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on by the amounts shown below.

For the year ended 31.03.2020
(Increase) (Decrease)

Discount Rate (1% movement)  311.19  446.13 
Salary esclaƟon rate (1% movement)  442.06  312.20 
Withdrawal Rate (1% movement)  355.50  388.76 

36 Capital management

 The Company manages its capital to ensure that enƟ Ɵ es will be able to conƟ nue as going concerns while maximising 
the return to stakeholders through the opƟ misaƟ on of the debt and equity balance. The Capital structure of the 
Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes [16] and [19] off set by cash and bank balances) and 
the total equity of the Company.     

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condiƟ ons and 
the requirements of the fi nancial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital 
using a gearing raƟ o, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, 
long term-term borrowings, short-term borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

 Gearing RaƟ o

 The gearing raƟ o at end of the reporƟ ng period was as follows

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Debt
Current borrowings  12,408.22  12,565.58 
Cash and bank balances  135.72  88.28 
Net debt  12,272.50  12,477.30 
Total equity  2,823.61  2,823.61 

Equity share capital  98,741.78  92,673.67 
Other equity  1,01,565.39  95,497.28 

Net debt to equity raƟo  0.12  0.13 

37 Financial risk management objecƟ ves and policies
 The Company’s principal fi nancial liabiliƟ es, other than derivaƟ ves, comprise loans and borrowings and trade and 

other payables. The Company’s principal fi nancial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
short-term deposits that derive directly from its operaƟ ons. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and enter 
into derivaƟ ve transacƟ ons. The Company is exposed to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and 
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.     

 The Company seeks to minimise the eff ects of these risks by using derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments to hedge risk 
exposures.  The use of fi nancial derivaƟ ves is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the board of directors, 
which provide wriƩ en principles on foreign exchange risks, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of fi nancial derivaƟ ves 
and non-derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments. The Company does not enter into or trade fi nancial instruments including 
derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments, for speculaƟ ve purposes.

 37.01 Market Risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of 
changes in market prices.  The Company’s acƟ viƟ es expose it primarily to the fi nancial risks of changes in foreign 
currency  exchange rates and interest rates.  The Company enters into derivaƟ ve fi nancial instruments to manage its 
exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
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 Foreign currency risk  management

 The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings, Receivables for Exports and Payables for 
Imports in foreign currency. The funcƟ onal currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company manages currency 
exposures within prescribed limits, through use of forward exchange contracts. Foreign exchange transacƟ ons are 
covered with strict limits placed on the amount of uncovered exposure, if any, at any point in Ɵ me.

 Exposure to currency Risk

 The currency profi le of fi nancial liabiliƟ es as at Balance Sheet dates are as below:

Currency As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Financial LiabiliƟes
Hedged
Trade Paybale USD  -    -   

INR  -    -   
Unhedged
Trade Paybale USD -  1.80 

INR -  125.66 

 Interest rate risk  management

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because 
of change in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the company’s  short-term debt obligaƟ ons with fl oaƟ ng interest rates. 

 Interest rate sensiƟ vity analysis

 The Company does not account for any fi xed-rate fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabiliƟ es at fair value through profi t or 
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporƟ ng date would not aff ect profi t or loss.

 37.02 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a fi nancial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligaƟ ons, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans and 
advances.

 The carrying amount of following fi nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:  

 Trade receivables and loans and advances.     

 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is infl uenced mainly by the individual characterisƟ cs of each customer and 
the geography in which it operates. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
conƟ nuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business.     

 The Company monitors each loans and advances given and makes any specifi c provision wherever required.

 Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, Management believes there is 
no credit risk provision required. Also Company does not have any signifi cant concentraƟ on of credit risk.

 The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows:

ParƟculars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
More than Six months  228.30  337.48 
Others  3,798.11  7,525.77 

 4,026.41  7,863.26 
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 37.03 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter diffi  culty in meeƟ ng the obligaƟ ons associated with its 
fi nancial liabiliƟ es that are seƩ led by delivering cash or another fi nancial asset. The Company’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suffi  cient liquidity to meet its liabiliƟ es when they are due, 
under both normal and stressed condiƟ ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s 
reputaƟ on.

 Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity posiƟ on on the basis of expected cash fl ows. This 
monitoring includes fi nancial raƟ os and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

 The Company has access to funds from debt markets through loan from banks and other Debt instrument. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fi xed deposits.

38 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS PER AS- 18 (AS IDENTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT)

 Name of Related Party and DescripƟ on of RelaƟ onship:

I. Associate or Subsidiary Company / GallanƩ  Metal Ltd
EnƟ ty under common Control Chandra Prakash Agrawal & Sons (HUF)

Prem Prakash Agrawal HUF
Santosh Kumar Agrawal HUF
GallanƩ  FoundaƟ on

II. Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal, Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Prem Prakash Agrawal, Whole Time Director
Mr. NiƟ n Mahavir Prasad Kandoi,Whole Time Director
Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal,Whole Time Director
Mr. Mayank Agrawal, Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer
Mr. Amit Jalan,  Chief Financial Offi  cer
Mr. Nitesh Kumar, Company Secretary

III. RelaƟ ves of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Madhu Agarwal (Wife of Mr. Chandra Prakash Agrawal)
Mr. Ashutosh Agrawal  (Son of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. SmriƟ  Agrawal (Daughter in Law of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. Shyama Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Prem Prakash )
Mrs. ShruƟ  Kandoi (Wife of Mr. NiƟ n Mahavir Prasad Kandoi)
Mrs. Pallavi Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Mayank Agrawal)
Mrs. Uma Agrawal (Wife of Mr. Santosh Kumar Agrawal)
Mrs. Savita Kumari (Wife of Nitesh Kumar)
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 Related Party TransacƟ on:

Nature of TransacƟon Associate or 
Subsidiary Co. 

& Firm

Key Managerial 
Personnel

RelaƟves of 
Key Managerial 

Personnel

Total

Salary/ RemuneraƟon  -    192.23 85.13 277.36
 (138.94)  (67.20)  (206.14)

Rent Paid  -    -   
 (0.12)  (0.12)

Purchase  51.33  -    -    51.33 
 (22.81)  (22.81)

Sale  278.68  -    -    278.68 
(84.89)  (84.89)

Loan Taken  1,500.00  1,500.00 
(600.00)  (600.00)

Loan Given  500.00  500.00 
(750.00)  (750.00)

Advance Received Against Land    -    -    -  -   
   -  -   

Interest Paid  0.25  0.25 
(0.01)  (0.01)

 The Amount Shown in Bracket ( ) Denotes Previous year fi gure
39 Fair value measurements
 The fair values of the fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es are included at the amount at which the instrument could be 

exchanged in a current transacƟ on between willing parƟ es, other than in a forced or liquidaƟ on sale.
 The following methods and assumpƟ ons were used to esƟ mare the fair values:
 Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current 

liabiliƟ es, working capital loan from banks approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturiƟ es 
of these instruments. 

 Financial instruments other than above are carried at amorƟ sed cost except certain assets which are carried at fair 
value. 

 The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fi nnacial instruments by 
valuaƟ on technique.

 Level -1 : Quoted prices in acƟ ve markets for idenƟ cal assets or liabiliƟ es
 Level -2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a signifi cants eff ects on the recorded fair value are 

observable 
 Level -3 : Techniques using inputs having signifi cant eff ect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 

market data.      

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Financial Assets:
Investment - Non-current  23,607.94  23,364.29 
Security deposits - Non-current  2.50  0.68 
Trade receivables  4,026.41  7,863.26 
Cash and cash equivalents  135.72  88.28 
Other bank balances  593.63  246.61 
Loan - Current  11.00  170.64 
Other Financial assets - Current  24,352.58  24,347.39 
Total  52,729.78  56,081.14 
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As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Financial LiabiliƟes
Borrowings - Current  12,408.22  12,565.58 
Trade payable  2,435.90  600.84 
DerivaƟve financial liabiliƟes  -    -   
Other financial liabiliƟes  1.23  1.29 
Total  14,845.35  13,167.72 

40 ConƟ ngent liabiliƟ es

As at 31.03.2020
(i) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran 

Nigam for Electricity connecƟon.
 210.00 

(ii) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran 
Nigam for Electricity connecƟon.

 105.00 

(iii) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to UƩar Pradesh PolluƟon 
Control Board for NOCs.

 2.00 

(iv) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to UƩar Pradesh State Bridge 
CorporaƟon Ltd against Security.

 6.00 

(v) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Northern Coal Fields Ltd  38.31 
(vi) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Northern Coal Fields Ltd  18.57 
(vii) Guarantees given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Eastern Coal Fields Ltd  131.00 
(viii) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Linde India Limited.  10.00 
(ix) Guarantee given by the bank on behalf of the Company to Director of Mines, Office of 

Directorate of Mines for security.
 640.82 

 Sub Notes:
 1 The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where 

provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The 
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial 
results.       

 2 It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above 
pending resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions 
pending with various forums/authorities.

41 Corporate Social Responsibilty ContribuƟ on (CSR Expenses)

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  187.67  97.09 
b) Amount spent during the year on

(i) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company to Draupadi Devi Geeta Devi 
SaraswaƟ Vidya Mandir, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh paid for the development 
of School Building 

 10.00  -   

(ii) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company to Hanuman Prasad Poddar 
Smarak SamiƟ Cancer Hospital Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh for medical equipments.

 21.00  -   

(iii) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company DM Gorakhpur/Sachiv Jila 
Rifle Club Society Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh for the distribuƟon of Mask and SaniƟser to 
prevent and protect from  Covid-19  Virus.

 1.00  -   

(iv) Amount has been contributed directly by the Company for the Rural Development 
Programme is undertaken at Village -Basiya, Sahjanwa, Gorakhpur, UƩar Pradesh by way 
of making RCC Roads, drainage, community toilet block, RO water plant, renovaƟon and 
elevaƟon of Govt School Building etc. 

 163.62  -   

(v) ContribuƟon to a trust Gyan Ved FoundaƟon  -    100.00 
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42 Subsequent Events

 There are no signifi cant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the fi nancial statements 
as on the balance sheet date.  

43 Balances under Trade receivables, Trade Payables, Loans and Advances payable or receivable are subject to 
confi rmaƟ on to be received from some of the parƟ es.

44 Disclosure as per SecƟ on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 We have received few inƟ maƟ on from suppliers regarding the status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there are no outstanding dues to Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises. There is no interest due or outstanding on the same. During the year ended March 31, 2020 
amount due to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises was paid within the appointed day as defi ned in the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

45 Company has established this unit under aƩ racƟ on of fi nancial incenƟ ves and other benefi ts of a scheme of State 
Government of UƩ ar Pradesh noƟ fi ed vide Government Order No. 1502/77-6-2006-10 tax/04 dated 1st June 2006 
and which have been elaborated in Government Order No. 2941/77-6-2006-10 tax/04 dated 30th November 2006 
and amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.  The said scheme provides following fi nancial incenƟ ves besides other benefi ts to 
the industries established in the State aŌ er 1st June, 2006.  Company has complied with all the formaliƟ es required in 
this regard and has been declared an eligible unit under the scheme; as such the company is enƟ tled to get following 
fi nancial incenƟ ves:

 a) Capital investment  subsidy, addiƟ onal capital investment subsidy and infrastructure subsidy @ 35%  on fi xed 
capital investment.

 b) Reimbursement of freight paid on raw materials subject to maximum of 65% of the fi xed capital investment. 

 c) Amount of payable Commercial Taxes to State Government (VAT at that Ɵ me presently SGST) to be converted 
into interest free loan, repayable aŌ er a period of 15 years.

 State Government aŌ er declaring the unit as eligible unit disbursed an amount of ` 24.28 crores as part payment of 
the subsidies in the year 2010, but thereaŌ er refused to pay the balance amount of fi nancial incenƟ ves.  Having no 
opƟ on, company moved to Hon’ble High Court of Allahabad Lucknow Bench in 2011 and got the stay on 08.09.2011 
from payment of Commercial Tax (that Ɵ me VAT).  AŌ er a long baƩ le in court, fi nally Hon’ble High Court vide its order 
dated 22.03.2016 directed State Government to pay all the incenƟ ves within three months Ɵ me.  State Government 
instead complying with the order moved an special leave peƟ Ɵ on No.19796 before the Hon’ble Supreme Court.  
Hon’ble Supreme Court while admiƫ  ng the SLP passed an order dated 21.08.2018 staying the operaƟ on of the order 
with regard to the facility of interest free loan only, meaning thereby confi rmed the order related to payment of 
subsidies.   State Government has sƟ ll not paid the subsidies and case is pending for fi nal disposal before the Hon’ble 
Supreme Court.

 Financial Benefi ts to be received Under the Scheme are as under:

 a) Capital investment subsidy, addiƟ onal capital investment subsidy and infrastructure subsidy @ 35%  on fi xed 
capital investment.

  Company is eligible for incenƟ ves i.e. Capital investment subsidy @ 20% of fi xed capital investment, infrastructure 
subsidy @ 10% of total fi xed capital investment and 5% addiƟ onal capital subsidy being the fi rst unit in Purvanchal 
region. Company has claimed for ` 12,262.00 lacs against the capital investment made upto 31st May 2012. The 
incenƟ ve received of ` 2,428.00 Lacs has been credited in fi xed assets in the raƟ o of capital investment made. 
No provision has been made for the unrealized claim of ` 9,834.00 lacs in the books.

 b) Reimbursement of freight paid on raw materials subject to maximum of 65% of the fi xed capital investment. 

  Company is eligible for reimbursement of freight paid on transportaƟ on of raw material as freight subsidy on Iron 
Ore equivalent to the Railway freight.  The total amount of freight subsidy is restricted to 65% of the total capital 
investment under the scheme that comes ` 22,775.00 Lacs. Since company has already claimed ` 22,775.00 lacs 
Ɵ ll March 2018 as such no amount is available to be claimed as freight subsidy during the year and onward.
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 c) Amount of payable Commercial Taxes to State Government (VAT at that Ɵ me presently SGST) to be converted 
into interest free loan, repayable aŌ er a period of 15 years.

  Company is eligible for Interest free loan equivalent to the amount of VAT, CST & SGST liability for 15 years 
and which shall be re-payable aŌ er 15 years. The company has claimed as interest free loan amounƟ ng to 
` 10,828.03 lacs up to 30th June 2017 on account of VAT upto 30th June, 2017. Out of total claim of ̀  10,828.03 lacs, 
` 9,255.64 lacs has not been deposited to Commercial Tax department in accordance with order of Hon’ble High 
Court of Allahabad in writ peƟ Ɵ on no. 8886/2011, however, ` 1,572.39 Lacs have already been deposited before 
the said stay order.    

  Further as the GST act has replaced the VAT and CST w.e.f. 01.07.2017, Company has paid total amount of 
` 16,988.84 Lacs as SGST to the State Government from 01.07.2017 to 31.03.2020.  Out of this, deposited amount 
of ` 6,491.01 Lacs relates to old unit covered under this scheme which is eligible to be converted as interest free 
loan.  Thus an amount of ` 6,491.01 is refundable as interest free loan.  

46.  Company has expanded capaciƟ es of its units under aƩ racƟ on of fi nancial incenƟ ves and other benefi ts of an scheme 
of State Government of UƩ ar Pradesh noƟ fi ed vide Government Order No. 1457/77-6-12-08-(M)/12 T.C.VII dated 
23.01.2013 as amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.  The said scheme provides refund of 80% of the amount cash paid as SGST, 
as well as interest subsidy equivalent @ 5% per annum paid on term loan.  This expansion has been declared eligible 
under this scheme, hence eligible for refund of 80% of the amount cash paid as SGST. Company started commercial 
producƟ on of its expanded capaciƟ es from 1st December, 2017.  Company has paid an amount of ` 10,497.83 Lacs 
in cash as SGST for the period from 1st December, 2017 to 31st March, 2020 on account of sales from expanded 
capaciƟ es.  Company is fi ling its claim for release of subsidy from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, but disbursement and payment by 
State Government is subject to seƩ lement and verifi caƟ on of claim as per their calculaƟ on, as such fi nal eff ect of same 
is being given in accounts as and when they are seƩ led. The Company has fi led claim against SGST subsidy and others 
for the period from 1st December 2017 to 31st march, 2020, however company has been sancƟ oned an amount of 
` 3,157.25 Lacs as SGST refund and ` 182.14 Lacs as interest subsidy, and aŌ er deducƟ on of administraƟ ve charges 
of Government Agency of ` 33.39 lacs, a net amount of ` 3,306.00 lacs which has been received on March 31, 2020.  

47 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Re. 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟ tled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. During the year, no 
devidend is proposed. In the event of liquidaƟ on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟ tled to 
receive remaining assets of the Company, aŌ er distribuƟ on of all preferenƟ al amounts. This distribuƟ on will be in 
proporƟ on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The Company has not reserved any shares for 
issue under opƟ ons and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/dis-investment.   

48 The Company for the period of fi ve years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet has:

 i. On June 26, 2015, AlloƩ ed 92,15,159 equity shares as fully paid and cancelled 1,02,45,592 equity shares pursuant 
to Scheme of AmalgamaƟ on without payment being received in cash.

 ii. Not alloƩ ed fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares

 iii. Not bought back any class of shares.

49 There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the 
Audit CommiƩ ee and / or Board under SecƟ on 143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder. During the year 
under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the public within the meaning of 
SecƟ on 73 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  

50 AmalgamaƟ on of Companies   

 At their meeƟ ng held on January 18, 2020, Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Scheme of 
AmalgamaƟ on and Slump Sale providing for the AmalgamaƟ on of GallanƩ  Ispat Limited (Transferor Company No. 1 
or GIL), AAR Commercial Company Limited (Transferor Company No. 2 or AAR), Hipoline Commerce Private Limited 
(Transferor Company No. 3 or HIPOLINE), Lexi Exports Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 4 or LEXI) and Richie 
Credit and Finance Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 5 or RICHIE)(together referred to as the “Transferor 
Companies”) with GallanƩ  Metal Limited (“Transferee Company” or “GML”) and for the Slump Sale of 18 MW Power 
Plant Undertakings of GallanƩ  Ispat Limited to the Transferee Company and their respecƟ ve shareholders and 
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Creditors (‘’Scheme””) under SecƟ on 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 In accordance with the RegulaƟ on 37 of the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 (hereinaŌ er referred to as the “LODR”) Company has fi led the draŌ  Scheme of 
AmalgamaƟ on and Slump Sale with the BSE Limited (formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) and the NaƟ onal Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (hereinaŌ er together referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) for obtaining an ‘observaƟ on 
leƩ er’ or a ‘no-objecƟ on leƩ er’, before fi ling such scheme. Further, Transferor Company No. 2 and the Transferee 
Company have also fi led this applicaƟ on with the Stock Exchanges under RegulaƟ on 37 of LODR.  

 Brief details of the Scheme are as under: 

 1. GIL, AAR, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE all are TRANSFEROR COMPANIES and GML is TRANSFEREE COMPANY.

 2.       The Transferee Company is a listed Company. GIL and AAR are also Listed Companies.

 3.       Upon the Scheme becoming eff ecƟ ve in lieu of the amalgamaƟ on no consideraƟ on will be due to the Transferor 
Companies and in consideraƟ on of the amalgamaƟ on of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee 
Company pursuant to the Scheme including the consequenƟ al exƟ nguishment of the shareholding in Transferor 
Companies, the Transferee Company shall without further applicaƟ on, issue and allot as given below equity 
shares in the Transferee Company to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Companies whose names appear 
in the Register of Members of the Transferor Companies on the Record Date:  

      13 (Thirteen) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 14 
(Fourteen) equity shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up held by such member in GIL.  

      5 (Five) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 1 (One) 
equity share of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in AAR.  

      9 (Nine) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 2 (Two) 
equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in HIPOLINE.  

     84 (Eighty-Four) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for every 1 
(One) equity share of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in LEXI.  

     101 (One Hundred One) equity shares of the nominal value of ` 10/- fully paid up in the Transferee Company for 
every 2 (Two) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up held by such member in RICHIE.  

 4. Transferor Companies GIL and AAR and Transferee Company GML are under the JurisdicƟ on of the Registrar of 
Companies, Delhi and Haryana and Transferor Companies, HIPOLINE, LEXI and RICHIE are under the jurisdicƟ on 
of the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal.   

 5. Pursuant to the Scheme 18 MW Power Plant Undertakings of GIL will be sold and transferred to the Transferee 
Company through Slump Sale at a consideraƟ on of ` 35 Crores payable in cash.   

 6. “Appointed Date of Slump Sale” means the open of business hours on 1st April 2019  

 7. “Appointed Date” means the open of business hours on 1st April 2019 aŌ er the compleƟ on of the slump sale.

  Company has appointed BSE Limited as designated Stock Exchange for co-ordinaƟ ng with the SEBI in respect of 
the said Scheme and maƩ ers connected therewith.  

51 Due to pandemic COVID 19, the enƟ re operaƟ ons of your company as per the Government’s direcƟ ve were suspended 
w.e.f. 23rd March, 2020.  

 Due to naƟ onwide lockdown declared by the Government of India, manufacturing and sales operaƟ ons were shut 
down in late March, 2020 and parƟ ally resumed in the month of April and became fully operaƟ onal from start of June, 
2020 which has impacted Company’s operaƟ ons during the months of March, April and May, 2020. The Company’s 
Agro Businesses, being in the ‘essenƟ al’ category, remained operaƟ onal. The overall demands of the steel products 
have been impacted but due to easing out of restricƟ on in lockdown demand for the products are improving.
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 In adherence to the safety norms prescribed by Government of India and State Government, the operaƟ ons were 
parƟ ally resumed in the month of April as per Government guidelines in all its manufacturing locaƟ ons, warehouses 
and offi  ces.  However, now it is fully funcƟ onal.  

 Prior to resumpƟ on of operaƟ ons, the Company laid down a detailed Standard OperaƟ ng Procedure regarding Work 
from Home facility for its employees in order to ensure smooth funcƟ oning of operaƟ ons. ThereaŌ er, the Company 
has taken utmost care of its staff s and work force by taking measures like thermal screening and sanitaƟ on process of 
employees, saniƟ zaƟ on of premises, recommending use of Arogya Setu App, maintain social distancing etc. 

 The Company’s capital and fi nancial resources remain intact as the Company is having adequate capital to meet 
business requirements.   

 The Company is in a comfortable liquidity posiƟ on due to adequate banking limits being in place. The Company has 
also embarked upon a Company-wide iniƟ aƟ ve to bring down costs and conserve cash. This programme is well under 
way and the Company is expected to get benefi ts as a consequence of these iniƟ aƟ ves in future.  

 The Company is capable to service all debts as and when due. The Company is paying its lenders as per due date and 
has not availed any moratorium and COVID fi nancing.  

 The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a conƟ nuing process, given the uncertainƟ es associated with its nature 
and duraƟ on. The Company will conƟ nue to monitor any material changes to future economic condiƟ ons and the 
consequent impact on its business, if any.  

52 Figures for the previous years have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s 
presentaƟ on.
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